
 

 

 
 

MEETING 
 

ASSETS, REGENERATION AND GROWTH COMMITTEE 

DATE AND TIME 
 

MONDAY 15TH DECEMBER, 2014 
 

AT 7.00 PM 

VENUE 
 

HENDON TOWN HALL, THE BURROUGHS, LONDON NW4 4BQ 

 
TO: MEMBERS OF ASSETS, REGENERATION AND GROWTH COMMITTEE (Quorum 
3) 
 

Chairman: Councillor Daniel Thomas 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Daniel Seal   
 

Councillors 
 

Daniel Seal 
Richard Cornelius 
Pauline Coakley Webb 
 

Philip Cohen 
Geof Cooke 
Gabriel Rozenberg 
 

Nagus Narenthira 
Shimon Ryde 
 

 
Substitute Members 
 

Tom Davey  
Val Duschinsky 

Paul Edwards 
Alison Moore  

Caroline Stock 
Ross Houston 

 
 
You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached. 

 

Andrew Nathan – Head of Governance 

 
Governance Services contact: Faith Mwende 020 8359 4917 

 
Media Relations contact: Sue Cocker 020 8359 7039 
 

ASSURANCE GROUP 
 



 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

Item No Title of Report Pages 

1.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 

1 - 2 

2.   ABSENCE OF MEMBERS  
 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY 
INTERESTS AND NON-PECUNIARY INTERESTS  
 

 

4.   REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER (IF ANY)  
 

 

5.   PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS (IF ANY)  
 

 

6.   MEMBERS' ITEMS (IF ANY)  
 

 

7.   STRATEGIC ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN  
 

3 - 62 

8.   COMMUNITY ASSET STRATEGY  
 

63 - 102 

9.   ENTREPRENEURIAL BARNET  
 

103 - 166 

10.   BUSINESS PLANNING  
 

167 - 190 

11.   BRENT CROSS CRICKLEWOOD - PROJECT UPDATE  
 

191 - 204 

12.   BRENT CROSS CRICKLEWOOD - CONTRACTS EXTENSIONS  
 

205 - 212 

13.   GRAHAME PARK; CPO/GROUND 10A AND RELATED 
CONSENTS  
 

213 - 224 

14.   ASSETS, LAND AND PROPERTY TRANSACTIONS FOR 
APPROVAL  
 

 

a)   PAVILLION WAY - CHANGE OF FREE SCHOOL SPONSOR  
 

 

225 - 230 

b)   LAND TO THE REAR OF 71 HOLDEN ROAD  
 

 

231 - 236 

c)   RE-PROVISION OF COMMUNITY HALL IN TARLING ROAD, 
PREVIOULSY IN COPPETTS ROAD  
 

237 - 244 



 
 
 

 

    

 

15.   COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  
 

245 - 254 

16.   ANY OTHER ITEMS THAT THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT  
 

 

17.   MOTION TO EXCLUDE THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 

18.   LAND TO THE REAR OF 71 HOLDEN ROAD (EXEMPT)  
 

255 - 260 

19.   LOCAL AUTHORITY NEW HOUSING PROGRAMME (BARNET 
HOMES)  
 

261 - 280 

20.   ANY OTHER EXEMPT ITEM(S) THAT THE CHAIRMAN 
DECIDES ARE URGENT  
 

 

 
 

FACILITIES FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES 

Hendon Town Hall has access for wheelchair users including lifts and toilets.  If you wish to let 
us know in advance that you will be attending the meeting, please telephone Faith Mwende  
020 8359 4917.  People with hearing difficulties who have a text phone, may telephone our 
minicom number on 020 8203 8942.  All of our Committee Rooms also have induction loops. 

 
 

FIRE/EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to the nearest exit by uniformed 
custodians.  It is vital you follow their instructions. 
 
You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts. 
 
Do not stop to collect personal belongings 
 
Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move some 
distance away and await further instructions. 
 
Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
Decisions of the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee 

 
12 November 2014 

 
Members Present:- 

 
Councillor Daniel Thomas (Chairman) 

 

Councillor Richard Cornelius 
Councillor Pauline Coakley Webb 
Councillor Philip Cohen 
Councillor Geof Cooke 

Councillor Gabriel Rozenberg 
Councillor Nagus Narenthira 
Councillor Shimon Ryde 
 

 
      Apologies for Absence:- 

 
Councillor Daniel Seal 

 
 

1. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of 8 September 2014 be agreed as a correct record.  
 

2. ABSENCE OF MEMBERS  
 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Daniel Seal. There was not a 
substitute member.  
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS AND 
NON-PECUNIARY INTERESTS  
 
There were none. 
 

4. REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER (IF ANY)  
 
There was none. 
 

5. PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS (IF ANY)  
 
Details of a received comment were published and provided with agenda papers for the 
meeting. There was no verbal representation or response to this comment. 
 
There were no public questions. 
 

6. MEMBERS' ITEMS (IF ANY)  
 
There were none. 
 

7. DEPOT RELOCATION PROJECT  
 
John Hooton, Deputy Chief Operating Officer, provided an overview of the report. 
 
Following discussion of the report Councillor Pauline Coakley Webb MOVED that the 
report be referred to Council. The referral was supported by:  
 

AGENDA ITEM 1

1



 

2 

Councillor Phil Cohen  
Councillor Geof Cooke  
Councillor Nagus Narenthira 
 
RESOLVED – That having received the requisite number of support for referral, the item 
will be placed on the agenda for consideration by Full Council. 
 

8. COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Committee noted the report.  
 

9. ANY OTHER ITEMS THAT THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT  
 
There were none. 
 

10. ANY OTHER EXEMPT ITEM(S) THAT THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT  
 
There were none.  
 
 
 

The meeting finished at 7.31 pm 
 
 

2



 

 

 

Summary 
The Strategic Asset Management Plan (SAMP) is a key corporate strategic tool 
which sets out the London Borough of Barnet’s property objectives, focussing on 
how the Council intends to utilise its asset base to deliver its Corporate Plan over 
the next five years. 
 
The strategic document sets out the template and framework for how the Council will 
seek to utilise its land and property assets as a corporate resource. 
 
The key principles of the SAMP were reported at the 9 July 2014 Assets, 
Regeneration and Growth Committee and Assets and Capital board on the 19 
September 2014. Taking into account those principles, this document sets out the 
proposed approach to asset management over the next five years. 

 

 

 

Assets Regeneration and Growth 

Committee 

 

15
th

 December 2014 

  

Title  Strategic Asset Management Plan  

Report of 
John Hooton, Deputy Chief Operating Officer 
Cath Shaw, Lead Commissioner, Enterprise and 
Regeneration 

Wards All 

Status 
 
Public  
 

Enclosures                         
Appendix 1 – Draft Strategic Asset Management Plan 
Appendix 2 -  Consultation Plan 
 

Officer Contact Details  Michael Sudlow, Property Director, Re, 07860 758461 

AGENDA ITEM 7

3



Recommendations  
 
That the Committee approve the attached Strategic Asset Management Plan 
(SAMP) following a period of internal and public consultation. 
 

 

 
 
1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 

1.1 Executive Summary 

 
1.1.1 The London Borough of Barnet (LBB) holds property to sustain and support its 

corporate objectives as reflected in the corporate plan. The Council should 
seek to secure an operational and asset portfolio that is both fit for purpose 
and capable of providing flexible accommodation that can adapt to future 
requirements and increase/decrease in accordance with need. 

 
 The SAMP is attached to this report for approval following further engagement 

and consultation. 

 The SAMP sets out an approach to how the Council should manage the 

different types of land and property assets that it owns or leases. These fall 

into six main categories which are discussed in more detail within the SAMP: 

 1. Operational Assets – Held for the delivery of Council services 

 2. Community Assets – Retained for the benefit of the community 

 3. Highways and Green Spaces Portfolio 

 4. Investment Portfolio – Held primarily to provide income and investment 

opportunity 

 5. Housing Portfolio – Managed by Barnet Homes 

 6. Development Portfolio 

 

1.1.2  A consultation exercise was held between the period October 2013- 

November 2014 with key stakeholders, elected members, community groups 

and stakeholders/partner organisations. 

1.1.3  The draft SAMP was available to download from the Engage Barnet web site 

from 13/10/2014 until 17/11/2014 to all interested parties requesting feedback 

and or requests for one to one meetings. (See 4 for full consultation details) 

4



1.1.4  The SAMP is the overarching document which will set out the council’s 

objectives in terms of the use of the asset base to deliver the stated corporate 

objectives. A number of subsidiary policy documents will shortly be delivered 

such as the Community Asset Strategy and library strategy which will form the 

policy documents supporting the parent SAMP and approval of the SAMP 

should precede publication of any further strategic policy. 

1.2.1.2. 
 
1  
2.2  REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
2.2.1 It is important that the Council takes a strategic approach to asset 

management. The SAMP is a document designed to set out the future 
direction for managing public assets within the London Borough of Barnet for 
the next five years. It sets out guidelines regarding both the intended state of 
the asset portfolio and the key parameters in relation to overall asset 
management. It will be used by Elected Members, Officers and Partner 
organisations to support/inform any decision related to property assets and 
should be treated as the key reference point to which all future decisions in 
relation to the property portfolio are referenced. 

 
2.2.2 The purpose of the Council holding assets is to support its corporate 

objectives by delivering services, generating income, making assets available 
for activities that support our objectives, and protecting the long term interest 
of the community. Holding assets will also support the objectives of the local 
plan and maintaining the built environment.  

 
The objectives within the SAMP are:  

 
• Articulate a vision for Council land and property assets over the next five 

years in support of the Council’s Corporate Plan and objectives. 
 
• Set out a strategic approach in respect of the Council’s land and property 

assets so the portfolio is managed as a whole rather than considering assets 
in isolation. 

 
• Shape the Council’s operational estate to optimise service provision and meet 

the needs of customers. 
 
a) Ensure that operational properties are appropriately located, provide 

flexible accommodation at appropriate cost, are in good condition and are 
accessible to all. 

 
b) Achieve a reduction in the overall use of operational space to achieve 

savings. 
 
c) Reduce the running costs of buildings and benchmark costs in use against 

peer groups.   
 

5



d) Develop an Office Accommodation Strategy, achieving efficiency in the 
use of space through Agile / remote working, and to maximise co-location 
of services working with partners. 

 
• Ensure that the procurement of works for buildings meets sustainable design 

criteria and those buildings are maintained and managed for maximum energy 
and resource efficiency. 

 
• Support longer term regeneration and growth by preparing business cases for 

retaining, acquiring or disposing of assets ensuring best consideration is 
achieved and where relevant community and social value is taken into 
consideration.  

 
• Provide a framework against which strategies for council assets such as 

highways, housing and parks can be developed. 
 
• Develop an approach that maximises letting income and where relevant, this 

should be balanced against community or social value. 
 
• Achieve efficiencies by sharing assets across the Public Sector. 
 
2.2.3 The Council has an extensive and varied asset portfolio. The total assets by 

category and income are set out within the SAMP attached.  
 
2.2.4 The total asset value of the portfolio based on current book value (as at 31st 

March 2013) was over £1bn. This figure includes £0.6bn of social housing 
stock. Excluding the housing revenue account, the annual rental income 
received on the estate is circa £3m per annum. The total cost of office 
accommodation is currently £8.6m per annum.  

 
 
3.  ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 

3.1 It is important that the Council has an up to date Strategic Asset Management 
Plan in place. The SAMP is recommending an approach to asset 
management that maximises cost and energy efficiency across the 
operational estate, balances income maximisation with operational and 
community service and delivery across the remainder of the estate. It also 
considers the development portfolio as an income stream.   

 
3.2 The alternative option considered but not recommended is that the Council 

could decide to not adopt a SAMP.  Failure to adopt a strategic approach to 
the management of the Council’s estate will fail to deliver reductions in cost 
and increases in income in future decisions relating to the use of land and 
property.  Given the challenging financial climate and the need for the Council 
to maximise the performance of its assets, this course of action is not 
recommended.  

 

6



4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 
In the event that the SAMP is approved for publication the plan will be issued 
and made publicly available on the Barnet web site. As policy documents 
subsequently emerge the SAMP will be reviewed and updated at least 
annually to reflect any relevant changes. 
 

 
5. CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT 
 
 
5.1      A copy of the Consultation Plan is attached setting out the methodology and 

the five phase consultation plan undertaken over the period October 2013 –
December 2014 with key stakeholders; including elected Members, 
community groups and partner organisations 

 
5.2     As a result of the consultation exercises feedback over the entire period has 

been incorporated within the final document on a continuing basis. 
 
5.3     The consultation included a presentation of the draft SAMP at Hendon Town 

hall on 3/9/2014 to interested groups including CommUNITY Barnet, Age UK, 
Catch 22 and Barnet Homes. 

 
5.4 Whilst the individual groups expressed interest in the extent of the reach of 

the SAMP and the nature of the document as the parent strategic plan which 
will overarch the specific subsidiary policy proposals (e.g.; CAS) the majority 
of the enquiries referred to detail outside the SAMP scope. 

 
5.5     Comment therefore on the SAMP was positive and interested parties reserved 

their further comments until such time as the policy documents such as the 
CAS and Library strategies are published.    

 
5.6     The SAMP was made available for download on the Engage Barnet web site 

for the period 13/10/2014 -17/11/2014 inviting either comments from 
interested parties or requests for one on one meetings. In addition 
approximately 150 hard copies of the SAMP have been distributed to officer’s 
members and the general public. 

 
5.7 In association with CommUNITY  Barnet community groups were approached 

to establish if there was demand for a specific SAMP workshop. The general 
response was that given the nature of the SAMP groups would prefer to await 
specific implementation/policy documents as they emerge as set out below.  

 
5.8    The Engage Barnet site noted; a number of documents will subsequently be 

developed to support implementation of the SAMP, for example our Sports 
and Leisure Strategy, our Community Asset Strategy, and our Housing 
Strategy, and these will all be consulted on an individual basis. 

 
5.9 Consequently, overall there has been fairly limited feedback to the final 

version of the SAMP because, it is believed, the SAMP is seen as a non-
specific, over-arching document. It is expected that subsequent consultations 

7



on the detailed implementation plans will elicit far more interest from the 
community, and there are plans to continue proactive engagement on these 
additional elements as they are developed. 

 
5.10     As a result of the Engage Barnet phase of the consultation two parties have 

requested on-to-one meetings which are in hand post the formal consultation 
end date of 17-11-2014. 

 
5.11    This meeting has been programmed for the 5th December and in the event 

that any matters should arise that are relevant to this exercise those will be 
reported as a separate paper to be read in conjunction with this document 
prior to any approvals being sought.   

 
 
 
  
6. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION 

 
6.1 CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND PERFORMANCE 
 
6.1.1 The Corporate Plan 2013-16 has a strategic objective to “promote responsible 

growth, development and success across the Borough”. 
 
6.2  Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 

Property, Sustainability) 
 
6.2.1 The cost of the development of the SAMP and the component elements within 

this strategy are contained within existing CSG budgets.  
 
6.3  Legal and Constitutional References 
 
6.3.1 Council Constitution, Responsibility for Functions, Annex A – sets out the 

terms of reference do the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee which 
includes: 

o Develop strategies which maximise the financial opportunities of 
growth; and 

o Asset Management – all matters relating to land and buildings owned, 
rented or proposed to be acquired or disposed of by the Council 

o To approve any non-statutory plan or strategy within the remit of the 
Committee that is not reserved to Full Council or Policy and 
Resources. 

 
6.3.2 Council Constitution, Management of Asset, Property and Land Rules – the 
 following sections relate to the Strategic Asset Management Plan: 
 

o 2.6 Reference must be made to the Council Corporate Plan, which 
informs the Strategic Asset Management Plan and is delivered through 
the Annual Work Plan  

o 2.7 The Council may delegate responsibility to Authorised Service 
Providers to develop and deliver the Strategic Asset Management Plan 

8



and Annual Work Plan through the adoption of an Approved 
Management Structure. 

 
o 2.8 The Strategic Asset Management Plan will govern decisions on the 

future direction and development of the Council’s Built Environment. 
 

o 2.12 The Chief Operating Officer shall maintain issue and publish the 
Management of Asset, Property and Land Rules, the Strategic Asset 
Management Plan and the Annual Work Plan. 

 

o 4.1 Any significant changes to existing legislation or measurement 
standards and methods which impact upon the Asset Portfolio will be 
reflected in changes to the Annual Work Plan, Strategic Asset 
Management Plan and the Corporate Plan. 

 
6.3.3 The Council has general powers to dispose of and acquire property, 

contained in the Local Government Act 1972 and the Housing Act 1985. 
 
 
7.4  Risk Management 
 
7.4.1 The Strategic Asset Management Plan recommends an approach to asset 

management that maximises cost and energy efficiency across the 
operational estate whilst balances income maximisation with operational and 
community service and delivery across the remainder of the estate.  

 
7.4.2 This document can be used by Elected Members, Officers and Partner 

organisations to support/inform any decision related to property assets and 
can be treated as the key reference point to which all future decisions in 
relation to the property portfolio are referenced. 

 
7.4.3  The risk associated with not implementing a Strategic Asset Management 

Plan could result in failure to deliver reductions in cost and increases in 
income in future decisions relating to the use of land and property.  This is a 
high risk given the challenging financial climate and the need for the Council 
to maximise the performance of its assets, this course of action is not 
recommended. 

 
7.5  Equalities and Diversity 
 
7.5.1 Equality and diversity issues are a mandatory consideration in the decision-

making of the Council. This requires elected Members to satisfy themselves 
that equality considerations are integrated into day to day business and that 
all proposals emerging from the finance and business planning process have 
properly taken into consideration what impact, if any, there is on any protected 
group and what mitigating factors can be put in train. 

7.5.2 The projected increase in the borough’s population and changes in the 
demographic profile will be key factors that need to be considered when 
determining both the corporate strategy and service responses. Both of these 
need to also reflect the aspirations and contributions of current residents 

9



7.5.3 Similarly, all human resources implications will be managed in accordance 
with the Council’s Managing Organisational Change policy that supports the 
Council’s Human Resources Strategy and meets statutory equalities duties 
and current employment legislation. 

7.5.4 In consulting on the principles of the strategic asset management plan over 
the summer we sought to identify any particular impacts on protected groups 
that should be taken into account in developing the strategic asset 
management plan. 

 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
8.1 July 2014 Asset, Regeneration and Growth Committee approved the key 

principles of the Strategic Asset Management Plan for consultation 
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g7960/Public%20reports%20pack
%2009th-Jul-
2014%2019.00%20Assets%20Regeneration%20and%20Growth%20Committ
ee.pdf?T=10 Starting at page 167 

 
  

10



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

1

D
R

A
F
T

S
tr
a
te

g
ic
 

A
s
s
e
t

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

P
la

n
2

0
1

4
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 

11



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

2

D
R

A
F
T

12



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

3

D
R

A
F
T

C
o

n
te

n
ts
 

P
a

r
t 

1
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 C

o
n

te
x
t 

V
is

io
n

 &
 A

im
s

P
a

r
t 

2
 S

h
a

p
in

g
 t

h
e

 F
u

tu
re

 E
s
ta

te

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
E

s
ta

te

G
lo

s
s
a

ry
 o

f 
T
e

rm
s
 

 
 

 
 

 

O
v
e

ra
ll 

V
is

io
n

/A
im

 
 

 
 

 
 

W
h

y
 F

o
rm

u
la

te
 a

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

?
 

T
h

e
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 A

s
s
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

 

!
"
"
#

$%
&

$'
(

$#
)

*
%+

%,
-

.#
/
$0
1
#

"

2
01

0/
%3

"
$(

$#
%+

%,
44
0/

#
%!

/
/
5

6
6

5
7

(
$0
5

8
%9

(
$0
5

8
(

:0"
(

$0
5

8
%&

$'
(

$#
)

*

&
;

5
'$

"
%(

8
7

%<
#

0"
=

'#
%!

/
$0
1
0$
0#

"
%

3
7

=
/
(

$0
5

8
%>

5
'$

45
:05

%

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 A

s
s
e

t 
S

tr
a

te
g

y

B
o

ro
u

g
h

: 
a

 B
ri
e

f 
O

v
e

rv
ie

w

<
5

8
7

5
8

%?
5

'5
=

)
@

%5
4%
?

(
'8

#
$%
2

5
';

5
'(

$#
%>

:(
8

%
 C

u
rr

e
n

t 
A

s
s
e

t 
B

a
s
e

 

P
o

rt
fo

lio
 D

e
ta

ils

!
7

(
;

$0
8

)
%$
@

#
%3

"
$(

$#
%A

%9
(

$0
5

8
(

:#
%4
5

'%
&

$'
(

$#
)

0/
%!

"
"
#

$%
B

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$

D
is

p
o

s
a

ls

A
c
q

u
is

it
io

n
s

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

G
re

e
n

 I
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

 A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 P
o

rt
fo

lio
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g

y

?
=

0:7
08

)
%5

8
%$
@

#
%2

5
=

8
/
0:%

C
'(

/
D
%9

#
/
5

'7

 

T
h

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

C
o

n
te

x
t 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 E

s
ta

te

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 &

 G
re

e
n

 S
p

a
c
e

s
 P

o
rt

fo
lio

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
E

s
ta

te

H
o

u
s
in

g
 P

o
rt

fo
lio

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
o

rt
fo

lio

5 7 7 7 8

1
5

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
4

2
5

2
6

2
7

9 1
0

1
2

1
2

1
2

1
3

1
3

13



4

D
R

A
F
TS

tr
a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

C
o

n
te

n
ts
 

P
a

r
t 

3
 D

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

D
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

<
?

?
%2

5
8

"
$0
$=

$0
5

8

E
5

'D
08

)
%F

0$
@

%&
$'

(
$#

)
0/

%>
(

'$
8

#
'"

E
5

'D
08

)
%F

0$
@

%>
=

-
:0/

%&
#

/
$5

'%
A

%G
5

:=
8

$(
'*

%H
%2

5
6

6
=

8
0$
*
%>

(
'$

8
#

'%
,

')
(

8
0"

(
$0
5

8
"

I8
$#

)
'(

$#
7

%>
'5

;
#

'$
*
%!

"
"
#

$%
B

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$%
&

*
"
$#

6
%J

I>
!

B
&

K

C
@

#
%2

5
';

5
'(

$#
%<

(
8

7
:5

'7
%B

5
7

#
:

2
5

8
/
:=

"
05

8
%A

%E
(

*
%L

5
'F

(
'7

!
;

;
#

8
7

0M
%N

%O
%P

#
*
%9

#
4#

'#
8

/
#

%Q
5

/
=

6
#

8
$"

!
;

;
#

8
7

0M
%R

%O
%I
8

/
5

6
#

%>
'5

7
=

/
08

)
%!

"
"
#

$"

2
5

8
/
:=

"
05

8
"
%A

%E
(

*
%L

5
'F

(
'7

3
0

3
0

3
1

3
3

3
3

3
4

3
6

3
7

14



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

5

D
R

A
F
T

G
lo

s
s
a

ry
 o

f 
T
e

rm
s
 

A
C

B
 

A
s
s
e
ts

 a
n
d
 C

a
p
ita

l B
o
a
rd

A
L

M
O

 
A

rm
s
 L

e
n
g
th

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
tio

n

A
L

P
 

A
s
s
e
ts

, 
L
a
n
d
 a

n
d
 P

ro
p
e
rt
y 

R
u
le

s

A
R

G
 

A
s
s
e
ts

, 
R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

tio
n
 a

n
d
 G

ro
w

th
 C

o
m

m
itt

e
e

A
T

R
IU

M
 

D
a
ta

b
a
s
e
 S

o
ftw

a
re

A
W

S
 

A
g
ile

 W
o
rk

in
g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

C
A

S
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ity

 A
s
s
e
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y

C
C

G
 

C
lin

ic
a
l C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u
p

C
L

P
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 L

a
n
d
lo

rd
 P

o
lic

y

C
S

G
 

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 G

ro
u
p

C
S

O
 

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

p
e
ra

tio
n

C
V

S
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
fo

r 
V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

D
R

S
 

D
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 R

e
g
u
la

to
ry

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
C

H
 

E
d
g
w

a
re

 C
o
m

m
u
n
ity

 H
o
s
p
ita

l

H
R

A
H

o
u
s
in

g
 R

e
ve

n
u
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
t

IP
A

M
S

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 P

ro
p
e
rt
y 

A
s
s
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

ys
te

m

L
A

B
V

L
o
c
a
l A

s
s
e
t 
B

a
c
ke

d
 V

e
h
ic

le
s

L
B

B
L
o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f 
B

a
rn

e
t

L
D

F
L
o
c
a
l D

e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

N
L

B
P

N
o
rt
h
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rk

N
L
W

A
N

o
rt
h
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 W

a
s
te

 A
s
s
o
c
ia

tio
n

N
S

C
S

O
N

e
w

 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

rg
a
n
is

a
tio

n

O
A

R
S

O
ffi
c
e
 A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
tio

n
 R

a
tio

n
a
lis

a
tio

n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

R
e

R
e
g
io

n
a
l E

n
te

rp
ris

e

R
IC

S
R

o
ya

l I
n
s
tit

u
tio

n
 o

f 
C

h
a
rt
e
re

d
 S

u
rv

e
yo

rs

S
A

M
P

S
tr
a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n

S
P
A

S
p
o
rt
 a

n
d
 P

h
ys

ic
a
l A

c
tiv

ity
 R

e
vi
e
w

T
O

M
Ta

rg
e
t 
O

p
e
ra

tin
g
 M

o
d
e
l

15



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

6

D
R

A
F
T

P
a

r
t 

1
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 C
o
n
te

xt

In
 T

h
is

 S
e

c
ti

o
n

V
is

io
n

 &
 A

im
s

T
h

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

C
o

n
te

x
t

16



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

7

D
R

A
F
T

S
tr
a
te

g
ic

 C
o
n
te

xt
P

a
r
t 

1

C
@

#
%<

5
8

7
5

8
%?

5
'5

=
)

@
%5

4%
?

(
'8

#
$%
J<

?
?

K%
@

5
:7

"
%;

'5
;

#
'$

*
%$
5

%
"
=

"
$(

08
%(

8
7

%"
=

;
;

5
'$

%0
$"

%/
5

';
5

'(
$#

%5
-

.#
/
$0
1
#

"
%(

"
%"

#
$%
5

=
$%
08

%
$@

#
%2

5
';

5
'(

$#
%>

:(
8

S%
(

8
7

%5
$@

#
'%

"
$'

(
$#

)
0#

"
T%

C
@

#
%(

06
%5

4%
$@

#
%&

$'
(

$#
)

0/
%!

"
"
#

$%
B

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$%
>

:(
8

%J
&

!
B

>
K%

0"
%$
5

%"
#

$%
5

=
$%
$@

#
%2

5
=

8
/
0:U

"
%1

0"
05

8
S%
(

"
;

0'
(

$0
5

8
"
%(

8
7

%5
-

.#
/
$0
1
#

"
%

45
'%

0$
"
%:
(

8
7

%(
8

7
%;

'5
;

#
'$

*
%(

"
"
#

$"
%;

5
'$

45
:05

S%
(

8
7

%$
5

%5
=

$:
08

#
%(

%
40
1
#

%*
#

(
'%

;
:(

8
%4
5

'%
@

5
F

%0
$%
08

$#
8

7
"
%$
5

%(
/
@

0#
1
#

%$
@

#
"
#

%5
=

$/
5

6
#

"
T

C
@

0"
%7

5
/
=

6
#

8
$%
'#

;
:(

/
#

"
%$
@

#
%3

"
$(

$#
"
%B

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$%
&

$'
(

$#
)

*
%R

V
N
N

OR
V

N
W

%(
8

7
%"

@
5

=
:7

%-
#

%'
#

(
7

%0
8

%/
5

8
.=

8
/
$0
5

8
%

F
0$
@

%$
@

#
%2

5
=

8
/
0:U

"
%:
(

8
7

%(
8

7
%;

'5
;

#
'$

*
%'

=
:#

"
T

 

!
"
"
#

$%
B

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$%
0"

%$
@

#
%)

#
8

#
'0
/
%;

'5
/
#

"
"
%$
@

(
$%
"
#

#
D
"
%$
5

%#
8

"
=

'#
%

$@
(

$%
:(

8
7

%(
8

7
%-

=
0:7

08
)

"
S%
(

"
%$
@

#
%(

"
"
#

$%
-

(
"
#

%5
4%
(

8
%5

')
(

8
0"

(
$0
5

8
S%

(
'#

%"
$'

=
/
$=

'#
7

%0
8

%$
@

#
%-

#
"
$%
/
5

';
5

'(
$#

%0
8

$#
'#

"
$"

%5
4%
$@

#
%5

')
(

8
0"

(
$0
5

8
%

/
5

8
/
#

'8
#

7
T%

C
@

#
%"

$'
(

$#
)

0/
%;

:(
8

%'
#

4#
'"

%$
5

%:
(

8
7

%(
8

7
%-

=
0:7

08
)

"
%5

8
:*

T%
I$
%(

:0)
8

"
%

$@
#

%(
"
"
#

$%
-

(
"
#

%F
0$
@

%$
@

#
%5

')
(

8
0"

(
$0
5

8
U"

%/
5

';
5

'(
$#

%)
5

(
:"

%(
8

7
%

5
-

.#
/
$0
1
#

"
%(

8
7

%'
#

"
;

5
8

7
"
%$
5

%(
::%

4=
8

/
$0
5

8
(

:%
(

8
7

%"
#

'1
0/

#
%7

#
:01

#
'*

%
'#

X
=

0'
#

6
#

8
$"

%5
4%
$@

#
%5

')
(

8
0"

(
$0
5

8
T%
C

@
0"

%F
0::

%#
8

(
-

:#
%$
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

$5
%6

#
#

$%
0$
"
%"

$(
$=

$5
'*

%(
8

7
%5

$@
#

'%
5

-
:0)

(
$0
5

8
"
%$
5

%7
#

:01
#

'%
1
(

'0
5

=
"
%

5
;

#
'(

$0
5

8
(

:%
4=

8
/
$0
5

8
"
%(

8
7

%"
#

'1
0/

#
"
%F

0$
@

08
%$
@

#
%-

5
'5

=
)

@
T%

C
@

#
%&

$'
(

$#
)

0/
%!

"
"
#

$%
B

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$%
>

:(
8

%0
"
%(

%D
#

*
%/

5
';

5
'(

$#
%

"
$'

(
$#

)
0/

%$
5

5
:%
F

@
0/

@
%"

#
$"

%5
=

$%
$@

#
%<

5
8

7
5

8
%?

5
'5

=
)

@
%5

4%
?

(
'8

#
$U"

%;
'5

;
#

'$
*
%5

-
.#

/
$0
1
#

"
S%
45

/
=

"
"
08

)
%5

8
%@

5
F

%$
@

#
%

2
5

=
8

/
0:%

08
$#

8
7

"
%$
5

%=
$0
:0"

#
%0
$"

%(
"
"
#

$%
-

(
"
#

%$
5

%7
#

:01
#

'%
0$
"
%

2
5

';
5

'(
$#

%>
:(

8
T

C
@

#
%&

!
B

>
%F

0::
%-

#
%=

"
#

7
%-

*
%3

:#
/
$#

7
%B

#
6

-
#

'"
S%
,

44
0/

#
'"

%
(

8
7

%>
(

'$
8

#
'%

5
')

(
8

0"
(

$0
5

8
"
%$
5

%"
=

;
;

5
'$

H0
8

45
'6

%(
8

*
%7

#
/
0"

05
8

%
'#

:(
$#

7
%$
5

%;
'5

;
#

'$
*
%(

"
"
#

$"
%(

8
7

%"
@

5
=

:7
%-

#
%$
'#

(
$#

7
%(

"
%$
@

#
%D

#
*
%

'#
4#

'#
8

/
#

%;
5

08
$%
45

'%
(

::%
4=

$=
'#

%;
'5

;
#

'$
*
%;

5
'$

45
:05

%7
#

/
0"

05
8

"
T%

O
ve

ra
ll 
V
is

io
n
/A

im
T
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n

W
h
y 

F
o
rm

u
la

te
 a

 S
tr
a
te

g
ic

 

A
s
s
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
?

Y
#

8
7

5
8

%C
5

F
8

%Y
(

::%

17



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

8

D
R

A
F
T

C
@

#
%&

!
B

>
%;

'5
1
07

#
"
%(

%4
'(

6
#

F
5

'D
%F

0$
@

08
%F

@
0/

@
%$
@

#
%<

5
8

7
5

8
%

?
5

'5
=

)
@

%5
4%
?

(
'8

#
$%
/
(

8
%"

#
/
=

'#
%$
@

#
%5

;
#

'(
$0
5

8
(

:%
(

8
7

%4
08

(
8

/
0(

:%
-

#
8

#
40
$"

%5
4%
(

8
%3

"
$(

$#
%F

@
0/

@
%(

"
;

0'
#

"
%$
5

%"
$(

8
7

(
'7

"
%5

4%
-

#
"
$%

;
'(

/
$0
/
#

T%
I$
%F

0::
%(

7
7

'#
"
"
%$
@

#
%8

#
#

7
%$
5

%"
#

/
=

'#
%$
@

#
%6

(
M
06

=
6

%
;

5
$#

8
$0
(

:%
#

/
5

8
5

6
0/

%-
#

8
#

40
$%
F

@
0:"

$%
"
=

;
;

5
'$

08
)

%7
#

:01
#

'*
%5

4%
$@

#
%

2
5

=
8

/
0:U

"
%5

-
.#

/
$0
1
#

"
%$
@

'5
=

)
@

S%
;

'5
1
07

08
)

%"
#

'1
0/

#
"
S%
#

8
(

-
:08

)
%

/
5

6
6

=
8

0$
*
%;

(
'$

0/
0;

(
$0
5

8
S%
7

#
:01

#
'*

S%
)

'5
F

$@
%(

8
7

%'
#

)
#

8
#

'(
$0
5

8
T

C
@

#
%5

-
.#

/
$0
1
#

"
%5

4%
$@

#
%&

!
B

>
%(

'#
%$
5

Z

!
'$

0/
=

:(
$#

%(
%1

0"
05

8
%4
5

'%
2

5
=

8
/
0:%

:(
8

7
%(

8
7

%;
'5

;
#

'$
*
%(

"
"
#

$"
%

o
v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 
fi
v
e

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il�

s
 

5
-

.#
/
$0
1
#

"
T

S
e

t 
o

u
t 
a

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il�

s
 

:(
8

7
%(

8
7

%;
'5

;
#

'$
*
%(

"
"
#

$"
%"

5
%$
@

#
%;

5
'$

45
:05

%0
"
%6

(
8

(
)

#
7

%(
"
%

(
%F

@
5

:#
%'

(
$@

#
'%

$@
(

8
%/

5
8

"
07

#
'0
8

)
%(

"
"
#

$"
%0
8

%0
"
5

:(
$0
5

8
T

S
h

a
p

e
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il�

s
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
e

s
ta

te
 t
o

 o
p

ti
m

is
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

;
'5

1
0"

05
8

%(
8

7
%6

#
#

$%
$@

#
%8

#
#

7
"
%5

4%
/
=

"
$5

6
#

'"
T

3
8

"
=

'#
%$
@

(
$%
$@

#
%;

'5
/
=

'#
6

#
8

$%
5

4%
F

5
'D

"
%4
5

'%
-

=
0:7

08
)

"
%6

#
#

$"
%

"
=

"
$(

08
(

-
:#

%7
#

"
0)

8
%/

'0
$#

'0
(

%(
8

7
%$
@

5
"
#

%-
=

0:7
08

)
"
%(

'#
%

6
(

08
$(

08
#

7
%(

8
7

%6
(

8
(

)
#

7
%4
5

'%
6

(
M
06

=
6

%#
8

#
')

*
%(

8
7

%
'#

"
5

=
'/

#
%#

44
0/

0#
8

/
*T

&
=

;
;

5
'$

%:
5

8
)

#
'%

$#
'6

%'
#

)
#

8
#

'(
$0
5

8
%(

8
7

%)
'5

F
$@

%-
*
%;

'#
;

(
'0
8

)
%

-
=

"
08

#
"
"
%/

(
"
#

"
%4
5

'%
'#

$(
08

08
)

S%
(

/
X

=
0'
08

)
%5

'%
7

0"
;

5
"
08

)
%5

4%
(

"
"
#

$"
%

#
8

"
=

'0
8

)
%-

#
"
$%
/
5

8
"
07

#
'(

$0
5

8
%0
"
%(

/
@

0#
1
#

7
%(

8
7

%F
@

#
'#

%'
#

:#
1
(

8
$%

/
5

6
6

=
8

0$
*
%(

8
7

%"
5

/
0(

:%
1
(

:=
#

%0
"
%$
(

D
#

8
%0
8

$5
%/

5
8

"
07

#
'(

$0
5

8
T%

>
'5

1
07

#
%(

%4
'(

6
#

F
5

'D
%(

)
(

08
"
$%
F

@
0/

@
%"

$'
(

$#
)

0#
"
%4
5

'%
/
5

=
8

/
0:%

(
"
"
#

$"
%"

=
/
@

%(
"
%@

0)
@

F
(

*
"
S%
@

5
=

"
08

)
%(

8
7

%;
(

'D
"
%/

(
8

%-
#

%
7

#
1
#

:5
;

#
7

T

Q
#

1
#

:5
;

%(
8

%(
;

;
'5

(
/
@

%$
@

(
$%
6

(
M
06

0"
#

"
%:
#

$$
08

)
%0
8

/
5

6
#

%(
8

7
%

F
@

#
'#

%'
#

:#
1
(

8
$S
%$
@

0"
%"

@
5

=
:7

%-
#

%-
(

:(
8

/
#

7
%(

)
(

08
"
$%
/
5

6
6

=
8

0$
*
%

5
'%

"
5

/
0(

:%
1
(

:=
#

%(
8

7
[

!
/
@

0#
1
#

%#
44
0/

0#
8

/
0#

"
%-

*
%"

@
(

'0
8

)
%(

"
"
#

$"
%(

/
'5

"
"
%$
@

#
%;

=
-

:0/
%

"
#

/
$5

'T

S
tr
a
te

g
ic

 C
o
n
te

xt
P

a
r
t 

1

A
s
s
e
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y 

–
 O

b
je

c
tiv

e
s

3
8

"
=

'#
%$
@

(
$%
5

;
#

'(
$0
5

8
(

:%
;

'5
;

#
'$

0#
"
%(

'#
%(

;
;

'5
;

'0
(

$#
:*

%:
5

/
(

$#
7

S%
;

'5
1
07

#
%4
:#

M
0-

:#
%(

/
/
5

6
6

5
7

(
$0
5

8
%(

$%
(

;
;

'5
;

'0
(

$#
%/

5
"
$S
%(

'#
%0
8

%
)

5
5

7
%/

5
8

7
0$
05

8
%(

8
7

%(
'#

%(
/
/
#

"
"
0-

:#
%$
5

%(
::T

!
/
@

0#
1
#

%(
%'

#
7

=
/
$0
5

8
%0
8

%$
@

#
%5

1
#

'(
::%

=
"
#

%5
4%
5

;
#

'(
$0
5

8
(

:%
"
;

(
/
#

%
$5

%(
/
@

0#
1
#

%"
(

1
08

)
"
T

9
#

7
=

/
#

%$
@

#
%'

=
8

8
08

)
%/

5
"
$"

%5
4%
-

=
0:7

08
)

"
%(

8
7

%-
#

8
/
@

6
(

'D
%/

5
"
$"

%
08

%=
"
#

%(
)

(
08

"
$%
;

#
#

'%
)

'5
=

;
"
T%

%

Q
#

1
#

:5
;

%(
8

%,
44
0/

#
%!

/
/
5

6
6

5
7

(
$0
5

8
%&

$'
(

$#
)

*S
%(

/
@

0#
1
08

)
%

#
44
0/

0#
8

/
*
%0
8

%$
@

#
%=

"
#

%5
4%
"
;

(
/
#

%$
@

'5
=

)
@

%!
)

0:#
%H
%'

#
6

5
$#

%F
5

'D
08

)
%

(
8

7
%$
5

%6
(

M
06

0"
#

%/
5

O:
5

/
(

$0
5

8
%5

4%
"
#

'1
0/

#
"
%F

5
'D

08
)

%F
0$
@

%
;

(
'$

8
#

'"
T

18



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

9

D
R

A
F
T

C
@

#
%<

5
8

7
5

8
%?

5
'5

=
)

@
%5

4%
?

(
'8

#
$%
0"

%$
@

#
%"

#
/
5

8
7

%:
(

')
#

"
$%

<
5

8
7

5
8

%-
5

'5
=

)
@

%-
*
%;

5
;

=
:(

$0
5

8
%(

8
7

%/
5

1
#

'"
%(

8
%(

'#
(

%5
4%

\
]

T^
_

%"
X

=
(

'#
%D

0:5
6

#
$'

#
"
%J

`
`

%"
X

%6
0:#

"
KT

C
@

#
%?

5
'5

=
)

@
%F

(
"
%4
5

'6
#

7
%0
8

%N
a

]
W

%(
8

7
%"

$'
#

$/
@

#
"
%4
'5

6
%

3
7

)
F

(
'#

%$
5

%?
'=

8
"
F

0/
D
%>

(
'D

%(
8

7
%Y

0)
@

%?
(

'8
#

$%
$5

%2
@

0:7
"
%

Y
0::

T%
C

@
#

%R
V

N
N

%/
#

8
"
=

"
%'

#
;

5
'$

#
7

%N
`

W
Sa

V
V

%@
5

=
"
#

@
5

:7
"
%0
8

%
?

(
'8

#
$%
F

0$
@

%(
8

%(
1
#

'(
)

#
%5

/
/
=

;
(

$0
5

8
%5

4%
R

T]
%;

#
'"

5
8

"
T%
,

8
#

%0
8

%
$@

'#
#

%@
5

=
"
#

@
5

:7
"
%:
01

#
%0
8

%(
%4
:(

$%
F

0$
@

%(
%)

#
8

#
'(

:%
$'

#
8

7
%$
5

F
(

'7
"
%

"
6

(
::#

'%
"
08

)
:#

%0
8

/
5

6
#

%@
5

=
"
#

@
5

:7
"
%(

8
7

%\
N

SV
V

V
%0
8

7
01

07
=

(
:"

%
:01

08
)

%(
:5

8
#

T

C
@

#
%$
5

$(
:%
;

5
;

=
:(

$0
5

8
%4
5

'%
?

(
'8

#
$%
08

%R
V

N
`

%(
6

5
=

8
$#

7
%$
5

%
`

]
R

SV
]

W
%0
8

7
01

07
=

(
:"

%;
'5

.#
/
$#

7
%$
5

%0
8

/
'#

(
"
#

%-
*
%R

V
_

N
%$
5

%
_

_
W

S_
R

R
T

C
@

#
%<

5
/
(

:%
3

/
5

8
5

6
*
%F

0$
@

08
%?

(
'8

#
$%
0"

%/
@

(
'(

/
$#

'0
"
#

7
%-

*
%(

%
h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a

n
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 
h

ig
h

 i
n

c
o

m
e

 e
a

rn
e

rs
 

$@
(

8
%$
@

#
%'

#
"
$%
5

4%
$@

#
%b

P
%(

8
7

%0
"
%/

@
(

'(
/
$#

'0
"
$0
/
(

::*
Z

!
%:
5

/
(

:%
#

/
5

8
5

6
*
%6

(
7

#
%=

;
%6

(
08

:*
%5

4%
"
6

(
::%

(
8

7
%

6
#

7
0=

6
O"

0c
#

7
%-

=
"
08

#
"
"
#

"
T

<
5

F
#

'%
$@

(
8

%(
1
#

'(
)

#
%'

(
$#

"
%5

4%
=

8
#

6
;

:5
*
6

#
8

$%
45

'%
<

5
8

7
5

8
%

(
8

7
%(

%@
0)

@
#

'%
$@

(
8

%(
1
#

'(
)

#
%'

(
$#

%5
4%
G

!
C

O'
#

)
0"

$#
'#

7
%

-
=

"
08

#
"
"
#

"
T%

9
#

"
07

#
8

$"
%F

0$
@

%-
#

$$
#

'%
$@

(
8

%(
1
#

'(
)

#
%X

=
(

:04
0/

(
$0
5

8
"
%#

(
'8

08
)

%
@

0)
@

#
'%

$@
(

8
%(

1
#

'(
)

#
%F

(
)

#
"
%(

8
7

%"
(

:(
'0
#

"
%O

%6
(

8
*
%0
8

%.
5

-
"
%0
8

%
E

#
"
$6

08
"
$#

'%
(

8
7

%$
@

#
%2

0$
*T

!
%F

5
'D

45
'/

#
%$
@

(
$%
#

(
'8

"
%(

%:
0$
$:
#

%-
#

:5
F

%$
@

#
%(

1
#

'(
)

#
%4
5

'%
<

5
8

7
5

8
T

S
tr
a
te

g
ic

 C
o
n
te

xt
P

a
r
t 

1

T
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
: 
a
 b

rie
f 
o
ve

rv
ie

w

P
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 

O%
R

V
V

%d
%V

%

%%
%%

%%
V

%d
%R

V
V

%%
%%

%%
R

V
V

%d
%_

V
V

%%
%%

%%
_

V
V

%d
%]

V
V

%%
%%

%%
]

V
V

%d
%\

V
V

%%
%%

%%
\

V
V

%d
%N

V
V

V

%%
%%

%%
%%

%%
%%

%d
%N

V
V

V

19



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

1
0

D
R

A
F
T

C
@

#
%2

5
';

5
'(

$#
%>

:(
8

%R
V

N
`

OR
V

N
]

%"
#

$"
%5

=
$%
5

-
.#

/
$0
1
#

"
%

(
8

7
%6

#
(

"
=

'#
"
%(

)
(

08
"
$%
F

@
0/

@
%;

'5
)

'#
"
"
%F

0::
%-

#
%.
=

7
)

#
7

T%

C
@

#
%2

5
';

5
'(

$#
%>

:(
8

%&
$'

(
$#

)
0/

%,
-

.#
/
$0
1
#

"
%(

'#
Z

>
'5

6
5

$#
%'

#
"
;

5
8

"
0-

:#
%)

'5
F

$@
S%
7

#
1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$%
(

8
7

%
"
=

/
/
#

"
"
%(

/
'5

"
"
%$
@

#
%-

5
'5

=
)

@
T

C
5

%"
=

;
;

5
'$

%4
(

6
0:0

#
"
%(

8
7

%0
8

7
01

07
=

(
:"

%0
8

%8
#

#
7

%;
'5

6
5

$0
8

)
%

08
7

#
;

#
8

7
#

8
/
#

S%
:#

(
'8

08
)

%(
8

7
%F

#
::-

#
08

)
T

I6
;

'5
1
#

%"
(

$0
"
4(

/
$0
5

8
%5

4%
'#

"
07

#
8

$"
%(

8
7

%-
=

"
08

#
"
"
#

"
%

F
0$
@

08
%$
@

#
%<

5
8

7
5

8
%?

5
'5

=
)

@
%5

4%
?

(
'8

#
$%
(

"
%(

%;
:(

/
#

%$
5

%
:01

#
S%
F

5
'D

%(
8

7
%"

$=
7

*T
%

K
e
y 

Is
s
u
e
s
 u

n
d
e
r 
th

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n

C
@

#
%2

5
';

5
'(

$#
%>

:(
8

%5
=

$:
08

#
"
%(

%8
=

6
-

#
'%

5
4%
$@

#
6

#
"
%

'#
:(

$0
8

)
%$
5

%(
"
"
#

$%
6

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$T

T
o

 m
e

e
t 
th

e
s
e

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 t
h

e
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 A

s
s
e

t 
B

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$%
>

:(
8

%"
#

#
D
"
%$
5

Z

M
a

x
im

is
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

tu
rn

s
 f
ro

m
 C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
A

s
s
e

ts
 

(
8

7
%:
5

8
)

%$
#

'6
%0
8

/
5

6
#

%H
%/

(
;

0$
(

:%
)

#
8

#
'(

$0
5

8
%4
'5

6
%

7
#

1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$%
5

;
;

5
'$

=
8

0$
0#

"

D
e

s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
: 
C

@
#

%;
=

';
5

"
#

%5
4%
$@

0"
%5

-
.#

/
$0
1
#

%0
"
%$
5

%#
8

"
=

'#
%

$@
(

$%
$@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

'#
/
#

01
#

"
%$
@

#
%-

#
"
$%
;

5
"
"
0-

:#
%0
8

/
5

6
#

%
5

'%
'#

/
#

0;
$"

%4
'5

6
%$
@

5
"
#

%/
5

=
8

/
0:%

5
F

8
#

7
%;

'5
;

#
'$

0#
"
%(

8
7

%
:(

8
7

"
%F

@
0/

@
%)

#
8

#
'(

$#
%'

#
8

$%
5

'%
@

(
1
#

%-
#

#
8

%0
7

#
8

$0
40
#

7
%4
5

'%
7

0"
;

5
"
(

:T

S
o

lu
ti
o

n
: 
T

h
e

 S
A

M
P

 w
ill

 o
u

tl
in

e
 t
h

e
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 
6

(
M
06

0"
08

)
%0
8

/
5

6
#

%4
'5

6
%-

5
$@

%/
5

6
6

#
'/

0(
:%
(

"
"
#

$"
%(

8
7

%
7

#
1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$%
5

;
;

5
'$

=
8

0$
0#

"
T%
B

(
M
06

0"
#

%#
44
0/

0#
8

$%
(

8
7

%
#

44
#

/
$0
1
#

%=
"
#

%5
4%
>

=
-

:0/
%(

8
7

%2
01

0/
%?

=
0:7

08
)

"
%0
8

%$
@

#
%

7
#

:01
#

'*
%5

4%
/
5

=
8

/
0:%

&
#

'1
0/

#
"
T%

S
tr
a
te

g
ic

 C
o
n
te

xt
P

a
r
t 

1

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f 
B

a
rn

e
t 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n

20



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

1
1

D
R

A
F
T

S
tr
a
te

g
ic

 C
o
n
te

xt
P

a
r
t 

1

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f 
B

a
rn

e
t 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n

B
(

M
06

0"
#

%#
44
0/

0#
8

$%
(

8
7

%#
44
#

/
$0
1
#

%=
"
#

%5
4%
>

=
-

:0/
%(

8
7

%
2

01
0/

%?
=

0:7
08

)
"
%0
8

%$
@

#
%7

#
:01

#
'*

%5
4%
2

5
=

8
/
0:%

&
#

'1
0/

#
"
T%

D
e

s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
: 
T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
c
o

u
n

c
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 

;
'5

1
07

#
7

%$
@

'5
=

)
@

%4
(

/
0:0

$0
#

"
%F

@
0/

@
%(

'#
%-

5
$@

%4
0$
%4
5

'%
;

=
';

5
"
#

%(
8

7
%=

$0
:0"

#
7

%0
8

%$
@

#
%6

5
"
$%
/
5

"
$%
#

44
#

/
$0
1
#

%F
(

*T
%

S
o

lu
ti
o

n
: 
C

@
#

%&
!

B
>

%F
0::

%5
=

$:
08

#
%$
@

#
%(

;
;

'5
(

/
@

%(
8

7
%

6
#

$@
5

7
5

:5
)

*
%4
5

'%
6

(
M
06

0"
08

)
%$
@

#
%#

44
#

/
$0
1
#

%=
"
#

%5
4%
$@

#
%

>
=

-
:0/

%3
"
$(

$#
T%

B
(

M
06

0"
#

%#
44
0/

0#
8

$%
(

8
7

%#
44
#

/
$0
1
#

%=
"
#

%5
4%
/
5

=
8

/
0:%

(
"
"
#

$"
%

45
'%

2
5

6
6

=
8

0$
*
%=

"
#

T%

D
e

s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
: 
C

@
#

%:
(

')
#

%(
8

7
%)

'5
F

08
)

%8
=

6
-

#
'%

5
4%

/
5

6
6

=
8

0$
*
%-

(
"
#

7
%)

'5
=

;
"
%;

:(
/
#

"
%(

8
%0
8

/
'#

(
"
08

)
%

7
#

6
(

8
7

%=
;

5
8

%#
M
0"

$0
8

)
S%
(

)
#

08
)

%/
5

=
8

/
0:%

(
"
"
#

$"
%

(
::5

/
(

$#
7

%4
5

'%
/
5

6
6

=
8

0$
*
%=

"
#

T%
C

@
#

%0
8

$#
8

$%
0"

%$
5

%#
8

"
=

'#
%

th
a

t 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

a
s
s
e

ts
 i
s
 l
o

c
a

l,
 f
it
 f
o

r 
p

u
rp

o
s
e

, 
/
5

"
$%
#

44
#

/
$0
1
#

%F
@

#
'#

1
#

'%
;

5
"
"
0-

:#
%(

8
7

%4
5

'F
(

'7
%;

:(
8

"
%

(
'#

%(
)

'#
#

7
%F

0$
@

%&
$(

D
#

@
5

:7
#

'"
T

S
o

lu
ti
o

n
: 
T

h
e

 S
A

M
P

 w
ill

 s
e

t 
o

u
t 
th

e
 s

c
o

p
e

 o
f 
th

e
 

2
5

6
6

=
8

0$
*
%!

"
"
#

$%
&

$'
(

$#
)

*
%(

8
7

%;
'#

;
(

'#
%$
@

#
%)

'5
=

8
7

%
45

'%
$@

#
%;

=
-

:0/
(

$0
5

8
%5

4%
$@

#
%2

5
6

6
=

8
0$
*
%!

"
"
#

$%
&

$'
(

$#
)

*
%

08
%Q

#
/
#

6
-

#
'%

R
V

N
_

T%
C

@
#

%7
5

/
=

6
#

8
$%
F

0::
%"

#
$%
5

=
$%
(

8
%

(
;

;
'5

(
/
@

%$
5

%(
"
"
#

$"
%;

'0
6

(
'0
:*

%=
$0
:0"

#
7

%-
*
%$
@

#
%

/
5

6
6

=
8

0$
*
%(

8
7

%F
0::

%/
5

8
"
07

#
'%

F
@

#
'#

%5
$@

#
'%

/
5

=
8

/
0:%

(
"
"
#

$"
%/

(
8

%-
#

%'
#

:#
(

"
#

7
%$
5

%#
8

@
(

8
/
#

%$
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:U

"
%

re
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y,

 o
r 

p
ro

m
o

te
 

/
(

;
(

/
0$
*
O-

=
0:7

08
)

%5
'%

5
$@

#
'%

45
'6

"
%5

4%
"
5

/
0(

:%
(

8
7

%
/
5

6
6

=
8

0$
*
%1

(
:=

#
T%

3
"
$(

-
:0"

@
08

)
%(

%7
#

/
0"

05
8

%6
(

D
08

)
%-

5
7

*
%F

@
0/

@
%6

(
8

(
)

#
"
%

$@
#

%0
8

$#
'4

(
/
#

%-
#

$F
#

#
8

%$
@

#
%8

#
F

%&
#

'1
0/

#
%>

'5
1
07

#
'%

(
8

7
%

$@
#

%/
5

=
8

/
0:T

%

D
e

s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
: 
C

@
#

%!
"
"
#

$"
%(

8
7

%2
(

;
0$
(

:%
?

5
(

'7
%@

(
"
%-

#
#

8
%

/
'#

(
$#

7
%$
5

%#
8

"
=

'#
%5

44
0/

#
'"

%5
4%
$@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

@
5

:7
%$
@

#
%

"
#

'1
0/

#
%;

'5
1
07

#
'%

$5
%(

/
/
5

=
8

$%
45

'%
7

#
:01

#
'*

%5
4%
$@

#
%#

"
$(

$#
%

"
#

'1
0/

#
"
T

L
'5

6
%$
@

#
%;

5
08

$%
5

4%
1
0#

F
%5

4%
/
5

=
8

/
0:%

B
#

6
-

#
'"

S%
'#

;
5

'$
"
%

45
'%

7
#

/
0"

05
8

%6
(

D
#

'"
%F

0::
%-

#
%"

=
-

6
0$
$#

7
%0
8

%(
/
/
5

'7
(

8
/
#

%
F

0$
@

%$
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:U

"
%/

5
8

"
$0
$=

$0
5

8
T%
I$
%0
"
%(

:"
5

%#
8

1
0"

(
)

#
7

%
$@

(
$%
/
5

8
"
=

:$
(

$0
5

8
%F

0$
@

%"
$(

D
#

@
5

:7
#

'"
S%
"
=

/
@

%(
"
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

B
#

6
-

#
'"

S%
F

0::
%/

5
8

$0
8

=
#

%(
"
%8

5
'6

(
:%
J4

5
'%

#
M
(

6
;

:#
S%
(

"
%0
8

%
$@

#
%/

(
"
#

%5
4%
Q

0"
;

5
"
(

:"
%(

8
7

%9
#

8
$%
9

#
1
0#

F
"
KT

%C
@

#
%!

"
"
#

$S
%

9
#

)
#

8
#

'(
$0
5

8
%(

8
7

%e
'5

F
$@

%J
!

9
e

K%
2

5
6

6
0$
$#

#
%@

(
"
%

'#
"
;

5
8

"
0-

0:0
$*

%4
5

'%
(

"
"
#

$%
6

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$%
(

"
%"

#
$%
5

=
$%
08

%$
@

#
%

/
5

=
8

/
0:U

"
%/

5
8

"
$0
$=

$0
5

8
T

S
o

lu
ti
o

n
:%
C

@
#

%!
"
"
#

$%
(

8
7

%2
(

;
0$
(

:%
?

5
(

'7
%F

0::
%#

8
"
=

'#
%

$@
(

$%
5

44
0/

#
'"

%6
(

8
(

)
#

%$
@

#
%0
8

$#
'4

(
/
#

%-
#

$F
#

#
8

%$
@

#
%

"
#

'1
0/

#
%;

'5
1
07

#
'%

(
8

7
%$
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:T

%Q
#

/
0"

05
8

"
%'

#
:(

$0
8

)
%

$5
%;

'5
;

#
'$

*
%(

8
7

%(
"
"
#

$%
6

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$%
F

0::
%-

#
%$
(

D
#

8
%-

*
%

$@
#

%(
"
"
#

$"
S%
9

#
)

#
8

#
'(

$0
5

8
%(

8
7

%e
'5

F
$@

%/
5

6
6

0$
$#

#
%0
8

%
(

/
/
5

'7
(

8
/
#

%F
0$
@

%$
@

#
%!

"
"
#

$"
S%
<

(
8

7
%(

8
7

%>
'5

;
#

'$
*
%

J!
<

>
K%

'=
:#

"
T%

21



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

1
2

D
R

A
F
T

I8
%$
#

'6
"
%5

4%
$@

#
%5

1
#

'(
::%

;
5

'$
45

:05
%$
@

#
%0
8

7
01

07
=

(
:%
(

"
"
#

$%
$*

;
#

"
%

(
"
%(

$%
Q

#
/
#

6
-

#
'%

R
V

N
`

S%
(

'#
%(

"
%4
5

::5
F

"
Z

!
%4
=

::%
;

'5
;

#
'$

*
%:
0"

$%
F

0::
%-

#
%;

=
-

:0"
@

#
7

%0
8

%(
/
/
5

'7
(

8
/
#

%F
0$
@

%
$@

#
%C

'(
8

"
;

(
'#

8
/
*
%!

)
#

8
7

(
T%
%

!
%"

=
6

6
(

'*
%5

4%
$@

#
%0
8

/
5

6
#

%;
'5

7
=

/
08

)
%;

'5
;

#
'$

*
%;

5
'$

45
:05

%
/
(

8
%-

#
%4
5

=
8

7
%0
8

%!
;

;
#

8
7

0M
%R

T

C
@

#
%;

#
'4

5
'6

(
8

/
#

%5
4%
;

'5
;

#
'$

*
%(

"
"
#

$"
%"

@
5

=
:7

%-
#

%6
5

8
0$
5

'#
7

%
(

8
7

%(
"
"
#

"
"
#

7
%0
8

%-
5

$@
%4
=

8
/
$0
5

8
(

:%
(

8
7

%4
08

(
8

/
0(

:%
$#

'6
"
T%
I8

%
6

(
8

(
)

08
)

%(
"
"
#

$"
S%
$@

#
%;

5
'$

45
:05

%"
@

5
=

:7
%-

#
%"

=
-

.#
/
$%
$5

%$
@

#
%

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t
e

s
ts

:

I"
%$
@

#
'#

%(
%/

:#
(

'%
'(

$0
5

8
(

:#
%4
5

'%
5

F
8

08
)

%5
'%

@
5

:7
08

)
%;

'5
;

#
'$

*
f

%

Q
5

#
"
%(

%;
(

'$
0/

=
:(

'%
(

"
"
#

$%
(

"
"
0"

$%
"
#

'1
0/

#
%7

#
:01

#
'*

%5
'%

)
#

8
#

'(
$#

%
in

c
o

m
e

?

I"
%$
@

#
'#

%(
8

*
%-

#
8

#
40
/
0(

:%
;

=
';

5
"
#

%0
8

%0
$"

%'
#

$#
8

$0
5

8
f

%#
T)

T%
(

%
)

'5
F

$@
%5

'%
'#

)
#

8
#

'(
$0
5

8
%5

;
;

5
'$

=
8

0$
*
%5

'%
(

%F
07

#
'%

;
=

-
:0/

%
"
#

'1
0/

#
%-

#
8

#
40
$f

!
'#

%$
@

#
%0
8

7
01

07
=

(
:%
;

'5
;

#
'$

0#
"
%4
0$
%4
5

'%
$@

#
0'
%0
8

$#
8

7
#

7
%;

=
';

5
"
#

f
%

g
=

(
8

$0
4*

%$
@

#
%;

#
'4

5
'6

(
8

/
#

%(
8

7
%'

#
$=

'8
%4
'5

6
%(

8
*
%)

01
#

8
%

;
'5

;
#

'$
*
%(

"
"
#

$T
%

C
@

#
%2

5
=

8
/
0:%

F
0::

%"
#

$%
5

-
.#

/
$0
1
#

"
%-

(
"
#

7
%5

8
%;

#
'4

5
'6

(
8

/
#

%
F

@
0/

@
%F

0::
%-

#
%'

#
1
0#

F
#

7
%(

8
7

%6
5

8
0$
5

'#
7

%$
5

%#
8

"
=

'#
%$
@

(
$%
$@

#
*
%

(
'#

%-
#

08
)

%6
#

$%
(

8
7

%(
'#

%"
$0
::%

'#
:#

1
(

8
$T
%%

I8
%"

=
6

6
(

'*
%$
@

#
"
#

%$
#

"
$"

%(
8

7
%/

5
''

#
"
;

5
8

7
08

)
%7

#
/
0"

05
8

"
%

/
5

=
:7

%:
#

(
7

%$
5

%7
0"

;
5

"
(

:"
%5

'%
(

/
X

=
0"

0$
05

8
"
%F

@
0/

@
%F

0::
%#

8
@

(
8

/
#

%
$@

#
%;

#
'4

5
'6

(
8

/
#

%5
4%
$@

#
%;

'5
;

#
'$

*
%;

5
'$

45
:05

T%

S
tr
a
te

g
ic

 C
o
n
te

xt
P

a
r
t 

1

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
A

s
s
e
t 
B

a
s
e

P
o
rt
fo

lio
 D

e
ta

ils

A
d
a
p
tin

g
 t
h
e
 E

s
ta

te
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
E

s
ta

te
  
- 

Y
#

:7
%4

5
'%

7
#

:01
#

'*
%5

4%
/
5

=
8

/
0:%

"
#

'1
0/

#
"
%

 
<

0-
'(

'0
#

"

%
&

/
@

5
5

:"
S%

>
9

b
"
S%

*
5

=
$@

%/
#

8
$'

#
"
S%

/
@

0:7
'#

8
"
h%/

#
8

$'
#

"

 
D

e
p

o
ts

 
C

iv
ic

 O
ff
ic

e
s

 
C

e
m

te
ra

ry
, 

c
re

m
a

to
ri
u

m
, 

m
o

rt
u

a
ry

%
2

@
0:7

'#
8

h"
%@

5
6

#
"

 
D

a
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

s

%
<

#
0"

=
'#

%/
#

8
$'

#
"
%H

%>
(

'D
"
%

%
2

(
'%

>
(

'D
"

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
E

s
ta

te
 -
 

Y
#

:7
%;

'0
6

(
'0
:*

%$
5

%;
'5

1
07

#
%(

8
%0
8

/
5

6
#

%(
8

7
%

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y

   
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

T
h

e
 a

g
ri
c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
e

s
ta

te
%

I8
7

=
"
$'

0(
:%
=

8
0$
"

%
<

5
8

)
%:
#

(
"
#

@
5

:7
%"

@
5

;
;

08
)

%/
5

6
;

:#
M
#

"
%

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 P

o
r
tf

o
li
o

 -

B
(

8
(

)
#

7
%-

*
%?

(
'8

#
$%

Y
5

6
#

"
 %%

%%
%%

%%
%%

%%
%%

%%
e

(
'7

#
8

%<
(

8
7

%;
(

'/
#

:"
 

G
a

ra
g

e
s
 o

n
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

e
s
ta

te
s

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
o

u
s
in

g
%

2
5

=
8

/
0:%

@
5

=
"
08

)
%"

@
(

'#
7

%5
F

8
#

'"
@

0;
%

2
5

=
8

/
0:%

@
5

=
"
#

"
%"

5
:7

%5
8

%:
5

8
)

%:
#

(
"
#

"
%

9
#

"
07

#
8

$0
(

:%
;

'5
;

#
'$

0#
"
%-

5
=

)
@

$%
-

(
/
D
%

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 E

s
ta

te
 -

 
9

#
$(

08
#

7
%4

5
'%

$@
#

%-
#

8
#

40
$%

5
4%

$@
#

%/
5

6
6

=
8

0$
*

   
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

s

 
A

llo
tm

e
n

ts
 

W
a

r 
m

e
m

o
ri
a

ls

D
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
P

o
rt
fo

lio

H
ig

h
w

a
ys

 a
n
d
 G

re
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 

P
o
rt
fo

lio

22



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

1
3

D
R

A
F
T

!
"
%$
@

#
%(

"
"
#

$%
6

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$%
;

5
:0/

*
%0
"
%7

#
1
#

:5
;

#
7

S%
:(

8
7

%(
8

7
%;

'5
;

#
'$

*
%(

"
"
#

$"
%@

#
:7

%-
*
%$
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

"
@

5
=

:7
%-

#
%/

5
8

"
07

#
'#

7
%4
5

'%
7

0"
;

5
"
(

:%
(

8
7

%;
5

$#
8

$0
(

::*
%

s
u

rp
lu

s
 t
o

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
f 
a

n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

p
p

ly
:

C
@

#
%(

"
"
#

$%
8

5
%:
5

8
)

#
'%

6
(

D
#

"
%(

%;
5

"
0$
01

#
%

/
5

8
$'

0-
=

$0
5

8
%$
5

%$
@

#
%/

=
''

#
8

$%
7

#
:01

#
'*

%5
4%
/
5

=
8

/
0:%

"
#

'1
0/

#
"
[

T
h

e
 a

s
s
e

t 
h

a
s
 n

o
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
'#

)
#

8
#

'(
$0
5

8
%(

8
7

%H
%5

'%
'#

7
#

1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$%
;

=
';

5
"
#

"
[

!
8

%(
:$
#

'8
(

$0
1
#

%"
0$
#

%/
(

8
%;

'5
1
07

#
%(

%6
5

'#
%/

5
"
$%

#
44
#

/
$0
1
#

%(
8

7
H5

'%
#

44
0/

0#
8

$%
;

5
08

$%
5

4%
"
#

'1
0/

#
%7

#
:01

#
'*

T

C
@

#
'#

%0
"
%8

5
%(

7
5

;
$#

7
%(

8
7

%'
#

"
5

=
'/

#
7

%/
5

=
8

/
0:%

;
:(

8
H

;
5

:0/
*
H"

$'
(

$#
)

*S
%F

@
0/

@
%F

0::
%-

'0
8

)
%$
@

#
%(

"
"
#

$%
08

$5
%

-
#

8
#

40
/
0(

:%
=

"
#

%0
8

%$
@

#
%4
5

'#
"
#

#
(

-
:#

%4
=

$=
'#

T

2
5

8
"
07

#
'(

$0
5

8
%5

4%
:5

8
)

%$
#

'6
%0
8

/
5

6
#

%"
$'

#
(

6
"
%(

"
%

(
:$
#

'8
(

$0
1
#

%$
5

%7
0"

;
5

"
(

:"
%5

'[

C
@

#
'#

%0
"
%8

5
%;

5
$#

8
$0
(

:%
45

'%
(

7
1
(

8
$(

)
#

5
=

"
%"

@
(

'#
7

%
=

"
#

%F
0$
@

%;
(

'$
8

#
'"

T

<
(

8
7

%(
8

7
%;

'5
;

#
'$

*
%0
8

$#
'#

"
$"

%"
@

5
=

:7
%-

#
%

/
5

8
"
07

#
'#

7
%4
5

'%
(

/
X

=
0"

0$
05

8
%0
4%
$@

#
%4
5

::5
F

08
)

%
c
ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 a

p
p

ly
:

C
@

#
%(

/
X

=
0"

0$
05

8
%F

0::
%6

(
D
#

%(
%;

5
"
0$
01

#
%/

5
8

$'
0-

=
$0
5

8
%

$5
%$
@

#
%/

=
''

#
8

$%
7

#
:01

#
'*

%5
4%
/
5

=
8

/
0:%

"
#

'1
0/

#
"
T

C
@

#
%(

/
X

=
0"

0$
05

8
%F

0::
%6

(
D
#

%(
%;

5
"
0$
01

#
%/

5
8

$'
0-

=
$0
5

8
%

$5
%'

#
7

=
/
08

)
%5

/
/
=

;
(

$0
5

8
(

:%
/
5

"
$T

!
::%

5
$@

#
'%

6
#

$@
5

7
"
%4
5

'%
$@

#
%7

#
:01

#
'*

%5
4%
$@

#
%"

#
'1

0/
#

%
@

(
1
#

%-
#

#
8

%0
8

1
#

"
$0
)

(
$#

7
%(

8
7

%(
8

%5
;

$0
5

8
%(

;
;

'(
0"

(
:%

@
(

"
%-

#
#

8
%=

8
7

#
'$

(
D
#

8
%F

@
0/

@
%@

0)
@

:0)
@

$"
%

(
/
X

=
0"

0$
05

8
%(

"
%$
@

#
%6

5
"
$%
#

/
5

8
5

6
0/

%(
8

7
%#

44
0/

0#
8

$%
6

#
(

8
"
%5

4%
"
#

'1
0/

#
%7

#
:01

#
'*

T

T
h

e
 a

c
q

u
is

it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n

te
re

s
t 
h

a
s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
fo

r 
4=

$=
'#

%"
$'

(
$#

)
0/

%'
#

)
#

8
#

'(
$0
5

8
%(

8
7

%H
%5

'%
'#

7
#

1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$S
%5

'%
/
5

8
$'

0-
=

$#
"
%$
5

%F
07

#
'%

/
5

';
5

'(
$#

%
5

-
.#

/
$0
1
#

"
%(

8
7

%(
;

;
'5

;
'0
(

$#
%4
=

8
7

08
)

%@
(

"
%-

#
#

8
%

07
#

8
$0
40
#

7
T

S
tr
a
te

g
ic

 C
o
n
te

xt
P

a
r
t 

1 D
is

p
o
s
a
ls

A
c
q
u
is

iti
o
n
s

23



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

1
4

D
R

A
F
T

P
a

r
t 

2
 S

h
a
p
in

g
 t
h
e
 F

u
tu

re
 E

s
ta

te

In
 T

h
is

 S
e

c
ti

o
n

  
 O

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
E

s
ta

te

  
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 E

s
ta

te

  
 Y

0)
@

F
(

*
"
%(

8
7

%>
(

'D
"
%3

"
$(

$#

  
 I

n
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
E

s
ta

te

  
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 P

o
rt

fo
lio

  
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
o

rt
fo

lio

24



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

1
5

D
R

A
F
T

 
C

iv
ic

 E
s
ta

te
 –

 O
ffi
c
e
 A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
tio

n
 R

a
tio

n
a
lis

a
tio

n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

O
p
e
ra

tio
n
a
l e

s
ta

te
 

C
@

#
%;

'0
8

/
0;

:#
%(

06
%5

4%
(

/
/
5

6
6

5
7

(
$0
5

8
%'

(
$0
5

8
(

:0"
(

$0
5

8
%0
"
%

$5
%"

#
/
=

'#
%(

%"
0)

8
04
0/

(
8

$%
'#

7
=

/
$0
5

8
%0
8

%$
@

#
%/

5
'#

%/
01

0/
%#

"
$(

$#
%

in
 t
h

e
 s

h
o

rt
 t
e

rm
 w

h
ils

t 
a

p
p

ra
is

in
g

 a
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
m

o
v
e

 t
o

 
(

%8
#

F
%4
0$
%4
5

'%
;

=
';

5
"
#

%5
44
0/

#
%#

8
1
0'
5

8
6

#
8

$%
08

%$
@

#
%6

#
7

0=
6

%
$#

'6
T

T
h

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t
o

 r
e

v
is

e
 t
h

e
 c

iv
ic

 p
o

rt
fo

lio
 a

ri
s
e

s
 f
ro

m
 

(
%/

5
6

-
08

(
$0
5

8
%5

4%
-

'#
(

D
%/

:(
=

"
#

"
%(

8
7

%:
#

(
"
#

%#
M
;

0'
0#

"
%(

"
%

fo
llo

w
s
: 

0
4

/2
0

1
5

%
<

#
(

"
#

%?
'#

(
D
%8

5
$0
/
#

%5
8

%i
<

?
>

%_
%$
5

%-
#

%
%%
%%
%%
%%
%%
%%
%%
%%
%%
%%
%%
%%
%%
"
#

'1
#

7
%-

*
%$
@

#
%2

5
=

8
/
0:%

1
0

/2
0

1
5

%
<

#
(

"
#

%?
'#

(
D
%Q

(
$#

%5
8

%i
<

?
>

%_
%

0
7

/2
0

2
0

%
<

#
(

"
#

%3
M
;

0'
*
%Q

(
$#

%5
8

%i
<

?
>

%R

0
9

/2
0

3
2

%
<

#
(

"
#

%3
M
;

0'
*
%Q

(
$#

%5
8

%?
(

'8
#

$%
Y

5
=

"
#

!
$%
$@

#
%/

=
''

#
8

$%
$0
6

#
%J

&
#

;
$#

6
-

#
'%

R
V

N
_

KS
%$
@

#
%$
5

$(
:%

5
/
/
=

;
(

$0
5

8
(

:%
/
5

"
$%
08

%'
#

:(
$0
5

8
%$
5

%i
<

?
>

%(
8

7
%?

(
'8

#
$%
Y

5
=

"
#

%
;

#
'%

(
8

8
=

6
%0
"
%(

"
%4
5

::5
F

"
T%
%I
8

%#
(

/
@

%0
8

"
$(

8
/
#

%$
@

#
"
#

%4
0)

=
'#

"
%

08
/
:=

7
#

%'
#

8
$(

:S
%"

#
'1

0/
#

%/
@

(
')

#
S%
'(

$#
"
%(

8
7

%)
#

8
#

'(
:%

'=
8

8
08

)
%/

5
"
$"

T

S
h
a
p
in

g
 t
h
e
 F

u
tu

re
 E

s
ta

te
P

a
r
t 

2

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
E

s
ta

te
  
- 

Y
#

:7
%4
5

'%
7

#
:01

#
'*

%5
4%
/
5

=
8

/
0:%

"
#

'1
0/

#
"
%

 
<

0-
'(

'0
#

"
%

&
/
@

5
5

:"
S%
>

9
b

"
S%
*
5

=
$@

%/
#

8
$'

#
"
S%
/
@

0:7
'#

8
"
h%/

#
8

$'
#

"
 

D
e

p
o

ts
 

C
iv

ic
 O

ff
ic

e
s

 
C

e
m

te
ra

ry
, 
c
re

m
a

to
ri
u

m
, 
m

o
rt

u
a

ry
%

2
@

0:7
'#

8
h"

%@
5

6
#

"
 

D
a

y
 C

e
n

tr
e

s
%

<
#

0"
=

'#
%/

#
8

$'
#

"
%H
%>

(
'D

"
%

%
2

(
'%

>
(

'D
"

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
E

s
ta

te
 -
 

Y
#

:7
%;

'0
6

(
'0
:*

%$
5

%;
'5

1
07

#
%(

8
%0
8

/
5

6
#

%(
8

7
%

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y

   
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
T

h
e

 a
g

ri
c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
e

s
ta

te
%

I8
7

=
"
$'

0(
:%
=

8
0$
"

%
<

5
8

)
%:
#

(
"
#

@
5

:7
%"

@
5

;
;

08
)

%/
5

6
;

:#
M
#

"
%

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 P

o
r
tf

o
li
o

 -

B
(

8
(

)
#

7
%-

*
%?

(
'8

#
$%
Y

5
6

#
"

   
  

  
  
  
  
  

e
(

'7
#

8
%<

(
8

7
%;

(
'/

#
:"

 
G

a
ra

g
e

s
 o

n
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

e
s
ta

te
s

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
o

u
s
in

g
%

2
5

=
8

/
0:%

@
5

=
"
08

)
%"

@
(

'#
7

%5
F

8
#

'"
@

0;
%

2
5

=
8

/
0:%

@
5

=
"
#

"
%"

5
:7

%5
8

%:
5

8
)

%:
#

(
"
#

"
%

9
#

"
07

#
8

$0
(

:%
;

'5
;

#
'$

0#
"
%-

5
=

)
@

$%
-

(
/
D
%

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 E

s
ta

te
 -

 
9

#
$(

08
#

7
%4
5

'%
$@

#
%-

#
8

#
40
$%
5

4%
$@

#
%/

5
6

6
=

8
0$
*

   
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
 

A
llo

tm
e

n
ts

 
W

a
r 

m
e

m
o

ri
a

ls

D
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
P

o
rt
fo

lio

H
ig

h
w

a
ys

 a
n
d
 G

re
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 

P
o
rt
fo

lio

25



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

1
6

D
R

A
F
T

 
C

iv
ic

 E
s
ta

te
 –

 O
ffi
c
e
 A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
tio

n
 R

a
tio

n
a
lis

a
tio

n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

O
p
e
ra

tio
n
a
l e

s
ta

te
 

P
a

r
t 

2

I8
%$
#

'6
"
%5

4%
$@

#
%"

$(
$=

"
%5

4%
$@

#
%,

!
9

&
%;

'5
.#

/
$%
$5

%7
(

$#
%$
@

#
%

;
5

"
0$
05

8
%0
"
%(

"
%4
5

::5
F

"
[

!
%8

=
6

-
#

'%
5

4%
5

;
$0
5

8
"
%F

#
'#

%'
#

1
0#

F
#

7
%F

@
0/

@
%0
8

/
:=

7
#

7
%7

5
%

8
5

$@
08

)
S%
6

(
8

0;
=

:(
$0
8

)
%$
@

#
%#

M
0"

$0
8

)
%#

"
$(

$#
%5

'%
07

#
8

$0
4*

08
)

%(
8

%
(

:$
#

'8
(

$0
1
#

%:
5

/
(

$0
5

8
[

C
@

#
%6

5
"
$%
/
5

"
$%
#

44
#

/
$0
1
#

%"
@

5
'$

%$
#

'6
%5

;
$0
5

8
%F

@
0/

@
%F

5
=

:7
%

6
#

#
$%
$@

#
%$
(

')
#

$%
(

06
%5

4%
'#

7
=

/
08

)
%$
@

#
%/

5
"
$%
5

4%
5

44
0/

#
%

(
/
/
5

6
6

5
7

(
$0
5

8
%-

*
%/

0'
/
(

%j
`

6
%;

#
'%

(
8

8
=

6
%4
'5

6
%R

V
N

_
%0
"
[

(
K%

,
;

#
'(

$#
%-

'#
(

D
%2

:(
=

"
#

%5
8

%i
<

?
>

%b
8

0$
%_

-
K%

2
5

8
"
5

:07
(

$#
%0
8

$5
%i

<
?

>
%=

8
0$
%R

%F
@

0:"
$%
8

#
)

5
$0
(

$0
8

)
%

%%
%%
%%
%%
%%
%%
%5

/
/
=

;
(

$0
5

8
%5

4%
$@

#
%1

(
/
(

8
$%
"
#

/
5

8
7

%4
:5

5
'%

"
;

(
/
#

%(
8

7
S

/
K%

B
(

M
06

0"
#

%5
/
/
=

;
(

$0
5

8
%5

4%
?

(
'8

#
$%
Y

5
=

"
#

T

C
@

#
%4
0'
"
$%
"
$(

)
#

%0
"
%$
5

%#
M
#

'/
0"

#
%$
@

#
%-

'#
(

D
%/

:(
=

"
#

%5
8

%i
<

?
>
S%

-
=

0:7
08

)
%_

%F
@

0/
@

%F
(

"
%(

;
;

'5
1
#

7
%-

*
%!

9
e

%0
8

%k
=

:*
%R

V
N

_
T

I8
%$
@

#
%:
5

8
)

#
'%

$#
'6

S%
0$
%0
"
%'

#
/
5

6
6

#
8

7
#

7
%$
@

(
$%
(

%7
#

$(
0:#

7
%

'#
1
0#

F
%0
"
%=

8
7

#
'$

(
D
#

8
%5

8
%$
@

#
%;

5
$#

8
$0
(

:%
'#

:5
/
(

$0
5

8
%$
5

%(
%

-
#

"
;

5
D
#

%7
#

1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$%
08

%2
5

:08
7

(
:#

S%
#

0$
@

#
'%

$5
%5

/
/
=

;
*
%

'#
8

$#
7

%(
/
/
5

6
6

5
7

(
$0
5

8
%5

'%
45

'%
$@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

$5
%-

=
0:7

%H
;

=
'/

@
(

"
#

%(
/
/
5

6
6

5
7

(
$0
5

8
%(

8
7

%5
F

8
%0
$%
5

=
$'

0)
@

$T
%C

@
#

%
'#

:5
/
(

$0
5

8
%$
5

%(
%-

#
"
;

5
D
#

%5
44
0/

#
%0
"
%:
0D

#
:*

%$
5

%-
#

%(
-

:#
%$
5

%
4=

'$
@

#
'%

08
/
'#

(
"
#

%"
;

(
/
#

%#
44
0/

0#
8

/
*S

%'
#

7
=

/
#

%'
=

8
8

08
)

%/
5

"
$"

%
(

8
7

%6
(

08
$#

8
(

8
/
#

%/
5

"
$"

T

?
=

0:7
08

)
%R

%i
5

'$
@

%<
5

8
7

5
8

%?
=

"
08

#
"
"
%>

(
'D

%J
i

<
?

>
KZ

%

j
N

S]
`

W
SV

\
\

%

?
=

0:7
08

)
%_

%i
5

'$
@

%<
5

8
7

5
8

%?
=

"
08

#
"
"
%>

(
'D

%J
i

<
?

>
KZ

%

j
W

S`
\

^
S_

\
W

%

B
a

rn
e

t 
H

o
u

s
e

: 

j
N

SW
]

`
SR

^
a

%

In
 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
fo

o
tp

ri
n

t 
th

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 
fl
o

o
r 

a
re

a
s
 

a
re

 a
s
 f
o

llo
w

s
:

N
T%

b
8

0$
%_

S%
i

<
?

>
%N

]
a

SV
V

V
%"

X
%4
$

R
T%

b
8

0$
%R

S%
%i

<
?

>
%_

_
S^

W
_

%"
X

%4
$%

`
T 

B
a

rn
e

t 
H

o
u

s
e

 7
0

,0
0

0
 s

q
 f
t 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

C
,

C
!

<
l

%R
\

_
S^

V
V

T%
&

X
%4
$

C
@

#
%/

=
''

#
8

$%
5

44
0/

#
%(

/
/
5

6
5

7
(

$0
5

8
%0
8

/
:=

7
#

"
%(

%"
0)

8
04
0/

(
8

$%
(

6
5

=
8

$%
5

4%
=

8
=

"
#

7
%"

;
(

/
#

T%
9

#
7

=
/
08

)
%$
@

0"
S%
(

:5
8

)
%F

0$
@

%$
@

#
%

08
$'

5
7

=
/
$0
5

8
%5

4%
6

5
'#

%4
:#

M
0-

:#
%(

8
7

%(
)

0:#
%F

5
'D

08
)

%
#

8
1
0'
5

8
6

#
8

$%
F

0::
%#

8
(

-
:#

%$
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

$5
%5

/
/
=

;
*
%(

%6
=

/
@

%
"
6

(
::#

'%
45

5
$;

'0
8

$%
08

%$
@

#
%4
=

$=
'#

T%
I$
%0
"
%/

=
''

#
8

$:
*
%#

8
1
0"

(
)

#
7

%
$@

(
$%
$@

#
%'

#
1
0"

#
7

%#
"
$(

$#
%4
5

5
$;

'0
8

$%
45

'%
$@

#
%/

5
'#

%/
01

0/
%

(
/
/
5

6
6

5
7

(
$0
5

8
%0
"
%0
8

%$
@

#
%'

#
)

05
8

%5
4%
N

R
W

SV
V

V
%"

X
=

(
'#

%4
#

#
$T

C
@

#
%'

(
$0
5

8
(

:0"
(

$0
5

8
%5

4%
$@

#
%/

01
0/

%#
"
$(

$#
%F

0::
%;

'5
7

=
/
#

%7
0'
#

/
$%

"
(

1
08

)
"
%0
8

%$
#

'6
"
%5

4%
'#

7
=

/
$0
5

8
"
%0
8

%$
@

#
%(

8
8

=
(

:%
'#

8
$(

:%
;

(
*
6

#
8

$"
%(

8
7

%(
"
"
5

/
0(

$#
7

%;
'5

;
#

'$
*
%/

5
"
$"

T%
%

26



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

1
7

D
R

A
F
T

 

C
@

#
%4
5

'$
@

/
5

6
08

)
%2

=
"
$5

6
#

'%
!

/
/
#

"
"
%&

$'
(

$#
)

*S
%7

=
#

%
45

'%
7

#
1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$%
08

%(
=

$=
6

8
%R

V
N

_
%(

8
7

%(
;

;
'5

1
(

:%
08

%
L

#
-

'=
(

'*
%R

V
N

W
S%
F

0::
%(

8
(

:*
"
#

%@
5

F
%/

=
"
$5

6
#

'"
%(

'#
%

(
/
/
#

"
"
08

)
%?

(
'8

#
$%
"
#

'1
0/

#
"
%/

=
''

#
8

$:
*S

%(
8

7
%@

5
F

%$
@

0"
%

/
5

6
;

(
'#

"
%$
5

%$
@

#
0'
%(

/
/
#

"
"
%;

'#
4#

'#
8

/
#

"
T%
C

@
0"

%
"
$'

(
$#

)
*
%"

@
5

=
:7

%"
#

$%
5

=
$%
$@

#
%5

;
$0
6

=
6

%6
5

7
#

:%
45

'%
/
=

"
$5

6
#

'%
(

/
/
#

"
"
%$
@

(
$%
F

0::
%7

'0
1
#

%$
@

#
%/

=
"
$5

6
#

'%
a

c
c
e

s
s
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 
fi
v
e

 
*
#

(
'"

T%

C
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

0"
%0
8

1
#

"
$0
8

)
%0
8

%5
8

:08
#

%(
/
/
#

"
"
S%
(

8
7

%$
@

#
%

/
'#

(
$0
5

8
%5

4%
$@

#
%2

(
;

0$
(

%;
(

'$
8

#
'"

@
0;

%@
(

"
%0
8

/
:=

7
#

7
%

"
0)

8
04
0/

(
8

$%
08

1
#

"
$6

#
8

$%
08

%(
%8

#
F

%F
#

-
"
0$
#

%(
%m
B

*
%

!
/
/
5

=
8

$U%
"
#

:4
O"

#
'1

0/
#

%4
(

/
0:0

$*
S%
7

=
#

%$
5

%-
#

%:
(

=
8

/
@

#
7

%
:(

$#
%R

V
N

_
T%
C

@
#

"
#

%8
#

F
%4
(

/
0:0

$0
#

"
%(

'#
%#

M
;

#
/
$#

7
%$
5

%
4(

/
0:0

$(
$#

%"
0)

8
04
0/

(
8

$%
/
@

(
8

8
#

:%
"
@

04
$%
(

F
(

*
%4
'5

6
%-

5
$@

%
$@

#
%$
#

:#
;

@
5

8
#

%(
8

7
%4
(

/
#

%$
5

%4
(

/
#

%/
@

(
8

8
#

:"
%$
5

F
(

'7
"
%

$@
#

%"
#

:4
O"

#
'1

0/
#

%5
;

$0
5

8
%5

4%
$@

#
%F

#
-

T%
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
@

#
%0
8

$'
5

7
=

/
$0
5

8
%5

4%
(

%8
#

F
%/

=
"
$5

6
#

'%
'#

:(
$0
5

8
"
@

0;
%

6
(

8
(

)
#

6
#

8
$%
"
*
"
$#

6
%F

0::
S%
45

'%
$@

#
%4
0'
"
$%
$0
6

#
S%
#

8
(

-
:#

%
$@

#
%/

5
::#

/
$0
5

8
%5

4%
7

(
$(

%F
@

0/
@

%F
0::

%0
8

45
'6

%$
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

w
h

ic
h

 c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 a

re
 u

s
in

g
 t
h

e
 t
w

o
 m

a
in

 f
a

c
e

 t
o

 
4(

/
#

%(
/
/
#

"
"
%/

#
8

$'
#

"
%J

?
(

'8
#

$%
Y

5
=

"
#

%(
8

7
%?

=
'8

$%
,

(
D
%

<
0-

'(
'*

KT

k
5

=
'8

#
*
%"

$(
'$

%;
5

08
$"

T%

E
@

*
%$
@

0"
%0
"
%$
@

#
0'
%;

'#
4#

''
#

7
%(

/
/
#

"
"
%/

@
(

8
8

#
:%
(

8
7

S%

E
@

(
$%
$@

#
%5

;
;

5
'$

=
8

0$
0#

"
%$
5

%'
#

7
=

/
#

%7
#

6
(

8
7

%6
0)

@
$%

-
#

T%

Q
(

$(
%5

8
%/

=
"
$5

6
#

'%
8

#
#

7
"
S%
;

'#
4#

'#
8

/
#

"
%(

8
7

%
"
(

$0
"
4(

/
$0
5

8
%:
#

1
#

:"
%F

0::
%-

#
%=

"
#

7
%$
5

%#
1
(

:=
(

$#
%$
@

#
%

;
5

$#
8

$0
(

:%
$5

%/
5

8
"
5

:07
(

$#
%0
8

$5
%5

8
#

%6
(

08
%/

=
"
$5

6
#

'%
a

c
c
e

s
s
 c

e
n

tr
e

 w
it
h

o
u

t 
c
o

m
p

ro
m

is
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 
(

/
/
#

"
"
0-

0:0
$*

%5
'%

/
=

"
$5

6
#

'%
"
(

$0
"
4(

/
$0
5

8
T%

C
@

#
'#

%0
"
%(

:"
5

%$
@

#
%;

5
$#

8
$0
(

:%
45

'%
(

%m
8

#
0)

@
-

5
=

'@
5

5
7

%
@

=
-

U%(
;

;
'5

(
/
@

%$
5

%/
=

"
$5

6
#

'%
(

/
/
#

"
"
S%
F

@
#

'#
%

/
=

"
$5

6
#

'%
(

7
1
0"

5
'"

%(
'#

%-
(

"
#

7
%0
8

%:
5

/
(

:%
/
5

6
6

=
8

0$
0#

"
%

'(
$@

#
'%

$@
(

8
%:
(

')
#

%4
0M

#
7

%(
/
/
#

"
"
%/

#
8

$'
#

"
TC

@
#

%&
!

B
>

%
w

ill
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 a

im
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 

"
$'

(
$#

)
*
%(

'#
%(

7
7

'#
"
"
#

7
%4
'5

6
%(

%;
'5

;
#

'$
*
%;

5
08

$%
5

4%
1
0#

F
T%
C

@
0"

%F
0::

%0
8

/
:=

7
#

%(
%'

#
1
0#

F
%5

4%
$@

#
%;

5
$#

8
$0
(

:%
45

'%
/
'#

(
$0
5

8
%5

4%
8

#
0)

@
-

5
=

'@
5

5
7

%@
=

-
"
S%
08

%:
08

#
%F

0$
@

%$
@

#
%

$5
F

8
%/

#
8

$'
#

%"
$'

(
$#

)
*T

 
C

iv
ic

 E
s
ta

te
 –

 O
ffi
c
e
 A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
tio

n
 R

a
tio

n
a
lis

a
tio

n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

S
h
a
p
in

g
 t
h
e
 F

u
tu

re
 E

s
ta

te
P

a
r
t 

2

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
&

#
'1

0/
#

%B
#

$@
5

7
%

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
J&

/
@

#
7

=
:#

%R
K

2
5

O7
#

"
0)

8
%

w
it
h

 
'#

"
07

#
8

$"
%A

%

-
=

"
08

#
"
"
#

"
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 

A
%7

#
"
0)

8
%

F
5

'D
"
@

5
;

"

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
in

s
ig

h
t 

P
e

rs
o

n
a

s
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
a

g
e

 
4'

(
6

#
F

5
'D

%
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

a
t 

a
n

a
ly

s
is

 

O
p
e
ra

tio
n
a
l e

s
ta

te
 

27



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

1
8

D
R

A
F
T

S
h
a
p
in

g
 t
h
e
 F

u
tu

re
 E

s
ta

te
P

a
r
t 

2

 
C

iv
ic

 E
s
ta

te
 –

 O
ffi
c
e
 A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
tio

n
 R

a
tio

n
a
lis

a
tio

n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

!
/
/
5

6
6

5
7

(
$0
5

8
%'

#
X

=
0'
#

6
#

8
$"

%4
5

'%
$@

#
%8

#
M
$%

40
1
#

%*
#

(
'"

%(
8

7
%-

#
*
5

8
7

,
8

/
#

%$
@

#
%#

"
$(

$#
%@

(
"
%-

#
#

8
%/

5
8

"
5

:07
(

$#
7

%
08

$5
%b

8
0$
%R

S%
i

<
?

>
%(

8
7

%?
(

'8
#

$%
Y

5
=

"
#

S%
0$
%0
"
%

/
5

8
"
07

#
'#

7
%$
@

(
$%
$@

0"
%F

0::
%;

'5
1
07

#
%(

%"
@

5
'$

%
te

rm
 s

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
ly

 f
o

r 
a

p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 t
h

re
e

 
*
#

(
'"

%F
@

0:"
$%
$@

#
%6

#
7

0=
6

%$
#

'6
%"

5
:=

$0
5

8
%0
"
%

07
#

8
$0
40
#

7
T

I8
%$
@

#
%6

#
7

0=
6

%$
#

'6
%$
@

#
%;

'#
4#

''
#

7
%5

;
$0
5

8
%0
"
%

$5
%0
7

#
8

$0
4*

%(
%"

0$
#

%4
5

'%
(

%8
#

F
%-

=
0:7

%-
#

"
;

5
D
#

%
7

#
1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$%
F

@
0/

@
%F

0::
%;

'5
1
07

#
%(

%6
5

7
#

'8
%

F
5

'D
08

)
%#

8
1
0'
5

8
6

#
8

$%
F

0$
@

%"
=

44
0/

0#
8

$%
4:
#

M
0-

0:0
$*

%$
5

%(
::5

F
%4
5

'%
/
@

(
8

)
#

"
%0
8

%$
@

#
%5

1
#

'(
::%

45
5

$;
'0
8

$%
(

"
%7

#
6

(
8

7
%4
5

'%
"
;

(
/
#

%4
:=

/
$=

(
$#

"
T%

I8
%'

#
O@

5
=

"
08

)
%$
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

5
44
0/

#
%#

"
$(

$#
S%
$@

#
%

5
;

$0
5

8
"
%(

1
(

0:(
-

:#
%$
5

%$
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

F
0::

%-
#

%
/
5

8
"
07

#
'#

7
%0
8

%$
@

#
%:
0)

@
$%
5

4%
(

/
/
#

"
"
0-

0:0
$*

S
#

(
"
#

%5
4%
(

/
/
#

"
"
%(

8
7

%:
5

/
(

$0
5

8
T

!
%:
5

/
(

$0
5

8
%0
8

%$
@

#
%F

#
"
$%
5

4%
$@

#
%-

5
'5

=
)

@
%0
"
%

4(
1
5

=
'#

7
%(

"
%$
@

#
%/

=
''

#
8

$%
;

5
;

=
:(

$0
5

8
%5

4%
(

'5
=

8
7

%`
]

V
SV

V
V

%0
8

7
01

07
=

(
:"

%0
"
%(

8
$0
/
0;

(
$#

7
%

$5
%'

(
0"

#
%$
5

%_
V

V
SV

V
V

%0
8

7
01

07
=

(
:"

%-
*
%R

V
R

V
%$
@

#
%

6
(

.5
'0
$*

%5
4%
F

@
5

%F
0::

%-
#

%-
(

"
#

7
%0
8

%$
@

#
%

F
#

"
$#

'8
%'

#
)

05
8

%5
4%
$@

#
%-

5
'5

=
)

@
%J

#
T)

T%
3

7
)

F
(

'#
S%
Y

#
8

7
5

8
S%
2

5
:08

7
(

:#
S%
(

8
7

%?
=

'8
$%

,
(

D
K%

F
@

0/
@

%0
"
%/

=
''

#
8

$:
*
%0
"
5

:(
$#

7
%4
'5

6
%$
@

#
%

;
'#

"
#

8
$%
/
01

0/
%-

=
0:7

08
)

"
T%

W
h

ils
t 
th

e
 S

A
M

P
 w

ill
 g

o
v
e

rn
 t
h

e
6

#
$@

5
7

5
:5

)
*
%4
5

'%
(

/
@

0#
1
08

)
%$
@

#
%0
7

#
(

:%
2

01
0/

%
3

"
$(

$#
%$
@

#
%;

'#
/
0"

#
%"

@
(

;
#

%(
8

7
%"

$'
=

/
$=

'#
%5

4%
$@

#
%2

01
0/

%3
"
$(

$#
%0
8

%$
@

#
%6

#
7

0=
6

%$
#

'6
%F

0::
S%

$5
%"

5
6

#
%#

M
$#

8
$S
%-

#
%7

0/
$(

$#
7

%-
*
%$
@

#
%8

#
#

7
%$
5

%
6

(
08

$(
08

%(
;

;
'5

;
'0
(

$#
%(

8
7

%'
#

:#
1
(

8
$%

6
=

:$
0O
(

)
#

8
/
*S

%4
(

/
#

%$
5

%4
(

/
#

%4
(

/
0:0

$0
#

"
%0
8

%$
@

#
%

D
#

*
%$
5

F
8

%/
#

8
$'

#
"
T%

In
 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
m

u
lt
i 
a

g
e

n
c
y
 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
, 
th

e
 

fo
rt

h
c
o

m
in

g
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 w

ill
 

7
#

$#
'6

08
#

%$
@

#
%;

'#
/
0"

#
%7

#
"
0)

8
S%
:5

/
(

$0
5

8
%(

8
7

%
/
5

6
;

5
"
0$
05

8
%5

4%
$@

5
"
#

%4
(

/
0:0

$0
#

"
%-

(
"
#

7
%5

8
%(

%
;

'#
O7

#
$#

'6
08

#
7

%8
#

#
7

%(
8

7
%0
7

#
8

$0
40
#

7
%

'#
X

=
0'
#

6
#

8
$T

O
p
e
ra

tio
n
a
l e

s
ta

te
 

28



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

1
9

D
R

A
F
T

S
h
a
p
in

g
 t
h
e
 F

u
tu

re
 E

s
ta

te
P

a
r
t 

2

S
p
o
rt
s
 a

n
d
 L

e
is

u
re

 A
c
tiv

iti
e
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

C
@

#
%"

;
5

'$
%(

8
7

%:
#

0"
=

'#
%(

/
$0
1
0$
*
%;

5
'$

45
:05

%0
"
%

-
(

"
#

7
%5

8
%$
@

#
%#

$@
0/

%5
4%
;

'5
1
07

08
)

%(
8

%
#

8
1
0'
5

8
6

#
8

$%
/
5

8
7

=
/
01

#
%$
5

%;
@

*
"
0/

(
:%
(

/
$0
1
0$
*
%

/
#

8
$'

#
7

%5
8

%:
#

0"
=

'#
%/

#
8

$'
#

"
S%
F

07
#

%'
(

8
)

08
)

%
:#

0"
=

'#
%4
(

/
0:0

$0
#

"
%(

8
7

%;
(

'D
"
%H
%5

;
#

8
%"

;
(

/
#

"
%

F
@

0/
@

%"
#

#
D
%$
5

%#
8

/
5

=
'(

)
#

%;
(

'$
0/

0;
(

$0
5

8
%4
'5

6
%

'#
"
07

#
8

$"
%5

4%
(

::%
(

)
#

"
T

I8
%Q

#
/
#

6
-

#
'%

R
V

V
`

%(
%4
04
$#

#
8

%*
#

(
'%

/
5

8
$'

(
/
$%

F
(

"
%#

8
$#

'#
7

%0
8

$5
%-

*
%$
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

$5
%6

(
8

(
)

#
%

th
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

�s
 f
iv

e
 p

ri
n

c
ip

a
l 
le

is
u

re
 

4(
/
0:0

$0
#

"
%#

M
$#

'8
(

::*
T%
I8

%$
@

#
%:
#

(
7

%=
;

%$
5

%$
@

#
%

/
5

8
$'

(
/
$%
#

M
;

0'
*
%7

(
$#

%5
4%
R

V
N

^
%(

%8
#

F
%1

0"
05

8
%

0"
%0
8

%$
@

#
%;

'5
/
#

"
"
%5

4%
-

#
08

)
%7

#
1
#

:5
;

#
7

%4
5

'%
$@

#
%

D
#

*
%"

;
5

'$
"
%/

#
8

$'
#

"
%$
5

%'
#

1
0"

#
%H
%0
6

;
'5

1
#

%
4(

/
0:0

$0
#

"
%(

8
7

%$
5

%(
/
@

0#
1
#

%(
%8

=
6

-
#

'%
5

4%
D
#

*
%

a
s
p

ir
a

ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 
p

ri
n

c
ip

le
s
:

T
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
h

a
t 
m

in
im

is
e

 t
h

e
 

/
5

"
$%
5

4%
;

'5
1
0"

05
8

%5
4%
:#

0"
=

'#
%"

#
'1

0/
#

"
T%
%

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 f
u

tu
re

 l
e

is
u

re
 C

e
n

tr
e

 
5

44
#

'0
8

)
%0
"
%(

7
(

;
$(

-
:#

%(
8

7
%(

-
:#

%$
5

%'
#

"
;

5
8

7
%$
5

%
8

#
#

7
T

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 f
u

tu
re

 l
e

is
u

re
 o

ff
e

ri
n

g
 

;
'5

1
07

#
"
%/

5
8

$0
8

=
#

7
%(

:0)
8

6
#

8
$%
F

0$
@

%$
@

#
%

@
#

(
:$
@

%(
)

#
8

7
(

T

A
s
 a

 m
in

im
u

m
, 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
/
5

8
7

0$
05

8
%5

4%
$@

#
%:
#

0"
=

'#
%#

"
$(

$#
%0
"
%6

(
08

$(
08

#
7

T%

C
5

%#
8

"
=

'#
%$
@

(
$%
F

@
#

'#
%(

"
"
#

$"
%(

'#
%7

0"
;

5
"
#

7
S%

$@
(

$%
$@

#
'#

%0
"
%(

8
%(

;
;

'5
;

'0
(

$#
%'

#
O;

'5
1
0"

05
8

%
(

8
7

S%

C
5

%#
8

"
=

'#
%$
@

(
$%
/
5

"
$"

%$
5

%'
#

"
07

#
8

$"
%(

'#
%

(
;

;
'5

;
'0
(

$#
%4
5

'%
$@

#
%(

'#
(

%$
5

%#
8

(
-

:#
%(

/
/
#

"
"
T%

!
%4
#

(
"
0-

0:0
$*

%"
$=

7
*
%0
"
%/

=
''

#
8

$:
*
%-

#
08

)
%/

(
''

0#
7

%
5

=
$%
(

/
'5

"
"
%$
@

#
%"

;
5

'$
%(

8
7

%:
#

0"
=

'#
%(

/
$0
1
0$
*
%

;
5

'$
45

:05
%F

@
0/

@
%F

0::
%-

#
%0
"
"
=

#
7

%4
5

'%
;

=
-

:0/
%

/
5

8
"
=

:$
(

$0
5

8
%0
8

%,
/
$5

-
#

'%
R

V
N

_
T%

O
p
e
ra

tio
n
a
l e

s
ta

te
 

29



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

2
0

D
R

A
F
T

S
h
a
p
in

g
 t
h
e
 F

u
tu

re
 E

s
ta

te
P

a
r
t 

2

E
d
u
c
a
tio

n
 P

o
rt
fo

lio

E
0$
@

08
%$
@

#
%/

=
''

#
8

$%
#

7
=

/
(

$0
5

8
(

:%
:(

8
7

"
/
(

;
#

%5
4%

)
'#

(
$#

'%
(

=
$5

8
5

6
*
%4
5

'%
;

:(
/
#

"
%5

4%
#

7
=

/
(

$0
5

8
%

J(
"
%7

#
6

5
8

"
$'

(
$#

7
%-

*
%$
@

#
%0
8

/
'#

(
"
08

)
%)

'5
F

$@
%

5
4%
(

/
(

7
#

6
0#

"
%(

8
7

%4
'#

#
%"

/
@

5
5

:"
K%

$@
#

%/
5

=
8

/
0:%

8
#

1
#

'$
@

#
:#

"
"
%@

(
"
%'

#
$(

08
#

7
%$
@

#
%"

$(
$=

$5
'*

%
'#

"
;

5
8

"
0-

0:0
$*

%$
5

%#
8

"
=

'#
%$
@

#
'#

%(
'#

%"
=

44
0/

0#
8

$%
"
/
@

5
5

:%
;

:(
/
#

"
%F

0$
@

08
%$
@

#
%-

5
'5

=
)

@
T%

C
@

#
%(

=
$@

5
'0
$*

U"
%'

5
:#

%/
5

=
:7

%8
5

F
%-

#
%6

5
'#

%
(

7
#

X
=

(
$#

:*
%7

#
"
/
'0
-

#
7

%(
"
%(

%/
5

6
6

0"
"
05

8
#

'%
5

4%
"
/
@

5
5

:%
;

:(
/
#

"
%'

(
$@

#
'%

$@
(

8
%(

"
%(

%7
0'
#

/
$%

;
'5

1
07

#
'T
%%
E

@
0:"

$%
$@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

"
$0
::%

'#
$(

08
"
%

'#
"
;

5
8

"
0-

0:0
$0
#

"
%0
8

%'
#

:(
$0
5

8
%$
5

%/
5

6
6

=
8

0$
*
%

"
/
@

5
5

:"
%=

8
7

#
'%

$@
#

%!
/
(

7
#

6
0#

"
%!

/
$%
R

V
N

V
%

7
#

/
0"

05
8

"
%0
8

%'
#

:(
$0
5

8
%$
5

%/
@

(
8

)
#

"
%$
5

%
(

/
(

7
#

6
0#

"
%(

8
7

%4
'#

#
%"

/
@

5
5

:"
%(

'#
%

(
7

6
08

0"
$#

'#
7

%$
@

'5
=

)
@

%/
#

8
$'

(
:%
)

5
1
#

'8
6

#
8

$T

I8
%#

0)
@

$%
F

(
'7

"
%F

0$
@

08
%$
@

#
%-

5
'5

=
)

@
%

J2
5

;
;

#
$$
"
S%
2

5
:08

7
(

:#
S%
e

5
:7

#
'"

%e
'#

#
8

S%
2

@
0:7

"
%Y

0::
S%
L

08
/
@

:#
*
%2

@
=

'/
@

%3
8

7
S%
Y

#
8

7
5

8
S%

E
#

"
$%
L

08
/
@

:#
*
%(

8
7

%B
0::

%Y
0::

K%
$@

#
'#

%@
(

"
%-

#
#

8
%

(
%)

'#
(

$#
'%

$@
(

8
%(

8
$0
/
0;

(
$#

7
%)

'5
F

$@
%0
8

%
7

#
6

(
8

7
%4
5

'%
"
/
@

5
5

:%
;

:(
/
#

"
%F

0$
@

%$
@

#
%

;
5

;
=

:(
$0
5

8
%5

4%
V

ON
a

%*
#

(
'%

5
:7

"
%@

(
1
08

)
%)

'5
F

8
%

-
*
%R

V
n

%"
08

/
#

%$
@

#
%R

V
N
N

%/
#

8
"
=

"
%

/
5

8
"
07

#
'(

-
:*

%(
-

5
1
#

%$
@

#
%N

N
TW

n
%)

'5
F

$@
%0
8

%
;

5
;

=
:(

$0
5

8
%5

1
#

'(
::T

C
@

#
%D

#
*
%/

5
6

6
0"

"
05

8
08

)
%;

'0
5

'0
$*

%0
"
%$
5

%#
8

"
=

'#
%

th
e

re
 a

re
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n

t 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

la
c
e

s
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 

-
5

'5
=

)
@

S%
08

%$
@

#
%'

0)
@

$%
:5

/
(

$0
5

8
"
S%
$5

%#
8

(
-

:#
%

$@
#

%/
5

=
8

/
0:%

$5
%6

(
D
#

%(
%"

$(
$=

$5
'*

%5
44
#

'%
$5

%(
::%

/
@

0:7
'#

8
%(

8
7

%*
5

=
8

)
%;

#
'"

5
8

"
%F

@
5

%'
#

X
=

0'
#

%
5

8
#

T

T
h

e
 c

o
re

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 f
o

r 
"
/
@

5
5

:%
;

:(
/
#

"
%0
8

/
:=

7
#

[

E
@

#
'#

%;
#

'6
(

8
#

8
$%
(

7
7

0$
05

8
(

:%
;

'5
1
0"

05
8

%0
"
%

'#
X

=
0'
#

7
%$
5

%6
#

#
$%
7

#
6

5
)

'(
;

@
0/

%;
'#

"
"
=

'#
S%

#
M
0"

$0
8

)
%;

5
;

=
:(

'%
(

8
7

%"
=

/
/
#

"
"
4=

:%
"
/
@

5
5

:"
%F

0::
%

-
#

%;
'0
5

'0
$0
"
#

7
%4
5

'%
#

M
;

(
8

"
05

8
%F

@
#

'#
%$
@

#
%"

0$
#

%
(

::5
F

"
S%
7

#
6

5
8

"
$'

(
$0
8

)
%1

(
:=

#
%4
5

'%
6

5
8

#
*
%0
8

%
$#

'6
"
%5

4%
-

=
0:7

08
)

%F
5

'D
"
T%

I8
8

5
1
(

$0
1
#

%(
8

7
%/

'#
(

$0
1
#

%"
5

:=
$0
5

8
"
%$
5

%6
#

#
$%

$@
#

%#
7

=
/
(

$0
5

8
(

:%
8

#
#

7
"
%5

4%
$@

#
%(

8
$0
/
0;

(
$#

7
%

)
'5

F
$@

%0
8

%?
(

'8
#

$T
%C

@
#

%/
5

=
8

/
0:%

F
0::

%F
5

'D
%F

0$
@

%
"
/
@

5
5

:"
S%
4'

#
#

%"
/
@

5
5

:%
;

'5
;

5
"
#

'"
%(

8
7

%
'#

)
#

8
#

'(
$0
5

8
%;

(
'$

8
#

'"
%$
5

%4
08

7
%(

/
/
#

;
$(

-
:#

%
"
5

:=
$0
5

8
"
%$
@

'5
=

)
@

%7
#

"
0)

8
%$
@

(
$%
#

8
(

-
:#

%
/
5

8
"
$'

(
08

#
7

%"
0$
#

"
%$
5

%-
#

%-
'5

=
)

@
$%
45

'F
(

'7
T%

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

is
h

in
g

 t
o

 e
n

te
r 

th
e

 s
ta

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
6

=
"
$%
@

(
1
#

%"
=

0$
(

-
:#

%(
8

7
%(

7
#

X
=

(
$#

%"
/
@

5
5

:%
-

=
0:7

08
)

"
%$
5

%#
8

"
=

'#
%$
@

(
$%
$@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

0"
%8

5
$%

#
M
;

5
"
#

7
%$
5

%=
8

8
#

/
#

"
"
(

'*
%4
08

(
8

/
0(

:%
:0(

-
0:0

$0
#

"
T

I8
%$
@

#
%0
8

$#
'#

"
$"

%5
4%
#

44
0/

0#
8

/
*
%(

8
7

%1
(

:=
#

%4
5

'%
6

5
8

#
*S

%0
8

4(
8

$%
(

8
7

%.
=

8
05

'%
"
/
@

5
5

:"
%F

0::
%-

#
%

#
8

/
5

=
'(

)
#

7
%$
5

%/
5

8
"
07

#
'%

(
6

(
:)

(
6

(
$0
5

8
%

F
@

#
'#

%$
@

#
%5

;
;

5
'$

=
8

0$
*
%(

'0
"
#

"
T%
%

>
'#

1
05

=
"
:*

%$
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

=
8

7
#

'$
5

5
D
%(

%7
0"

;
5

"
(

:%
;

'5
)

'(
6

6
#

%$
5

%'
#

:#
(

"
#

%#
M
/
#

"
"
%#

7
=

/
(

$0
5

8
(

:%
:(

8
7

S%
@

5
F

#
1
#

'%
45

::5
F

08
)

%$
@

#
%!

/
(

7
#

6
0#

"
%

!
/
$%
R

V
N

V
%(

8
*
%4
=

'$
@

#
'%

:(
8

7
%"

(
:#

"
%(

'#
%8

5
F

%
'#

"
$'

0/
$#

7
T%
%

!
/
(

7
#

6
*
%C

'(
8

"
4#

'"

C
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

@
(

"
%;

=
'"

=
#

7
%(

%;
5

:0/
*
%$
5

%$
'(

8
"
4#

'%
#

7
=

/
(

$0
5

8
%:
(

8
7

%$
5

%!
/
(

7
#

6
0#

"
%=

8
7

#
'%

N
R

W
%

y
e

a
r 

le
a

s
e

s
 a

t 
a

 p
e

p
p

e
rc

o
rn

 r
e

n
t,
 

/
5

8
"
0"

$#
8

$%
F

0$
@

%$
@

#
%!

/
(

7
#

6
0#

"
%!

/
$%
R

V
N

V
T

C
@

#
%!

/
(

7
#

6
0#

"
%!

/
$%
R

V
N

V
%0
8

/
:=

7
#

"
%/

:#
(

'%
#

M
;

#
/
$(

$0
5

8
"
%$
@

(
$%
!

/
(

7
#

6
0#

"
%"

@
5

=
:7

%@
(

1
#

%
(

%:
5

8
)

%:
#

(
"
#

@
5

:7
%0
8

$#
'#

"
$%
=

8
:#

"
"
%$
@

#
%

;
'#

7
#

/
#

"
"
5

'%
"
/
@

5
5

:%
@

#
:7

%$
@

#
%4
'#

#
@

5
:7

T%
!

%
o$

F
5

%"
$(

)
#

p%
/
5

8
1
#

'"
05

8
%J

L
5

=
8

7
(

$0
5

8
%(

8
7

%
$@

#
8

%!
/
(

7
#

6
*
K%

/
5

=
:7

%#
8

(
-

:#
%(

8
%!

/
(

7
#

6
*
%

$5
%5

-
$(

08
%$
@

#
%4
'#

#
@

5
:7

%5
4%
$@

#
%"

/
@

5
5

:%
"
0$
#

%(
8

7
%

0"
%/

5
8

"
07

#
'#

7
%(

)
(

08
"
$%
$@

#
%0
8

$#
8

$0
5

8
"
%5

4%
$@

#
%

!
/
$T
%%
C

@
#

'#
45

'#
%$
F

5
%"

$(
)

#
%/

5
8

1
#

'"
05

8
"
%/

(
8

%
-

#
%'

#
4=

"
#

7
%-

*
%$
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:T

E
@

#
'#

%5
$@

#
'%

/
5

=
8

/
0:%

"
#

'1
0/

#
"
%J

#
T)

T%
<

0-
'(

'0
#

"
S%
2

@
0:7

'#
8

U"
U%2

#
8

$'
#

"
S%
45

'6
%

a
n

 i
n

te
g

ra
l 
p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l,
 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il�

s
 

(
-

0:0
$*

%$
5

%/
5

8
$0
8

=
#

%$
5

%;
'5

1
07

#
%$
@

#
"
#

%
"
#

'1
0/

#
"
%F

0::
%-

#
%"

#
/
=

'#
7

%-
*
%$
(

D
08

)
%(

%N
R

W
%

*
#

(
'%

o:
#

(
"
#

O-
(

/
D
p%

(
$%
(

%;
#

;
;

#
'/

5
'8

%'
#

8
$%

J;
(

*
08

)
%(

%4
(

0'
%;

'5
;

5
'$

05
8

%5
4%
=

$0
:0$

0#
"
%(

8
7

%
6

(
08

$#
8

(
8

/
#

%/
5

"
$"

KT

O
p
e
ra

tio
n
a
l e

s
ta

te
 

30



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

2
1

D
R

A
F
T

S
h
a
p
in

g
 t
h
e
 F

u
tu

re
 E

s
ta

te
P

a
r
t 

2

C
o
m

m
u
n
ity

 A
s
s
e
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y

C
@

#
%2

5
6

6
=

8
0$
*
%!

"
"
#

$%
&

$'
(

$#
)

*
%0
"
%-

#
08

)
%;

'#
;

(
'#

7
%4
5

'
;

=
-

:0/
(

$0
5

8
%0
8

%Q
#

/
#

6
-

#
'%

R
V

N
_

T

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il�

s
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 a
s
s
e

t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
m

u
s
t 
e

n
s
u

re
 

$@
(

$%
"
(

1
08

)
"
%(

8
7

%0
8

/
5

6
#

%)
#

8
#

'(
$0
5

8
%$
(

')
#

$"
%(

'#
%6

#
$T
%%

i
#

1
#

'$
@

#
:#

"
"
%$
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

0"
%(

:"
5

%/
5

6
6

0$
$#

7
%$
5

%7
#

1
#

:5
;

08
)

%
)

'#
(

$#
'%

/
5

6
6

=
8

0$
*
%;

(
'$

0/
0;

(
$0
5

8
%(

8
7

%'
#

/
5

)
8

0"
08

)
%$
@

#
%

06
;

5
'$

(
8

/
#

%5
4%
;

'5
1
07

08
)

%"
=

;
;

5
'$

%$
5

%$
@

5
"
#

%1
5

:=
8

$(
'*

%
5

')
(

8
0"

(
$0
5

8
"
%$
@

(
$%
;

'5
1
07

#
%"

#
'1

0/
#

"
%$
5

%$
@

#
%/

5
6

6
=

8
0$
*
%

F
@

0/
@

%(
'#

%/
5

6
;

(
$0
-

:#
%F

0$
@

%$
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:U

"
%F

07
#

'%
5

-
.#

/
$0
1
#

"
T

C
@

#
'#

%0
"
%(

%2
5

';
5

'(
$#

%>
:(

8
%5

-
.#

/
$0
1
#

%m
$5

%;
'5

6
5

$#
q

%
/
5

6
6

=
8

0$
*
%F

#
::-

#
08

)
%(

8
7

%#
8

/
5

=
'(

)
#

%#
8

)
(

)
#

7
S%
/
5

@
#

"
01

#
%

(
8

7
%"

(
4#

%/
5

6
6

=
8

0$
0#

"
UT
%%
C

@
0"

%5
-

.#
/
$0
1
#

%6
#

(
8

"
%$
@

(
$%
$@

#
%

/
5

=
8

/
0:%

8
#

#
7

"
%$
5

%/
5

8
"
07

#
'%

@
5

F
%$
5

%=
"
#

%0
$"

%0
8

$#
'(

/
$0
5

8
"
%F

0$
@

%
$@

#
%/

5
6

6
=

8
0$
*
%$
5

%"
=

;
;

5
'$

%'
#

"
07

#
8

$"
S%
1
5

:=
8

$(
'*

%(
8

7
%

/
5

6
6

=
8

0$
*
%)

'5
=

;
"
S%
(

8
7

%-
=

"
08

#
"
"
#

"
%$
5

%-
#

%#
6

;
5

F
#

'#
7

S%
08

7
#

;
#

8
7

#
8

$%
(

8
7

%(
/
$0
1
#

%(
)

#
8

$"
%0
8

%$
@

#
0'
%:
5

/
(

:%
(

'#
(

"
T%
%C

@
#

%
/
5

=
8

/
0:U

"
%(

"
"
#

$"
%@

(
1
#

%(
%D

#
*
%'

5
:#

%$
5

%;
:(

*
%0
8

%"
=

;
;

5
'$

08
)

%$
@

0"
%

5
-

.#
/
$0
1
#

T%
%

T
h

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 A

s
s
e

t 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 w

ill
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 
a

n
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 
6

(
8

(
)

08
)

%$
@

5
"
#

%(
"
"
#

$"
%$
@

(
$%
(

'#
%(

1
(

0:(
-

:#
%$
5

%$
@

#
%/

5
6

6
=

8
0$
*
%

45
'%

$@
#

0'
%"

5
:#

%=
"
#

T%
I$
%F

0::
%8

5
$%
/
5

1
#

'%
/
5

=
8

/
0:%

5
;

#
'(

$0
5

8
(

:%
(

"
"
#

$"
%"

=
/
@

%(
"
%:
0-

'(
'0
#

"
S%
:#

0"
=

'#
%4
(

/
0:0

$0
#

"
%(

8
7

%;
(

'D
"
%F

@
0/

@
%

F
0::

%-
#

%"
=

-
.#

/
$%
$5

%"
#

;
(

'(
$#

%"
$'

(
$#

)
0#

"
%7

#
1
#

:5
;

#
7

%-
*
%$
@

#
%

/
5

=
8

/
0:T

%

!
%7

#
$(

0:#
7

%'
#

1
0#

F
%5

4%
(

::%
/
5

6
6

=
8

0$
*
%(

"
"
#

$"
%F

0::
%-

#
%

=
8

7
#

'$
(

D
#

8
%:
#

(
7

08
)

%$
5

%7
#

1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$%
5

4%
(

%2
5

6
6

=
8

0$
*
%!

"
"
#

$%
&

$'
(

$#
)

*
%4
5

'%
/
5

8
"
07

#
'(

$0
5

8
%-

*
%$
@

#
%!

"
"
#

$"
S%
9

#
)

#
8

#
'(

$0
5

8
%

(
8

7
%e

'5
F

$@
%2

5
6

6
0$
$#

#
%0
8

%:
(

$#
%R

V
N

_
T%
C

@
0"

%'
#

1
0#

F
%(

8
7

%
"
$'

(
$#

)
*
%F

0::
%-

#
%)

=
07

#
7

%-
*
%$
@

#
%4
5

::5
F

08
)

%;
'0
8

/
0;

:#
"
Z

C
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

F
0::

%)
#

8
#

'(
$#

%(
%/

5
6

6
#

'/
0(

:%
*
0#

:7
%5

8
%/

5
6

6
=

8
0$
*
%(

"
"
#

$"
S%
-

=
$%
$@

0"
%/

5
=

:7
%-

#
%

"
=

-
"
07

0"
#

7
%F

@
#

'#
%(

8
%5

')
(

8
0"

(
$0
5

8
%0
"
%/

:#
(

':
*
%"

=
;

;
5

'$
08

)
%$
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:U

"
%5

-
.#

/
$0
1
#

"
%5

'%
(

"
"
0"

$0
8

)
%

F
0$
@

%"
#

'1
0/

#
%7

#
:01

#
'*

T

C
@

#
%2

5
6

6
=

8
0$
*
%!

"
"
#

$%
&

$'
(

$#
)

*
%F

0::
%;

'0
5

'0
$0
"
#

%=
$0
:0"

(
$0
5

8
%5

4%
-

=
0:7

08
)

"
%(

8
7

%0
7

#
8

$0
4*

08
)

%
5

;
;

5
'$

=
8

0$
0#

"
%4
5

'%
5

')
(

8
0"

(
$0
5

8
"
%$
5

%"
@

(
'#

%(
8

7
%/

5
O:
5

/
(

$#
T%

C
@

#
%2

5
6

6
=

8
0$
*
%!

"
"
#

$%
&

$'
(

$#
)

*
%F

0::
%(

:"
5

%"
#

$%
5

=
$%
$@

#
%(

;
;

'5
(

/
@

%$
5

%/
5

6
6

=
8

0$
*
%o

'0
)

@
$%
$5

%-
07

pS
%

(
8

7
%#

M
;

:5
'#

%@
5

F
%/

5
6

6
=

8
0$
*
%(

"
"
#

$"
%/

(
8

%-
#

%=
"
#

7
%(

"
%(

%$
5

5
:%
45

'%
#

8
/
5

=
'(

)
08

)
%/

5
6

6
=

8
0$
*
%

#
8

)
(

)
#

6
#

8
$T
%

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
E

s
ta

te
  
- 

Y
#

:7
%4
5

'%
7

#
:01

#
'*

%5
4%
/
5

=
8

/
0:%

"
#

'1
0/

#
"
%

 
<

0-
'(

'0
#

"
 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
, 

P
R

U
s
, 

y
o

u
th

 c
e

n
tr

e
s
, 

%%
%%

%%
%%

%%
%%

%%
%%

%%
%%

%%
%%

%%
%%

%%
%%

%%
%%

/
@

0:7
'#

8
"
h%/

#
8

$'
#

"
 

D
e

p
o

ts
 

C
iv

ic
 O

ff
ic

e
s

 
C

e
m

te
ra

ry
, 

c
re

m
a

to
ri
u

m
, 

m
o

rt
u

a
ry

%
2

@
0:7

'#
8

h"
%@

5
6

#
"

 
D

a
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

s
%

<
#

0"
=

'#
%/

#
8

$'
#

"
%H

%>
(

'D
"
%

%
2

(
'%

>
(

'D
"

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
E

s
ta

te
 -
 

Y
#

:7
%;

'0
6

(
'0
:*

%$
5

%;
'5

1
07

#
%(

8
%0
8

/
5

6
#

%(
8

7
%

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y

   
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
h

e
 a

g
ri
c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
e

s
ta

te
%

I8
7

=
"
$'

0(
:%
=

8
0$
"

%
<

5
8

)
%:
#

(
"
#

@
5

:7
%"

@
5

;
;

08
)

%/
5

6
;

:#
M
#

"
%

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 P

o
r
tf

o
li
o

 -

B
(

8
(

)
#

7
%-

*
%?

(
'8

#
$%
Y

5
6

#
"

   
  

  
  
  
  
  

e
(

'7
#

8
%<

(
8

7
%;

(
'/

#
:"

 
G

a
ra

g
e

s
 o

n
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

e
s
ta

te
s

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
o

u
s
in

g
%

2
5

=
8

/
0:%

@
5

=
"
08

)
%"

@
(

'#
7

%5
F

8
#

'"
@

0;
%

2
5

=
8

/
0:%

@
5

=
"
#

"
%"

5
:7

%5
8

%:
5

8
)

%:
#

(
"
#

"
%

9
#

"
07

#
8

$0
(

:%
;

'5
;

#
'$

0#
"
%-

5
=

)
@

$%
-

(
/
D
%

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 E

s
ta

te
 -

 
9

#
$(

08
#

7
%4

5
'%

$@
#

%-
#

8
#

40
$%

5
4%

$@
#

%/
5

6
6

=
8

0$
*

   
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
 

A
llo

tm
e

n
ts

 
W

a
r 

m
e

m
o

ri
a

ls

D
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
P

o
rt
fo

lio

H
ig

h
w

a
ys

 a
n
d
 G

re
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 

P
o
rt
fo

lio

C
o
m

m
u
n
ity

 e
s
ta

te
 

31



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

2
2

D
R

A
F
T

S
h
a
p
in

g
 t
h
e
 F

u
tu

re
 E

s
ta

te
P

a
r
t 

2

H
ig

h
w

a
ys

H
ig

h
w

a
ys

 &
 G

re
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 P

o
rt
fo

lio
 

C
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

Y
0)

@
F

(
*
%I
8

4'
(

"
$'

=
/
$=

'#
%8

#
$F

5
'D

%@
(

"
%W

%6
0::

05
8

%
"
X

=
(

'#
%6

#
$'

#
"
%5

4%
'5

(
7

%/
(

''
0(

)
#

F
(

*
%(

8
7

%`
TW

%6
0::

05
8

%"
X

=
(

'#
%

6
#

$'
#

"
%5

4%
;

#
7

#
"
$'

0(
8

%4
5

5
$F

(
*
"
T%

C
@

#
%/

=
''

#
8

$%
#

/
5

8
5

6
0/

%/
:06

(
$#

%;
5

"
#

"
%-

0)
%/

@
(

::#
8

)
#

"
%$
5

%
/
5

=
8

/
0:"

%$
5

%6
(

D
#

%$
@

#
%-

#
"
$%
=

"
#

%5
4%
:06

0$
#

7
%'

#
"
5

=
'/

#
"
%0
8

%
;

'5
1
07

08
)

%(
8

%(
/
/
#

;
$(

-
:#

%@
0)

@
F

(
*
%"

#
'1

0/
#

%$
5

%$
@

#
%;

=
-

:0/
%(

8
7

%
c
ri
ti
c
a

lly
 t
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 t
h

e
 i
n

te
g

ri
ty

 o
f 
o

u
r 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 f
o

r 
fu

tu
re

 
)

#
8

#
'(

$0
5

8
"
T%

C
@

#
%Y

0)
@

F
(

*
%I
8

4'
(

"
$'

=
/
$=

'#
%!

"
"
#

$%
B

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$%
e

=
07

(
8

/
#

S%
;

=
-

:0"
@

#
7

%0
8

%R
V

N
`

%-
*
%$
@

#
%b

P
%9

5
(

7
"
%<

0(
0"

5
8

%e
'5

=
;

%J
b

P
9

<
e

KS
%

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 H

ig
h

w
a

y
s
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 E
ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 

>
'5

)
'(

6
6

#
%J

Y
B

3
>

KS
%;

'5
1
07

#
"
%/

5
6

;
'#

@
#

8
"
01

#
%(

7
1
0/

#
%$
5

%
#

8
(

-
:#

%$
@

#
%"

=
/
/
#

"
"
4=

:%
06

;
:#

6
#

8
$(

$0
5

8
%5

4%
)

5
5

7
%(

"
"
#

$%
6

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$%
;

'(
/
$0
/
#

"
T%
C

@
#

%e
=

07
(

8
/
#

%0
8

/
:=

7
#

"
%N

_
%

;
'0
5

'0
$0
#

"
%$
@

(
$%
"
@

5
=

:7
%-

#
%(

7
5

;
$#

7
%0
4%
/
5

=
8

/
0:"

%(
'#

%$
5

%(
/
@

0#
1
#

%
$@

#
%4
=

::%
-

#
8

#
40
$"

%5
4%
(

"
"
#

$%
6

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$%
(

8
7

%6
(

D
#

%-
#

$$
#

'%
=

"
#

%
5

4%
$@

#
0'
%"

/
(

'/
#

%'
#

"
5

=
'/

#
"
T%
I$
%(

:"
5

%0
8

$'
5

7
=

/
#

"
%(

%4
:#

M
0-

:#
%

4'
(

6
#

F
5

'D
%$
@

(
$%
0"

%7
#

"
0)

8
#

7
%$
5

%"
=

;
;

5
'$

%/
5

=
8

/
0:"

%0
8

%
7

#
1
#

:5
;

08
)

%(
8

%(
;

;
'5

(
/
@

%$
5

%@
0)

@
F

(
*
%6

(
08

$#
8

(
8

/
#

%$
@

(
$%

6
(

$/
@

#
"
%$
@

#
0'
%"

$'
(

$#
)

0/
%;

'0
5

'0
$0
#

"
%(

8
7

%6
#

#
$"

%#
44
0/

0#
8

/
*
%

'#
X

=
0'
#

6
#

8
$"

%(
8

7
%"

$(
D
#

@
5

:7
#

'%
#

M
;

#
/
$(

$0
5

8
"
T%
C

@
#

%4
5

=
'$

#
#

8
%

p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

re
:

!
8

%!
"
"
#

$%
B

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$%
L

'(
6

#
F

5
'D

%"
@

5
=

:7
%-

#
%7

#
1
#

:5
;

#
7

%(
8

7
%

#
8

7
5

'"
#

7
%-

*
%"

#
8

05
'%

7
#

/
0"

05
8

%6
(

D
#

'"
T%
!

::%
(

/
$0
1
0$
0#

"
%5

=
$:
08

#
7

%0
8

%
$@

#
%L

'(
6

#
F

5
'D

%"
@

5
=

:7
%-

#
%7

5
/
=

6
#

8
$#

7
T

9
#

:#
1
(

8
$%
08

45
'6

(
$0
5

8
%(

"
"
5

/
0(

$#
7

%F
0$
@

%(
"
"
#

$%
6

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$%
"
@

5
=

:7
%-

#
%(

/
$0
1
#

:*
%/

5
6

6
=

8
0/

(
$#

7
%$
@

'5
=

)
@

%#
8

)
(

)
#

6
#

8
$%
F

0$
@

%
'#

:#
1
(

8
$%
"
$(

D
#

@
5

:7
#

'"
%0
8

%"
#

$$
08

)
%'

#
X

=
0'
#

6
#

8
$"

S%
6

(
D
08

)
%

7
#

/
0"

05
8

"
%(

8
7

%'
#

;
5

'$
08

)
%;

#
'4

5
'6

(
8

/
#

T

!
8

%(
"
"
#

$%
6

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$%
;

5
:0/

*
%(

8
7

%(
%"

$'
(

$#
)

*
%"

@
5

=
:7

%-
#

%
7

#
1
#

:5
;

#
7

%(
8

7
%;

=
-

:0"
@

#
7

T%
C

@
#

"
#

%"
@

5
=

:7
%(

:0)
8

%F
0$
@

%$
@

#
%

/
5

';
5

'(
$#

%1
0"

05
8

%(
8

7
%7

#
6

5
8

"
$'

(
$#

%$
@

#
%/

5
8

$'
0-

=
$0
5

8
%(

"
"
#

$%
6

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$%
6

(
D
#

"
%$
5

F
(

'7
"
%(

/
@

0#
1
08

)
%$
@

0"
%1

0"
05

8
T

!
%;

#
'4

5
'6

(
8

/
#

%6
(

8
(

)
#

6
#

8
$%
4'

(
6

#
F

5
'D

%"
@

5
=

:7
%-

#
%

7
#

1
#

:5
;

#
7

%$
@

(
$%
0"

%/
:#

(
'%

(
8

7
%(

/
/
#

"
"
0-

:#
%$
5

%"
$(

D
#

@
5

:7
#

'"
%(

"
%

(
;

;
'5

;
'0
(

$#
%(

8
7

%"
=

;
;

5
'$

"
%$
@

#
%!

"
"
#

$%
B

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$%
&

$'
(

$#
)

*T

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
E

s
ta

te
  
- 

Y
#

:7
%4
5

'%
7

#
:01

#
'*

%5
4%
/
5

=
8

/
0:%

"
#

'1
0/

#
"
%

 
<

0-
'(

'0
#

"
 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
, 

P
R

U
s
, 

y
o

u
th

 c
e

n
tr

e
s
, 

%%
%%

%%
%%

%%
%%

%%
%%

%%
%%

%%
%%

%%
%%

%%
%%

%%
%%

%%
%%

%%
%%

%/
@

0:7
'#

8
"
h%/

#
8

$'
#

"
 

D
e

p
o

ts
 

C
iv

ic
 O

ff
ic

e
s

 
C

e
m

te
ra

ry
, 

c
re

m
a

to
ri
u

m
, 

m
o

rt
u

a
ry

%
2

@
0:7

'#
8

h"
%@

5
6

#
"

 
D

a
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

s

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
E

s
ta

te
 -
 

Y
#

:7
%;

'0
6

(
'0
:*

%$
5

%;
'5

1
07

#
%(

8
%0
8

/
5

6
#

%(
8

7
%

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y

   
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
h

e
 a

g
ri
c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
e

s
ta

te
%

I8
7

=
"
$'

0(
:%
=

8
0$
"

%
<

5
8

)
%:
#

(
"
#

@
5

:7
%"

@
5

;
;

08
)

%/
5

6
;

:#
M
#

"
%

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 P

o
r
tf

o
li
o

 -

B
(

8
(

)
#

7
%-

*
%?

(
'8

#
$%
Y

5
6

#
"

   
  

  
  
  
  
  

e
(

'7
#

8
%<

(
8

7
%;

(
'/

#
:"

 
G

a
ra

g
e

s
 o

n
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

e
s
ta

te
s

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
o

u
s
in

g
%

2
5

=
8

/
0:%

@
5

=
"
08

)
%"

@
(

'#
7

%5
F

8
#

'"
@

0;
%

2
5

=
8

/
0:%

@
5

=
"
#

"
%"

5
:7

%5
8

%:
5

8
)

%:
#

(
"
#

"
%

9
#

"
07

#
8

$0
(

:%
;

'5
;

#
'$

0#
"
%-

5
=

)
@

$%
-

(
/
D
%

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 E

s
ta

te
 -

 
9

#
$(

08
#

7
%4
5

'%
$@

#
%-

#
8

#
40
$%
5

4%
$@

#
%/

5
6

6
=

8
0$
*

   
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
 

A
llo

tm
e

n
ts

 
W

a
r 

m
e

m
o

ri
a

ls

D
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
P

o
rt
fo

lio

H
ig

h
w

a
ys

 a
n
d
 G

re
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 

32



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

2
3

D
R

A
F
T

S
h
a
p
in

g
 t
h
e
 F

u
tu

re
 E

s
ta

te
P

a
r
t 

2

H
ig

h
w

a
ys

H
ig

h
w

a
ys

 &
 G

re
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 P

o
rt
fo

lio
 

C
@

#
%X

=
(

:0$
*S

%/
=

''
#

8
/
*S

%(
;

;
'5

;
'0
(

$#
8

#
"
"
%(

8
7

%
/
5

6
;

:#
$#

8
#

"
"
%5

4%
(

::%
7

(
$(

%"
=

;
;

5
'$

08
)

%(
"
"
#

$%
6

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$%
"
@

5
=

:7
%-

#
%'

#
)

=
:(

':
*
%'

#
1
0#

F
#

7
T%

!
8

%(
"
"
#

$%
'#

)
0"

$#
'%

"
@

5
=

:7
%-

#
%6

(
08

$(
08

#
7

%$
@

(
$%

"
$5

'#
"
S%
6

(
8

(
)

#
"
%(

8
7

%'
#

;
5

'$
"
%(

::%
'#

:#
1
(

8
$%

(
"
"
#

$%
7

(
$(

T

<
04
#

/
*
/
:#

%;
:(

8
8

08
)

%;
'0
8

/
0;

:#
"
%"

@
5

=
:7

%-
#

%
=

"
#

7
%$
5

%'
#

1
0#

F
%$
@

#
%:
#

1
#

:%
5

4%
4=

8
7

08
)

S%
"
=

;
;

5
'$

%
08

1
#

"
$6

#
8

$%
7

#
/
0"

05
8

"
%(

8
7

%"
=

-
"
$(

8
$0
(

$#
%$
@

#
%

8
#

#
7

%4
5

'%
(

;
;

'5
;

'0
(

$#
%(

8
7

%"
=

"
$(

08
(

-
:#

%:
5

8
)

%
$#

'6
%0
8

1
#

"
$6

#
8

$T

!
%;

'0
5

'0
$0
"
#

7
%4
5

'F
(

'7
%F

5
'D

"
%;

'5
)

'(
6

6
#

%4
5

'%
(

%'
5

::0
8

)
%;

#
'0
5

7
%5

4%
$@

'#
#

%$
5

%4
01

#
%*

#
(

'"
%"

@
5

=
:7

%
-

#
%7

#
1
#

:5
;

#
7

%(
8

7
%=

;
7

(
$#

7
%'

#
)

=
:(

':
*T

&
#

8
05

'%
7

#
/
0"

05
8

%6
(

D
#

'"
%"

@
5

=
:7

%
7

#
6

5
8

"
$'

(
$#

%:
#

(
7

#
'"

@
0;

%(
8

7
%/

5
6

6
0$
6

#
8

$%
$5

%#
8

(
-

:#
%$
@

#
%0
6

;
:#

6
#

8
$(

$0
5

8
%5

4%
(

"
"
#

$%
6

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$T

H
ig

h
w

a
ys

<
5

/
(

:%
(

8
7

%8
(

$0
5

8
(

:%
-

#
8

/
@

6
(

'D
08

)
%"

@
5

=
:7

%-
#

%=
"
#

7
%

to
 c

o
m

p
a

re
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
f 
th

e
 A

s
s
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
L

'(
6

#
F

5
'D

%(
8

7
%$
5

%"
@

(
'#

%0
8

45
'6

(
$0
5

8
%$
@

(
$%
"
=

;
;

5
'$

"
%

/
5

8
$0
8

=
5

=
"
%0
6

;
'5

1
#

6
#

8
$T
%

!
"
"
#

$%
6

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$%
;

'5
6

5
$#

"
%(

%-
=

"
08

#
"
"
O:
0D

#
%

(
;

;
'5

(
/
@

%$
5

%@
0)

@
F

(
*
%6

(
08

$#
8

(
8

/
#

T%
I$
%6

(
D
#

"
%-

#
$$
#

'%
=

"
#

%5
4%
:06

0$
#

7
%'

#
"
5

=
'/

#
"
%(

8
7

%7
#

:01
#

'"
%#

44
0/

0#
8

$%
(

8
7

%
#

44
#

/
$0
1
#

%@
0)

@
F

(
*
%6

(
08

$#
8

(
8

/
#

T%
I$
%$
(

D
#

"
%(

%:
5

8
)

%$
#

'6
%

1
0#

F
%5

4%
@

5
F

%@
0)

@
F

(
*
"
%6

(
*
%-

#
%6

(
8

(
)

#
7

S%
45

/
=

"
08

)
%5

8
%

5
=

$/
5

6
#

"
%-

*
%#

8
"
=

'0
8

)
%$
@

(
$%
4=

8
7

"
%(

'#
%"

;
#

8
$%
5

8
%

(
/
$0
1
0$
0#

"
%$
@

(
$%
;

'#
1
#

8
$%
#

M
;

#
8

"
01

#
%"

@
5

'$
O$

#
'6

%'
#

;
(

0'
"
T%

C
@

0"
%6

(
D
#

"
%$
@

#
%-

#
"
$%
=

"
#

%5
4%
;

=
-

:0/
%6

5
8

#
*
%F

@
0:"

$%
6

08
06

0"
08

)
%$
@

#
%'

0"
D
%0
8

1
5

:1
#

7
%0
8

%0
8

1
#

"
$0
8

)
%0
8

%@
0)

@
F

(
*
%

6
(

08
$#

8
(

8
/
#

T

I8
%5

'7
#

'%
$5

%6
(

8
(

)
#

%$
@

#
%8

#
$F

5
'D

%"
=

/
/
#

"
"
4=

::*
%$
@

#
%

/
5

=
8

/
0:%

F
0::

%;
'5

7
=

/
#

%$
@

#
%4
5

::5
F

08
)

i
#

$F
5

'D
%B

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$%
>

:(
8

i
#

$F
5

'D
%9

#
/
5

1
#

'*
%>

:(
8

%+
%!

8
%(

7
7

#
8

7
=

6
%$
5

%$
@

#
%

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 B

a
rn

e
t 
H

ig
h

w
a

y
 A

s
s
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

 
JY

!
B

>
K

,
;

#
'(

$0
5

8
(

:%
i

#
$F

5
'D

%Y
0#

'(
'/

@
*
%

Q
#

1
#

:5
;

#
'U
"
%Q

#
"
0)

8
%e

=
07

#

I$
%0
"
%#

M
;

#
/
$#

7
%$
@

(
$%
$@

#
*
%F

0::
%-

#
%(

7
5

;
$#

7
%-

*
%$
@

#
%2

5
=

8
/
0:%

-
*
%!

;
'0
:%
R

V
N

W
T

T
h

e
 c

a
s
e

 f
o

r 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 A

s
s
e

t 
B

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$%
L

'(
6

#
F

5
'D

%"
@

5
=

:7
%-

#
%6

(
7

#
%

-
*
%/

:#
(

':
*
%#

M
;

:(
08

08
)

%$
@

#
%4
=

8
7

08
)

%'
#

X
=

0'
#

7
%

(
8

7
%$
@

#
%F

07
#

'%
-

#
8

#
40
$"

%$
5

%-
#

%(
/
@

0#
1
#

7
T

C
@

#
%(

;
;

'5
;

'0
(

$#
%/

5
6

;
#

$#
8

/
*
%'

#
X

=
0'
#

7
%4
5

'%
(

"
"
#

$%
6

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$%
"
@

5
=

:7
%-

#
%0
7

#
8

$0
40
#

7
%(

8
7

%
$'

(
08

08
)

%"
@

5
=

:7
%-

#
%;

'5
1
07

#
7

%F
@

#
'#

%
8

#
/
#

"
"
(

'*
T

C
@

#
%6

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$%
5

4%
/
=

''
#

8
$%
(

8
7

%4
=

$=
'#

%
'0
"
D
"
%(

"
"
5

/
0(

$#
7

%F
0$
@

%(
"
"
#

$"
%"

@
5

=
:7

%-
#

%
#

6
-

#
7

7
#

7
%F

0$
@

08
%$
@

#
%(

;
;

'5
(

/
@

%$
5

%(
"
"
#

$%
6

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$T
%&

$'
(

$#
)

0/
S%
$(

/
$0
/
(

:%
(

8
7

%
5

;
#

'(
$0
5

8
(

:%
'0
"
D
"
%"

@
5

=
:7

%-
#

%0
8

/
:=

7
#

7
%(

"
%

"
@

5
=

:7
%(

;
;

'5
;

'0
(

$#
%6

0$
0)

(
$0
5

8
%6

#
(

"
=

'#
"
T

!
"
"
#

$%
6

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$%
"
*
"
$#

6
"
%"

@
5

=
:7

%-
#

%
"
=

"
$(

08
(

-
:#

%(
8

7
%(

-
:#

%$
5

%"
=

;
;

5
'$

%$
@

#
%

08
45

'6
(

$0
5

8
%'

#
X

=
0'
#

7
%$
5

%#
8

(
-

:#
%(

"
"
#

$%
6

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$T
%&

*
"
$#

6
"
%"

@
5

=
:7

%-
#

%
(

/
/
#

"
"
0-

:#
%$
5

%'
#

:#
1
(

8
$%
"
$(

44
%(

8
7

S%
F

@
#

'#
%

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
, 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

08
45

'6
(

$0
5

8
%4
5

'%
"
$(

D
#

@
5

:7
#

'"
T

T
h

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
f 
th

e
 A

s
s
e

t 
B

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$%
L

'(
6

#
F

5
'D

%"
@

5
=

:7
%-

#
%

6
5

8
0$
5

'#
7

%(
8

7
%'

#
;

5
'$

#
7

T%
I$
%"

@
5

=
:7

%-
#

%
'#

1
0#

F
#

7
%'

#
)

=
:(

':
*
%-

*
%"

#
8

05
'%

7
#

/
0"

05
8

%
6

(
D
#

'"
%(

8
7

%F
@

#
8

%(
;

;
'5

;
'0
(

$#
S%

06
;

'5
1
#

6
#

8
$%
(

/
$0
5

8
"
%"

@
5

=
:7

%-
#

%$
(

D
#

8
T

33



D
R

A
F
T

S
h
a
p
in

g
 t
h
e
 F

u
tu

re
 E

s
ta

te
P

a
r
t 

2

G
re

e
n
 In

fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu

re

C
@

#
%m
e

'#
#

8
U%;

5
'$

45
:05

%0
"
%(

%"
=

-
"
$(

8
$0
(

:%
;

(
'$

%5
4%
$@

#
%

/
5

=
8

/
0:U

"
%(

"
"
#

$%
-

(
"
#

S%
/
5

6
;

'0
"
08

)
%(

%$
5

$(
:%
5

4%
`

_
T_

n
%5

4%
(

::%
:(

8
7

%0
8

%$
@

#
%-

5
'5

=
)

@
S%
F

0$
@

%(
8

%#
M
$#

8
"
01

#
%(

8
7

%1
(

'0
#

7
%

'(
8

)
#

%5
4%
(

"
"
#

$%
$*

;
#

%(
8

7
%4
=

8
/
$0
5

8
(

:0$
*T

%%
C

@
#

%e
'#

#
8

%
!

"
"
#

$"
%5

4%
$@

#
%-

5
'5

=
)

@
%(

'#
%0
7

#
8

$0
40
#

7
%0
8

%$
@

#
%<

5
8

7
5

8
%>

:(
8

%
a

s
 o

n
e

 o
f 
th

e
 r

e
a

s
o

n
s
 w

h
y
 p

e
o

p
le

 c
h

o
o

s
e

 t
o

 l
iv

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

-
5

'5
=

)
@

T%

C
@

#
'#

%(
'#

%5
1
#

'%
R

V
V

%;
(

'D
"
%(

8
7

%5
;

#
8

%"
;

(
/
#

"
S%
/
5

1
#

'0
8

)
%

(
8

%(
'#

(
%5

4%
(

;
;

'5
M
06

(
$#

:*
%\

_
R

%@
#

/
$(

'#
"
%;

'5
1
07

08
)

%(
%

"
#

'0
#

"
%5

4%
"
#

'1
0/

#
"
%(

8
7

%4
=

8
/
$0
5

8
"
%4
5

'%
'#

"
07

#
8

$"
%(

8
7

%$
@

#
%

#
8

1
0'
5

8
6

#
8

$T
%%
C

@
#

%8
(

$=
'#

%5
4%
;

(
'D

"
%(

8
7

%5
;

#
8

%"
;

(
/
#

"
%0
"
%

6
=

:$
0O
4(

/
#

$#
7

%F
0$
@

%(
%1

(
'0
#

7
%(

8
7

%0
8

%"
5

6
#

%/
(

"
#

"
%/

5
6

;
:#

M
%

"
#

/
5

8
7

(
'*

%0
8

4'
(

"
$'

=
/
$=

'#
%$
@

(
$%
6

(
*
%0
8

/
:=

7
#

%-
=

0:7
08

)
"
S%

;
:(

*
%4
(

/
0:0

$0
#

"
%#

$/
T%
I8

%(
7

7
0$
05

8
%$
@

#
'#

%(
'#

%5
1
#

'%
`

R
SV

V
V

%
"
$'

#
#

$%
$'

#
#

"
%F

@
0/

@
%/

5
8

$'
0-

=
$#

%"
0)

8
04
0/

(
8

$:
*
%$
5

%$
@

#
%)

'#
#

8
%

(
8

7
%:
#

(
4*

%8
(

$=
'#

%5
4%
$@

#
%-

5
'5

=
)

@
T

&
=

-
.#

/
$%
$5

%4
=

'$
@

#
'%

#
1
07

#
8

/
#

%'
#

1
0#

F
%(

8
7

%(
8

(
:*

"
0"

S%
$@

#
%

45
::5

F
08

)
%#

6
#

')
08

)
%"

$'
(

$#
)

0/
%;

'0
5

'0
$0
#

"
%@

(
1
#

%-
#

#
8

%
07

#
8

$0
40
#

7
Z%
O

>
'5

$#
/
$0
8

)
S%
/
5

8
"
#

'1
08

)
%(

8
7

%#
8

@
(

8
/
08

)
%)

'#
#

8
%"

;
(

/
#

%
(

8
7

%$
@

#
%:
#

(
4*

%/
@

(
'(

/
$#

'%
5

4%
?

(
'8

#
$%
45

'%
/
=

''
#

8
$%
(

8
7

%4
=

$=
'#

%
)

#
8

#
'(

$0
5

8
"
T

>
'5

$#
/
$0
8

)
%(

8
7

%/
5

8
"
#

'1
08

)
%-

05
7

01
#

'"
0$
*T

%>
(

'D
"
%5

44
#

'%
'#

4=
)

#
"
%4
5

'%
$@

'#
(

$#
8

#
7

%"
;

#
/
0#

"
T

P
#

#
;

08
)

%5
=

'%
(

0'
%(

8
7

%F
(

$#
'%

/
:#

(
8

S%
/
5

=
8

$#
'(

/
$0
8

)
%$
@

#
%

7
(

6
(

)
08

)
%#

44
#

/
$"

%5
4%
;

5
::=

$0
5

8
T

>
:(

*
08

)
%(

%1
0$
(

:%
'5

:#
%0
8

%4
:5

5
7

%'
0"

D
%6

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$%
08

%
$#

'6
"
%5

4%
7

'(
08

(
)

#
%(

8
7

%'
=

8
O5

44
%-

*
%;

'5
1
07

08
)

%;
5

'5
=

"
%

"
=

'4
(

/
#

"
%(

8
7

%F
(

$#
'%

"
$5

'(
)

#
%(

'#
(

"
T

&
=

;
;

5
'$

08
)

%(
8

7
%0
6

;
'5

1
08

)
%$
@

#
%@

#
(

:$
@

%(
8

7
%F

#
::-

#
08

)
%

5
4%
$@

#
%;

5
;

=
:(

$0
5

8
S%
08

/
:=

7
08

)
%5

:7
#

'%
;

#
5

;
:#

%#
"
;

#
/
0(

::*
%

$@
'5

=
)

@
%;

@
*
"
0/

(
:%
(

/
$0
1
0$
*T

B
(

08
$(

08
08

)
%(

8
7

%-
5

5
"
$0
8

)
%?

(
'8

#
$U"

%'
#

;
=

$(
$0
5

8
%(

"
%(

%
)

'#
#

8
S%
:#

(
4*

%-
5

'5
=

)
@

%(
8

7
%(

"
%(

%)
5

5
7

%;
:(

/
#

%$
5

%:
01

#
S%

F
5

'D
S%
(

8
7

%'
(

0"
#

%(
%4
(

6
0:*

T

I6
;

'5
1
08

)
%'

#
"
07

#
8

$%
"
(

$0
"
4(

/
$0
5

8
%F

0$
@

%?
(

'8
#

$%
(

"
%(

%
;

:(
/
#

%$
5

%:
01

#
%(

8
7

%F
0$
@

%$
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:T

2
'#

(
$0
8

)
%;

:(
/
#

"
%F

@
#

'#
%"

6
(

::%
-

=
"
08

#
"
"
#

"
%(

8
7

%
/
=

:$
=

'(
:%
(

/
$0
1
0$
0#

"
%(

'#
%#

8
(

-
:#

7
%$
5

%$
@

'0
1
#

T

>
'5

6
5

$0
8

)
%#

/
5

8
5

6
0/

%)
'5

F
$@

%$
@

(
$%
0"

%-
(

:(
8

/
#

7
%(

8
7

%
(

:"
5

%5
4%
7

0'
#

/
$%
-

#
8

#
40
$%
$5

%$
@

#
%:
5

/
(

:%
/
5

6
6

=
8

0$
*T

I8
1
5

:1
08

)
%/

5
6

6
=

8
0$
0#

"
%(

8
7

%:
5

/
(

:%
-

=
"
08

#
"
"
#

"
%0
8

%
$@

#
%6

(
08

$#
8

(
8

/
#

%(
8

7
%7

#
1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$%
5

4%
$@

#
%)

'#
#

8
%

"
;

(
/
#

"
%(

"
"
#

$T

B
(

8
(

)
#

6
#

8
$%
5

4%
$@

#
%;

(
'D

"
%(

8
7

%5
;

#
8

%"
;

(
/
#

"
%

;
5

'$
45

:05
%@

(
"
%$
F

5
%"

$'
(

$#
)

0/
%(

;
;

'5
(

/
@

#
"
T%
C

@
#

%
7

#
1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$%
(

8
7

%;
'5

1
0"

05
8

%5
4%
8

#
F

%(
"
"
#

$"
%$
5

%
"
=

;
;

5
'$

%$
@

#
%"

0)
8

04
0/

(
8

$%
)

'5
F

$@
%(

8
7

%'
#

)
#

8
#

'(
$0
5

8
%5

4%
$@

#
%-

5
'5

=
)

@
%#

8
"
=

'0
8

)
%$
@

#
%/

=
''

#
8

$%
(

"
"
#

$"
%(

8
7

%$
@

#
0'
%

08
4'

(
"
$'

=
/
$=

'#
%(

'#
%6

(
08

$(
08

#
7

%(
8

7
%4
0$
%4
5

'%
;

=
';

5
"
#

T

I8
%'

#
:(

$0
5

8
%$
5

%-
=

0:7
08

)
"
%:
5

/
(

$#
7

%0
8

%;
(

'D
"
%(

8
7

%5
;

#
8

%
s
p

a
c
e

s
, 
th

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
in

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
8

#
#

7
"
%$
5

%-
#

%/
:#

(
':
*
%=

8
7

#
'"

$5
5

7
%/

5
6

-
08

#
7

%F
0$
@

%
(

%'
#

(
"
"
#

"
"
6

#
8

$%
5

4%
$@

#
%(

;
;

'5
(

/
@

%$
5

%;
(

'D
"
%(

"
%(

8
%

08
/
5

6
#

%)
#

8
#

'(
$0
8

)
%(

"
"
#

$T

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 a

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
p

o
lic

y
 o

f 
m

a
in

ta
in

in
g

 
;

(
'D

"
%(

8
7

%5
;

#
8

%"
;

(
/
#

"
%(

8
7

%;
'5

$#
/
$0
8

)
%;

=
-

:0/
%5

;
#

8
%

"
;

(
/
#

%(
8

7
%6

#
$'

5
;

5
:0$

(
8

%5
;

#
8

%:
(

8
7

T%
%C

@
#

%
7

#
1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$%
5

4%
$@

#
%;

'5
;

#
'$

*
%7

(
$(

-
(

"
#

%F
0::

%#
8

"
=

'#
%

$@
(

$%
$@

#
%(

"
"
#

$%
7

#
$(

0:%
08

%'
#

:(
$0
5

8
%$
5

%;
(

'D
"
%(

8
7

%5
;

#
8

%
"
;

(
/
#

"
%0
"
%/

5
::(

$#
7

%F
0$
@

08
%(

%"
08

)
:#

%7
(

$(
-

(
"
#

%(
8

7
%F

0::
%

-
#

$$
#

'%
4(

/
0:0

$(
$#

%4
=

$=
'#

%7
#

/
0"

05
8

%6
(

D
08

)
T%

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

2
4

H
ig

h
w

a
ys

 &
 G

re
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 P

o
rt
fo

lio
 

34



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

2
5

D
R

A
F
T

S
h
a
p
in

g
 t
h
e
 F

u
tu

re
 E

s
ta

te
P

a
r
t 

2

A
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 P

o
rt
fo

lio
 

In
c
o
m

e

In
ve

s
tm

e
n
t 
E
s
ta

te
 

C
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

F
0::

%/
5

8
"
07

#
'%

"
$'

(
$#

)
0/

%(
/
X

=
0"

0$
05

8
%5

4%
08

1
#

"
$6

#
8

$%
;

'5
;

#
'$

*
%"

=
-

.#
/
$%
$5

%$
@

#
%7

#
1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$%
5

4%
(

%
1
0(

-
:#

%-
=

"
08

#
"
"
%/

(
"
#

%0
8

%#
(

/
@

%0
8

"
$(

8
/
#

%$
5

%0
8

/
:=

7
#

%(
8

%
(

8
(

:*
"
0"

%5
4%
'0
"
D
S%
4=

8
7

08
)

%6
#

$@
5

7
5

:5
)

*
%(

8
7

%;
5

$#
8

$0
(

:%
'#

$=
'8

"
T

C
@

0"
%F

0::
%8

#
/
#

"
"
0$
(

$#
%(

%6
(

'D
#

$%
/
#

8
$'

0/
%(

;
;

'5
(

/
@

%$
5

%
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

 
)

#
8

#
'(

$#
"
%(

%4
=

::%
-

#
8

#
40
/
0(

:%
'#

$=
'8

T%

I$
%0
"
%;

'5
;

5
"
#

7
%$
@

(
$%
)

5
08

)
%4
5

'F
(

'7
%5

1
#

'%
$@

#
%8

#
M
$%
40
1
#

%
*
#

(
'"

%$
@

#
%(

;
;

'5
(

/
@

%$
5

%$
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

'#
$(

08
#

7
H@

#
:7

%;
5

'$
45

:05
%

F
0::

%-
#

%5
8

#
%$
@

(
$%
"
#

#
D
"
%$
5

%6
(

M
06

0"
#

%'
#

8
$(

:%
08

/
5

6
#

%H
%*

0#
:7

%
F

@
#

'#
1
#

'%
;

5
"
"
0-

:#
S%
8

5
$%
F

0$
@

"
$(

8
7

08
)

%$
@

(
$%
$@

0"
%(

;
;

'5
(

/
@

%
8

#
#

7
%8

5
$%
8

#
/
#

"
"
(

'0
:*

%/
5

8
4:
0/

$%
F

0$
@

%$
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:U

"
%7

#
"
0'
#

%$
5

%
"
=

;
;

5
'$

%/
5

6
6

=
8

0$
*
%=

"
#

"
T 

C
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

F
0::

S%
F

@
#

'#
%0
$%
0"

%/
5

8
"
07

#
'#

7
%(

;
;

'5
;

'0
(

$#
S%

p
u

rs
u

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f
o

r 
c
a

p
it
a

l 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 s
u

rp
lu

s
 

;
'5

;
#

'$
*
%$
5

%;
'5

1
07

#
%(

8
%0
8

/
5

6
#

%"
$'

#
(

6
S%
"
=

-
.#

/
$%
$5

%(
%

'5
-

=
"
$%
-

=
"
08

#
"
"
%/

(
"
#

T

C
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

F
0::

%/
5

8
"
07

#
'%

"
$'

(
$#

)
0/

%(
/
X

=
0"

0$
05

8
%5

4%
08

1
#

"
$6

#
8

$%
;

'5
;

#
'$

*
%"

=
-

.#
/
$%
$5

%$
@

#
%7

#
1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$%
5

4%
(

%
1
0(

-
:#

%-
=

"
08

#
"
"
%/

(
"
#

%0
8

%#
(

/
@

%0
8

"
$(

8
/
#

%$
5

%0
8

/
:=

7
#

%(
8

%
(

8
(

:*
"
0"

%5
4%
'0
"
D
S%
4=

8
7

08
)

%6
#

$@
5

7
5

:5
)

*
%(

8
7

%;
5

$#
8

$0
(

:%
'#

$=
'8

"
T

!
$%
$@

#
%;

'#
"
#

8
$%
$0
6

#
%$
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

7
5

#
"
%8

5
$%
@

5
:7

%;
'5

;
#

'$
0#

"
%

(
"
%;

(
'$

%5
4%
(

%;
=

'#
%0
8

1
#

"
$6

#
8

$%
;

5
'$

45
:05

%(
8

7
%$
@

#
%6

(
.5

'0
$*

%
o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
re

n
ta

l 
re

c
e

ip
t 
is

 f
ro

m
 r

e
ta

il 
u

n
it
s
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 

Y
5

=
"
08

)
%9

#
1
#

8
=

#
%!

/
/
5

=
8

$%
JY

9
!

K%
;

5
'$

45
:05

T%

A
s
 a

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
p

ri
n

c
ip

le
 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

w
is

h
e

s
 t
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 

(
8

7
%#

8
@

(
8

/
#

%$
@

#
%)

#
8

#
'(

$0
5

8
%5

4%
:5

8
)

%$
#

'6
%'

#
1
#

8
=

#
%

"
$'

#
(

6
"
%(

8
7

S%
F

@
#

'#
%(

;
;

'5
;

'0
(

$#
S%
F

0::
%;

=
'"

=
#

%(
%

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 o
f 
e

n
h

a
n

c
in

g
 t
h

e
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 s
tr

e
a

m
s
 

4'
5

6
%;

'5
;

#
'$

*
%@

5
:7

08
)

"
%-

*
%'

#
$(

08
08

)
%4
'#

#
@

5
:7

"
%(

8
7

%
08

/
5

6
#

%)
#

8
#

'(
$0
8

)
%;

'5
;

#
'$

*T
%

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
E

s
ta

te
  
- 

Y
#

:7
%4

5
'%

7
#

:01
#

'*
%5

4%
/
5

=
8

/
0:%

"
#

'1
0/

#
"
%

 
<

0-
'(

'0
#

"
%

&
/
@

5
5

:"
S%
>

9
b

"
S%
*
5

=
$@

%/
#

8
$'

#
"
S%

/
@

0:7
'#

8
"
h%/

#
8

$'
#

"
 

D
e

p
o

ts
 

C
iv

ic
 O

ff
ic

e
s

 
C

e
m

te
ra

ry
, 
c
re

m
a

to
ri
u

m
, 
m

o
rt

u
a

ry
%

2
@

0:7
'#

8
h"

%@
5

6
#

"
 

D
a

y
 C

e
n

tr
e

s
%

<
#

0"
=

'#
%/

#
8

$'
#

"
%H
%>

(
'D

"
%

%
2

(
'%

>
(

'D
"

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
E

s
ta

te
 -
 

Y
#

:7
%;

'0
6

(
'0
:*

%$
5

%;
'5

1
07

#
%(

8
%0
8

/
5

6
#

%(
8

7
%

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y

   
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
h

e
 a

g
ri
c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
e

s
ta

te
%

I8
7

=
"
$'

0(
:%
=

8
0$
"

%
<

5
8

)
%:
#

(
"
#

@
5

:7
%"

@
5

;
;

08
)

%/
5

6
;

:#
M
#

"
%

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 P

o
r
tf

o
li

o
 -

B
(

8
(

)
#

7
%-

*
%?

(
'8

#
$%

Y
5

6
#

"
   
  

  
  

  
  

  
e

(
'7

#
8

%<
(

8
7

%;
(

'/
#

:"
 

G
a

ra
g

e
s
 o

n
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

e
s
ta

te
s

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
o

u
s
in

g
%

2
5

=
8

/
0:%

@
5

=
"
08

)
%"

@
(

'#
7

%5
F

8
#

'"
@

0;
%

2
5

=
8

/
0:%

@
5

=
"
#

"
%"

5
:7

%5
8

%:
5

8
)

%:
#

(
"
#

"
%

9
#

"
07

#
8

$0
(

:%
;

'5
;

#
'$

0#
"
%-

5
=

)
@

$%
-

(
/
D
%

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 E

s
ta

te
 -

 
9

#
$(

08
#

7
%4

5
'%

$@
#

%-
#

8
#

40
$%

5
4%

$@
#

%/
5

6
6

=
8

0$
*

   
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
 

A
llo

tm
e

n
ts

 
W

a
r 

m
e

m
o

ri
a

ls

D
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
P

o
rt
fo

lio

H
ig

h
w

a
ys

 a
n
d
 G

re
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 

P
o
rt
fo

lio

35



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

2
6

D
R

A
F
T

S
h
a
p
in

g
 t
h
e
 F

u
tu

re
 E

s
ta

te
P

a
r
t 

2

H
o
u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

C
@

#
%;

5
;

=
:(

'0
$*

%5
4%
$@

#
%-

5
'5

=
)

@
%(

:5
8

)
"
07

#
%$
@

#
%@

0)
@

%7
#

6
(

8
7

%
45

'%
@

5
=

"
08

)
%;

'#
"
#

8
$"

%(
%8

=
6

-
#

'%
5

4%
/
@

(
::#

8
)

#
"
S%
08

/
:=

7
08

)
%@

0)
@

%
;

'0
/
#

"
S%
(

%"
@

5
'$

(
)

#
%5

4%
(

44
5

'7
(

-
:#

%@
5

=
"
08

)
%(

8
7

%(
%;

5
$#

8
$0
(

:%
$@

'#
(

$%
$5

%$
@

#
%X

=
(

:0$
0#

"
%$
@

(
$%
6

(
D
#

%$
@

#
%-

5
'5

=
)

@
%(

$$
'(

/
$0
1
#

%0
8

%$
@

#
%4
5

'6
%

5
4%
;

'#
"
"
=

'#
%$
5

%'
#

;
:(

/
#

%6
5

'#
%$
'(

7
0$
05

8
(

:%
"
=

-
=

'-
(

8
%@

5
=

"
#

"
%F

0$
@

%
7

#
1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$"

%5
4%
4:
(

$"
T

C
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

@
(

"
%4
5

/
=

"
"
#

7
%0
$"

%@
5

=
"
08

)
%"

$'
(

$#
)

*
%(

)
#

8
7

(
%(

$%
(

%
"
$'

(
$#

)
0/

%:
#

1
#

:%
5

8
%$
@

#
%C

@
'#

#
%&

$'
(

8
7

"
%!

;
;

'5
(

/
@

S%
F

@
0/

@
%"

#
#

D
"
%$
5

%
;

'5
$#

/
$%
(

8
7

%#
8

@
(

8
/
#

%$
@

#
%-

5
'5

=
)

@
%F

@
0:"

$%
'#

/
5

)
8

0"
08

)
%$
@

#
%8

#
#

7
%

$5
%(

/
/
5

6
6

5
7

(
$#

%)
'5

F
$@

%F
@

#
'#

%(
;

;
'5

;
'0
(

$#
%;

(
'$

0/
=

:(
':
*
%(

"
%(

%
6

#
(

8
"
%5

4%
06

;
'5

1
08

)
%:
#

"
"
%"

=
/
/
#

"
"
4=

:%
;

(
'$

"
%5

4%
$@

#
%-

5
'5

=
)

@
T

C
@

#
'#

%0
"
%;

5
$#

8
$0
(

:%
F

0$
@

08
%?

(
'8

#
$%
$5

%7
#

:01
#

'%
(

8
%(

7
7

0$
05

8
(

:%
`

N
SV

V
V

%
n

e
w

 h
o

m
e

s
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 
1

5
 y

e
a

rs
 a

s
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 
in

 t
h

e
 e

m
e

rg
in

g
 

?
(

'8
#

$%
<

5
/
(

:%
Q

#
1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$%
L

'(
6

#
F

5
'D

%2
5

'#
%&

$'
(

$#
)

*
%(

8
7

%0
8

%
:08

#
%F

0$
@

%#
M
0"

$0
8

)
%<

5
8

7
5

8
%>

:(
8

%$
(

')
#

$"
T

M
u

c
h

 o
f 
B

a
rn

e
t�s

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 i
s
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
a

lly
 c

la
s
s
ic

 �
in

te
rw

a
r�

 
"
=

-
=

'-
(

8
S%
F

0$
@

%"
5

6
#

%]
V

n
%5

4%
$@

#
%@

5
=

"
08

)
%"

$5
/
D
%/

5
6

;
'0
"
08

)
%

@
5

=
"
#

"
S%
$F

5
%$
@

0'
7

"
%5

4%
F

@
0/

@
%(

'#
%7

#
$(

/
@

#
7

%5
'%

"
#

6
07

#
$(

/
@

#
7

T%
C

@
0"

%$
*
;

#
%5

4%
@

5
=

"
08

)
%'

#
6

(
08

"
%;

5
;

=
:(

'%
-

=
$%
;

'5
1
07

#
"
%/

@
(

::#
8

)
#

"
%

08
%$
#

'6
"
%5

4%
#

8
"
=

'0
8

)
%0
$%
6

#
#

$"
%6

5
7

#
'8

%"
$(

8
7

(
'7

"
S%
;

(
'$

0/
=

:(
':
*
%4
5

'%
#

8
#

')
*
%#

44
0/

0#
8

/
*T

I8
%(

7
7

0$
05

8
S%
$@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

;
'5

1
07

#
"
%"

5
6

#
%N

N
SV

V
V

%;
'5

;
#

'$
0#

"
%4
5

'%
"
5

/
0(

:%
'#

8
$S
%F

@
0/

@
%@

(
1
#

%-
#

8
#

40
$#

7
%4
'5

6
%(

8
%0
8

1
#

"
$6

#
8

$%
5

4%
j

N
\

a
6

%"
08

/
#

%
R

V
V

_
%$
@

'5
=

)
@

%$
@

#
%Q

#
/
#

8
$%
Y

5
6

#
"
%;

'5
)

'(
6

6
#

%+
%$
@

#
"
#

%F
0::

%'
#

X
=

0'
#

%
5

8
O)

5
08

)
%0
8

1
#

"
$6

#
8

$%
$5

%#
8

"
=

'#
%$
@

(
$%
$@

#
*
%(

'#
%6

(
08

$(
08

#
7

%$
5

%(
8

%
(

/
/
#

;
$(

-
:#

%"
$(

8
7

(
'7

T

T
h

e
 t
e

n
u

re
 o

f 
c
h

o
ic

e
 i
n

 B
a

rn
e

t 
is

 o
w

n
e

r 
o

c
c
u

p
a

ti
o

n
, 
w

it
h

 t
w

o
 

$@
0'
7

"
%5

4%
@

5
=

"
#

@
5

:7
"
%5

F
8

08
)

%$
@

#
0'
%@

5
6

#
%(

8
7

%(
-

5
=

$%
@

(
:4
%5

4%
5

F
8

#
'"

%
5

F
8

08
)

%5
=

$'
0)

@
$T
%C

@
#

%'
#

6
(

08
08

)
%$
@

0'
7

%5
4%
@

5
=

"
#

@
5

:7
"
%(

'#
%7

01
07

#
7

%
#

X
=

(
::*

%-
#

$F
#

#
8

%"
5

/
0(

:%
'#

8
$0
8

)
%(

8
7

%$
@

#
%;

'0
1
(

$#
%'

#
8

$#
7

%"
#

/
$5

'S
%F

0$
@

%
th

e
 l
a

tt
e

r 
p

la
y
in

g
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 
ro

le
 i
n

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 

@
5

=
"
08

)
%8

#
#

7
%0
8

%$
@

#
%-

5
'5

=
)

@
T%

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
E

s
ta

te
  
- 

Y
#

:7
%4

5
'%

7
#

:01
#

'*
%5

4%
/
5

=
8

/
0:%

"
#

'1
0/

#
"
%

 
<

0-
'(

'0
#

"
%

&
/
@

5
5

:"
S%
>

9
b

"
S%
*
5

=
$@

%/
#

8
$'

#
"
S%
/
@

0:7
'#

8
"
h%/

#
8

$'
#

"
 

D
e

p
o

ts
 

C
iv

ic
 O

ff
ic

e
s

 
C

e
m

te
ra

ry
, 
c
re

m
a

to
ri
u

m
, 
m

o
rt

u
a

ry
%

2
@

0:7
'#

8
h"

%@
5

6
#

"
 

D
a

y
 C

e
n

tr
e

s
%

<
#

0"
=

'#
%/

#
8

$'
#

"
%H
%>

(
'D

"
%

%
2

(
'%

>
(

'D
"

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
E

s
ta

te
 -

 

Y
#

:7
%;

'0
6

(
'0
:*

%$
5

%;
'5

1
07

#
%(

8
%0
8

/
5

6
#

%(
8

7
%

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y

   
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
h

e
 a

g
ri
c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
e

s
ta

te
%

I8
7

=
"
$'

0(
:%
=

8
0$
"

%
<

5
8

)
%:
#

(
"
#

@
5

:7
%"

@
5

;
;

08
)

%/
5

6
;

:#
M
#

"
%

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 P

o
r
tf

o
li

o
 -

B
(

8
(

)
#

7
%-

*
%?

(
'8

#
$%
Y

5
6

#
"

   
  

  
  
  
  
  

e
(

'7
#

8
%<

(
8

7
%;

(
'/

#
:"

 
G

a
ra

g
e

s
 o

n
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

e
s
ta

te
s

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
o

u
s
in

g
%

2
5

=
8

/
0:%

@
5

=
"
08

)
%"

@
(

'#
7

%5
F

8
#

'"
@

0;
%

2
5

=
8

/
0:%

@
5

=
"
#

"
%"

5
:7

%5
8

%:
5

8
)

%:
#

(
"
#

"
%

9
#

"
07

#
8

$0
(

:%
;

'5
;

#
'$

0#
"
%-

5
=

)
@

$%
-

(
/
D
%

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 E

s
ta

te
 -

 
9

#
$(

08
#

7
%4

5
'%

$@
#

%-
#

8
#

40
$%

5
4%

$@
#

%/
5

6
6

=
8

0$
*

   
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
 

A
llo

tm
e

n
ts

 
W

a
r 

m
e

m
o

ri
a

ls

D
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
P

o
rt
fo

lio

H
ig

h
w

a
ys

 a
n
d
 G

re
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 

P
o
rt
fo

lio

H
o
u
s
in

g
 P

o
rt
fo

lio
 

36



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

2
7

D
R

A
F
T

S
h
a
p
in

g
 t
h
e
 F

u
tu

re
 E

s
ta

te
P

a
r
t 

2

B
u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
Tr

a
c
k 

R
e
c
o
rd

?
(

'8
#

$%
@

(
"
%(

8
%#

M
$#

8
"
01

#
%'

#
7

#
1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$%
;

'5
)

'(
6

6
#

%
7

#
"
0)

8
#

7
%$
5

%7
#

:01
#

'%
0$
"
%9

#
)

#
8

#
'(

$0
5

8
%&

$'
(

$#
)

*
%"

5
%$
@

(
$%
$@

#
%

-
5

'5
=

)
@

%'
#

6
(

08
"
%m
!

%"
=

/
/
#

"
"
4=

:%
<

5
8

7
5

8
%"

=
-

=
'-

U%$
@

'5
=

)
@

Z%
 N

T%
Q

#
:01

#
'0
8

)
%"

=
"
$(

08
(

-
:#

%@
5

=
"
08

)
%)

'5
F

$@
%

R
T%

&
=

;
;

5
'$

08
)

%;
#

5
;

:#
%$
5

%@
(

1
#

%$
@

#
%'

0)
@

$%
"
D
0::

"
%$
5

%
  
  
a

c
c
e

s
s
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 

`
T%

&
=

;
;

5
'$

08
)

%#
8

$#
';

'0
"
#

%J
08

/
:=

7
08

)
%$
5

F
8

%/
#

8
$'

#
"
K%

_
T%

&
=

;
;

5
'$

08
)

%0
8

4'
(

"
$'

=
/
$=

'#
%7

#
:01

#
'*

%$
5

%D
#

#
;

%?
(

'8
#

$%
  
  
m

o
v
in

g
 

W
T%

3
8

"
=

'0
8

)
%(

%/
:#

(
8

S%
)

'#
#

8
%"

=
-

=
'-

%

?
*
%R

V
R

]
S%
5

1
#

'%
R

`
SV

V
V

%8
#

F
%@

5
6

#
"
%F

0::
%-

#
%7

#
:01

#
'#

7
%

$@
'5

=
)

@
%?

(
'8

#
$U"

%'
#

7
#

1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$%
%;

'5
)

'(
6

6
#

S%
(

"
%F

#
::%

(
"
%

"
/
@

5
5

:"
S%
@

#
(

:$
@

%4
(

/
0:0

$0
#

"
S%
;

(
'D

"
%H
%5

;
#

8
%"

;
(

/
#

"
%(

8
7

%
/
5

6
6

=
8

0$
*
%4
(

/
0:0

$0
#

"
%(

:5
8

)
"
07

#
%5

;
;

5
'$

=
8

0$
0#

"
%4
5

'%
"
D
0::

"
%(

8
7

%
#

6
;

:5
*
6

#
8

$T

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il�

s
 r

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 i
s
 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 

?
(

'8
#

$U"
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

@
5

=
"
08

)
%#

"
$(

$#
"
%0
8

$5
%6

=
:$
0O
$#

8
=

'#
%

8
#

0)
@

-
5

=
'@

5
5

7
"
%F

0$
@

%;
(

'$
0/

=
:(

'%
#

6
;

@
(

"
0"

%5
8

%e
'(

@
(

6
#

%
>

(
'D

S%
E

#
"
$%
Y

#
8

7
5

8
S%
Q

5
::0

"
%G

(
::#

*
%(

8
7

%&
$5

8
#

)
'5

1
#

T

In
 e

a
c
h

 o
f 
th

e
s
e

 i
n

s
ta

n
c
e

s
, 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 l
e

v
e

ra
g

in
g

 i
ts

 
#

M
0"

$0
8

)
%@

5
=

"
08

)
%(

"
"
#

$"
%$
5

%'
(

0"
#

%@
5

=
"
08

)
%"

$(
8

7
(

'7
"
%(

8
7

%
4(

/
0:0

$(
$0
8

)
%)

'5
F

$@
%0
8

%$
@

#
%(

6
5

=
8

$%
5

4%
@

5
=

"
08

)
%(

8
7

%
(

"
"
5

/
0(

$#
7

%/
5

6
6

=
8

0$
*
%0
8

4'
(

"
$'

=
/
$=

'#
T

!
$%
B

0::
%Y

0::
%3

(
"
$S
%$
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

@
(

"
%#

8
$#

'#
7

%0
8

$5
%;

(
'$

8
#

'"
@

0;
%

F
0$
@

%(
7

.5
08

08
)

%:
(

8
7

@
5

:7
#

'"
%(

8
7

%(
8

%0
8

4'
(

"
$'

=
/
$=

'#
%

7
#

1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$%
;

(
'$

8
#

'%
$5

%-
'0
8

)
%4
5

'F
(

'7
%(

%6
(

.5
'%

-
'5

F
8

%4
0#

:7
%

7
#

1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$T

 

D
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
P

o
rt
fo

lio
 

37



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

2
8

D
R

A
F
T

S
h
a
p
in

g
 t
h
e
 F

u
tu

re
 E

s
ta

te
P

a
r
t 

2

B
u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
Tr

a
c
k 

R
e
c
o
rd

D
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
P

o
rt
fo

lio
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
P

ip
e

lin
e

I$
%0
"
%;

'5
;

5
"
#

7
%$
@

(
$%
08

%$
@

5
"
#

%/
(

"
#

"
%F

@
#

'#
%0
$%

F
5

=
:7

%-
#

%0
8

%$
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:U

"
%0
8

$#
'#

"
$%
$5

%'
#

$(
08

%
$@

#
%:
(

8
7

S%
(

8
7

%=
8

7
#

'$
(

D
#

%7
#

1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$%

7
0'
#

/
$:
*
%$
@

#
%)

5
1
#

'8
08

)
%;

'0
8

/
0;

:#
"
%(

'#
Z

C
@

#
%7

#
/
0"

05
8

%F
@

#
$@

#
'%

$5
%7

#
1
#

:5
;

%5
'%

"
#

::%
(

%"
0$
#

S%
(

8
7

%F
@

(
$%
$5

%7
#

1
#

:5
;

%5
8

%$
@

#
%"

0$
#

S%
"
@

5
=

:7
%-

#
%-

(
"
#

7
%5

8
%(

"
"
#

"
"
6

#
8

$%
5

4%
F

@
(

$%
5

44
#

'"
%$
@

#
%-

#
"
$%
40
8

(
8

/
0(

:%
'#

$=
'8

%$
5

%$
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

F
@

0:#
%6

#
#

$0
8

)
%$
@

#
%8

#
#

7
%4
5

'%
7

044
#

'#
8

$%
@

5
=

"
08

)
%$
*
;

#
"
T%
%C

@
0"

%6
0)

@
$S
%4
5

'%
#

M
(

6
;

:#
S%

08
1
5

:1
#

%7
#

1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$%
5

4%
(

44
5

'7
(

-
:#

%5
'%

#
M
$'

(
%

c
a

re
 h

o
u

s
in

g
, 
w

h
ic

h
 o

ff
s
e

ts
 t
h

e
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 

$#
6

;
5

'(
'*

%(
/
/
5

6
6

5
7

(
$0
5

8
%5

'%
'#

"
07

#
8

$0
(

:%
/
(

'#
%'

#
"
;

#
/
$0
1
#

:*
T

E
@

0:#
%7

#
/
0"

05
8

"
%F

0::
%/

5
8

"
07

#
'%

$@
#

%i
#

$%
>

'#
"
#

8
$%
G

(
:=

#
%5

4%
7

044
#

'#
8

$%
5

;
$0
5

8
"
S%
$@

#
%

'#
X

=
0'
#

6
#

8
$"

%5
4%
$@

#
%B

#
7

0=
6

%C
#

'6
%L

08
(

8
/
0(

:%
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 m

a
y
 i
n

 s
o

m
e

 c
a

s
e

s
 s

u
g

g
e

s
t 
th

a
t 

'#
1
#

8
=

#
%"

(
1
08

)
"
%(

'#
%(

44
5

'7
#

7
%(

%@
0)

@
#

'%
;

'0
5

'0
$*

%$
@

(
8

%2
(

;
0$
(

:%
'#

/
#

0;
$"

T

C
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

F
0::

%7
#

/
07

#
%F

@
#

$@
#

'%
$5

%7
#

1
#

:5
;

%
=

"
08

)
%?

(
'8

#
$%
Y

5
6

#
"
S%
9

#
S%
5

'%
(

%$
@

0'
7

%;
(

'$
*
%

7
#

1
#

:5
;

#
'%

7
#

;
#

8
7

#
8

$%
5

8
%$
@

#
%"

D
0::

"
%(

8
7

%
"
;

#
/
0(

:0"
6

"
%'

#
X

=
0'
#

7
S%
(

8
7

%(
8

%(
"
"
#

"
"
6

#
8

$%
5

4%
$@

#
%'

#
:(

$0
1
#

%'
0"

D
%(

8
7

%'
#

F
(

'7
%5

4%
7

044
#

'#
8

$%
5

;
$0
5

8
"
T%
%&

0$
#

"
%6

(
*
%-

#
%/

5
8

"
07

#
'#

7
%

08
7

01
07

=
(

::*
S%
5

'%
)

'5
=

;
#

7
%0
8

$5
%;

5
'$

45
:05

"
T

I8
%$
(

D
08

)
%$
@

0"
%(

;
;

'5
(

/
@

%$
5

%7
#

1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$%

5
;

;
5

'$
=

8
0$
0#

"
S%
$@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

F
0::

%(
:"

5
%/

5
8

"
07

#
'%

th
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
lo

n
g

 t
e

rm
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 
)

#
8

#
'(

$0
5

8
%(

"
%F

#
::%

(
"
%/

(
;

0$
(

:%
'#

/
#

0;
$"

T%
T

h
is

 w
ill

 f
o

rm
 a

n
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 
p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 

/
5

=
8

/
0:U

"
%4
08

(
8

/
0(

:%
"
$'

(
$#

)
*
%$
5

%#
8

(
-

:#
%0
$%
$5

%
6

#
#

$%
4=

$=
'#

%-
=

7
)

#
$%
'#

7
=

/
$0
5

8
"
%4
'5

6
%/

#
8

$'
(

:%
)

5
1
#

'8
6

#
8

$T

D
ir
e

c
t 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

re
c
o

g
n

is
e

 t
h

a
t 
a

s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
:(

8
7

%5
F

8
#

'%
F

0$
@

08
%$
@

#
%-

5
'5

=
)

@
S%
08

%6
(

8
*
%

08
"
$(

8
/
#

"
S%
$@

#
*
%/

5
8

$'
5

:%
$@

#
%D

#
*
%(

"
"
#

$%
F

@
0/

@
%

/
(

8
%#

8
(

-
:#

%7
#

1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$%
$5

%$
(

D
#

%;
:(

/
#

T

C
@

#
'#

%0
"
%(

8
%0
8

/
'#

(
"
08

)
%$
'#

8
7

%F
0$
@

08
%$
@

#
%

;
=

-
:0/

%"
#

/
$5

'%
$5

%#
8

"
=

'#
%$
@

(
$%
$@

#
%(

=
$@

5
'0
$*

%
"
@

(
'#

"
%0
8

%$
@

#
%-

#
8

#
40
$%
5

4%
:(

8
7

%5
F

8
#

'"
@

0;
%

$@
'5

=
)

@
%$
(

D
08

)
%(

::%
5

'%
;

(
'$

%5
4%
$@

#
%

7
#

1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$%
;

'5
40
$T

C
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

F
0::

%0
7

#
8

$0
4*

%;
5

$#
8

$0
(

:%
7

#
1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$%
"
0$
#

"
%F

0$
@

08
%#

0$
@

#
'%

$@
#

%/
5

8
$'

5
:%

5
'%

5
F

8
#

'"
@

0;
%5

4%
$@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

(
8

7
%;

'#
;

(
'#

%
$@

5
"
#

%4
5

'%
7

#
1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$%
F

0$
@

%$
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

(
/
$0
8

)
%#

0$
@

#
'%

(
"
%7

0'
#

/
$%
7

#
1
#

:5
;

#
'%

5
'%

(
%.
5

08
$%

1
#

8
$=

'#
%;

(
'$

8
#

'S
%7

#
;

#
8

7
#

8
$%
5

8
%$
@

#
%

08
7

01
07

=
(

:%
"
0$
#

"
%(

8
7

%'
0"

D
%;

'5
40
:#

S%
$5

%#
8

(
-

:#
%

$@
#

%/
5

=
8

/
0:%

$5
%(

/
/
#

"
"
%$
@

#
%7

#
1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$%

;
'5

40
$%
(

8
7

%6
(

M
06

0"
#

%$
@

#
%;

5
$#

8
$0
(

:%
'#

$=
'8

T%

38



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

2
9

D
R

A
F
T

P
a

r
t 

3
 D

e
liv

e
rin

g
 t
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

In
 T

h
is

 S
e

c
ti

o
n

D
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

2
5

8
/
:=

"
05

8
"
%A

%E
(

*
%L

5
'F

(
'7

39



D
R

A
F
T

D
e
liv

e
rin

g
 t
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y 

P
a

r
t 

3

L
B

B
 C

o
n
s
tit

u
tio

n

W
o
rk

in
g
 w

ith
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
a
rt
n
e
rs

 

C
@

#
%<

?
?

%B
(

8
(

)
#

6
#

8
$%
5

4%
!

"
"
#

$"
S%
<

(
8

7
%(

8
7

%>
'5

;
#

'$
*
%9

=
:#

"
%4
5

'6
"
%;

(
'$

%5
4%
$@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:U

"
%/

5
8

"
$0
$=

$0
5

8
%(

8
7

%(
'#

%
$@

#
%4
'(

6
#

F
5

'D
%5

4%
X

=
(

:0$
*
%"

$(
8

7
(

'7
"
%(

8
7

%6
#

$@
5

7
"
%(

7
5

;
$#

7
%-

*
%$
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:T

%C
@

#
%'

=
:#

"
%7

#
40
8

#
%$
@

#
%Q

#
:#

)
(

$#
7

%
>

5
F

#
'"

%F
@

0/
@

%@
(

1
#

%-
#

#
8

%6
(

;
;

#
7

%(
)

(
08

"
$%
$@

#
%7

044
#

'#
8

$%
$*

;
#

"
%5

4%
(

/
$0
1
0$
*
%'

#
X

=
0'
#

7
%$
5

%-
#

%7
#

;
:5

*
#

7
%0
8

%
6

(
8

(
)

08
)

%$
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:U

"
%!

"
"
#

$"
T

S
tr
a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
(S

A
M

P
) 
E
q
u
a
lit
y 

a
n
d
 D

iv
e
rs

ity
C

@
#

%3
X

=
(

:0$
*
%!

/
$%
R

V
N

V
%(

8
7

%$
@

#
%>

=
-

:0/
%&

#
/
$5

'%
3

X
=

(
:0$

0#
"
%Q

=
$*

%5
=

$:
08

#
7

%(
$%
"
#

/
$0
5

8
%N

_
a

S%
'#

X
=

0'
#

%$
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

(
8

7
%(

::%
5

$@
#

'%
5

')
(

8
0"

(
$0
5

8
"
%#

M
#

'/
0"

08
)

%;
=

-
:0/

%4
=

8
/
$0
5

8
"
%5

8
%0
$"

%-
#

@
(

:4
%$
5

%;
(

*
%7

=
#

%'
#

)
(

'7
%$
5

%$
@

#
%8

#
#

7
%$
5

%
#

:06
08

(
$#

%7
0"

/
'0
6

08
(

$0
5

8
S%
@

(
'(

"
"
6

#
8

$S
%1

0/
$0
6

0"
(

$0
5

8
%(

8
7

%(
8

*
%5

$@
#

'%
/
5

8
7

=
/
$%
$@

(
$%
0"

%;
'5

@
0-

0$
#

7
%-

*
%5

'%
=

8
7

#
'%

$@
#

%!
/
$[
%(

7
1
(

8
/
#

%#
X

=
(

:0$
*
%5

4%
5

;
;

5
'$

=
8

0$
*
%-

#
$F

#
#

8
%$
@

5
"
#

%F
0$
@

%(
%;

'5
$#

/
$#

7
%/

@
(

'(
/
$#

'0
"
$0
/
%(

8
7

%$
@

5
"
#

%F
0$
@

5
=

$[
%

;
'5

6
5

$#
%)

5
5

7
%'

#
:(

$0
5

8
"
%-

#
$F

#
#

8
%$
@

5
"
#

%F
0$
@

%(
%;

'5
$#

/
$#

7
%/

@
(

'(
/
$#

'0
"
$0
/
%(

8
7

%$
@

5
"
#

%F
0$
@

5
=

$T
%C

@
#

%'
#

:#
1
(

8
$%

;
'5

$#
/
$#

7
%/

@
(

'(
/
$#

'0
"
$0
/
"
%(

'#
%(

)
#

S%
7

0"
(

-
0:0

$*
S%
)

#
8

7
#

'%
'#

(
"
"
0)

8
6

#
8

$S
%;

'#
)

8
(

8
/
*
%(

8
7

%6
(

$#
'8

0$
*S

%'
(

/
#

S%
'#

:0)
05

8
%

5
'%

-
#

:0#
4S
%"

#
M
S%
"
#

M
=

(
:%
5

'0
#

8
$(

$0
5

8
T%
I$
%(

:"
5

%/
5

1
#

'"
%6

(
''

0(
)

#
%(

8
7

%/
01

0:%
;

(
'$

8
#

'"
@

0;
%F

0$
@

%'
#

)
(

'7
%$
5

%#
:06

08
(

$0
8

)
%

7
0"

/
'0
6

08
(

$0
5

8
T

C
@

#
%&

!
B

>
%F

0::
%'

#
4:
#

/
$%
$@

#
%'

#
X

=
0'
#

6
#

8
$"

%5
4%
$@

#
%>

&
3

Q
%(

8
7

%$
@

#
%5

-
.#

/
$0
1
#

"
%5

4%
$@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:U

"
%#

X
=

(
:%

5
;

;
5

'$
=

8
0$
0#

"
%;

5
:0/

*
%(

8
7

%0
8

%;
(

'$
0/

=
:(

'%
0$
%F

0::
Z

!
06

%$
5

%#
8

"
=

'#
%$
@

(
$%
$@

(
$%
$@

#
%6

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$%
(

8
7

%=
"
#

%5
4%
;

'5
;

#
'$

*
%(

"
"
#

$"
%(

'#
%$
5

%$
@

#
%6

=
$=

(
:%
-

#
8

#
40
$%
5

4%
$@

#
%

F
@

5
:#

%/
5

6
6

=
8

0$
*T

%

>
'5

6
5

$#
%$
@

#
%'

#
X

=
0'
#

6
#

8
$"

%(
8

7
%(

"
;

0'
(

$0
5

8
"
%5

4%
$@

#
%>

&
3

Q
%0
8

%(
::%

;
5

:0/
*
%7

5
/
=

6
#

8
$"

%$
@

(
$%
#

6
#

')
#

%4
'5

6
%

$@
#

%&
!

B
>
T

C
@

#
%2

5
=

8
/
0:%

@
(

"
%(

;
;

5
08

$#
7

%(
%"

$'
(

$#
)

0/
%7

#
:01

#
'*

%;
(

'$
8

#
'%

$5
%;

'5
1
07

#
%(

%'
(

8
)

#
%5

4%
;

'5
;

#
'$

*
%(

8
7

%
4(

/
0:0

$0
#

"
6

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$%
"
#

'1
0/

#
"
%5

1
#

'%
(

%N
V

O*
#

(
'%

;
#

'0
5

7
T%
%E

5
'D

08
)

%0
8

%(
"
"
5

/
0(

$0
5

8
S%
F

0$
@

%$
@

#
%;

(
'$

8
#

'%
$@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

"
@

5
=

:7
%7

#
:01

#
'%

(
%8

#
F

%#
"
$(

$#
%7

#
"
0)

8
#

7
%$
5

%-
#

%4
0$
%4
5

'%
;

=
';

5
"
#

%(
8

7
%F

@
0/

@
%(

/
@

0#
1
#

"
%$
@

#
%6

(
M
06

=
6

%(
/
@

0#
1
(

-
:#

%
'#

7
=

/
$0
5

8
"
%0
8

%5
;

#
'(

$0
5

8
(

:%
(

8
7

%;
'5

;
#

'$
*
%/

5
"
$"

%F
@

0:"
$%
7

#
:01

#
'0
8

)
%$
@

#
%5

;
$0
6

=
6

%:
#

1
#

:%
5

4%
"
#

'1
0/

#
"
%$
5

%$
@

#
%

/
5

6
6

=
8

0$
*T

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

3
0

40



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

3
1

D
R

A
F
T

D
e
liv

e
rin

g
 t
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y 

P
a

r
t 

3

W
o
rk

in
g
 w

ith
 P

u
b
lic

 S
e
c
to

r 
a
n
d
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 /

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ity

 P
a
rt
n
e
r 
O

rg
a
n
is

a
tio

n
s

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

a
c
ti
v
e

ly
 w

is
h

e
s
 t
o

 p
u

rs
u

e
 

5
;

;
5

'$
=

8
0$
0#

"
%4
5

'%
6

5
'#

%#
44
0/

0#
8

$%
(

8
7

%
#

44
#

/
$0
1
#

%/
5

::#
/
$0
1
#

%=
"
#

%5
4%
$@

#
%F

07
#

'%
;

=
-

:0/
%

"
#

/
$5

'%
#

"
$(

$#
T%
B

#
#

$0
8

)
"
%@

(
1
#

%-
#

#
8

%@
#

:7
%

F
0$
@

%(
%8

=
6

-
#

'%
5

4%
D
#

*
%;

=
-

:0/
%"

#
/
$5

'%
;

(
'$

8
#

'"
%

08
%5

'7
#

'%
$5

%(
"
/
#

'$
(

08
%$
@

#
%;

5
$#

8
$0
(

:%
45

'%
"
@

(
'#

7
%

(
/
/
5

6
6

5
7

(
$0
5

8
%(

8
7

%6
=

$=
(

:%
#

"
$(

$#
%

'(
$0
5

8
(

:0"
(

$0
5

8
T%
,

1
#

'%
$@

#
%:
04
#

$0
6

#
%5

4%
$@

#
%

&
!

B
>
S%
(

7
7

0$
05

8
(

:%
;

(
'$

8
#

'%
5

')
(

8
0"

(
$0
5

8
"
%

08
/
:=

7
08

)
S%
45

'%
#

M
(

6
;

:#
S%
i

Y
&

%>
'5

;
#

'$
*
%

&
#

'1
0/

#
"
S%
$@

#
%2

5
=

'$
%&

#
'1

0/
#

S%
e

<
!

%(
8

7
%C

L
<
%

F
0::

%-
#

%0
8

/
:=

7
#

7
%F

0$
@

08
%$
@

#
%"

@
(

'#
7

%
(

/
/
5

6
6

5
7

(
$0
5

8
%;

'5
)

'(
6

6
#

T%

C
@

#
%'

#
"
=

:$
"
%5

4%
08

0$
0(

:%
08

$#
'1

0#
F

"
%@

(
1
#

%-
#

#
8

%
"
=

6
6

(
'0
"
#

7
%(

"
%4
5

::5
F

"
Z

k
5

-
%2

#
8

$'
#

%>
:=

"

k
5

-
%2

#
8

$'
#

%>
:=

"
S%
$@

'5
=

)
@

%0
$"

%;
(

'#
8

$%
5

')
(

8
0"

(
$0
5

8
S%
$@

#
%Q

E
>

%5
=

$"
5

=
'/

#
7

%0
$"

%
p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 m

a
tt
e

rs
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

lly
 t
o

 T
e

le
re

a
l 

C
'0
::0

=
6

%=
8

7
#

'%
(

%/
5

8
$'

(
/
$%
$5

%#
M
;

0'
#

%0
8

%R
V

N
\

T%
%

E
0$
@

08
%$
@

#
%<

5
8

7
5

8
%?

5
'5

=
)

@
%5

4%
?

(
'8

#
$S
%k

5
-

%
2

#
8

$'
#

%>
:=

"
%@

(
"
%$
@

'#
#

%7
0'
#

/
$%
5

=
$:
#

$"
%(

$%
Y

#
8

7
5

8
S%
?

(
::(

'7
U"

%<
(

8
#

%(
8

7
%3

8
40
#

:7
%F

0$
@

%
(

%4
5

=
'$

@
%4
'5

8
$%
:08

#
%.
5

-
%/

#
8

$'
#

%0
8

%Y
(

''
5

F
%

a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 l
a

rg
e

ly
 s

e
rv

ic
in

g
 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il�

s
 

/
=

"
$5

6
#

'"
T

I8
%$
#

'6
"
%5

4%
$@

#
%)

'5
=

;
U"

%(
-

0:0
$*

%$
5

%/
5

O:
5

/
(

$#
%

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il,

 t
h

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

re
 

:06
0$
#

7
%$
5

%0
8

F
(

'7
%/

5
O:
5

/
(

$0
5

8
%)

01
#

8
%$
@

#
%

/
5

8
$'

5
:%
5

1
#

'%
$@

#
%F

07
#

'%
#

"
$(

$#
%-

*
%C

#
:#

'#
(

:%
C

'0
::=

6
T%
%2

=
''

#
8

$:
*S

%(
8

7
%(

"
%;

(
'$

%5
4%
$@

#
%7

(
*
%$
5

%
7

(
*
%7

'0
1
#

%$
5

%"
#

/
=

'#
%(

%/
5

::#
/
$0
1
#

%=
"
#

%5
4%
$@

#
%

;
=

-
:0/

%"
#

/
$5

'%
#

"
$(

$#
S%
$@

'#
#

%k
5

-
%2

#
8

$'
#

%>
:=

"
%

"
$(

44
%6

#
6

-
#

'"
%(

'#
%:
5

/
(

$#
7

%0
8

%?
(

'8
#

$%
Y

5
=

"
#

%
(

"
%;

(
'$

%5
4%
(

%6
=

:$
0O
(

)
#

8
/
*
%$
#

(
6

%0
8

%(
%

;
(

'$
8

#
'"

@
0;

%(
''

(
8

)
#

6
#

8
$T
%%
B

5
1
08

)
%4
5

'F
(

'7
%

$@
#

'#
%6

(
*
%-

#
%5

$@
#

'%
5

;
;

5
'$

=
8

0$
0#

"
%$
5

%
/
5

O:
5

/
(

$#
%0
8

%5
'7

#
'%

$5
%;

'5
1
07

#
%(

%/
'5

"
"
%(

)
#

8
/
*
%

fu
n

c
ti
o

n
 a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 f
o

c
u

s
 i
s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

lly
 a

s
 

m
u

c
h

 u
p

o
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

s
h

a
ri
n

g
 T

e
le

re
a

l 
C

'0
::0

=
6

%(
/
/
5

6
6

5
7

(
$0
5

8
T%

C
lin

ic
a

l 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u

p

T
h

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 
C

lin
ic

a
l 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
 

J2
2

e
K%

=
8

7
#

'$
5

5
D
%(

8
%m
U5

;
;

5
'$

=
8

0$
*
%'

#
1
0#

F
%m
U%

08
%#

(
':
*
%R

V
N

_
%$
5

%#
"
$(

-
:0"

@
%@

5
F

%$
@

#
%

(
/
/
5

6
6

5
7

(
$0
5

8
%5

/
/
=

;
0#

7
%-

*
%$
@

#
%)

'5
=

;
%

6
0)

@
$%
-

#
%'

#
/
5

8
40
)

=
'#

7
T

!
$%
$@

#
%/

=
''

#
8

$%
$0
6

#
%$
@

#
%$
#

(
6

"
%(

'#
%-

(
"
#

7
%0
8

%
/
Ta

V
V

%"
X

%6
#

$'
#

"
%5

4%
(

/
/
5

6
6

5
7

(
$0
5

8
%(

$%
3

7
)

F
(

'#
%2

5
6

6
=

8
0$
*
%Y

5
"
;

0$
(

:%
J3

2
Y

K%
F

0$
@

%
i

Y
&

%>
'5

;
#

'$
*
%&

#
'1

0/
#

"
%(

"
%:
(

8
7

:5
'7

"
T%

2
5

6
6

b
i

IC
r

%?
(

'8
#

$%
%

2
=

''
#

8
$:
*
%:
5

/
(

$#
7

%F
0$
@

08
%?

(
'8

#
$%
Y

5
=

"
#

%
5

;
#

'(
$0
5

8
(

::*
%2

5
6

6
b

i
IC

r
%?

(
'8

#
$%
@

(
"
%

/
:5

"
#

%:
08

D
"
%$
5

%$
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

(
"
%$
@

#
%<

5
/
(

:%
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 w
h

ils
t,
 a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 t
im

e
, 
w

is
h

in
g

 
$5

%6
(

08
$(

08
%(

%7
#

)
'#

#
%5

4%
"
#

;
(

'(
$0
5

8
T%

T
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 

"
(

$0
"
4(

/
$5

'*
%(

:$
@

5
=

)
@

%2
5

6
6

b
i

IC
r

%?
(

'8
#

$%
-

#
:0#

1
#

"
%$
@

(
$%
$@

#
'#

%0
"
%7

#
6

(
8

7
%4
5

'%
$#

6
;

5
'(

'*
%

$5
=

/
@

7
5

F
8

%5
44
0/

#
%(

/
/
5

6
6

5
7

(
$0
5

8
%4
5

'%
=

"
#

%
-

*
%$
@

#
%F

07
#

'%
/
5

6
6

=
8

0$
*
%(

8
7

%-
#

:0#
1
#

%$
@

#
'#

%
0"

%(
8

%5
;

;
5

'$
=

8
0$
*
%$
5

%F
5

'D
%$
5

)
#

$@
#

'%
F

0$
@

%$
@

#
%

/
5

=
8

/
0:%

$5
%7

#
1
#

:5
;

%(
%6

=
:$
0%
5

/
/
=

;
(

$0
5

8
(

:%
@

=
-

T%

41



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

3
2

D
R

A
F
T

D
e
liv

e
rin

g
 t
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y 

P
a

r
t 

3

W
o
rk

in
g
 w

ith
 P

u
b
lic

 S
e
c
to

r 
a
n
d
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 /

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ity

 P
a
rt
n
e
r 
O

rg
a
n
is

a
tio

n
s

B
07

7
:#

"
#

M
%b

8
01

#
'"

0$
*

C
@

#
%B

07
7

:#
"
#

M
%b

8
01

#
'"

0$
*S

%=
8

$0
:%
'#

/
#

8
$:
*S

%
@

#
:7

%(
8

%#
"
$(

$#
%/

5
6

;
'0
"
08

)
%N

]
%7

044
#

'#
8

$%
"
0$
#

"
%

'(
8

)
08

)
%0
8

%:
5

/
(

$0
5

8
%4
'5

6
%i

5
'$

@
%<

5
8

7
5

8
%$
5

%
Y

#
'$

45
'7

"
@

0'
#

T%
L

5
::5

F
08

)
%(

%N
R

%*
#

(
'%

'(
$0
5

8
(

:0"
(

$0
5

8
%"

$'
(

$#
)

*
%$
@

#
%2

(
6

;
=

"
%(

8
7

%
5

=
$:
*
08

)
%#

"
$(

$#
%0
"
%8

5
F

%4
5

/
=

"
"
#

7
%(

'5
=

8
7

%(
%

5
8

#
%(

8
7

%@
(

:4
%6

0:#
%'

(
7

0=
"
%/

#
8

$'
#

7
%5

8
%$
@

#
%

6
(

08
%Y

#
8

7
5

8
%-

=
0:7

08
)

"
T

C
@

#
%e

5
1
#

'8
5

'"
%(

8
7

%(
"
"
#

$%
6

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$%
$#

(
6

%@
(

1
#

%'
#

/
#

8
$:
*
%/

5
6

;
:#

$#
7

%$
@

#
%

/
5

8
"
$'

=
/
$0
5

8
%5

4%
$@

'#
#

%8
#

F
%/

(
6

;
=

"
%-

=
0:7

08
)

"
%

(
8

7
%(

%;
:(

8
8

08
)

%(
;

;
:0/

(
$0
5

8
%F

(
"
%"

=
-

6
0$
$#

7
%0
8

%
e

a
rl
y
 2

0
1

4
 f
o

r 
a

 n
e

w
 s

it
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
th

e
 

/
(

6
;

=
"
T%

T
h

e
 s

tr
ic

t 
g

e
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
a

l 
/ 
lo

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
fo

c
u

s
 i
s
 

"
=

/
@

%$
@

(
$%
$@

#
'#

%(
'#

%0
8

#
1
0$
(

-
:*

%4
#

F
#

'%
5

;
;

5
'$

=
8

0$
0#

"
%$
5

%"
@

(
'#

%(
/
/
5

6
6

5
7

(
$0
5

8
%

=
8

:#
"
"
%"

$5
/
D
%F

0$
@

08
%$
@

#
%5

F
8

#
'"

@
0;

%H
%/

5
8

$'
5

:%
5

4%
$@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

0"
%:
5

/
(

$#
7

%F
0$
@

08
%$
@

#
%

/
(

$/
@

6
#

8
$%
-

5
=

8
7

(
'0
#

"
T

2
=

''
#

8
$:
*
%$
@

#
%b

8
01

#
'"

0$
*
%'

#
8

$%
$F

5
%-

=
0:7

08
)

"
%

4'
5

6
%$
@

#
%-

5
'5

=
)

@
%(

8
7

%$
@

#
0'
%6

(
08

%/
=

''
#

8
$%

(
7

7
0$
05

8
(

:%
"
;

(
/
#

%'
#

X
=

0'
#

6
#

8
$"

%(
'#

%4
5

'%
"
6

(
::%

s
c
a

le
 t
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 a

n
c
ill

a
ry

 o
ff
ic

e
 s

p
a

c
e

, 
F

0$
@

08
%$
@

#
%$
(

')
#

$%
/
(

$/
@

6
#

8
$%
(

'#
(

%(
8

7
%

"
#

6
08

(
'%

(
/
/
5

6
6

5
7

(
$0
5

8
T

!
"
%$
@

#
%5

1
#

'(
::%

7
#

$(
0:#

7
%1

0"
05

8
%0
"
%"

$0
::%

08
%0
$"

%0
8

4(
8

/
*
%

th
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 e
x
is

ts
 t
o

 i
n

fl
u

e
n

c
e

 h
o

w
 

$@
#

%8
#

F
%;

=
-

:0/
%"

#
/
$5

'%
#

"
$(

$#
%F

0$
@

08
%$
@

#
%?

'#
8

$%
2

'5
"
"
%B

(
"
$#

'%
;

:(
8

%0
"
%7

#
1
#

:5
;

#
7

%(
8

7
%6

(
8

(
)

#
7

%
4'

5
6

%$
@

#
%5

=
$"

#
$T
%!

"
%(

8
%5

=
$;

=
$%
4'

5
6

%$
@

#
%&

!
B

>
%

"
$'

(
$#

)
0/

%;
:(

8
%$
@

#
%;

5
$#

8
$0
(

:%
45

'%
;

=
-

:0/
%"

#
/
$5

'%
;

(
'$

8
#

'"
%$
5

%-
#

8
#

40
$%
4'

5
6

%$
@

#
%'

#
)

#
8

#
'(

$0
5

8
%5

4%
$@

#
%

?
'#

8
$%
2

'5
"
"
%2

'0
/
D
:#

F
5

5
7

%(
'#

(
%4
'5

6
%$
@

#
%5

=
$"

#
$%

"
@

5
=

:7
%-

#
%'

#
/
5

)
8

0"
#

7
%(

8
7

%$
@

#
%(

7
1
(

8
$(

)
#

%5
4%
(

%
c
o

lle
c
ti
v
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 
;

'5
;

5
"
#

7
%;

=
-

:0/
%"

#
/
$5

'%
#

"
$(

$#
%'

#
/
5

)
8

0"
#

7
T%
%%

&
#

'1
0/

#
%>

'5
1
0"

05
8

%$
@

'5
=

)
@

%Y
=

-
"
%(

8
7

%>
(

'$
8

#
'0
8

)

E
0$
@

%$
@

#
%;

'5
;

5
"
#

7
%'

#
1
0"

#
7

%(
;

;
'5

(
/
@

%$
5

%$
@

#
%2

01
0/

%
3

"
$(

$#
%0
8

%$
@

#
%6

#
7

0=
6

%$
#

'6
%0
$%
0"

%#
8

1
0"

(
)

#
7

%$
@

(
$%

$@
#

%/
5

'#
%/

01
0/

%/
#

8
$'

#
%F

0::
%-

#
%:
5

/
(

$#
7

%0
8

%(
%8

#
F

%
-

=
0:7

08
)

%0
8

%$
@

#
%F

#
"
$%
5

4%
$@

#
%-

5
'5

=
)

@
%F

0$
@

%
(

;
;

'5
;

'0
(

$#
%@

=
-

%:
5

/
(

$0
5

8
"
%0
8

%$
@

#
%D

#
*
%$
5

F
8

%
/
#

8
$'

#
"
%6

(
08

$(
08

08
)

%$
@

#
%(

;
;

'5
;

'0
(

$#
%(

8
7

%'
#

:#
1
(

8
$%

/
=

''
#

8
$%
"
#

'1
0/

#
%;

'5
1
0"

05
8

%/
#

8
$'

#
"
%J

#
T)

T%
<

0-
'(

'0
#

"
K%

(
8

7
%"

@
(

'0
8

)
%(

/
/
5

6
6

5
7

(
$0
5

8
%F

0$
@

%;
(

'$
8

#
'%

;
=

-
:0/

%
"
#

/
$5

'%
5

')
(

8
0"

(
$0
5

8
"
%F

@
#

'#
1
#

'%
;

'(
/
$0
/
(

-
:#

T

C
5

%7
(

$#
%$
@

#
'#

%@
(

1
#

%-
#

#
8

%(
%8

=
6

-
#

'%
5

4%
"
=

/
/
#

"
"
4=

:%
08

0$
0(

$0
1
#

"
%0
8

/
:=

7
08

)
%$
@

#
%;

'5
;

5
"
(

:%
08

%
'#

:(
$0
5

8
%$
5

%2
2

e
%J

C
@

#
%2

:08
0/

(
:%
2

5
6

6
0"

"
05

8
08

)
%

e
'5

=
;

K%
$'

(
8

"
4#

''
08

)
%0
8

$5
%b

8
0$
%R

%i
<

?
>

%0
8

%$
@

#
%6

07
%

;
(

'$
%5

4%
R

V
N

_
%%
(

8
7

%?
(

'8
#

$%
Y

5
6

#
"
%5

/
/
=

;
*
08

)
%

?
(

'8
#

$%
Y

5
=

"
#

%(
"
%"

=
-

O$
#

8
(

8
$"

%5
4%
$@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:T

C
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

F
0::

%/
5

8
$0
8

=
#

%$
5

%F
5

'D
%F

0$
@

%;
=

-
:0/

%
"
#

/
$5

'%
;

(
'$

8
#

'"
%F

0$
@

08
%$
@

#
%-

5
'5

=
)

@
%#

8
(

-
:08

)
%$
@

#
%

(
=

$@
5

'0
$*

%$
5

%@
(

1
#

%"
@

(
'#

7
%"

#
'1

0/
#

%@
=

-
"
%$
@

'5
=

)
@

%
6

=
:$
0%
(

)
#

8
/
*
%$
#

(
6

"
%0
8

%"
@

(
'#

7
%

(
/
/
5

6
6

5
7

(
$0
5

8
T

B
re

n
t 
C

ro
s
s
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs

C
@

#
%?

'#
8

$%
2

'5
"
"
%2

'0
/
D
:#

F
5

5
7

%7
#

1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$%
F

0::
%

c
re

a
te

 a
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 o

v
e

rs
e

e
 t
h

e
 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 

7
#

1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$%
5

4%
(

%8
#

F
%$
5

F
8

%/
#

8
$'

#
%F

@
0/

@
%F

0::
%"

;
(

8
%

$@
#

%i
5

'$
@

%2
0'
/
=

:(
'%

9
5

(
7

%(
8

7
S%
(

$%
(

%"
$'

(
$#

)
0/

%:
#

1
#

:S
%

F
0::

%/
'#

(
$#

%(
%6

(
.5

'%
8

#
F

%=
'-

(
8

%/
#

8
$'

#
%0
8

%$
@

#
%8

5
'$

@
%

F
#

"
$%
5

4%
<

5
8

7
5

8
T%
C

@
#

%"
/
@

#
6

#
%#

8
1
0"

(
)

#
"
%D

#
*
%

06
;

'5
1
#

6
#

8
$"

%$
5

%$
@

#
%;

=
-

:0/
%$
'(

8
"
;

5
'$

%0
8

4'
(

"
$'

=
/
$=

'#
%

08
/
:=

7
08

)
%(

%8
#

F
%-

=
"
%"

$(
$0
5

8
%(

$%
?

'#
8

$%
2

'5
"
"
%i

5
'$

@
%

(
8

7
%(

%8
#

F
%B

07
:(

8
7

%B
(

08
:08

#
%&

$(
$0
5

8
%$
5

%$
@

#
%"

5
=

$@
T

E
@

0:"
$%
$@

#
%1

0"
05

8
%4
5

'%
$@

#
%"

0$
#

%0
"
%"

$0
::%

=
8

7
#

'%
7

#
1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$S
%$
@

#
%6

(
"
$#

'%
;

:(
8

%F
0::

%0
8

/
:=

7
#

%6
(

.5
'%

8
#

F
%;

=
-

:0/
%'

#
(

:6
%"

/
@

#
6

#
"
%(

8
7

%8
#

F
%4
(

/
0:0

$0
#

"
%"

=
/
@

%
(

"
%"

/
@

5
5

:"
S%
5

;
#

8
%"

;
(

/
#

"
S%
/
5

6
6

=
8

0$
*
%4
(

/
0:0

$0
#

"
%(

8
7

%
6

#
7

0/
(

:%
/
#

8
$'

#
"
T%
C

@
#

%D
#

*
%8

#
F

%"
/
@

#
6

#
%#

:#
6

#
8

$"
%

a
re

 a
s
 f
o

llo
w

s
: 

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 r

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
2

5
0

 a
c
re

s

7
,5

0
0

  
n

e
w

 h
o

m
e

s

b
;

%$
5

%R
^

SV
V

V
%8

#
F

%.
5

-
"

!
%"

#
/
5

8
7

%;
@

(
"
#

%$
5

%$
@

#
%#

M
0"

$0
8

)
%?

'#
8

$%
2

'5
"
"
%

S
h

o
p

p
in

g
 c

e
n

tr
e

!
%'

#
1
0"

#
7

%B
N

H&
$(

;
:#

"
%2

5
'8

#
'%

08
$#

'/
@

(
8

)
#

i
#

F
%0
8

4'
(

"
$'

=
/
$=

'#
%0
8

1
#

"
$6

#
8

$%
08

%$
@

#
%'

#
)

05
8

%5
4%

j
W

V
V

6

i
#

F
%"

;
5

'$
"
%(

8
7

%:
#

0"
=

'#
%4
(

/
0:0

$0
#

"

42



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

3
3

D
R

A
F
T

D
e
liv

e
rin

g
 t
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y 

P
a

r
t 

3

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 P

ro
p
e
rt
y 

A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

ys
te

m
 

(IP
A

M
S

)

A
 s

in
g

le
 v

ie
w

 o
f 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il�

s
 a

s
s
e

ts
 w

ill
 

#
8

(
-

:#
%/

5
6

;
'#

@
#

8
"
01

#
%;

'5
;

#
'$

*
%(

"
"
#

$%
;

#
'4

5
'6

(
8

/
#

%0
8

45
'6

(
$0
5

8
%$
5

%-
#

%(
8

(
:*

"
#

7
%(

8
7

%
'#

;
5

'$
#

7
%(

"
%'

#
X

=
0'
#

7
T%
C

@
0"

%0
8

45
'6

(
$0
5

8
%F

0::
%

#
8

(
-

:#
%-

#
$$
#

'%
7

#
/
0"

05
8

%6
(

D
08

)
%(

8
7

%0
8

45
'6

%$
@

#
%

5
8

O)
5

08
)

%7
#

1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$%
5

4%
$@

#
%&

$'
(

$#
)

0/
%!

"
"
#

$%
B

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$%
>

:(
8

T%

?
*
%@

5
:7

08
)

%0
8

45
'6

(
$0
5

8
%F

0$
@

08
%(

%"
08

)
:#

%
7

(
$(

-
(

"
#

%$
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

F
0::

%-
#

%#
8

(
-

:#
7

%$
5

%(
"
"
#

"
"
%

@
5

F
%0
$%
8

#
#

7
"
%$
5

%'
#

"
;

5
8

7
%$
5

%$
@

#
%/

@
(

::#
8

)
#

"
%5

4%
7

#
:01

#
'0
8

)
%$
'(

8
"
45

'6
(

$0
5

8
%(

8
7

%6
#

#
$%
/
5

"
$%

"
(

1
08

)
"
%F

@
0:"

$%
"
$0
::%

;
'5

1
07

08
)

%#
44
#

/
$0
1
#

%(
8

7
%

#
44
0/

0#
8

$%
;

=
-

:0/
%"

#
'1

0/
#

"
T%

T
h

e
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 u
s
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 

06
;

:#
6

#
8

$(
$0
5

8
%5

4%
I>

!
B

&
%5

4%
$@

#
%7

(
$(

%/
5

8
$(

08
#

7
%

$@
#

'#
08

%F
0::

%-
#

%4
=

8
7

(
6

#
8

$(
:%
$5

%"
=

/
/
#

"
"
4=

::*
%

7
#

:01
#

'0
8

)
%$
@

#
%2

5
=

8
/
0:U

"
%2

5
';

5
'(

$#
%,

-
.#

/
$0
1
#

"
T

!
8

%5
1
#

'(
'/

@
08

)
%7

(
$(

%F
(

'#
@

5
=

"
#

%4
(

/
0:0

$*
S%
(

"
%

;
(

'$
%5

4%
$@

#
%I
>

!
B

&
%6

5
7

#
:S
%F

0::
%4
5

'6
%;

(
'$

%5
4%
$@

#
%

/
#

8
$'

(
:%
7

(
$(

-
(

"
#

S%
/
5

6
-

08
#

7
%F

0$
@

%$
@

#
%2

5
';

5
'(

$#
%

<
(

8
7

:5
'7

%L
=

8
/
$0
5

8
%(

8
7

%#
8

(
-

:#
Z

T
h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 L

a
n
d
lo

rd
 

M
o
d
e
l

O
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ri
n

c
ip

a
l 
a

im
s
 o

f 
th

e
 S

A
M

P
 i
s
 t
o

 
"
#

/
=

'#
%$
@

#
%(

7
5

;
$0
5

8
%5

4%
(

%2
5

';
5

'(
$#

%<
(

8
7

:5
'7

%
6

5
7

#
:%
J(

8
7

%0
$"

%/
5

'#
%;

'0
8

/
0;

:#
"
K%

(
"
%7

#
40
8

#
7

%-
*
%

$@
#

%9
5

*
(

:%
I8

"
$0
$=

$0
5

8
%5

4%
2

@
(

'$
#

'#
7

%&
=

'1
#

*
5

'"
%

J9
I2

&
K%

(
"
%$
@

#
%;

'5
;

#
'%

-
(

"
0"

%4
5

'%
7

#
1
#

:5
;

08
)

%(
8

7
%

6
(

8
(

)
08

)
%$
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:%

#
"
$(

$#
T

In
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 t
h

is
 m

e
a

n
s
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 w

h
o

le
 

/
5

=
8

/
0:%

#
"
$(

$#
%F

0::
%-

#
%6

(
8

(
)

#
7

%0
8

%5
8

#
%;

:(
/
#

S%
ra

th
e

r 
th

a
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 

6
(

8
(

)
08

)
%(

"
"
#

$"
%(

8
7

%-
=

0:7
08

)
"
%0
8

%7
044

#
'#

8
$%

F
(

*
"
T%
C

@
0"

%"
@

5
=

:7
#

8
(

-
:#

%)
'#

(
$#

'%
#

44
0/

0#
8

/
*
%0
8

%
te

rm
s
 o

f 
ru

n
n

in
g

 c
o

s
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 e

s
ta

te
, 
th

e
 

;
5

$#
8

$0
(

:%
45

'%
08

/
'#

(
"
08

)
%0
8

/
5

6
#

%(
8

7
%F

0::
%(

:"
5

%
07

#
8

$0
4*

%5
;

;
5

'$
=

8
0$
0#

"
%4
5

'%
/
5

O:
5

/
(

$0
5

8
%5

4%
"
#

'1
0/

#
"
T

43



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

3
4

D
R

A
F
T

D
e
liv

e
rin

g
 t
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y 

P
a

r
t 

3

C
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 &

 W
a
y 

F
o
rw

a
rd

,
1
#

'%
$@

#
%8

#
M
$%
$@

'#
#

%O
%4
01

#
%*

#
(

'"
%'

#
1
#

8
=

#
%F

0::
%

/
5

8
$0
8

=
#

%$
5

%-
#

%=
8

7
#

'%
/
5

8
"
$(

8
$%
;

'#
"
"
=

'#
T%
%!

"
%(

%
7

0'
#

/
$%
'#

"
=

:$
%7

#
:01

#
'*

%=
8

0$
"
%F

0::
%/

5
8

$0
8

=
#

%$
5

%-
#

%
'#

1
0#

F
#

7
%0
8

%5
'7

#
'%

$5
%;

'5
1
07

#
%(

44
5

'7
(

-
:#

%"
#

'1
0/

#
%

;
'5

1
0"

05
8

S%
/
5

6
6

0"
"
05

8
#

7
%=

8
7

#
'%

$@
#

%)
=

07
#

:08
#

"
%

(
8

7
%;

5
:0/

0#
"
%/

5
8

$(
08

#
7

%F
0$
@

08
%$
@

#
%&

!
B

>
T

I$
%0
"
%#

8
1
0"

(
)

#
7

%$
@

(
$%
-

*
%R

V
N

a
OR

V
R

V
%$
@

#
%;

'5
;

#
'$

*
%

;
5

'$
45

:05
%F

0::
%-

#
%4
:#

M
0-

:#
%(

8
7

%4
0$
%4
5

'%
;

=
';

5
"
#

S%
@

(
1
08

)
%

$(
D
#

8
%(

7
1
(

8
$(

)
#

%5
4%
:5

/
(

$0
5

8
%4
(

/
$5

'"
S%
$@

#
%'

#
1
0"

05
8

%
5

4%
$@

#
%/

01
0/

%#
"
$(

$#
S%
(

)
0:#

%F
5

'D
08

)
%;

'(
/
$0
/
#

"
S%

"
#

'1
0/

#
%;

(
'$

8
#

'"
@

0;
"
S%
(

%/
5

';
5

'(
$#

%:
(

8
7

:5
'7

%6
5

7
#

:S
%

/
5

6
6

0"
"
05

8
08

)
S%
"
/
@

5
5

:%
(

/
(

7
#

6
0#

"
%(

8
7

%
;

'5
/
=

'#
6

#
8

$%
5

;
;

5
'$

=
8

0$
0#

"
T%

I8
%"

=
6

6
(

'*
%$
@

#
%&

!
B

>
S%
5

8
%(

;
;

'5
1
(

:S
%F

0::
%:
#

(
7

%$
5

%
th

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 o
u

tp
u

ts
: 

!
;

;
'5

1
(

:%
H%
!

7
5

;
$0
5

8
%5

4%
$@

#
%&

!
B

>
%J

&
=

-
.#

/
$%
$5

%
2

5
8

"
=

:$
(

$0
5

8
KZ

%&
#

;
$#

6
-

#
'%

R
V

N
_

!
;

;
'5

1
#

%(
8

7
%(

)
'#

#
%$
@

#
%&

!
B

>
%-

*
%&

#
;

$#
6

-
#

'%
R

V
N

_
%"

=
-

.#
/
$%
$5

%/
5

8
"
=

:$
(

$0
5

8
T

C
@

#
%&

!
B

>
%F

0::
%-

#
%'

#
1
0#

F
#

7
%(

8
8

=
(

::*
%H
%(

"
%

8
#

/
#

"
"
(

'*
T

>
'#

;
(

'#
%(

8
7

%;
=

-
:0"

@
%$
@

#
%2

5
6

6
=

8
0$
*
%!

"
"
#

$"
&

$'
(

$#
)

*
%-

*
%Q

#
/
#

6
-

#
'%

R
V

N
_

T

Q
#

:01
#

'0
8

)
%$
@

#
%P

#
*
%I
"
"
=

#
"
%=

8
7

#
'%

$@
#

%2
5

';
5

'(
$#

%>
:(

8
Z%

2
0

1
4

 t
o

 2
0

1
9

E
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

re
c
e

iv
e

s
 t
h

e
 o

p
ti
m

u
m

 
08

/
5

6
#

%5
'%

/
(

;
0$
(

:%
'#

/
#

0;
$%
4'

5
6

%/
5

=
8

/
0:%

5
F

8
#

7
%

;
'5

;
#

'$
0#

"
%(

8
7

%:
(

8
7

%F
@

0/
@

%)
#

8
#

'(
$#

%'
#

8
$%
5

'%
@

(
1
#

%
-

#
#

8
%0
7

#
8

$0
40
#

7
%4
5

'%
7

0"
;

5
"
(

:T

!
::%

/
5

=
8

/
0:%

"
#

'1
0/

#
"
%$
5

%-
#

%;
'5

1
07

#
7

%$
@

'5
=

)
@

%4
(

/
0:0

$0
#

"
%

F
@

0/
@

%(
'#

%4
0$
%4
5

'%
;

=
';

5
"
#

%(
8

7
%=

$0
:0"

#
7

%#
44
#

/
$0
1
#

:*
T

3
8

"
=

'0
8

)
%/

(
;

0$
(

:%
(

"
"
#

$%
(

/
$0
1
0$
0#

"
%(

'#
%6

(
8

(
)

#
7

%#
4O

4#
/
$0
1
#

:*
%(

8
7

%0
8

%:
08

#
%F

0$
@

%$
@

#
%(

"
"
#

$"
%:
(

8
7

%(
8

7
%;

'5
;

#
'$

*
%

'=
:#

"
T%

C
@

#
%!

;
;

'5
(

/
@

%$
5

%e
5

1
#

'8
(

8
/
#

%(
8

7
%!

"
"
#

$%
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t:
 2

0
1

4

3
8

"
=

'#
%$
@

(
$%
(

::%
4=

$=
'#

%7
#

/
0"

05
8

"
%0
8

%'
#

:(
$0
5

8
%$
5

%$
@

#
%-

=
0:$

%
#

"
$(

$#
%(

'#
%/

5
6

;
:0(

8
$%
F

0$
@

%$
@

#
%&

!
B

>
T

&
#

$%
=

;
%(

8
7

%6
(

08
$(

08
%(

%m
2

5
';

5
'(

$#
%<

(
8

7
:5

'7
%>

5
:0/

*
UT

C
5

%#
8

"
=

'#
%(

::%
D
#

*
%7

#
/
0"

05
8

"
%(

'#
%'

#
4#

''
#

7
%(

/
/
5

'7
08

)
%

$5
%$
@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:U

"
%/

5
8

"
$0
$=

$0
5

8
T

C
5

%"
#

$%
=

;
%(

8
7

%6
(

08
$(

08
%$
@

#
%I
>

!
B

&
%7

(
$(

-
(

"
#

%$
5

%
;

'5
1
07

#
%(

%"
08

)
:#

%1
0#

F
%5

4%
$@

#
%/

5
=

8
/
0:U

"
%;

'5
;

#
'$

*
%

(
"
"
#

$"
T

C
5

%;
=

-
:0"

@
%$
@

#
%2

5
6

6
=

8
0$
*
%!

"
"
#

$%
&

$'
(

$#
)

*
%-

*
%

Q
#

/
#

6
-

#
'%

R
V

N
_

T

S
h

a
p

in
g

 t
h

e
 F

u
tu

re
 C

iv
ic

 E
s
ta

te
: 
2

0
1

4
 t
o

 
2

0
1

7
 

C
@

#
%,

!
9

&
%7

#
:01

#
'*

%;
:(

8
%F

0::
%;

'5
1
07

#
%(

%/
01

0/
%

#
"
$(

$#
%$
@

(
$%
0"

%4
0$
%4
5

'%
;

=
';

5
"
#

%(
8

7
%'

#
7

=
/
#

%$
@

#
%

/
=

''
#

8
$%
/
01

0/
%4
5

5
$;

'0
8

$T

I7
#

8
$0
4*

%(
8

%5
;

$0
6

=
6

%#
"
$(

$#
%/

(
;

(
-

:#
%5

4%
4:
#

M
0-

0:0
$*

%(
8

7
%/

@
(

8
)

#
%5

1
#

'%
$@

#
%8

#
M
$%

7
#

/
(

7
#

%F
@

0:"
$%
6

5
8

0$
5

'0
8

)
%$
@

#
%;

#
'4

5
'6

(
8

/
#

%
o

f 
p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 a

s
s
e

ts
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 

/
5

';
5

'(
$#

%5
-

.#
/
$0
1
#

"
%(

'#
%-

#
08

)
%6

#
$T
%

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
fo

r 
re

lo
c
a

ti
o

n
 t
o

 a
 

;
=

';
5

"
#

%-
=

0:$
%/

01
0/

%(
/
/
5

6
6

5
7

(
$0
5

8
%-

=
0:7

08
)

%
08

%$
@

#
%2

5
:08

7
(

:#
%(

'#
(

T

A

B C

D

44



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

3
5

D
R

A
F
T

D
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 S

a
v
in

g
s
 /
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 A
s
s
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t:
 2

0
1

4
 t
o

 2
0

1
9

I7
#

8
$0
4*

%(
::%

;
5

$#
8

$0
(

:%
"
=

';
:=

"
%;

'5
;

#
'$

*
%(

"
"
#

$"
%

$@
'5

=
)

@
%'

(
$0
5

8
(

:0"
(

$0
5

8
%(

8
7

%$
@

#
%!

"
"
#

$%
Q

0"
;

5
"
(

:"
%>

'5
)

'(
6

6
#

T

E
x
p

lo
re

 a
ll 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
re

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 o

r 
'#

7
#

1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$%
5

;
;

5
'$

=
8

0$
0#

"
T

2
5

8
"
07

#
'%

/
(

;
0$
(

:%
08

1
#

"
$6

#
8

$%
5

;
;

5
'$

=
8

0$
0#

"
S%

08
/
:=

7
08

)
%;

5
$#

8
$0
(

:%
(

/
X

=
0"

0$
05

8
"
S%
F

@
#

'#
%(

%'
5

-
=

"
$%

-
=

"
08

#
"
"
%/

(
"
#

%7
#

6
5

8
"
$'

(
$#

"
%(

8
%#

8
@

(
8

/
#

7
%

'#
1
#

8
=

#
%0
8

/
5

6
#

%5
'%

/
(

;
0$
(

:%
'#

/
#

0;
$%
5

'%
06

;
'5

1
#

7
%

(
"
"
#

$%
1
(

:=
#

T

E
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 f
o

r 
'#

1
0#

F
08

)
%(

8
7

%/
@

(
::#

8
)

08
)

%$
@

#
%'

(
$0
5

8
(

:#
%4
5

'%
5

F
8

08
)

%5
'%

@
5

:7
08

)
%;

'5
;

#
'$

0#
"
T

2
5

::#
/
$0
1
#

%b
"
#

%5
4%
$@

#
%E

07
#

'%
>

=
-

:0/
%&

#
/
$5

'%
E

s
ta

te
: 
2

0
1

4
 t
o

 2
0

1
9

E
5

'D
%F

0$
@

%;
(

'$
8

#
'"

%$
5

%#
M
;

:5
'#

%;
5

$#
8

$0
(

:%
(

:$
#

'8
(

$0
1
#

%(
8

7
%-

#
8

#
40
/
0(

:%
=

"
#

"
%4
5

'%
#

M
0"

$0
8

)
%

;
'5

;
#

'$
*
%(

"
"
#

$"
T%

E
5

'D
%F

0$
@

%;
=

-
:0/

%"
#

/
$5

'%
;

(
'$

8
#

'"
%$
5

%;
=

'"
=

#
%

/
5

::#
/
$0
1
#

%#
44
#

/
$0
1
#

%=
"
#

%5
4%
$@

#
%F

07
#

'%
;

=
-

:0/
%

"
#

/
$5

'%
#

"
$(

$#
T

2
5

8
"
07

#
'%

5
;

;
5

'$
=

8
0$
0#

"
%4
5

'%
/
(

;
0$
(

:%
08

1
#

"
$6

#
8

$%
08

$5
%(

8
%0
8

1
#

"
$6

#
8

$%
;

5
'$

45
:05

%$
5

%;
'5

7
=

/
#

%
(

7
7

0$
05

8
(

:%
08

/
5

6
#

%"
$'

#
(

6
"
T

C
re

a
te

 a
 R

o
lli

n
g

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
/ 
R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

>
:(

8
%?

(
"
#

7
%,

8
%&

0$
#

"
%0
8

%<
?

?
%,

F
8

#
'"

@
0;

%H
%

C
o

n
tr

o
l:
 2

0
1

4
 t
o

 2
0

1
9

9
#

1
0#

F
%(

::%
:(

8
7

%(
8

7
%-

=
0:7

08
)

"
%0
8

%$
@

#
%5

F
8

#
'"

@
0;

%
5

'%
/
5

8
$'

5
:%
5

4%
<

?
?

%$
5

%0
7

#
8

$0
4*

%5
;

;
5

'$
=

8
0$
0#

"
%4
5

'%
'#

)
#

8
#

'(
$0
5

8
%(

8
7

%'
#

7
#

1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$T

T
o

 m
a

x
im

is
e

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 
"
@

(
'0
8

)
%0
8

%7
#

1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$%
;

'5
40
$%
08

%(
::%

'#
:#

1
(

8
$%

08
"
$(

8
/
#

"
T

2
5

8
"
07

#
'%

(
8

*
%"

0$
#

%(
"
"
#

6
-

:*
%5

;
;

5
'$

=
8

0$
0#

"
%$
5

%
)

#
8

#
'(

$#
%(

%"
=

-
"
#

X
=

#
8

$%
#

8
@

(
8

/
#

7
%7

0"
;

5
"
(

:T

F
G H

D
e
liv

e
rin

g
 t
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y 

P
a

r
t 

3

C
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 &

 W
a
y 

F
o
rw

a
rd

E
!

%"
=

0$
#

%5
4%
7

5
/
=

6
#

8
$"

%F
0::

%-
#

%7
#

1
#

:5
;

#
7

%$
5

%
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 S

A
M

P

!
8

%,
44
0/

#
%!

/
/
5

6
6

5
7

(
$0
5

8
%9

(
$0
5

8
(

:0"
(

$0
5

8
%

S
tr

a
te

g
y

J,
!

9
&

K[

!
%2

5
6

6
=

8
0$
*
%!

"
"
#

$%
&

$'
(

$#
)

*
%J

2
!

&
K[

!
%'

#
1
0"

#
7

%(
;

;
'5

(
/
@

%(
8

7
%"

$'
(

$#
)

*
%4
5

'%
$@

#
%

<
#

0"
=

'#
%3

"
$(

$#
[

!
%7

#
1
#

:5
;

6
#

8
$%
;

0;
#

:08
#

[

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

!
%Y

5
=

"
08

)
%&

$'
(

$#
)

*
[

!
%>

(
'D

"
%&

$'
(

$#
)

*
[

!
%Y

0)
@

F
(

*
"
%!

"
"
#

$%
B

(
8

(
)

#
6

#
8

$%
&

$'
(

$#
)

*
[

3
7

=
/
(

$0
5

8
%2

(
;

0$
(

:%
&

$'
(

$#
)

*
%7

5
/
=

6
#

8
$[
%(

8
7

S

!
%&

@
(

'#
7

%!
/
/
5

6
6

5
7

(
$0
5

8
%H
%E

5
'D

08
)

%
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 w

it
h

 p
a

rt
n

e
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 

08
/
:=

7
08

)
%/

5
8

"
07

#
'(

$0
5

8
%5

4%
/
5

6
6

=
8

0$
*
%5

'%
8

#
0)

@
-

5
=

'@
5

5
7

%@
=

-
"
T%

45



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

3
6

D
R

A
F
T

D
e
liv

e
rin

g
 t
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y 

P
a

r
t 

3

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1

- 
B

a
c
kg

ro
u
n
d
 D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

I8
%;

'#
;

(
'0
8

)
%$
@

#
%&

!
B

>
%F

#
%@

(
1
#

%'
#

4#
''

#
7

%$
5

%$
@

#
%4
5

::5
F

08
)

%;
=

-
:0"

@
#

7
%7

5
/
=

6
#

8
$"

[

A
%

Y
5

=
"
08

)
%&

$'
(

$#
)

*
%3

1
07

#
8

/
#

%?
(

"
#

Z%
k
(

8
=

(
'*

%R
V

N
_

B
%

Y
5

=
"
08

)
%&

$'
(

$#
)

*
%3

1
07

#
8

/
#

%?
(

"
#

Z%
k
(

8
=

(
'*

%R
V

N
V

C
%

&
6

(
'$

#
'%

E
5

'D
08

)
%>

'5
)

'(
6

6
#

%9
#

1
0#

F

D
 

E
s
ta

te
s
 S

a
v
in

g
s
 S

u
m

m
a

ry
 P

la
n

E
 

B
a

rn
e

t 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 2

0
1
1

F
 

B
a

rn
e

t 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 2

0
1

0

G
 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 2

0
1
1

H
%

&
;

5
'$

%(
8

7
%>

@
*
"
0/

(
:%
!

/
$0
1
0$
*
%J

&
>

!
K%

'#
1
0#

F
%R

V
N

`

I 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 A

s
s
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

 2
0

0
9

J
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 A
s
s
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

 2
0

1
3

K
 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 2

0
1

2

L
%

2
=

"
$5

6
#

'%
!

/
/
#

"
"
%&

$'
(

$#
)

*
Z%
<

5
8

7
5

8
%?

5
'5

=
)

@
%5

4%
?

(
'8

#
$Z
%R

V
N

_

M
%

2
5

6
6

0"
"
05

8
08

)
%&

/
@

5
5

:%
(

8
7

%<
#

(
'8

#
'%

>
:(

/
#

"
%R

V
N

_
HN

W
%+

%R
V

N
\

HN
a

%J
=

;
7

(
$#

%!
;

'0
:%
R

V
N

_
K

46



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

3
7

D
R

A
F
T

D
e
liv

e
rin

g
 t
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y 

P
a

r
t 

3

T
y
p

e
si

5
R

e
n

t 
R

o
ll 

a
s
 a

t 
#

8
7

%!
=

)
=

"
$%

2
0

1
4

 

&
@

5
;

"
%J

#
M
/
:%
:5

8
)

%:
#

(
"
#

@
5

:7
%F

0$
@

%4
:(

$"
%5

1
#

'K
9

1
7

1
7

,0
1

3

I8
7

=
"
$'

0(
:%
=

8
0$
"

2
7

4
5

6
,4

7
4

!
)

'0
/
=

:$
=

'(
:%
J0
8

/
:%
)

'(
c
08

)
%:
(

8
7

K
1

4
1

3
0

,1
5

0

,
44
0/

#
"
%J

08
/
:%
'#

$(
0:%

=
"
#

7
%(

"
%5

44
0/

#
"
K

2
1

4
6

0
,1

5
4

Q
#

;
5

$"
%J

F
(

"
$#

%/
5

::#
/
$0
5

8
H'

#
/
*
/
:08

)
K

2
2

9
,0

0
0

e
(

'7
#

8
%:
(

8
7

%;
(

'/
#

:"
3

4
5

,1
3

0

>
(

'D
"
%(

8
7

%5
;

#
8

%"
;

(
/
#

"
%

1
8

2
1

2
0

,0
5

0

2
5

6
6

=
8

0$
*
%2

#
8

$'
#

"
%J

#
M
/
:%
5

$@
#

'%
-

=
0:7

08
)

"
%=

"
#

7
%-

*
%

/
5

6
6

=
8

0$
*
%)

'5
=

;
"
K

1
4

6
6

,2
6

0

<
5

8
)

%:
#

(
"
#

@
5

:7
%'

#
$(

0:%
F

0$
@

%4
:(

$"
%(

-
5

1
#

3
9

1
,2

2
8

C
iv

ic
 O

ff
ic

e
s
 

4
4

8
2

,7
6

8

S
h

o
p

p
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

x
e

s
4

4
0

1
,6

8
5

>
=

-
:0/

%/
(

'%
;

(
'D

"
%

2
3

4
2

,8
0

0

&
=

-
"
$(

$0
5

8
%"

0$
#

"
2

7
4

,4
6

7

B
0"

/
%&

;
5

'$
"
%J

8
5

$%
F

0$
@

08
%;

(
'D

"
K

3
3

4
8

6
,8

8
0

B
0"

/
%-

=
0:7

08
)

"
%(

8
7

%;
(

'/
#

:"
%5

4%
:(

8
7

1
1

7
6

5
3

,6
0

5

T
o

ta
l

6
3

2
j

_
SV

W
^

S]
]

_

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2

 -
 In

c
o
m

e
 p

ro
d
u
c
in

g
 a

s
s
e
ts

si
5

$%
(

::%
$@

#
%(

"
"
#

$"
%(

'#
%0
8

/
5

6
#

%;
'5

7
=

/
08

)
%

s%
9

#
8

$%
(

"
%5

4%
N

"
$%
&

#
;

$#
6

-
#

'%
R

V
N

`
T%
L

5
::5

F
08

)
%(

)
'#

#
6

#
8

$%
5

4%
:#

(
"
#

%#
1
#

8
$"

%J
#

)
%'

#
8

$%
'#

1
0#

F
"
K%

(
$%
#

8
7

%5
4%
!

=
)

=
"
$%
R

V
N

_
08

/
'#

(
"
#

7
%$
5

%j
_

SV
W

^
S]

]
_

s?
(

"
#

%<
08

#
%9

#
8

$%
4'

5
6

%I
8

/
5

6
#

%&
/
@

#
7

=
:#

"
%N

"
$%
&

#
;

$#
6

-
#

'%
R

V
N

`

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
to

ta
l

j
R

SR
_

]
S`

R
]

TW
W

e
#

8
#

'(
:%
L

=
8

7
%C

5
$(

:
j

\
N

_
S\

\
^

T\
]

H
R

A
 T

o
ta

l
j

a
N

]
SN

`
\

T\
N

T
o

ta
l 

j
`

Sa
^

^
S`

W
`

TR
R

47



D
R

A
F
T

48



D
R

A
F
T

i
5

'$
@

%<
5

8
7

5
8

%?
=

"
08

#
"
"
%>

(
'D

S
,

(
D
:#

0)
@

%9
5

(
7

%&
5

=
$@

S
<

5
8

7
5

8
%

i
N
N

%N
i

>

49



50

This page is intentionally left blank



 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
, 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 

    

 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

 –
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 A

s
s

e
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 

(S
A

M
P

) 
 

 

51



 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
, 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 

In
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

B
a
rn
e
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 c
o
m
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 i
n
v
o
lv
in
g
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 s
h
a
p
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 a
re
a
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
e
y
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
. 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
is
 o
n
e
 

o
f 
th
e
 k
e
y
 w
a
y
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
in
te
ra
c
ts
 w
it
h
 a
n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
s
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
, 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 t
h
e
m
 w
it
h
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
: 

•
 
g
a
in
 g
re
a
te
r 
a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
w
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
d
o
e
s
 

•
 
to
 v
o
ic
e
 t
h
e
ir
 v
ie
w
s
 a
n
d
 k
n
o
w
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
y
 c
a
n
 g
e
t 
in
v
o
lv
e
d
 

•
 
to
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
ir
 v
ie
w
s
 f
e
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 d
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

 T
h
is
 p
la
n
 a
im
s
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
n
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 i
n
fo
rm
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 f
u
tu
re
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

s
k
ill
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 p
la
n
 a
lig
n
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 a
n
d
 k
e
y
 g
u
id
in
g
 p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 t
h
e
 

th
re
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
: 
W
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 o
u
r 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 -
 P
ro
m
o
te
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 g
ro
w
th
, 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

b
o
ro
u
g
h
; 
T
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 o
f 
B
a
rn
e
t 
a
s
 a
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 l
iv
e
, 
w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 s
tu
d
y
; 

p
ro
m
o
te
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 g
ro
w
th
, 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 a
n
d
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 o
f 
B
a
rn
e
t 
a
s
 a
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 l
iv
e
, 
w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 s
tu
d
y
. 
 

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 

 T
h
e
 k
e
y
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 
th
e
 k
e
y
 p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
 o
f 
th
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

A
s
s
e
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
re
 t
o
: 

 
�
 
A
t 
th
e
 f
o
rm
a
ti
v
e
 s
ta
g
e
, 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
 w
it
h
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 t
o
 g
a
th
e
r 
v
ie
w
s
 o
n
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 a
s
s
e
ts
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
b
o
th
 

th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
’ 
w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 t
h
e
n
 f
o
rm
 t
h
e
 b
a
s
is
 f
o
r 
th
e
 t
w
o
 r
e
la
te
d
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 t
h
a
t 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 c
a
n
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r.
 

�
 
T
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
p
h
a
s
e
 o
f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 P
ri
o
ri
ty
 S
p
e
n
d
in
g
 R
e
v
ie
w
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 g
a
th
e
r 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 o
n
 h
o
w
 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
ils
’ 
c
a
n
 t
a
k
e
 b
e
s
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
it
s
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 a
n
d
 l
a
n
d
 a
s
s
e
ts
. 
F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 w
ill
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 i
n
to
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 w
h
e
n
 w
ri
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 

d
ra
ft
 S
A
M
P
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
u
b
-s
e
t 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
a
t 
w
ill
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
s
s
e
ts
. 
 

�
 
F
u
rt
h
e
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 a
im
 t
o
: 

o
 
L
a
y
 o
u
t 
th
e
 k
e
y
 p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 d
ra
ft
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

o
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
 a
n
d
 r
a
is
e
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 f
a
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 o
ff
e
re
d
 b
y
 m
o
re
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
u
s
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
o
w
n
e
d
 a
s
s
e
ts
. 

o
 
U
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
’ 
v
ie
w
s
 i
n
 d
e
p
th
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 i
n
fo
rm
 t
h
e
 f
in
a
l 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 
 

 

52



 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
, 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 

    D
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 

 W
h
e
n
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 a
n
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 r
e
a
c
h
 a
ll 
in
te
n
d
e
d
 a
u
d
ie
n
c
e
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 

w
h
y
 w
e
 m
u
s
t 
a
d
o
p
t 
ta
rg
e
te
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
th
a
t 
a
lig
n
s
 t
o
 L
B
B
’s
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
’s
 k
e
y
 

g
u
id
in
g
 p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
: 

 

•
 
Id
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
a
u
d
ie
n
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 p
re
p
a
re
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
to
o
ls
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
ir
 n
e
e
d
s
 

•
 
P
la
n
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 c
o
re
 m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 c
h
a
n
n
e
ls
 

•
 
P
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
s
 b
e
in
g
 a
n
 o
p
e
n
, 
h
o
n
e
s
t 
a
n
d
 t
ru
ly
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
v
e
 

•
 
E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
  
a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
 i
s
 m
e
a
n
in
g
fu
l 
a
n
d
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 a
ll 
re
le
v
a
n
t 
p
a
rt
ie
s
 

•
 
P
ro
a
c
ti
v
e
ly
 c
o
n
v
e
y
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
n
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 m
o
d
e
l 
to
 a
ll 
re
le
v
a
n
t 
a
u
d
ie
n
c
e
s
 

•
 
P
ro
v
id
e
 a
n
s
w
e
rs
 t
o
 a
n
y
 q
u
e
ri
e
s
  

•
 
E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
o
u
r 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
is
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
  

 S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

 K
e
y
 t
a
rg
e
t 
a
u
d
ie
n
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
 

M
e
th
o
d
s
 o
f 
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 a
u
d
ie
n
c
e
s
 

B
a
rn
e
t 
p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 l
e
a
s
e
/l
ic
e
n
c
e
 h
o
ld
e
rs
 

•
 
B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 a
n
d
 p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
 

•
 
M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
 w
it
h
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

•
 
S
ta
ff
 s
u
rv
e
y
s
 a
n
d
 n
e
w
s
le
tt
e
rs
 

•
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 B
a
rn
e
t 
n
e
w
s
le
tt
e
r 

•
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 T
o
g
e
th
e
r 
N
e
tw
o
rk
 

•
 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
 n
e
w
s
le
tt
e
rs
 a
n
d
 c
ir
c
u
la
ti
o
n
 l
is
ts
 

•
 
K
e
y
 p
ri
n
c
ip
le
 s
u
rv
e
y
s
 f
o
r 
le
a
s
e
/l
ic
e
n
c
e
 h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 g
ro
u
p
s
  

 

L
o
c
a
l 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 g
ro
u
p
s
 a
n
d
 O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 u
s
in
g
 

B
a
rn
e
t’
s
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
u
ild
in
g
s
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
 –
 C
C
G
, 
M
id
d
le
s
e
x
 U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
, 
J
o
b
 C
e
n
tr
e
 P
lu
s
 

a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 B
a
rn
e
t 

B
a
rn
e
t,
 C
S
G
 a
n
d
  
R
e
 E
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
  

L
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 g
ro
u
p
s
 a
n
d
 o
rg
a
n
s
a
ti
o
n
s
  

   

53



 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
, 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 

      M
e
th
o
d
 

 P
h
a
s
e
 1
: 
R
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
r 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

In
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 t
h
e
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 o
f 
B
a
rn
e
t 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 O
P
M
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
 w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
, 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
, 
a
n
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 

in
fo
rm
 t
h
e
 P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
5
-2
0
2
0
. 

T
h
e
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 w
a
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
re
e
 C
it
iz
e
n
s
’ 
P
a
n
e
l 
w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 a
n
d
 1
6
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
re
 h
e
ld
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
a
n
d
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
. 
  

T
h
e
 w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
 r
e
fl
e
c
ti
v
e
 s
a
m
p
le
 o
f 
th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 w
h
ile
 t
h
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w
e
re
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 a
t 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
, 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 

a
n
d
 s
o
m
e
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
 g
ro
u
p
s
. 

T
h
e
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 w
e
re
 t
o
: 
 

•
 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
’ 
v
ie
w
s
 a
t 
th
e
 f
o
rm
a
ti
v
e
 s
ta
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
ils
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
 2
0
1
5
-2
0
2
0
. 
 

•
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
 t
o
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
n
ts
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 c
o
n
d
u
c
t 
th
e
 P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
 (
P
S
R
) 
s
e
t 
in
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
te
x
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t’
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 a
u
s
te
ri
ty
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
n
d
 r
is
in
g
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

•
 
g
a
in
 a
n
 i
n
-d
e
p
th
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
’ 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
y
 w
o
u
ld
 w
a
n
t 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
h
e
 P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 

re
v
ie
w
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
fi
v
e
 y
e
a
rs
 

 P
h
a
s
e
 2
: 
C
F
E
 

D
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
4
 B
a
rn
e
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 r
e
v
ie
w
 i
ts
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
re
s
e
a
rc
h
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y
 O
P
M
 t
o
 r
u
n
 a
n
 o
n
lin
e
 c
a
ll 
fo
r 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 h
e
a
r 
v
ie
w
s
 o
f 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

fu
tu
re
 o
f 
B
a
rn
e
t,
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
c
a
n
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
p
u
b
lic
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 b
e
s
t 
m
e
e
t 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
th
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
h
o
w
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
c
a
n
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 c
a
n
 p
la
y
 a
 p
a
rt
 i
n
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 B
a
rn
e
t’
s
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
s
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
is
 t
im
e
. 
O
P
M
 h
a
s
 a
n
a
ly
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
a
ll 
fo
r 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 b
e
h
a
lf
. 
T
h
is
 r
e
p
o
rt
 p
re
s
e
n
ts
 t
h
e
 f
in
d
in
g
s
. 
 

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 w
a
s
 s
o
u
g
h
t 
o
n
 t
w
o
 m
a
in
 t
o
p
ic
 a
re
a
s
: 
 

54



 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
, 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 

•
 
id
e
a
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
 o
f 
p
u
b
lic
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 B
a
rn
e
t,
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
  
c
a
n
 p
la
y
 a
 r
o
le
 i
n
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 s
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
  
 

•
 
id
e
a
s
 o
n
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m
o
re
 e
n
tr
e
p
re
n
e
u
ri
a
l 
a
n
d
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
 m
o
re
 i
n
c
o
m
e
. 

  P
h
a
s
e
 3
: 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 
re
s
e
a
rc
h
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
t 
th
e
 f
o
rm

a
ti
v
e
 s
ta
g
e
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm

 t
h
e
 K
e
y
 P
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
s
s
e
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 
 

 

•
 
D
u
ri
n
g
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 A
g
ile
 W
o
rk
in
g
 S
u
rv
e
y
; 
M
e
 &
 M
y
 W
o
rk
p
la
c
e
 Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
a
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 a
ll 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 o
f 
B
a
rn
e
t,
 C
S
G
 a
n
d
 R
e
 t
o
 

g
a
th
e
r 
d
e
ta
ils
 o
n
 p
e
o
p
le
s
 w
o
rk
in
g
 p
a
tt
e
rn
s
 w
h
ic
h
 i
n
fo
rm
e
d
 t
h
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
c
iv
ic
 b
u
ild
in
g
s
. 
  
 

•
 
D
u
ri
n
g
 M
a
rc
h
 a
n
d
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 h
e
ld
 w
it
h
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 a
s
c
e
rt
a
in
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
s
h
a
re
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
e
t 
u
ti
lis
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

•
 
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
4
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
n
d
 p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 a
t 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 T
o
g
e
th
e
r 
N
e
tw
o
rk
 e
v
e
n
t.
 

 P
h
a
s
e
 4
:
 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
 f
in
a
l 
d
e
s
ig
n
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 f
in
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 t
h
a
t 

c
a
n
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 B
a
rn
e
t’
s
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 u
s
e
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
?
 

 •
 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 A
s
s
e
t,
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 G
ro
w
th
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
4
. 
D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 

p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 a
g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
r 
th
is
 c
o
m
m
it
te
e
. 
N
o
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 o
r 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 o
n
 t
h
is
 i
te
m
. 
  

 P
h
a
s
e
 5
:
 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
 f
in
a
l 
d
e
s
ig
n
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 f
in
a
l 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
 t
o
 b
e
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
, 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
L
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 a
n
d
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 c
o
m
m
it
te
e
  

 •
 
R
e
s
id
e
n
t 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
: 

 
O
p
e
n
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 

T
h
e
 o
p
e
n
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 r
u
n
 f
o
r 
fi
v
e
 w
e
e
k
s
. 

•
 

S
u
rv
e
y
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rs
 a
s
 b
e
lo
w
; 

�
 
O
n
lin
e
  
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 h
tt
p
:/
/e
n
g
a
g
e
.b
a
rn
e
t.
g
o
v
.u
k
. 
 

�
 
C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
v
it
e
d
 o
n
 S
A
M
P
..
  

�
 
O
n
e
 t
o
 o
n
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t.
 

   

55



 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
, 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 

 

56



 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
, 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 

L
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

T
h
is
 p
la
n
 r
e
fe
rs
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
le
v
e
ls
 o
f 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
s
 o
u
tl
in
e
d
 i
n
 L
B
B
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 c
le
a
rl
y
 

d
e
fi
n
e
 t
h
e
 v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
 

In
s
ig
h
t 

U
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 b
e
tt
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
s
, 
v
ie
w
s
, 
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 o
f 
o
u
r 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 u
s
in
g
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 d
a
ta
 

In
fo
rm
  

A
s
 a
n
 o
p
e
n
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ro
v
id
e
 b
a
la
n
c
e
d
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a
s
s
is
t 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 a
b
o
u
t 
s
o
m
e
th
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
is
 g
o
in
g
 t
o
 h
a
p
p
e
n
 o
r 
h
a
s
 

h
a
p
p
e
n
e
d
. 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
 

C
a
p
tu
re
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
’ 
a
n
d
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
’ 
v
ie
w
s
 o
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 o
f 
re
le
v
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
m
. 
G
iv
e
 a
n
 e
x
te
n
s
iv
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
ir
 s
a
y
  

In
v
o
lv
e
  

In
v
o
lv
e
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
/s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
 t
e
s
ti
n
g
, 
d
e
s
ig
n
in
g
, 
a
n
d
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
n
g
 w
h
a
t 
w
e
 d
o
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 a
n
d
 a
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 

u
n
d
e
rs
to
o
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
in
g
. 

E
m
p
o
w
e
r 
 

E
m
p
o
w
e
r 
p
u
b
lic
/s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
-d
e
s
ig
n
, 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
, 
m
a
n
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
W
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
to
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 

o
f 
a
ll 
is
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
re
s
ts
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 o
u
t 
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
s
 a
n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 p
re
fe
rr
e
d
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
s
. 

57



 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
, 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 
re
s
e
a
rc
h
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t:
  

P
h

a
s

e
 1

: 
  

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
  

a
n

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

  
u

s
e

rs
 a
t 
th
e
 f
o
rm
a
ti
v
e
 s
ta
g
e
 (
O
c
to
b
e
r 
  

L
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

E
n
g
a
g
e
-

m
e
n
t 
 

S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

S
p
e
c
if
ic
 

G
ro
u
p
 

M
e
th
o
d
 

O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
/ 
K
e
y
 l
in
e
 o
f 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
in
g
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
/ 

e
v
e
n
ts
 d
a
te
s
  

O
ff
ic
e
r 
L
e
a
d
 

In
fo

rm
 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

 
In

v
o

lv
e

  

R
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 

  S
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 

 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

C
it
iz
e
n
 P
a
n
e
l 
 

 P
ro
te
c
te
d
 

c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
s
 

 S
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

 H
ig
h
 S
tr
e
e
t 

tr
a
d
e
rs
  
 

N
o
n
 H
ig
h
 

s
tr
e
e
t 
 
 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu
e
n
c
y
 a
re
a
 b
a
s
e
d
 

w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 x
3
 

 F
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 x
3
 

     F
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 x
1
0
  

   F
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 x
1
 

  F
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 x
1
 

  •
 
T
o
 c
a
p
tu
re
 w
h
a
t 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 

v
a
lu
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 a
n
d
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

  

 O
c
t 
2
0
1
3
 –
 J
a
n
 

1
4
 

 R
o
s
ie
 

E
v
a
n
g
e
lo
u
 

     

58



 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
, 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 

P
h

a
s

e
 2

 :
 C
a
ll
 f
o
r 
E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

L
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

E
n
g
a
g
e
-

m
e
n
t 
 

S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

S
p
e
c
if
ic
 

G
ro
u
p
 

M
e
th
o
d
 

O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
/ 
K
e
y
 l
in
e
 o
f 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
in
g
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
/ 

e
v
e
n
ts
 d
a
te
s
  

O
ff
ic
e
r 
L
e
a
d
 

In
fo

rm
 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

 
In

v
o

lv
e

  

R
e
s
id
e
n
ts
’ 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

A
ll

 
s

ta
k

e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 
S
p
e
c
ia
lly
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 O
P
M
 

W
e
b
s
it
e
, 
V
id
e
o
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
o
lic
y
 

c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
s
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 

d
e
c
a
d
e
. 
 

 
A
p
ri
l 
- 
J
u
n
e
 

R
o

s
ie

 

E
v

a
n

g
e

lo
u

/ 
C

h
ri

s
 P

a
lm

e
r 

 

P
h

a
s

e
 3

: 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 
re
s
e
a
rc
h
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
t 
th
e
 f
o
rm
a
ti
v
e
 s
ta
g
e
 –
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
la
n
  

 L
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

E
n
g
a
g
e
-

m
e
n
t 
 

S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

S
p
e
c
if
ic
 

G
ro
u
p
 

M
e
th
o
d
 

O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
/ 
K
e
y
 l
in
e
 o
f 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
in
g
 

C
o
n
te
n
t 

d
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

e
v
e
n
ts
 d
a
te
s
  

O
ff
ic
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 

In
s

ig
h

t 
U
s
e
rs
 o
f 
C
iv
ic
 

B
u
ild
in
g
s
  

E
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 o
f 

B
a
rn
e
t,
 C
S
G
 

a
n
d
 R
e
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 S
u
rv
e
y
; 

M
e
 &
 M

y
 

W
o
rk
p
la
c
e
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 

•
 
T
o
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 w
o
rk
in
g
 p
ro
fi
le
s
  

•
 
In
fo
rm

 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 
C
iv
ic
 

B
u
ild
in
g
s
 

•
 
E
x
p
lo
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
jo
in
t 

w
o
rk
in
g
 

 
J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

 

L
e
s
le
y
 

M
e
e
k
s
  

In
s

ig
h

t 
 

K
e
y
 S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
/ 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

•
 M

id
d
le
s
e
x
 

U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
 

•
 C

C
G
 

•
 J
o
b
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

P
lu
s
 

•
 C

o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

B
a
rn
e
t 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
n
d
 

d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 

•
 
A
s
c
e
rt
a
in
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
o
f 
s
h
a
re
d
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 
M
u
tu
a
l 
e
s
ta
te
 r
a
ti
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 
U
ti
lis
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
s
s
e
ts
 

  

 

M
a
rc
h
 –
 A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
4
 

 

 M
ik
e
 S
u
d
lo
w
 

 

59



 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
, 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 

P
h

a
s

e
 3

: 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 
re
s
e
a
rc
h
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
t 
th
e
 f
o
rm
a
ti
v
e
 s
ta
g
e
 –
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
la
n
  

 L
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

E
n
g
a
g
e
-

m
e
n
t 
 

S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

S
p
e
c
if
ic
 

G
ro
u
p
 

M
e
th
o
d
 

O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
/ 
K
e
y
 l
in
e
 o
f 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
in
g
 

C
o
n
te
n
t 

d
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

e
v
e
n
ts
 d
a
te
s
  

O
ff
ic
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 

In
fo

rm
 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

 
in

v
o

lv
e
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 G
ro
u
p
s
 

•
 T
B
D
 w
it
h
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
i

n
g
 t
e
a
m
 

B
ri
e
fi
n
g
 

P
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 

S
u
rv
e
y
 

T
o
 i
n
fo
rm

 o
f 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
, 
te
s
t 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 f
e
e
d
 i
n
to
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
S
A
M
P
 a
n
d
 C
A
S

 

 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
4
 

 

M
ik
e
 S
u
d
lo
w
/ 

E
lis
s
a
 

R
o
s
p
ig
lio
s
i,
 

 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

 
K
e
y
 l
e
a
d
in
g
 

c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
s
 i
n
 

le
is
u
re
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 

S
o
ft
 m

a
rk
e
t 

te
s
ti
n
g
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 

a
n
d
 d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 

to
 d
is
c
u
s
s
  

 

•
 
T
o
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
e
ti
te
 w
it
h
in
 

th
e
 p
ri
v
a
te
 s
e
c
to
r 
o
n
 S
p
o
rt
s
 a
n
d
 

L
e
is
u
re
 A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
. 

 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

L
e
s
le
y
 

M
e
e
k
s
 

  

P
h

a
s

e
 4

 :
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
 -
 D
e
ta
il
e
d
 d
e
s
ig
n
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 f
in
a
l 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

 L
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

E
n
g
a
g
e
-

m
e
n
t 

S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

S
p
e
c
if
ic
 

G
ro
u
p
 

M
e
th
o
d
 

O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
/ 
K
e
y
 l
in
e
 o
f 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
in
g
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
/ 

e
v
e
n
ts
 d
a
te
s
  

O
ff
ic
e
r 
L
e
a
d
 

In
fo

rm
 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

 
In

v
o

lv
e
 

R
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

U
s
e
rs
 o
f 

e
n
g
a
g
e
 

B
a
rn
e
t 
  
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
 s
p
a
c
e
, 

o
n
-l
in
e
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 

 

•
 E
n
a
b
le
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 u
s
e
rs
 o
f 
B
a
rn
e
t’
s
 

a
s
s
e
ts
 t
o
 s
h
a
p
e
 t
h
e
 f
in
a
l 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
. 
 

F
iv
e
 w
e
e
k
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

P
e
ri
o
d
 

1
3
th
 O
c
to
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 –
 1
7
th
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
4
 

R
o
s
ie
 

E
v
a
n
g
e
lo
u
 

60



 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
, 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 

In
v

o
lv

e
 

E
m

p
o

w
e

r 
U
s
e
rs
 o
f 
B
a
rn
e
t 

P
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
. 

•
 F
o
c
u
s
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

O
p
e
n
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

•E
n
a
b
le
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 u
s
e
rs
 o
f 
B
a
rn
e
t’
s
 

a
s
s
e
ts
 t
o
 s
h
a
p
e
 t
h
e
 f
in
a
l 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

1
7
th
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 

M
ik
e
 S
u
d
lo
w
 

  

P
h

a
s

e
 5

 :
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
 -
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

L
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

E
n
g
a
g
e
-

m
e
n
t 

S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

S
p
e
c
if
ic
 

G
ro
u
p
 

M
e
th
o
d
 

O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
/ 

e
v
e
n
ts
 d
a
te
s
  

O
ff
ic
e
r 
L
e
a
d
 

In
fo
rm

 
R
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

U
s
e
rs
 o
f 

B
a
rn
e
t 

p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 o
r 

th
o
s
e
 w
it
h
 a
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

in
te
re
s
t 
in
 

u
s
e
 o
f 

a
s
s
e
ts
. 

P
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
  

F
in
a
lis
e
 o
f 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 m

a
k
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

to
 i
n
te
re
s
te
d
 p
a
rt
ie
s
. 
 

 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
4
 

  

L
e
s
le
y
 M

e
e
k
s
 

In
v
o
lv
e
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
  

E
m
p
o
w
e
r 

A
ll 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

U
s
e
rs
 o
f 

B
a
rn
e
t’
s
 

a
s
s
e
ts
 

V
a
ri
o
u
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
 

lin
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 

E
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

p
a
p
e
r 
w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 a
s
s
e
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 

w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 u
n
d
e
rg
o
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

D
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

p
la
n
 

N
o
t 
a
p
p
lic
a
b
le
 

to
 t
h
e
 S
A
M
P
 

  

61



62

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Summary 

On 9 July 2014, the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee agreed that a draft of the 
Community Asset Strategy should be brought to the Committee on December 15 2014.   
 
This paper presents the objectives, aims and draft proposals for the Strategy and asks the 
Committee to agree that they should be taken forward for consultation with the public and 
engagement with key stakeholders.  This will inform the development of the full Community 
Asset Strategy, which will be brought back to the Committee in March 2015.   
 
As well as the objectives and aims of the Strategy, the proposals include a definition of the 
community estate and governance principles for the Council’s community assets. 
 
Full details of the draft proposals are set out in Appendix 1.  
 
It is proposed that consultation should take place between 19 December 2014 and 13 
February 2015.  Details of the planned consultation are set out in section 4 of this report 
and in Appendix 1.   
 

 

Recommendations  
1. That the Committee agree that the aims, objectives and draft proposals set out 
in this report, which will form the basis of the full Strategy, should be taken 

 

Assets, Regeneration and Growth 
Committee 

 

15 December 2014 
  

Title  
Community Asset Strategy – Draft 
proposals for consultation 

Report of Deputy Chief Operating Officer 

Wards All 

Status Public 

Enclosures                         Appendix 1: Community Asset Strategy: Proposals paper 
Appendix 2: List of assets in the current community portfolio 

Officer Contact Details  

Elissa Rospigliosi, Commissioning & Policy Advisor, 020 8359 
7158, elissa.rospigliosi@barnet.gov.uk  
Mike Sudlow, Property Director, Property Services, 07860 
758461, michael.sudlow@capita.co.uk 

AGENDA ITEM 8

63



forward for consultation through engagement with the public and with key 
stakeholders. 

2. That the Committee note that, following this period of consultation, a full 
version of the Strategy will be presented to the Assets, Regeneration and 
Growth Committee in March 2015. 

 
 
1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 
1.1 The Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee agreed a draft of the 

Council’s Strategic Asset Management Plan (SAMP) on 8 September 2014, 
which was taken forward for public consultation.  The SAMP contained 
principles for the governance of the Council’s estate which broke it down into 
four parts, one of which was the Council’s community estate, and set out the 
need for a Community Asset Strategy (CAS) to decide how to govern this 
most effectively.  This report presents draft proposals for this Strategy – at 
Appendix 1 – which will form the basis of the CAS. 
 

1.2 The Council recognises the social and economic contribution voluntary and 
community sector (VCS) organisations make to the Borough and the way in 
which assets can support their work, making their services more sustainable 
and able to provide better value for money in the long term.  However, part of 
the Council’s strategy for meeting the current and future financial challenges 
is to maximise the value it gains from its land and assets, by ensuring it 
receives the best possible income or receipts from council-owned properties 
and lands which generate rent or which are sold. This will help it fulfil its Duty 
of Best Value, as set out under the Local Government Act 1999.  The Council 
will therefore need to strike a balance between commercial use of its assets 
and opportunities to encourage community participation.   
 

Defining the community estate 

 

1.3 The Strategy will propose that the Council’s approach to the community estate 
should acknowledge the existing definition of community assets as assets or 
buildings which are available to VCS organisations for community use only 
and are made up, variously, of community centres and community halls; sport 
and leisure facilities, and various other types of buildings let to community 
groups, such as shops or garages.  However, it will also propose that the CAS 
contains a revised definition which takes account of the community benefit 
which is provided by the Council’s operational facilities, but focuses the CAS 
and its objectives more specifically on the areas of the estate which are likely 
to return the greatest benefit from reconsidering and strengthening the 
relationship between the community occupier and the Council. 
 

1.4 The Strategy will propose that the Council should consider the majority of its 
assets as being used for community benefit, and should seek to promote local 
priorities through their use.  However, the focus of the CAS should be on 
those assets where the Council can both give and achieve the greatest benefit 
in terms of using them to support voluntary and community groups: for 
example, community centres and halls, rather than commercial sport and 

64



leisure operators.  It should also consider the way in which operational 
buildings could potentially become part of the community estate through being 
brought forward for disposal or through co-location with voluntary or 
community groups.   
 

Further information about the proposed definition is set out at section 3 of 
Appendix 1. 
 
Objectives of the Strategy 
 

1.5 To do this, the Council proposes that the following three objectives form the 
basis for the CAS: 
 

1.5.1 To provide communities with the best possible assets to meet their local 
needs, investing in modern, flexible, functional space for residents and 
VCS groups 
 

1.5.2 To enable communities to become active and independent, and able to 
take on more responsibility for their local areas and reduce the need for 
Council services 

 

1.5.3 To rationalise the Council’s estate, without compromising these aims, to 
ensure it is being used efficiently to support the Council’s priorities and 
create the best possible value for residents.  This should include exploring 
partnership working with other public bodies, and finding opportunities to 
create ‘community hub’ facilities in which groups might be co-located. 

 
Further information about the proposed objectives is set out at section 5.1 of 
Appendix 1.  
 
Aims of the Strategy 
 

1.6 To achieve these objectives, the CAS will need to ensure the following aims 
are accomplished.  These will resolve some of the issues which have 
emerged from past engagement, particularly around the need to improve the 
quality of the estate, ensure clear rights and responsibilities, and find a fair 
and transparent funding settlement for community groups.   
 

1.6.1 The Council gets the basics right and manages community assets 
effectively.   

 
The CAS will describe how the Council currently defines community assets, 
and propose how these will be defined in the future.  It will set out plans to 
ensure that the Council has a good understanding of its current estate, 
including assessing the state of repair of its community buildings; collecting up 
to date information about how they are being used; and ensuring that there 
are clear and consistent governance arrangements in place across the estate.  
. 

 

65



1.6.2 The Council makes the most of the opportunity to use community 
assets to further the Borough’s priorities.   
 
Community assets can help VCS groups whose work supports the Council’s 
goals, whether directly through the services they provide or through the way in 
which they provide them – for example, by recruiting volunteers or 
apprentices.  The CAS will set out some ways in which the Council can 
promote local priorities through the way in which its assets are used, by 
choosing which groups it will use the estate to support and by asking for some 
support in return.   

 
1.6.3 The Council communicates clearly with residents and community 

groups about what they can expect from it in relation to community 
assets.   
 
The CAS will set out the principles by which the Council will engage with and 
support community groups, including the relationship between their work and 
our corporate priorities and any contributions we expect in return for our 
support.  It will also set out the various routes by which residents and 
communities are able to engage with the Council around the use of assets – 
for example, the Community Right to Bid and Community Asset Transfer – 
and clarify what they can expect under each one. 
 
Further information about these proposed aims is set out at section 5.2 of 
Appendix 1. 

 
 Governance principles for community assets 
 
1.7 The CAS will aim to ensure that the Council’s community estate is governed 

according to clear, consistent principles.  Historically, the portfolio has been 
administered on a case by case basis which has made it responsive to the 
needs of individual groups but which has made it difficult to implement a 
consistent approach or to ensure fair, common treatment for different groups.  
The CAS will contain a series of principles which will aim to ensure that the 
Council can realise its objectives with regard to the community estate, as well 
as fair and consistent treatment for all community groups using Council 
assets. 

 
1.8 The principles relate to: 
 

• How the Council will consider the relationship between financial value 
obtained from the community estate and the social or community benefit 
delivered by its occupiers 

• The Council’s approach to the rent charged on community properties 

• The Council’s approach to lease and license arrangements 

• The Council’s approach to ownership and occupancy, including the 
potential for co-location, shared use, and community hubs. 

 
1.9 In particular, the CAS will set out the Council’s policy on lease, rental and 

maintenance arrangements in a clear and transparent way, which makes the 

66



relative rights and responsibilities of Council and occupier clear and easy to 
understand for those using Council assets.   

 
1.10 The proposed principles for governance of the community estate are set out in 

section 6 of Appendix 1. 
 
 Community ownership, ‘community rights’ and expectations 
 
1.11 A number of routes by which communities can take control or ownership of 

local assets have arisen through recent legislation.  These have given local 
groups opportunities for empowerment but the proliferation of ‘community 
rights’ and other engagement routes can also be confusing for communities, 
in terms of what they can expect from the Council under each route and which 
is most likely to help them achieve their goals in relation to assets. 

 
1.12 The CAS will therefore include guidance in relation to these different 

engagement route and initial proposals for what communities should expect 
from the Council under each one are set out in section 7 of Appendix 1. 

 
1.13 In particular, it will propose that the Council should explore local 

arrangements for owning or managing assets where this is appropriate or can 
add benefits.  For example, local management of a community hall or leisure 
centre may be more effective than for it to be run centrally by the Council, as 
a local organisation may be in a better position to understand local need and 
can gain extra motivation from the direct benefit which comes to their 
community.  In such circumstances, Community Asset Transfer may be 
considered as an option. 

 
1.14 Community Asset Transfer is a process through which a public body can 

proactively and voluntarily choose to transfer the ownership or management 
of one or more of its assets to a community organisation, often at less than 
market rates.  The CAS will propose that in Barnet this should be considered 
most favourably where ownership or management of an asset would help a 
community group deliver services currently provided by the Council, or would 
reduce demand on Council services.  More information about Community 
Asset Transfer is included in section 7.1 of Appendix 1. 

 
1.15 Finally, it is proposed that the CAS should set out clear and consistent criteria 

under which it will support voluntary or community groups using its community 
assets.  

  
 These criteria are proposed in section 8 of Appendix 1.  They are broken 

down under three areas:  
 

• Criteria relating to the type of service the group or organisation provides 

• Criteria relating to the extent to which the organisation and its use of the 
asset supports community participation and involvement 

• Criteria relating to the robustness and sustainability of the organisation. 
 

67



1.16 The Community Asset Strategy has the potential to improve the relationship 
between the Council and the community and to support an increasingly strong 
and vibrant voluntary and community sector.  It will therefore be important to 
ensure robust consultation and engagement with key stakeholders as well as 
with the general public.  Section 4 of this report sets out the plan for 
consultation on these proposals. 

 
2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
2.1 This report and its appendix set out objectives, aims and proposals which will 

form the basis of the full CAS.  This will be brought back to the Assets, 
Regeneration and Growth Committee for consideration in March 2015.   
 

2.2 The paper recommends that these proposals are taken forward for 
consultation at this stage to allow them to be shaped at the same time as a 
more detailed evidence base is developed on their costs and benefits.  This 
evidence base, along with feedback and engagement with key stakeholders, 
will underpin and strengthen the development of the full Strategy. 
 

2.3 Robust consultation and engagement will also help to develop the Strategy in 
partnership with the community, ensuring that the proposals fit local need. 
 

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 

3.1 The Council could decide to continue to manage its community assets on an 
ad hoc basis, but this would run the risk of not making best use of community 
property to achieve the Borough’s priorities. 
 

3.2 The Council could choose to take these proposals forward as the final 
proposed draft of the Strategy but this would run the risk of not making best 
use of engagement, and local data about community need and the value of 
the proposals. 
 

4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

4.1 If the recommendations are approved by the Committee, the next steps will be 
a full public consultation on the draft proposals, to take place between 19 
December 2014 and 13 February 2015.  This will include: 
 

4.2 A survey for the general public relating to the draft proposals approved by the 
Committee.  This will include consultation on: 

 

• The definition of community buildings  

• The objectives and aims of the Strategy 

• The principles for the governance of community assets 

• The proposed respective rights and responsibilities for the Council and 
users of the community estate 

• The proposed policy for community asset transfer 

• The proposed criteria by which the Council will offer support to voluntary 
and community groups. 

68



 
4.3 Targeted surveys for VCS groups, both occupiers and non-occupiers of 

Barnet community properties, including consultation on the issues above. 
 

4.4 Targeted stakeholder workshops, one in each constituency area, with 
residents, VCS groups, both occupiers and non-occupiers of Barnet 
community properties, and Members. These workshops will consider, in 
addition to the above issues: 

 

• lessons to be learned from the current use of the estate 

• lessons to be learned from the current use of other community buildings in 
the Borough 

• the accuracy of the current list of community assets, reviewing it and 
identifying any missing assets which should be included 

• any issues about how the proposed balance of responsibilities will work in 
practice 

 
Both the targeted surveys and stakeholder workshops will also ask 
respondents to give their views on the future of specific assets, such as which 
assets they think have potential for development into community hubs, 
including opportunities for co-location with public or commercial organisations.  
Respondents will also be asked to feed in on where they see opportunities for 
communities to become more involved in delivering public services in 
exchange for transfer of the management or ownership of an asset. 
 

4.5 Interviews with local partners including Barnet Clinical Commissioning 
Group, Middlesex University, JobCentre Plus, Groundwork London, and 
Community Barnet, as well as engagement with neighbouring authorities, to 
identify, in addition to the above, any opportunities for joint working and 
potential co-location. 

 
4.6 Targeted engagement with other VCS stakeholders, including London 

Funders, to understand how assets feature in their decisions about how they 
choose to support community groups. 

 
4.7 Work with CommUNITY Barnet to ensure our engagement with VCS groups 

is robust and representative and to engage on our behalf, using their local 
networks, to ensure the CAS is well-informed about the needs of the sector. 

 
4.8 The development of this paper has been accompanied by a review of the 

evidence available on the current community asset base and on the likely 
level of need for community facilities in Barnet.  This review will continue in 
parallel with the consultation process, to underpin the development of the full 
Strategy. 

69



 
4.9 The evidence base and findings from consultation will inform the full Strategy, 

which will be presented to the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee 
on March 16 2015. 
 

5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 

5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
 

5.1.1 The Corporate Plan 2013 – 2016 includes objectives to “promote responsible 
growth, development and success across the Borough” and to “improve the 
satisfaction of residents and businesses with the London Borough of Barnet 
as a place to live, work and study”. 
 

5.1.2 Relevant outcomes are “to maintain the right environment for a strong and 
diverse local economy” and “to promote family and community well-being and 
encourage engaged, cohesive and safe communities”. 
 

5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 
Property, Sustainability) 
 

5.2.1 The recommendations to take these draft proposals forward for consultation 
while at the same time developing a more detailed evidence base are 
designed to ensure that the Council is able to undertake a more detailed 
assessment of the resources likely to be required to implement the Strategy. 
 

5.2.2 The proposals are designed to allow the Council to realise both financial and 
social/community value from its community estate, in recognition that the long-
term benefits of having stronger, more resilient communities also helps the 
Borough to meet current and future financial challenges. 
 

5.2.3 The consultation will be resourced through the existing contractual 
commitment with CSG. 
 

5.3 Legal and Constitutional References 
 

5.3.1 Council Constitution, Responsibility for Functions, Annex A – sets out the 
terms of reference for the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee which 
includes: 

• Develop strategies which maximise the financial opportunities of growth;  

• Asset Management – all matters relating to land and buildings owned, 
rented or proposed to be acquired or disposed of by the Council; and 

• To approve any non-statutory plan or strategy within the remit of the 
Committee that is not reserved to Full Council or Policy and Resources. 

 
5.4 Risk Management 

 
5.4.1 There is a risk that, if these proposals are not taken forward for consultation at 

this stage, the Strategy will be developed without sufficient evidence to 
correctly respond to community need. 

70



 
5.4.2 There is a risk that, if the Council does not further develop its evidence base 

for this draft Strategy, it will not be possible to come to an accurate 
assessment of the costs and benefits of the proposed course of action.   
 

5.4.3 The combined consultation and evidence base development period to March 
is designed to mitigate the above risks. 
 

5.4.4 There is a risk that the delay to the final Strategy may have negative 
consequences for the Council’s relationship with local voluntary and 
community groups who are keen to engage on the subject of asset use and 
ownership.  Careful engagement with groups likely to be affected has been 
planned into the consultation plan to mitigate the impact of this delay and to 
maintain a positive relationship with them. 
 

5.5 Equalities and Diversity  
 

5.5.1 The Equality Act 2010, and the Public Sector Equalities Duty outlined at 
section 149 of the Act, require the council and all other organisations 
exercising public functions on its behalf to pay due regard to the need to 
eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that 
is prohibited by or under the Act; advance equality of opportunity between 
those with a protected characteristic and those without; and to promote good 
relations between those with a protected characteristic and those without.  
The relevant protected characteristics are age, disability, gender 
reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual 
orientation. The Act also covers marriage and civil partnership with regard to 
eliminating discrimination. 
 

The Community Asset Strategy will reflect the requirements of the PSED and 
the objectives of the council’s equal opportunities policy.  In particular it will: 
 

• Aim to ensure that that the management and use of community assets 
reflect the needs and aspirations of the diversity of Barnet and are used for 
the benefit of the whole community 

• Aim to promote active engagement with all Barnet’s diverse communities 

• Pay due regard to cultural and religious difference where locations/facilities 
are shared by different members of the community  

• Build on community strengths to promote strong, cohesive communities 
and local resilience. 
 

5.5.2 An Equalities Impact assessment will be carried out as part of the process of 
drafting the full CAS, to assist the council in meeting the requirements of the 
Public Sector Equalities Duty.  
 

5.5.3 The Council will ensure that the consultation and engagement process for the 
Strategy is accessible to all and engages with a wide variety of voluntary and 
community groups. 
 

5.5.4 The policy proposals set out in the Strategy are designed to ensure fair and 

71



equitable treatment of all Barnet’s communities in relation to their access to 
community assets. 
 

5.6 Consultation and Engagement 
 

5.6.1 This report and the proposals for the CAS draw on past consultation and 
engagement, which was carried out as set out in section 4 of Appendix 1. 
 

5.6.2 Future consultation and engagement will be carried out as set out in section 4 
of this report, above. 
 

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

6.1 Approval of the draft Strategic Asset Management Plan, Assets, Regeneration 
and Growth Committee, 8 September 2014 
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=696&MId=7885&V
er=4 

 
 
 

 
 

72



 

1 
 

Appendix 1 

 

Barnet Council  

Community Asset Strategy 

Proposals paper 

December 2014 

 

CONTENTS 

 

1. Introduction. .. 2 

2. Context 2 

3. Defining the community estate 3 

4. Themes from past engagement..... 5 

5. Objectives and aims..... 8 

6. Governance principles for community assets.. 9 

7. Community asset transfer and other community rights.. 15 

8. Supporting community groups 17 

9. Summary and next steps..... 19 

 

  

73



 

2 
 

1. Introduction  

Over the past two years, the Council has changed the way it administers its assets 

and now aims to take a strategic overview of its entire estate.  This led to the 

development of the Council’s Strategic Asset Management Plan (SAMP), which was 

brought to the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee in September 2014 and 

taken forward for public consultation. 

One of the four elements of the SAMP deals with how the Council manages its 

community estate and how it intends to proceed with the development of a 

Community Asset Strategy (CAS).  The aim described for this Strategy in the SAMP 

is to ‘set out an approach to managing those assets which are available to the 

community for their sole use’. 

The SAMP acknowledges that the Council will aim to support voluntary and 

community organisations as best it can, making use of its community properties to 

do this, while also seeking to ensure that it retains best value from the estate, as 

required of it under the Duty of Best Value placed on it by the Local Government Act 

1999. 

The Council also needs to ensure that the community estate is fit for purpose, 

maintained to a good standard, and flexible enough to meet the needs of local 

communities. 

This paper sets out the aims, objectives and draft proposals which will form the basis 

of the full Community Asset Strategy, to be further developed and brought back to 

the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee in March 2015.   The paper 

proposes that these aims, objectives and principles are now taken forward for public 

consultation to inform the development of the full Strategy, as set out in Section 9, 

Conclusions and next steps, below. 

The development of this paper has been accompanied by a review of the evidence 

available on the current community asset base and on the likely level of need for 

community facilities in Barnet.  This review will continue in parallel with the 

consultation process, to underpin the development of the full Strategy. 

 

2. Context 

2.1  Supporting Barnet’s communities 

The Council recognises the social and economic contribution voluntary and 

community sector (VCS) organisations make to the Borough and the way in which 

assets can support their work, making their services more sustainable and able to 

provide better value for money in the long term.   

74



 

3 
 

Increasing financial constraints mean that the Council faces a significant budget gap 

of £73.5m over the period 2016/17 to 2019/20.  This is driven by further reductions in 

government spending and increased pressure on local services as the population 

grows and changes.   

In order to meet this gap the Council will need to look across all service areas to find 

ways to deliver its functions more efficiently and safeguard services for the 

vulnerable.  Part of the Council’s strategy for meeting these challenges is to 

maximise the value it gains from its land and assets, by ensuring it receives the best 

possible income or receipts from council-owned properties and lands which generate 

rent or are sold.   

2.2 Benefits of voluntary and community activity 

VCS activity has a number of benefits which can also help the Council meet the 

financial challenge:  

• more sustainable voluntary and community sector services are better able to 

meet need and as a result reduce demand on Council services 

• strong, cohesive communities are more resilient, which also reduces demand 

on public services 

• community ownership and management of some assets can improve the way 

they are run, making them more responsive to local need   

• assets can be a way to develop stronger partnerships between the Council 

and communities. 

2.3 Working in partnership and striking the right balance 

The Council will therefore need to strike a balance between commercial use of its 

assets and opportunities to encourage community participation.   

To work effectively in partnership with the community, the Council will need to be 

clear about what VCS groups can expect from it: the extent to which the Council will 

be able to support them and what it is likely to expect in exchange.   

Underpinning this, the Council will need a clear understanding of the value it gains 

by supporting community groups and how this balances against the resources it 

invests in doing so.   

 

3. Defining the community estate 

3.1 Defining a ‘community asset’ 

‘Community asset’ is a term used in a variety of ways, from the very narrow – in 

which only land and buildings owned or managed by community organisations and 

where profit is invested back into the community are considered community assets – 

75



 

4 
 

to the very broad – in which any public sector asset is considered a community asset 

because its use is for the benefit of the community.    

Under the Council’s current approach, community assets have been defined as 

assets or buildings which are available to VCS organisations for community use only.  

This means that buildings from which Council services are provided, such as 

libraries, leisure centres, offices or parks, are not considered ‘community assets’, 

and also excludes operational buildings which are partly occupied by a Council 

service, because they do not meet this definition.  This paper proposes that the CAS 

contains a revised definition which takes account of the community benefit which is 

provided by the Council’s operational facilities, but also focuses the CAS and its 

objectives more specifically on the areas of the estate which are likely to return the 

greatest benefit from reconsidering and strengthening the relationship between the 

community occupier and the Council.  

3.2 The current portfolio 

Under the Council’s current definition, the following types of property are considered 

community assets: 

• Community centres and community halls, some let on a standard lease and 

some on a long lease.  In the latter, the Council usually receives a ground rent 

and has little involvement with the building once the lease is granted. 

• Sport and leisure facilities, some of which are let to community sports or 

leisure clubs (including all-weather pitches) and some to commercial sport 

and leisure operators (such as commercial gyms) 

• Various other types of buildings let to community groups, such as shops, 

garages, and all buildings in parks.   

 

This paper proposes that the Council amends this definition as set out in 3.3 below.   

3.3 Proposed approach to community assets and the operational estate 

The Council should consider the majority of its assets as being used for community 

benefit, and should seek to promote local priorities through their use.  However, the 

focus of the CAS should be on those assets where the Council can both give and 

achieve the greatest benefit in terms of using them to support voluntary and 

community groups: for example, community centres and halls, rather than 

commercial sport and leisure operators. 

The Council’s operational buildings – buildings from which it provides services or 

support for services – are governed according to the individual strategies for that 

service area and are not subject to the principles and conditions set out in the CAS.  

This is because their primary purpose is not to facilitate occupancy by voluntary or 

community groups, which is the focus of the CAS.  However, there may be 

76



 

5 
 

circumstances in which particular assets or buildings which are currently operational 

could become part of the community estate.   

In some cases, an asset may become surplus to the requirements of the service and 

the Council may look to dispose of it or put it to another use.  In such circumstances 

the asset could potentially be made available for community use. 

In other cases, it is possible that a service might be co-located in a building with 

voluntary or community groups or other parties, either by making use of some of the 

space in a new building or by reducing use of an existing building, allowing other 

tenants to move in.  Certain services are more likely to be well-suited to this 

approach than others.  It is proposed that the following services would be most 

suitable: 

• services where community participation, volunteering, and co-production with 

community members are seen as significant opportunities, such as children’s 

centres or libraries 

• projects which benefit from opportunities to integrate different services around 

a particular place or community.  An example of such a project might be a 

training scheme giving young people catering skills, in which part of their 

training involves running a lunch club for older residents.   

• services which are developing a commissioning model which focuses on 

community activity. 

Some buildings currently leased by the Council for commercial purposes also have 

the potential to move in and out of the community estate – for example, shops which 

fall into disuse could be taken over by a community occupier.  There is also the 

potential for mixed-use developments which co-locate commercial and community 

occupiers through, for example, Section 106 or CIL arrangements.   

The CAS will therefore also consider the potential benefits which can be derived 

from the relationship between the community estate and asset use by other Council 

public sector, or commercial occupiers.   

These issues will be further explored and developed into firm proposals to underpin 

the development of the final CAS, for consideration by the Committee in March 2015.  

This paper proposes that the revisions to the definition of community assets, as set 

out above, are now taken forward for public consultation. 

 

4. Themes from past engagement 

4.1 Past community engagement 

The Council has undertaken a number of engagement exercises around community 

assets.  The themes set out below have been drawn from formal and informal 

77



 

6 
 

consultations and needs assessments carried out between 2009 and 2013, either 

directly by the Council or in partnership with the Local Infrastructure Organisation, 

CommUNITY Barnet.  They include:  

• A general survey about civil society and community activism carried out by 

CommUNITY Barnet in 2009 

• A qualitative needs assessment study carried out in partnership between 

CommUNITY Barnet and the Council in 2010 

• A programme of work reviewing compliance issues across the estate, carried 

out in partnership between CommUNITY Barnet and the Council in 2012 

• A stakeholder engagement meeting convened by the Council in 2013 

• Findings from other, related, consultation exercises such as the Council’s 

engagement around its Priorities and Spending Review in 2013 and 2014 

• A series of informal interviews with a range of voluntary and community 

groups with different asset needs, carried out in October and November 2014. 

4.2 Issues emerging from past engagement 

The quality and current use of the estate 

Past engagement suggests that the buildings which make up the community estate 

may not always be best suited to the needs of the groups using them.  Some have 

been purpose-built for particular groups, which restricts the opportunity for further 

letting.  Some may have inadequate parking and due to their age do not incorporate 

energy efficiency measures to address their running costs as well as their carbon 

footprint.  They are sometimes not easily accessible by public transport, and in a 

number of cases are not even visible to passing traffic restricting knowledge of the 

facility and their potential market for hiring.  Space may not be set up to be flexible 

and buildings often lack storage, limiting the range of possible uses.   

There is also no established or agreed method to make sure we are getting the most 

out of community buildings by maximising the time for which they are being used.  

Where this involves use by more than one group, we have no current method of 

ensuring like-minded groups are able to share a building.   

The CAS will therefore explore how the Council can ensure the community estate is 

made up of better buildings, and facilitate co-location between like-minded groups. 

The best way to meet rights and responsibilities 

There has been some confusion surrounding what rights residents’ and community 

groups have in relation to assets, including how best to engage with the Council.  For 

example, the Community Right to Bid has sometimes been used as a way for 

communities to approach the Council about a potential asset transfer opportunity, 

which is a poor use of resources for both parties.  Through the CAS, we will seek to 

78



 

7 
 

clarify the various engagement routes and what community groups are likely to be 

able to expect from the Council under each one. 

In the past there has not been a formal approach to understanding how much 

capacity community occupiers have to meet their obligations under individual leases.  

Responsibility for maintenance and compliance has been devolved to community 

occupiers without establishing a clear balance between the best way to manage and 

maintain the property and the main purpose of the occupier’s work.  This could in 

some cases mean that the services delivered by the community group suffer 

because some of their resources are diverted to maintaining the building.  Through 

the CAS, we will seek to ensure that maintenance of the community estate is 

provided in a way appropriate to the needs of each community group. 

Being fair in relation to funding 

Some community groups have many fundraising routes available to them, and are 

able to use this purchasing power to take control of assets.  A grant funding or 

subsidy method needs to be developed for use, in appropriate circumstances, to 

make sure that other groups do not miss out.  The CAS will set out the Council’s 

approach to rental arrangements with community groups and its approach to 

subsidies and support. 

The relationship with growth and development 

Stakeholder engagement has highlighted the opportunities the Council has to 

maximise rental income across the estate, as well as to promote growth and 

regeneration.  As part of this, the Council will need to try and identify potential sites 

for disposal in order to promote growth.  Growth and regeneration will also provide 

more opportunities for new community buildings, through the use of Section 106 

monies and the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL), for example.  The CAS will set 

out the relationship between these drivers and the management of the community 

estate. 

Working in partnership with other public sector organisations 

The Council should consider how it factors in provision by neighbouring authorities 

and other public bodies including, potentially, sharing community facilities across 

local authority boundaries where this may be appropriate for particular areas.  This 

will be taken into account in the implementation and delivery of the CAS. 

 

  

79



 

8 
 

5. Objectives and aims 

5.1 Objectives of the Strategy 

The following three objectives are proposed for the CAS.  These have been 

developed by considering the current context, including the need to promote 

community activity in a time of financial austerity. 

5.1.1 To provide communities with the best possible assets to meet their local 

needs, investing in modern, flexible, functional space for residents and 

VCS groups 

 

5.1.2 To enable communities to become active and independent, and able to 

take on more responsibility for their local areas and reduce the need for 

Council services 

 

5.1.3 To rationalise the Council’s estate, without compromising these aims, to 

ensure it is being used efficiently to support the Council’s priorities and 

create the best possible value for residents.  This should include exploring 

partnership working with other public bodies, and finding opportunities to 

create ‘community hub’ facilities in which groups might be co-located. 

This paper proposes that these objectives should form the basis for the CAS and 

should now be taken forward for consultation. 

5.2 Aims of the Strategy 

To achieve these objectives, the CAS will need to ensure the following aims are 

accomplished.  These will resolve some of the issues which have emerged from past 

engagement, particularly around the need to improve the quality of the estate, 

ensure clear rights and responsibilities, and find a fair and transparent funding 

settlement for community groups.   

5.2.1 The Council gets the basics right and manages community assets 

effectively.   

The CAS will describe how the Council currently defines community assets, and 

propose how these will be defined in the future.  It will set out plans to ensure that 

the Council has a good understanding of its current estate, including assessing the 

state of repair of its community buildings; collecting up to date information about how 

they are being used; and ensuring that there are clear and consistent governance 

arrangements in place across the estate, including its approach to ensuring 

compliance with lease obligations.   

Section 3 of this paper presents the Council’s current definition of community assets 

and proposals for those which should form the core of the Strategy’s scope as it is 

developed further. 

80



 

9 
 

5.2.2 The Council makes the most of the opportunity to use community 

assets to further the Borough’s priorities.   

Community assets can help VCS groups whose work supports the Council’s goals, 

whether directly through the services they provide or through the way in which they 

provide them – for example, by recruiting volunteers or apprentices.  The CAS will 

set out ways in which the Council can promote local priorities through the way in 

which its assets are used, by choosing which groups it will use the estate to support 

and by asking for some support in return – for example, through lease or rental 

obligations.   

Section 8 of this paper sets out proposals for the principles the Council should use 

when deciding which groups should be supported through the use of its portfolio. 

5.2.3 The Council communicates clearly with residents and community 

groups about what they can expect from it in relation to community 

assets.   

The CAS will set out the principles by which the Council will engage with and support 

community groups, including the relationship between their work and our corporate 

priorities and any contributions we expect in return for our support.  It will also set out 

the various routes by which residents and communities are able to engage with the 

Council around the use of assets – for example, the Community Right to Bid and 

Community Asset Transfer – and clarify what they can expect under each one. 

Section 6 of this paper sets out the proposed principles by which the Council will 

govern its community assets.  Section 7 sets out some initial policy with regard to 

Community Asset Transfer.   

This paper proposes that the CAS should seek to achieve these aims and that they 

should now be taken forward for further development and consultation. 

 

6. Governance principles for community assets 

The CAS will aim to ensure that the Council’s community estate is governed 

according to clear, consistent principles.  Historically, the portfolio has been 

administered on a case by case basis which has made it responsive to the needs of 

individual groups but which has made it difficult to implement a consistent approach 

or to ensure fair, common treatment for different groups.  The principles set out 

below aim to ensure that the Council will be able to realise its objectives with regard 

to the community estate as well as fair and consistent treatment for all community 

groups using Council assets.   

This paper proposes that these governance principles are put forward for 

consultation with the public and further developed into a series of more detailed 

81



 

10 
 

proposals for consideration, as part of the final version of the CAS, by the Assets, 

Regeneration and Growth Committee in March 2015.   

The principles relate to: 

• How the Council will consider the relationship between financial value 

obtained from the community estate and the social or community benefit 

delivered by its occupiers 

• The Council’s approach to the rent charged on community properties 

• The Council’s approach to lease and licence arrangements 

• The Council’s approach to ownership and occupancy. 

6.1 Community benefit and financial value 

• The Council will seek to agree a level of social or community benefit to be 

delivered by organisations making use of its assets, including:the provision of 

additional activities or opportunities such as volunteering or apprenticeships in 

delivering services 

• coordination with other Council strategies or with plans for particular localities or 

communities 

• full utilisation of the building as far as is practicable. 

The Council will also seek to ensure that community properties are financially 

sustainable and deliver value for money for Barnet’s residents and for their 

occupants. 

Rental value and proposals for subsidy 

It is proposed that to implement these aims, the Council adopts a standard policy in 

which the rental value of each of its community buildings is assessed on the basis of 

full market rental value for community use.  Where the occupier is deemed to be 

contributing to local priorities and fulfilling other criteria for support, the Council may 

choose to grant financial assistance to provide support (through an agreement with 

the occupier), at a level which reflects the community benefit the organisation is 

providing. 

The benefits of this approach are that it  

• Allows a clear assessment of the value of the support the Council is offering 

the occupier, without this affecting the investment value of the asset   

• Allows the level of support to be set in relation to the benefit provided by the 

organisation 

• Enables asset-related support to be weighed up against other kinds of support 

being offered to community groups 

82



 

11 
 

• Allows the Council to support community groups to become more 

independent and resilient by encouraging them to move towards meeting the 

rental obligations themselves through a phased withdrawal of the subsidy. 

These arrangements will allow the Council to reflect the community benefit 

provided by the occupier in the support it gives to the group. 

6.2 Co-location, shared use and community hubs 

In order to use the estate as efficiently as it can, wherever possible the Council will 

promote flexible shared-use community facilities.  Unless there are clear reasons 

that this policy should not apply (such as safeguarding concerns), no community 

organisation should have exclusive use of a community building without explicit 

consent. 

In some cases, the Council may consider establishing a community hub.  Community 

hub is a term used in different ways in different areas, but usually refers to a location 

where a number of different organisations with a social or community focus work in 

close proximity to each other.  Some community hubs contain a mixture of any of the 

following: VCS groups, public services, social enterprises and small and medium 

enterprises (SMEs).   

Some community hubs are set up within a single building, while others may be a way 

of bringing together a network of complementary buildings or assets based near to 

one another in an area.  A hub can be managed by a VCS group, by a social 

enterprise or community interest company, or by the Council. 

Community hubs are seen to enable better coordination and cooperation between 

organisations.  Organisations are more able to work together to design integrated 

services which can in turn address a wide range of community needs.  Having a 

range of tenants can also build stronger local links between VCS activity, 

volunteering, and business or enterprise. 

Community hubs also offer opportunities to use the public sector estate more 

efficiently.  By co-locating groups currently based in different buildings, councils can 

rationalise the remaining community estate.  Any capital or revenue receipts can be 

re-invested in Council buildings and/or services, including the retained community 

estate.  This investment potentially creates higher quality facilities for community 

groups.   

As well as encouraging voluntary and community groups to co-locate in existing 

community buildings, the Council will explore the possibility of investing in a number 

of community hubs across the Borough.  These would be brought up to a high 

standard of repair and configured to be fit for purpose for use by multiple community 

groups.  These might be managed and maintained by the Council or by a lead 

community organisation which would take on responsibility for repairs and 

maintenance and for the day to day running of the facility.   

83



 

12 
 

Criteria for successful community hubs 

Certain conditions will make a hub more feasible in some areas than in others.  As 

the Council needs to prioritise its investment and look for the opportunities which 

have the greatest potential for success, the following criteria are proposed to help 

the Council consider how viable a possible hub might be, focusing on its location, the 

opportunities it provides, its financial sustainability, and whether capacity exists in 

the local community to run a hub. 

Proposed location of the hub 

• Would it support a logical distribution of hubs across the Borough? 

• Is it accessible?  Does it have good public transport links?  Could it have 

access to parking for older people, disabled people, or people with young 

children? 

• Is the proposed location in an area with demonstrable demand for premises or 

for services of the types proposed? 

New opportunities provided by the hub 

• Would this hub have the potential to attract investment from other sources? 

• Does this provide an opportunity to rationalise other public sector buildings in 

that area? 

• What investment would be required to set this up? 

Sustainability of the business model 

• Would a hub make local groups more sustainable by giving them the chance 

to join up and share back office costs? 

• Would the projected rental income and/or business activity cover the core 

running costs of the facility? 

• Would space be available for rent by either public bodies or private sector 

organisations?   

Existing community capacity to support the hub 

• Is there interest among local community groups in being part of a hub? 

• Do local groups have any existing knowledge or capacity of the requirements 

for managing community buildings? 

• Does the local community have fundraising skills or capacity?     

Co-location with public or private sector organisations 

The CAS will also further explore the potential for co-location between community 

groups and public sector or commercial organisations, and set out the Council’s 

position on how these should be managed. 

84



 

13 
 

6.3 Leases and occupation of community buildings 

The effective use of community assets is underpinned by the lease arrangements 

associated with them.  For example, a long lease can be beneficial for an individual 

community group as it provides certainty and can help the group secure funding, but 

this also reduces the flexibility with which the Council can use its portfolio to respond 

to changing priorities and local circumstances.    

6.3.1 Possible lease arrangements 

The Council could take a number of possible approaches to its lease arrangements 

with community groups.  This section of the paper describes some of those potential 

arrangements and the advantages and disadvantages of each.  It then sets out 

proposals for the most appropriate approach for the Council to take to the community 

estate. 

Long leases 

Leases of more than 25 years are considered to be long leases by the Council, in the 

context of the CAS.  The current estate has some leases in excess of 40 and up to 

100 years.  In most cases, these grant an effective freehold interest to the occupier 

and the Council has limited powers to control the asset or break the lease before it 

expires.  Long leases are also often granted on the basis of a peppercorn rent and a 

premium or one-off capital payment, which means the long-term income gained by 

the Council is negligible.   

Short leases 

Again in the context of the CAS, leases of 25 years or less are characterised as 

short leases in Barnet.  These grant greater overall control to the Council including, if 

specified in the lease, clear agreement of the relative rights and responsibilities of 

the Council and the occupier in relation to, for example, repairs and maintenance.  

There are also opportunities to set terms outside those of a standard commercial 

agreement (for example, around expected community benefit).   

Proposals for the Council’s approach to lease arrangements 

The length of lease for community buildings can have a significant impact on 

occupiers, affecting their ability to raise funds and ensure sustainability.   A lease 

which runs for less than 25 years can make it more difficult for community 

organisations to raise funds.  However, long leases also have a significant effect on 

the Council’s ability to use its assets flexibly and to respond to changes in 

circumstances.  The Council will need to be able to nuance its approach to lease 

arrangements so that it can respond to this.   

For example, a community group might lose the skills of a key staff member who had 

been enabling it to fulfil its maintenance liabilities.  Alternatively, a group may be 

85



 

14 
 

granted a lease on a Council property on the basis of the work it is doing at present 

but its role may shift to the point that its work no longer directly supports Council 

priorities.   

Each lease agreement will be preceded by a clear statement setting out the heads of 

terms (contractual principles) applying to the agreement, including the relative rights 

and responsibilities of each party.     

In general terms, where an occupier is offered a leasehold interest, it is proposed 

that this will be for a term of 25 years, on full repairing and insuring terms (which 

means that the tenant is responsible for all repair and insurance obligations).  It will 

be contracted outside the Landlord and Tenant Act 1954, subject to 5 yearly upward 

only rent reviews and a 6-month rolling break clause which can be brought into effect 

by the Council only.  Asking for leases to be contracted outside of the Landlord and 

Tenant Act 1954 means that there is no automatic right to renewal or right to 

compensation on the lease expiring.  In addition, the lease will contain a provision 

where if the primary use of the asset no longer supports Council priorities, the lease 

may be determined on 28 days’ written notice by the Council. 

If community occupiers need leases guaranteed for up to 25 years in order to secure 

funding, it is proposed that the terms include a provision where a suitable lease may 

be granted if the occupier’s funding bid depends on it and a sustainable business 

plan is presented. 

It is proposed that the Council assess the skills and capacity of any community group 

interested in the use of a building to manage the maintenance and compliance 

issues which may arise, and will offer the group an arrangement, based on this 

assessment, as to whether the Council or the group should be liable for 

maintenance.  Depending on the level of liability assumed by the Council, alternative 

terms may be offered to the group with regard to the level of subsidy and length of 

lease, potentially also on different repairing and insuring terms.  This would be 

decided on a case by case basis. 

6.3.2 Landlord/lessee relationships 

There are two potential approaches the Council could take to management of the 

community estate.  The first is direct management through a landlord/tenant 

relationship and the second involves working with a single head lessee who takes on 

responsibility for the asset on behalf of other occupants. 

Landlord/tenant relationship 

This is a direct contractual relationship between the Council and the occupier of a 

community property.  Each occupier has their own agreement with the Council and 

agrees clear contractual responsibilities in relationship to the maintenance of the 

building and compliance with the terms of the lease.  The Council is responsible for 

86



 

15 
 

monitoring compliance with the lease.  This model may be suitable for discrete 

community facilities, or for standalone buildings and sites with a single occupant. 

Single head lessee 

This is a direct contractual relationship between the Council and one occupier of a 

community property, who then takes on responsibility for managing the other 

organisations who are using the building.   

This model would work particularly well for community hubs, in which the head 

lessee might also take on responsibility for the day to day management and 

maintenance of the building.  Community groups who only want to use a building for 

part of the week have the opportunity to request a licence to do so without having to 

take on responsibility for running and operating a building. 

Licences 

A licence has different legal status to a lease.  It is a permission to occupy land or 

property rather than a legal interest.  It has the advantage of being a flexible 

arrangement which either the licensor or the occupier can terminate at any time, with 

a short notice period.   

However, licences also have some limitations.  They cannot be used by community 

groups to attract external funding or grants as they do not grant the licensee an 

interest in the property.  A licence is generally only used for short-term or shared 

occupation.   

It is proposed that licences therefore will be offered to community organisations that 

need part-time or temporary use of a community property (for example, less than 

three days a week).  They should also be offered to any party who does not wish to 

be considered for either a head lessee or a landlord and tenant style arrangement. 

 

7 Community ownership, ‘community rights’ and expectations 

It is proposed that the Council should explore local arrangements for owning or 

managing assets where this is appropriate or can add benefits.  For example, local 

management of a community hall or leisure centre may be more effective than for it 

to be run centrally by the Council, as a local organisation may be in a better position 

to understand local need and can gain extra motivation from the direct benefit which 

comes to their community.  This may involve the direct transfer of an asset from the 

Council to a voluntary or community group, potentially at less than the market value 

of the asset, if this route is deemed to be of benefit to the Council.  More information 

about this route is set out at 7.1 below. 

Communities have also been given a number of routes through which they can 

engage with the public sector around assets.  Following the Localism Act 2011, 

87



 

16 
 

these have tended to focus in particular on the ‘community rights’ given under the 

Act and on the Localism agenda more broadly. Communities have been encouraged 

to make use of such routes to empower themselves by taking control of local assets 

which are important to them.  

The proliferation of ‘rights’ and other engagement routes can be confusing for 

communities, in terms of what they can expect from the Council under each route 

and which is most likely to help them achieve their goals in relation to assets. 

The CAS will therefore include guidance which seeks to clarify these different routes 

and how the Council would advise communities to make use of each one.  Initial 

proposals for this guidance are set out in 7.2-7.3 below. 

7.1 Community Asset Transfer 

Community Asset Transfer is a process through which a public body can proactively 

and voluntarily choose to transfer the ownership or management of one or more of 

its assets to a community organisation, often at less than market rates.   

In Barnet, the Council may choose to make assets available for transfer through this 

route if doing so would support a group to achieve social or community benefits 

which outweigh the benefit realised from rental income or a capital receipt.   

Community Asset Transfer will be considered most favourably where ownership or 

management of an asset would help a community group deliver services currently 

provided by the Council, or would reduce demand on Council services. 

The services proposed would also need to support the Council’s strategic priorities 

and the overall proposal to be considered financially viable and sustainable. 

7.2 Community Right to Bid 

The Community Right to Bid was established under the Localism Act 2011.  It gives 

community organisations a chance to take control of the assets that they value by 

nominating a building or piece of land to be listed as an ‘asset of community value’. 

The list of assets is retained by the local authority. 

If an asset is listed and is then put up for sale, a six month moratorium period is 

initiated during which the asset cannot be sold. This period is designed to allow 

interested community organisations the time to put forward a proposal and raise the 

funds to bid to buy the asset on the open market. 

The Community Right to Bid does not oblige an asset owner, including the Council, 

to sell the property to the community group and it does not exempt the community 

group from any of the usual planning regulations if it comes into possession of the 

property.  

88



 

17 
 

Successful listing under the Community Right to Bid does not imply that the property 

is more likely to be sold than if it were not listed, and is not a reliable route to gaining 

control of a Council or other asset. 

7.3 Community Right to Contest 

The Community Right to Contest applies to empty or underused land or property 

owned by a local authority (or by central government) for which there are no plans to 

bring it back into use.  Community groups can apply to the Department for 

Communities and Local Government (DCLG) to have the Local Authority sell such 

land or property to them.  

If an asset is nominated under the Community Right to Contest the Council will 

examine current and planned use of the asset and submit evidence about this to 

DCLG, which will decide whether it thinks the asset is really underused or whether it 

thinks it should be retained by the Council.   

If DCLG decides in favour of the community group this would trigger the sale of the 

land or property.  However, the process for applications and decision under 

Community Right to Contest takes time.  Community groups interested in taking 

control of an asset would in many cases be better off making contact directly with the 

Council to explore possible options. 

 

8. Support for community groups 

8.1 The need for clear criteria for support 

The Council needs to be consistent and transparent about the circumstances under 

which it will commit to supporting VCS groups through use of its assets; the level of 

support it is willing to give and what it expects in return.  This is particularly important 

in the challenging economic climate, as part of the Council’s focus on fairness, 

responsibility and opportunity.   To achieve this, the Council will need to set out, 

clearly, the criteria under which it will consider supporting community groups.   

The following criteria are proposed both to ensure that VCS organisations are likely 

to be sufficiently robust to enter into a contractual agreement with the Council, and 

that the Council makes full use of its ability to use its assets to support the work of 

groups which contribute to its goals. 

8.2 Proposed criteria for support 

The proposed criteria are broken down under three areas:  

• The type of service the group or organisation provides 

• The extent to which the organisation and its use of the asset supports 

community participation and involvement 

89



 

18 
 

• The robustness and sustainability of the organisation. 

8.2.1 Services provided 

Proposed criteria: 

• The work of the organisation contributes to one or more of the Council’s 

strategic priorities. 

• The work of the organisation is carried out in response to, and meets, a 

defined local need. 

• The work of the organisation delivers a service of a kind from which the 

Council is considering withdrawing or where community provision could 

produce better outcomes. 

• The work of the organisation is delivered in a way which provides additional 

value, such as the use of apprenticeships or volunteering opportunities. 

• The organisation caters for many different sections of the community. 

8.2.2 Community participation and involvement 

Proposed criteria: 

• The organisation is committed to the ongoing consultation and involvement of 

the community, particularly around managing the asset. 

• The local community is involved in designing and/or delivering the 

organisation’s activities. 

• The organisation enables the local community to take action to address 

issues which matter to them. 

• The organisation encourages entrepreneurialism and social enterprise. 

8.2.3 Robustness and sustainability 

Proposed criteria: 

• If the group is already receiving support from the Council, it is performing well 

against agreed measures.   

• The organisation is viable and sustainable, and passes an accredited vetting 

process for community organisations (such as the VISIBLE standard) 

• The organisation is purely not-for-profit and has limited income from 

commercial support (for example, a paying bar). 

• The organisation has capacity to raise additional funds or bring in external 

investment.  

It is proposed that these criteria be taken forward for public consultation and 

engagement with voluntary and community sector stakeholders.   

  

90



 

19 
 

9. Summary and next steps 

9.1 Summary 

The Community Asset Strategy will aim to ensure that the Council retains best value 

from the use of its community assets, by considering how it can maximise the 

community and financial benefit it derives from its estate.   

This paper has set out proposals relating to the definition of the Council’s community 

estate, the objectives and aims for the CAS, principles for the governance of the 

Council’s community assets, guidance around the various routes by which 

community groups can engage with the Council in relation to assets, and criteria 

which community groups would need to fulfil in order to receive support from the 

Council. 

9.2 Next steps 

It is proposed that these proposals are now taken forward for consultation as set out 

in section 9.3 below. 

The development of this paper has been accompanied by a review of the evidence 

available on the current community asset base and on the likely level of need for 

community facilities in Barnet.  This review will continue in parallel with the 

consultation process, to underpin the development of the full Strategy. 

9.3 Consultation 

It is proposed that the consultation takes place between 19 December 2014 and 13 

February 2015, and should include the following elements: 

9.3.1 A survey for the general public relating to the draft proposals approved by the 

Committee.  This will include consultation on: 

• The definition of community buildings  

• The objectives and aims of the Strategy 

• The principles for the governance of community assets 

• The proposed respective rights and responsibilities for the Council and 

users of the community estate 

• The proposed policy for community asset transfer 

• The proposed criteria by which the Council will offer support to voluntary 

and community groups. 

9.3.2 Targeted surveys for VCS groups, both occupiers and non-occupiers of 

Barnet community properties, including consultation on the issues above. 

9.3.3 Targeted stakeholder workshops, one in each constituency area, with 

residents, VCS groups, both occupiers and non-occupiers of Barnet 

91



 

20 
 

community properties, and Members. These workshops will consider, in 

addition to the above issues: 

• lessons to be learned from the current use of the estate 

• lessons to be learned from the current use of other community buildings in 

the Borough 

• the accuracy of the current list of community assets, reviewing it and 

identifying any missing assets which should be included 

• any issues about how the proposed balance of responsibilities will work in 

practice 

Both the targeted surveys and stakeholder workshops will also ask 

respondents to give their views on the future of specific assets, such as which 

assets they think have potential for development into community hubs, 

including opportunities for co-location with public or commercial organisations.  

Respondents will also be asked to feed in on where they see opportunities for 

communities to become more involved in delivering public services in 

exchange for transfer of the management or ownership of an asset. 

9.3.4 Interviews with local partners including Barnet Clinical Commissioning 

Group, Middlesex University, JobCentre Plus, Groundwork London, and 

Community Barnet, as well as engagement with neighbouring authorities, to 

identify, in addition to the above, any opportunities for joint working and 

potential co-location. 

9.3.5 Targeted engagement with other VCS stakeholders, including London 

Funders, to understand how assets feature in their decisions about how they 

choose to support community groups. 

9.3.6 Work with CommUNITY Barnet to ensure our engagement with VCS groups 

is robust and representative and to engage on our behalf, using their local 

networks, to ensure the CAS is well-informed about the needs of the sector. 

9.3.7 The development of this paper has been accompanied by a review of the 

evidence available on the current community asset base and on the likely 

level of need for community facilities in Barnet.  This review will continue in 

parallel with the consultation process, to underpin the development of the full 

Strategy. 

9.4 Presentation of the full Strategy 

The full Strategy will be presented to the Assets, Regeneration and Growth 

Committee on 16 March 2015. 

92



 

1 

 

Appendix 2 – List of assets in the current community 

portfolio 

Property  Name Lessee Category Group Lease 

Term 

Years 

Mill Hill Park,  Former 

Cricket Pavilion 

 Vacant – 

Destroyed by 

fire 

Leisure 

community 

Leisure  N/A 

Kennedy Leigh Centre, 

NW4 

Ravenswood 

Foundation 

Misc -

Community - 

long lease 

Day Centre 99 

Avenue House -  Inc: Form 

Tennis Courts, The Avenue 

N3 

Avenue House 

Estate Trust 

Misc - 

community 

Leisure 121 

Church End, 28 Sherrick 

House Pt                      

African Cultural 

Association 

Trustees Of 

Misc - 

community 

Office 10 

Church End, 30 Sherrick 

Hse Pt                      

Barnet Mencap Misc - 

community 

Office 1 

Church Farm Garage - St 

John's Ambulance 

 St John 

Ambulance 

Misc - 

community 

Garage 0 

Church Farm, The Whale 

Centre 

Vacant Misc - 

community 

Youth Club 5 

Church End 40/42 Nw4                              Barnet Citizens 

Advice B 

Misc - 

community 

Office 10 

Church End 44 Nw4                              Vacant Misc - 

community 

Office 10 

Friary House - Rooms 

Pf10/Pg11 -  Bawa 

Barnet Asian 

Women's 

Association 

Misc - 

community 

Office   

Friary House, Room Pf11- 

Barnet Elderly Asians 

Barnet Elderly 

Asian Group 

Misc - 

community 

Office   

Friary House, Room Ps2 

(Shared )M R 2 - African Ref 

C 

African Refugee 

Community 

Misc - 

community 

Office   

Friary House, 1st Fl, Pt 2nd 

Fl & Store In Stable B 

Community 

Focus 

Misc -

community 

Office 20 

93



 

2 

 

  Property  Name Lessee Category Group Lease 

Term 

Years 

Independent Living Centre 

(Former Flightways) 

Barnet 

Independent 

Living Service 

Misc - 

community 

Day Centre   

Market Place, RSPCA Clinic 

N2                       

RSPCA Misc - 

community 

Animal 

Clinic 

42 

Montrose Tram Shed, 

Montrose Park 

Vacant Misc - 

community 

    

Woodhouse Road 36b Part 

-Bha                       

Barnet Housing 

Aid Centre 

Misc - 

community 

Day Centre 5 

Woodhouse Road 36b Part 

-Hab                       

Homeless 

Action (Hab) 

Misc - 

community 

Day Centre 25 

Albert Road, EN4 9SH - East 

Barnet Rifle Club 

East Barnet 

Shooting Club 

Leisure -

commercial 

Leisure 30 

Barnet Club, The (Cricket) 

Barnet Lane,  EN5 

Barnet Club Ltd 

J Arnold 

Leisure -

commercial 

Leisure 30 

Cool Oak Lane Hendon Rifle 

Club                     

Hendon Rifle 

Club 

Leisure -

commercial 

Leisure 25 

East Barnet Golf Club, 

Clifford Road- Tudor Sports 

East Barnet Golf 

Club 

Leisure -

commercial 

Leisure 20 

Finchley Lawn T C Brent Wy 

R/O                     

Finchley Lawn 

Tennis Club 

Leisure -

commercial 

Leisure 10 

Gloucester Road Bar, Lawn 

Tennis                      

Barnet Lawn 

Tennis Club 

Leisure -

commercial 

Leisure 25 

Golfwise - Tudor Sports 

Ground Clifford Road 

Golfwise Ltd Leisure -

commercial 

Leisure 30 

High Street 68, Suzie 

Earnshaw Theatre School 

Dare To Dream 

Performers Ltd 

Leisure -

commercial 

Community 

Centre 

6 

Northway Tennis Centre, 

NW11 6PA 

Poxon Stephen Leisure -

commercial 

Leisure 10 

Oakhill Park Bowls Club Oak Hill Bowls  Leisure - Leisure 15 

Oakhill Park Golf Course, 

East Barnet 

Scagnelli Ian 

Leo & Paul 

Alexander 

Leisure -

commercial 

Leisure 20 

94



 

3 

 

  
Property  Name Lessee Category Group Lease 

Term 

Years 

Osidge Lane Assoc Of 

Veterans Of Foreign Wars 

Theotherapy 

Christian 

Fellowship 

Community 

Hall 

Community 

Centre 

1 

Southover R/O Lullington 

Dev S                     

Lullington 

Developmnt 

Soc 

Leisure -

commercial 

Leisure 28 

Stag House Rex Chosen 

ministries. 

Possession 

sought. 

Community 

Hall 

Community 

Centre 

10 

West Hendon Play Fields 

Pav,  Lower Ground Floor                    

Chin Woo Ltd leisure 

community 

  20 

West Hendon Play Fields 

Pav  Gf                      

Parkside View 

Nursery Ltd 

Leisure -

commercial 

Leisure 6 

Wilf Slack Young Cricketers 

Adj  The Avenue, N3 

Wilf Slack 

Young 

Cricketers Dt 

Leisure -

commercial 

Leisure 36 

Wilf Slack Young Cricketers 

Smiths Field 

Wilf Slack 

Young Crick Dt 

Leisure -

Commercial 

Leisure 50 

Back Lane, Minotaur  

Fitness Ctre Ha8 

North London 

Fitness Centre  

Leisure - 

Community 

Leisure 10 

Barnet Lane, The Stables 

Horse Activity Centre,N20 

Trustees Of The 

Stables Horse 

Act Ctre 

Leisure - 

Community 

Leisure 20 

Barnet Playing Flds Table 

Tennis Club                      

Barnet Table 

Tennis Ctre 

Leisure - 

Community 

Leisure 10 

Bishopswood Bowling Club, 

Summers  Lane N12 0PD 

Bishopswood 

Bowling Club 

Leisure - 

community 

Leisure 21 

Nomads Community Gym, 

R/O Hamonde Close 

Mills Steven Leisure - 

Community 

Youth Club 5 

Copthall  Hendon  Rugby FC Hendon Rugby 

Football Clb 

Leisure - 

Community 

Leisure 28 

Copthall Mill Hill Rugby Fc                       Mill Hill Rugby 

Football 

Leisure - 

community 

Leisure 28 

95



 

4 

 

  
Property  Name Lessee Category Group Lease 

Term 

Years 

Downway Model Engineers 

N12                        

Model 

Engineers N Lon 

Soc 

Leisure - 

community 

Leisure 20 

Holly Park Road Incognito 

Theatre                       

Incognito 

Theatre Group 

Leisure - 

community 

Leisure 10 

King George V Fields East  

Barnet Old Grammarians 

East Barnet Old 

Grammarians 

Leisure - 

community 

Leisure 30 

Little Wood Garden Sub 

Theatre                     

Garden Suburb 

Theatre 

Leisure - 

community 

Leisure 20 

Lyttelton Play Fields Bowls 

Cl 

Bishopswood 

Bowling Club 

Leisure - 

community 

Leisure 21 

Mill Hill Village Sports Club 

Burtonhole Lane 

Mill Hill Village 

Sports 

Leisure - 

community 

Leisure 28 

Park Road 4a Form West H 

Yth                       

Hendon 

Mosque & 

Islamic Centre 

Community 

Hall 

Youth Club 5 

Prothero Gardens Tennis 

Courts                     

Brampton Lawn 

Tennis Club 

Leisure - 

community 

Leisure 10 

Sanders Lane Scout Group                          Hendon 16th 

Scout Group 

Leisure - 

community 

Youth Club 30 

Tedder Lounge Wiggins 

Mead NW9                     

Faith 

Community 

Limited 

Community 

Hall 

Community 

Centre 

5 

Victoria Road, Nursery  Nursery Leisure - 

community 

Leisure 30 

Victoria Road Community 

Centre                     

New Barnet 

Residents Assc 

Community 

Hall 

Community 

Centre 

10 

Watling Comm Ctre - Spirit 

Ch                      

Burnt Oak Spirit 

Church 

Community 

Hall 

Community 

Centre 

20 

Watling Community Centre 

Edg                       

Watling 

Community CTR 

Community 

Hall 

Community 

Centre 

37 

Watling Park Form Bowl 

Gr-Tavr                     

Tavra Leisure - 

community 

Leisure 25 

96



 

5 

 

  
Property  Name Lessee Category Group Lease 

Term 

Years 

Woodfield Park Phoenix 

Canoe Club(Former North 

Circular Sailing Club) 

Phoenix Canoe 

Club Ltd 

Leisure - 

community 

Leisure 6 (364 

days) 

Woodfield Park Hendon 

Sea Tr C                     

Hendon Sea 

Training Corp 

Leisure - 

community 

Leisure 54 

Woodfield Park-Princes Pk 

Fc 

Princes Park 

Youth Fc 

Leisure - 

community 

Leisure 21 

Arden Playing Fields Fin 

Crick                     

Finchley Cricket 

Club Tr 

Leisure - 

Commercial -

long lease 

Leisure 150 

Arkley Golf Club Rowley 

Green 

Arkley Golf Club 

Ltd 

Leisure - 

Commercial -

long lease 

Leisure 180 

Barnet Lane Form Old 

Stationers -Hadley Wood 

Youth 

Hadley Wood 

Youth 

Development 

Ltd 

Leisure - 

Commercial -

long lease 

Leisure 125 

Brickfield Lane Arkley 

Hadley Fc 

Hadley Disabled 

Sports As 

Leisure - 

Commercial -

long lease 

Leisure 99 

Brondesbury Club Harman 

Drive                      

Brondesbury 

Crick & Ten C 

Leisure - 

Commercial -

long lease 

Leisure 999 

Copthall - Playgolf Playgolf 

(Holdings) Plc 

Leisure - 

Commercial -

long lease 

Leisure 75 

David Lloyd Leisure Club David Lloyd 

Leisure Ltd 

Leisure - 

Commercial -

long lease 

Leisure 125 

Finchley Cricket Club, 

Arden Playing Fields 

Finchley Cricket 

Club Trustees 

Leisure - 

Commercial -

long lease 

Leisure 150 

Finchley Golf Club-Long Lse Finchley Golf 

Club Ltd 

Leisure - 

Commercial -

long lease 

Leisure 150 

97



 

6 

 

  
Property  Name Lessee Category Group Lease 

Term 

Years 

Friern South Playing Fields 

Powerleague 

Anchor 

International 

Ltd 

Leisure - 

Commercial -

long lease 

Leisure 99 

Glebelands, The Indoor 

Bowls Club                     

Glebelands 

indoor Bowls 

Club 

Leisure - 

Commercial -

long lease 

Leisure 50 

Golf Dome Lodges, 3 

Leisure Way N12 0qz 

Golf Dome 

Lodges Ltd 

Leisure - 

Commercial -

long lease 

Leisure 125 

Great North Leisure Park                          Capital & 

Regional 

Properties 

Leisure - 

Commercial -

long lease 

Leisure 150 

Mays Lane Old 

Elizabethans                         

Old 

Elizabethans 

Play Field 

Leisure - 

Commercial -

long lease 

Leisure 125 

Middlesex Cc East End 

Road                         

Dendy Ltd, La 

Fitness 

Leisure - 

Commercial -

long lease 

Leisure 150 

Mill Hill Golf Club Moat 

Mount                     

Mill Hill Golf 

Club 

Leisure - 

Commercial -

long lease 

Leisure 50 

North Middlesex Golf Club, 

Friern Barnet Lane N20 

North 

Middlesex Golf 

Club Ltd 

Leisure - 

Commercial -

long lease 

Leisure 200 

Old Cholmeleians, Hendon, 

Wood Lane                      

Old 

Cholmeleians 

Sports Club 

Leisure - 

Commercial -

long lease 

Leisure 125 

Old Fold Manor Golf Club                          Old Fold Manor 

Golf Club 

Leisure - 

Commercial -

long lease 

Leisure 125 

Southover Old Finchleians                         Old Finchleians 

Sports Club 

Leisure - 

Commercial -

long lease 

Leisure 99 

Summers Lane Finchley Rfc 

N12                      

Finchley Rugby 

Football C 

Leisure - 

Commercial -

long lease 

Leisure 125 

98



 

7 

 

  
Property  Name Lessee Category Group Lease 

Term 

Years 

Summers Lane Wingate 

Youth Tr                      

Wingate Youth 

Trust 

Leisure - 

Commercial -

long lease 

Leisure 123 

Totteridge Cricket Club Tot 

Gr                     

Totteridge 

Cricket Club 

Leisure - 

Commercial -

long lease 

Leisure 125 

Totteridge Tennis Club 

Great Bushey Drive 

Totteridge 

Tennis Club 

Leisure - 

Commercial -

long lease 

Leisure 75 

Grahame Park Way- Avion 

Crescent-Form Scouts 

Northwest 

Church 

Trustees 

Disposal Community 

Centre 

1 

Burnt Oak Broadway 210                            Sangam Assoc 

Of Asian Wom 

Community 

Hall - long 

lease 

Community 

Centre 

99 

Priory Grove- St John's 

Ambulance 

St John 

Ambulance 

Brigade 

Community 

Hall - long 

lease 

Youth Club  99 

Frith Grange Camping 

Ground                        

Scout Assoc 

Trust Corp 

Community 

Hall - long 

lease 

Youth Club  99 

Glebelands The Albanian 

Assoc                      

Albanian 

Association 

Trus 

Community 

Hall - long 

lease 

Leisure 50 

Algernon Road Multi Cult 

Ctre                      

Algernon Rd 

Multicult Day 

Community 

Hall 

Community 

Centre 

11 

Brickfield Lane Arkley Assoc                      Arkley 

Association 

Trust 

Community 

Hall 

Leisure 2 

Church End Meritage Club                          Hendon & Dist 

Old P Welf 

Community 

Hall 

Day Centre  5 

Claremont Community 

Centre 

Managed By 

Barnet Homes 

Community 

Hall 

Community 

Centre 

  

Daws Lane Train Ctre Sea 

Cadet                     

Sea Cadet 

Corps Unit 121 

Community 

Hall 

Youth Club  10 

99



 

8 

 

Property  Name Lessee Category Group Lease 

Term 

Years 

Priory Grove, Barnet  - 

Scout Hut 

Barnet 1st 

Scout Group Tr 

Community 

Hall 

Youth Club  20 

Freehold Community 

Centre, Alexandra Road 

Managed By 

Barnet Homes 

Community 

hall 

Community 

centre 

  

Gloucester Road 1374 E Bar 

Squ                     

East Barnet 

1374 Squadron 

Community 

Hall 

Youth Club  25 

Legionway Royal Brit 

Legion                        

Vacant Community 

Hall 

Leisure N/A 

Long Lane 184a Sea Cadets                         Finchley Sea 

Cad Unit 141 

Community 

Hall 

Youth Club  15 

Long Lane 190-192 R/O 

Scout H                      

Finchley  Dist 

Scout 

Community 

Hall 

Youth Club  30 

Market Lane Scout Hut 

Brnt Oak    Former                 

Faith 

Community Ltd 

Community 

Hall 

Community 

Centre 

25 

Marquin Centre  Hanuman 

Community 

Centre Trustees 

Community 

hall 

Youth Club  10 

Moat Mount Camp Site 

Friends                       

Moat Mount 

Friends Of 

Community 

Hall 

Youth Club  30 

Noel Lounge Grahame Park 

Nw9                       

Somali 

Graduate Assoc 

Of Gb 

Community 

Hall 

Community 

Centre 

10 

North Road Community 

Centre                        

North Road 

Residents Assc 

Community 

Hall 

Community 

Centre 

5 

Osidge Lane Scout Hut E 

Barnet                     

Scout Assoc 

Trust Corp 

Community 

Hall 

Community 

Centre 

20 

Rainbow Community 

Centre, Dollis Valley 

Rainbow Users 

Group Trustees 

Community 

Hall 

Community 

Centre 

5 

Rendezvous Centre 

Coppetts Rd                      

Demolished – 

destroyed by 

fire to be re-

provided on 

alternative site 

Community 

Hall 

Community 

Centre 

10 

Tarling Road, The Old Barn 

N2  

In transition Community 

Hall 

Community 

Centre 

 

100



 

9 

 

 

  

Property  Name Lessee Category Group Lease 

Term 

Years 

Vernon Crescent Scout Hut                         East Barnet 3rd 

Scout Grp 

Community 

Hall 

Youth Club  20 

Burtonhole Lane Old 

Camdenians                     

Old 

Camdenians 

Sports Cl 

  Leisure 30 

Mill Hill Depot-Community 

Transport 

        

Copthall Athletics Stadium Saracens Leisure -

commercial 

Stadium   

Grange Community Centre Iridium Assets 

Ltd 

Community 

Hall 

Community 

Centre 

25 

Quinta Club  Vacant Community 

Hall 

    

Thorne Hall Vacant Community 

Hall 

Nursery   

Pavilion Way Burnt Oak Vacant, 

pending 

redevelopment 

Leisure - 

community 

Sports 

Ground, 

AWP and 

changing 

rooms 

  

Greyhound Hill Awp         

Grahame Park Awp Temporary 

management 

by local 

community 

      

Barnet Talking Newspaper, 

Wetherill Road 

Barnet Boro 

Talking Newsp 

Misc - 

community 

  15 

Tower Gym, Church Farm Godley Neil Leisure -

commercial 

  5 

Compton Academy Sports 

Centre 

Public use 

outside school 

hours 

Leisure - 

community 

    

Queen Elizabeth girls 

school sport centre and 

pool 

Public use 

outside school 

hours 

Leisure - 

community 

    

101



 

10 

 

List of retail units leased for community purposes 

 

 

Property  Name Lessee Category Group Lease 

Term 

Years 

4 & 5 The Concourse Advocacy in 

Barnet / BDISC  

Misc - 

Community 

    

7 The Concourse Under offer to 

Living Way 

Ministries 

Misc - 

Community 

  5 

8 The Concourse Under offer to 

HAWA 

Misc - 

Community 

  5 

9 The Concourse The Met Police  Misc - 

Community 

    

11 The Concourse Under offer to 

GSRE  

Misc - 

Community 

  5 

12 The Concourse Jesus House Misc - 

Community 

  5 

14 The concourse Horn of Africa 

Women’s 

Association  

Misc - 

Community 

  5 

15 The concourse Choices for 

Graham Park 

Limited   

Misc - 

Community 

    

20 The Concourse Choices for 

Graham Park  

Misc - 

Community 

  5 

Homefield 37                                      Shared Churches 

Herts/Bed  

Misc - 

Community 

Office 5 

Homefield 38                                      Shared Churches 

Herts/Bed  

Misc - 

Community 

Retail 4 

102



 

 

Summary 

This report presents Entrepreneurial Barnet: the public sector contribution to Barnet’s 
economy 2015-2020, aimed at making Barnet the best place in London to be a small 
business. It contains proposals relating to five theme areas: 
 

• Getting the basics right 

• A great place to work, live and invest 

• Skilled employees and entrepreneurs 

• Access to markets 

• Facilitating business growth 
 

The reports incorporates the responses gained from residents, businesses and community 
groups as a result of a public consultation that ran from 10 September 2014 to 20 
November 2014, and the views of area committees in relation to those elements of 
Entrepreneurial Barnet that relate to town centres. 
 
The approach has been developed in partnership with Middlesex University, Barnet and 
Southgate College, the Police, and CommUNITY Barnet, and actions from those partners 
are embedded throughout the proposals as set out in Appendix A. 
 

 

 

Assets, Regeneration and Growth 
Committee 

 

15 December 2014 
  

Title  Entrepreneurial Barnet 

Report of Cath Shaw, Enterprise and Regeneration Lead Commissioner  

Wards All 

Status Public 

Enclosures                         
Appendix A: Entrepreneurial Barnet: the public sector 
contribution to Barnet’s economy 2015-2020 

Appendix B: Equalities Impact Assessment 

Officer Contact Details  
Luke Ward, Commissioning and Policy Advisor (Economist), 
Email: luke.ward@barnet.gov.uk, Telephone: 020 8359 2672 

AGENDA ITEM 9

103



Recommendations  
1. That the committee approve Entrepreneurial Barnet: the public sector 

contribution to Barnet’s economy 2015-2020 (Appendix A). 
 

2. That the Committee requests officers to feedback to area committees any 
specific issues or suggestions from consultees relating to individual town 
centres. 
 

3. That the Committee endorses the approach to Town Centres set out in 
paragraphs 1.10-1.12 below. 

 
 

1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 
1.1 This report brings back to the Committee proposals it discussed at its meeting 

on 8 September 2014, in draft form, to make Barnet the best place in London 
to be a small business.  
 

1.2 Since then public consultation has been undertaken to ensure that the views 
and expertise of locally-based businesses, residents, and community groups 
are accounted for and have been able to shape the final proposals. 
 

1.3 Additional work has also been undertaken with our partners, particularly 
Middlesex University, Barnet and Southgate College, the Police, and 
Community Barnet to refine the detail of the proposals and to join up the 
approach to growth across the public and community sectors. 
 

1.4 At its meeting on 8 September the Committee recognised that an evidence-
based and carefully targeted approach to facilitating economic success is 
needed: 
 

• Because the Council and its partners have a significant impact on the local 
economy, and it is important to ensure that this impact is as positive as it 
can be. 

• To create an environment in which businesses can thrive and grow, and 
has the confidence to make medium and longer-term investments. 

• To capitalise on the entrepreneurial spirit of Barnet’s residents and ensure 
that small local business are able to succeed.  Barnet has the highest level 
of new business start-ups of any outer London borough, but a higher 
proportion of these businesses fail within the first three years than in other 
areas.  

• Because, along with other places across London and the wider UK, some 
of Barnet’s town centres have struggled to respond to the combination of 
changing shopping patterns by residents and visitors, and tough macro-
economic conditions. 

 
1.5 The council also has a financial incentive to support local businesses to grow. 

The Government’s Business Rates Retention scheme, introduced in April 
2013, means that the Council stands to directly benefit from local growth. 

 

104



1.6 An extensive process of research and engagement has been undertaken in 
the development of the proposals. This includes analysis of the structure of 
Barnet’s economy and its relative strengths and weaknesses, input from 
subject matter experts from across a range of service areas, and engagement 
with local partners to gain their views and buy-in. Key partners include: Barnet 
and Southgate College, Middlesex University, the Police, and Community 
Barnet.  
 

1.7 The Entrepreneurial Barnet proposals are divided into five broad “theme” 
areas, reflecting the ways in which the Council and the wider public sector 
impact on the business community.  We recognise that if we get these right 
we can give a real boost to local businesses’ chance of success; if we do not, 
we could seriously hinder prospects for growth. They are: 

 
THEME A: Getting the Basics right 

1. Streamlined regulation and planning 

2. Improved customer access 

 

THEME B: A Great Place to live, work and invest 

3. Thriving town centres that people want to live, work and spend 
 time in 

4. Excellence in Regeneration and Growth 

5. Fit for purpose infrastructure and transport networks 

 

THEME C: Skilled Employees and Successful Entrepreneurs 

6.  Working with employers to develop a skilled workforce 

7.  Supporting residents to develop the skills they need to succeed 

8.  Encouraging a culture of entrepreneurship 

9.  Healthier Workplaces 

 

THEME D: Access to Markets – building local supply chains 

10. Local and small businesses accessing contracts 

 

THEME E: Facilitating Business Growth 

11. Businesses enabled to grow and thrive 

12. Connecting businesses and universities 

 
1.8 The proposals focus on making sure the Council is easy to deal with (whether 

businesses are applying for licences, paying business rates, supplying goods 
and services, or any of the other reasons why businesses contact us); that 
initiatives are shaped by the business community as businesses know best 

105



what they need to grow; and that the Council is seen by the business 
community as a help rather than a hindrance.  The report explicitly sends a 
strong signal that Barnet is fully committed to economic success and growth, 
which itself contributes to creating a climate conducive to business growth.   
 

1.9 Entrepreneurial Barnet sets out an approach to working with local residents 
and businesses to enhance Barnet’s town centres, reflecting the central role 
of these areas in the local economy. To maximise the impact of Council 
activity, it is important that resources are effectively targeted to reflect the 
diverse nature and range of economic functions of different town centres. At 
its meeting on 8 September 2014, ARG Committee invited area committees to 
give views and recommendations about which town centres should be 
identified as “Main town centres”, “District centres” and “Local centres” based 
on consideration of data relating to the size and function of town centres in 
their areas, and their local expertise. The proposals also proposed a tailored 
approach to boosting growth in each type of town centre. 
 

1.10 Area committees were advised that, based on what we know about town 
centres in other areas, each constituency area would expect to have one or 
two town centres classed as “Main”, meaning they serve a more-than local 
area with a wider range of services, including leisure and non-retail 
businesses. A total of eight centres were recommended as Main town centres 
by the area committees. 

 

• Chipping Barnet Area Committee: The Committee recommended that 
Chipping Barnet be identified as “Main” for the constituency area. It 
considered that all remaining centres in the area should be considered 
District centres.  

• Hendon Area Committee: The Committee recommended that Burnt 
Oak, Edgware and Mill Hill be identified as “Main” for the constituency 
area. 

• Finchley and Golders Green Area Committee: The Committee 
recommended that East Finchley, Finchley Church End, Golders Green 
and North Finchley should have equal status across both the “Main” 
and “District” categories.  It also noted that particular attention should 
be paid to Cricklewood given its location on the border of three 
boroughs. 
 

1.11 Taking into account the recommendations provided by the area committees, 
the data about town centre size and function and proximity to other centres 
provided by the GLA, and the capacity the council has to support town 
centres, it is recommended that the following town centres are designated as 
“Main” in the Entrepreneurial Barnet proposals: 
 

• Chipping Barnet Area Committee – Chipping Barnet 

• Hendon Area Committee – Burnt Oak, Edgware 

• Finchley and Golders Green Area Committee – Golders Green, North 
Finchley 

 

106



1.12 In addition, Finchley Church End could be regarded as Main in relation to the 
approach to supporting the local evening economy (page 18 of Appendix A), 
reflecting the relatively high proportion of local premises in the area dedicated 
to serving this function. Three other town centres were identified by the area 
committees (Cricklewood, East Finchley, and Mill Hill). All play a significant 
role in the economic and cultural life of the Borough. Given their relatively 
smaller scale compared with the Main centres proposed above, which are 
often also in close proximity, it is considered they continue to be supported by 
the council as District centres through the town centre offer set out in page 18 
of Entrepreneurial Barnet.  
 

1.13 The Chipping Barnet Area Committee suggested that all town centres in that 
area other than Chipping Barnet be classed as District Centres. Given the 
significant differences in size and function between established district centres 
(e.g. Whetstone) and local centres (e.g. Great North Road, Hampden Way) 
this broad classification may not capture the inherently local nature of many of 
the smaller centres, which focus predominantly on providing high quality offer 
to residents in the immediate vicinity. 
 

1.14 The Greater London Authority recently (11 November) invited a bid to the 
Mayor’s High Street Fund, with a closing date of 1 December 2014.  The Fund 
is different to its predecessor Outer London Fund, in that grant awards can be 
submitted directly from the local community as well as from Local Authorities.  
At the request of the GLA the Council has submitted a bid of £305,000 for 
Burnt Oak, to be matched by LB Barnet; and consistent with the approach set 
out in Entrepreneurial Barnet, it has supported bids from Mill Hill 
Neighbourhood Forum for £200,000 in respect of Mill Hill Broadway, and a 
smaller bid from for £20,000 to continue the work of the Cricklewood Town 
Team    

 
2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  

 

2.1 The Entrepreneurial Barnet proposals have undergone a process of research, 
information gathering, testing with council partners and individual council 
service areas, and public consultation and engagement. They also take into 
account feedback received by area committees in relation to town centres in 
Barnet.  It is now appropriate to recommend that the proposals are agreed 
and implemented. 

107



3.  ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 

3.1 It would be possible to approach economic growth in the Borough in a more 
ad hoc and reactive way. The risk of this approach would be that important 
components of economic growth would be neglected, resulting in long term 
growth in Barnet being lower than may actually be the case. This in turn would 
result in businesses and residents being worse off, and would also risk LB 
Barnet retaining a smaller level of Business Rates growth than would be the 
case if the more joined up and coherent strategy set out here was 
implemented. 
 

4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

4.1 Should the Committee approve the proposals, work will commence on 
delivering the individual areas of activity set out within them, and on aligning 
the priorities of the various partners who have been engaged with its 
development, including Middlesex University, Barnet and Southgate College, 
and the Police. 
 

4.2 Arrangements will also be put into place to return to the Committee on an 
annual basis to provide an update on progress towards delivering the vision to 
make Barnet the best place in London to be a small business. 
 

4.3 The delivery of the proposals will be communicated in a targeted way to local 
business, residents, and potential developers to ensure they are leveraging as 
much value as possible for the Borough. 
 

5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 

5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
 
The proposals in Entrepreneurial Barnet directly support the delivery of the 
Corporate Plan 2013-2016, particularly the following two corporate priorities: 
 

• Promote responsible growth, development and success across the 
Borough 

• Improve the satisfaction of residents and businesses with the London 
Borough of Barnet as a place to live, work and study. 
 

 The proposals relating to skills and learning in the workforce also relate to the 
third corporate plan priority area: 

 

• Support families and individuals that need it – promoting 
independence, learning and well-being. 

 
Where proposals relate to Corporate Plan priorities and indicators, the same 
indicators will be used to monitor progress. This will ensure continued 
alignment between Entrepreneurial Barnet and the Corporate Plan, and will 
also prevent any duplication of effort by the Council and its partners. 
 

5.1.2 The draft strategy explicitly supports the delivery of Public Health priorities, 
particularly in relation to improving the health of the workforce via the pan-

108



London Healthy Workforce charter 
 
5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 

Property, Sustainability) 
 

5.3 The majority the proposals set out in the Entrepreneurial Barnet will be 
delivered within existing resources, particularly where they align with existing 
and already funded work programmes. 

 
5.4 There are a number of proposals that will be delivered through grant funding 

from sources such as Central Government Departments and the Greater 
London Authority (GLA) e.g. in relation to public realm improvement or the 
development of an approach to small business support.  
 

5.5 The intention is that, should it be approved, the Economic Strategy will be 
delivered within existing resources. Where additional funding is required it will 
be brought in from outside sources, for example Central Government or 
London Enterprise Panel funding. 
 

5.6 Legal and Constitutional References 
 

5.7 There are no specific legal issues associated with the draft Economic 
Strategy. The proposals are in line with the Localism Act (2011), and 
particularly the General Power of Competence given to local authorities. 
 

5.8 Council Constitution, Responsibility for Functions, Annex A – details the terms 
of reference of the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee which 
includes “Engagement with the business community and measures to support 
local business” and “To approve any non-statutory plan or strategy within the 
remit of the Committee that is not reserved for Full Council or Policy and 
Resources.” 
 

5.9 Risk Management 
 

5.10 There is a risk that if partners in Barnet do not fully understand their role in 
supporting the development of a successful local economy in Barnet that 
other areas will out-compete, resulting in fewer and lower quality jobs being 
available to Barnet residents, less income to the Council as Business Rates 
rise more slowly than would otherwise be the case, and that Barnet will 
become, relatively speaking, a less attractive place to work, live and invest. 
 

5.11 Likewise it is important that the key outcomes set out in the proposals are 
achievable and credible.  

 
5.12 Equalities and Diversity  

 

5.13 A principle embedded across the Entrepreneurial Barnet proposals is that all 
people in Barnet, no matter what their background or circumstances, should 
have equality of opportunity to succeed and gain from the growth of the 
economy here and nationally.  

109



 
5.14 An initial Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) has been completed for the 

proposals with the final assessment being that the strategy will have a minimal 
positive impact. This assessment was made following a process of research 
and evidence gathering to identify any groups in the community who may 
gain. The full equalities impact assessment can be found in appendix B. The 
key findings of the EIA are summarised below:  
 

• Age: Barnet has a growing and ageing population, and a report 
commissioned from Middlesex by Barnet Council suggests that there is an 
increasing proportion of this age group seeking work. The strategy 
acknowledges this and explicitly targets all age groups ensuring that the 
older population has equal access to opportunities associated with 
growth. 

• Disability (including mental health problems): The Labour Force 
Survey (Quarter 2, 2012) notes that there is a 30.1% gap in employment 
rates between disabled and non-disabled people. The strategy focuses on 
support them into training and employment. It also aims to improve the 
identification and treatment of mental health in employment services and 
provide targeted support. 

• Pregnancy and Maternity: The strategy will provide more opportunities 
for women with families as it aims to increase opportunities for self-
employment, flexible working, and working from home.  

• Ethnicity: The proposals recognise that some BAME groups have higher 
unemployment rates than others (ONS market status by ethnic group, 
2013). Additional focus will be undertaken to engage with these groups.  

• Religion or belief: statistics have shown that the Muslim population are 
more likely to be unemployed than other religions (ONS report on religion, 
2013). Focus will be put on ensuring the Muslim population understand 
how they can access employment opportunities. 

• Gender/Sex: The Annual Population Survey Employment Indicators 
(ONS, 2013) notes that the employment rate is lower for women than 
men. This strategy is inclusive of all and aims to minimise barriers to 
economic success and create more employment opportunities. 

• Carers: Just over 9% of the Barnet population provide unpaid care. The 
strategy will increase opportunities for flexible working and also aims to 
provide extra support to families and residents that need it. 

• Lone Parents: The strategy recognises that lone parents are less likely to 
benefit from economic growth, and that these parents are particularly 
disadvantaged due to the high cost of childcare provision. The strategy 
will place extra emphasis on reaching this group. 

• Young people and NEETs: Barnet is performing well with respect to 
NEETs, with the fourth lowest number in England. Effort will be made to 
ensure that young people are able to get a sustainable job.  

• There was no specific evidence or local data identified that the sexual 
orientation and gender reassignment equality strands will be 
specifically affected by the proposals. 

 
5.15 The full equalities assessment can be found in Appendix B. 
 

110



 
5.16  Consultation and Engagement 

 
5.17  The proposals were consulted on between 10th September and 20th of 

November and yielded 25 responses. Overall, there was a positive response 
with regards to agreement with the five key themes. Separate feedback was 
also received in the form of four e-mails, and at the Barnet Business Expo 
attended by 61 small businesses on 23rd October.   

 
5.18  There was widespread support for the aim of making Barnet the best place in 

London to be a small business.  Several themes have emerged from the 
consultation, specifically:  

 

• The Council needs to communicate more clearly with local business and 
ensure that information and support is readily available.  

• Systems need to be simpler, more efficient, and user-friendly 

• There should be increased opportunity for small businesses to procure 
work from the Council.  

• There was support for less red tape for small businesses.  

• The need for an effective car parking policy that supports local businesses 
was identified in a number of responses. 

 
5.19  In addition to the online consultation, a number of issues were identified at 

the Barnet Business Expo event on 31 October 2014. These are briefly 
summarised in the points below. Local businesses identified: 

 

• Affordable work premises and business rates relief for small businesses 
as important factors for encouraging local growth. 

• The provision of an easy to access and effective system that enables 
small businesses to access council procurement and supply chains, 
especially where their value is less than £10,000.  

• The importance of working with the Federation of Small Businesses and 
other networks to share knowledge and build connections. Also a wish in 
the responses to have a local business ‘champion’. 

• More readily available information was desired about how to work with the 
council and access business opportunities. There is also concern that if 
too much focus is placed on regeneration, then small businesses will be 
overlooked, so continued support from the Council is necessary. 

 
5.20  These points are recognised in the strategy and will be a particular focus for 

implementation. 
 

111



6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
6.1 Developing Barnet’s Economic Strategy, Middlesex University Report to Re: 

http://www.barnet.gov.uk/developing-barnets-economic-strategy  
 

6.2 Consultation page (consultation closed on 20 November 2014): 
http://engage.barnet.gov.uk/consultation-team/entrepreneurial-
barnet/consult_view  

 

112



  

1
 

     

 

E
N

T
R

E
P

R
E

N
E

U
R

IA
L
 B

A
R

N
E

T
 

 

T
H

E
 P

U
B

L
IC

 S
E

C
T

O
R

 C
O

N
T

R
IB

U
T

IO
N

 T
O

 B
A

R
N

E
T

’S
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

, 
2

0
1

5
-2

0
2

0
 

 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r
 2

0
1

4
 

    

113



  

2
 

  C
O

N
T

E
N

T
S

 

1
. 

O
v

e
rv

ie
w

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
3

 

2
. 

O
u

r 
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 O

b
je

ct
iv

e
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

6
 

3
. 

T
h

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

E
co

n
o

m
y

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

7
 

4
. 

Lo
ca

l,
 R

e
g

io
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

P
o

li
ci

e
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

9
 

5
. 

T
h

e
m

e
s 

 

A
. 

G
e

tt
in

g
 t

h
e

 B
a

si
cs

 R
ig

h
t 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1
0

 

B
. 

A
 G

re
a

t 
P

la
ce

 t
o

 W
o

rk
, 

Li
v

e
 a

n
d

 I
n

v
e

st
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1

3
 

C
. 

S
k

il
le

d
 E

m
p

lo
y

e
e

s 
a

n
d

 E
n

tr
e

p
re

n
e

u
rs

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2
2

 

D
. 

Im
p

ro
v

in
g

 A
cc

e
ss

 t
o

 M
a

rk
e

ts
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
2

9
 

E
. 

F
a

ci
li

ta
ti

n
g

 B
u

si
n

e
ss

 G
ro

w
th

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
2

 

1
0

. 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

o
ci

a
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
si

b
il

it
y

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
6

 

1
1

. 
E

n
su

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
E

v
e

ry
b

o
d

y
 H

a
s 

th
e

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 t

o
 G

a
in

 f
ro

m
 G

ro
w

th
 

 
 

 
3

6
 

1
2

. 
In

v
o

lv
in

g
 R

e
si

d
e

n
ts

, 
B

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
a

n
d

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
7

 

1
3

. 
M

e
a

su
ri

n
g

 S
u

cc
e

ss
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
3

8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

114



  

3
 

 O
v

e
rv

ie
w

 

1
. 

A
 t

h
ri

v
in

g
 e

co
n

o
m

y
 w

h
ic

h
 t

a
p

s 
in

to
 t

h
e

 e
n

tr
e

p
re

n
e

u
ri

a
l 

sp
ir

it
 o

f 
lo

ca
l 

re
si

d
e

n
ts

 i
s 

a
n

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

e
le

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

o
u

r 
a

sp
ir

a
ti

o
n

 t
o

 b
e

 a
 

su
cc

e
ss

fu
l,

 g
ro

w
in

g
 s

u
b

u
rb

 o
f 

a
 s

u
cc

e
ss

fu
l,

 g
ro

w
in

g
 w

o
rl

d
 c

it
y
. 

 B
a

rn
e

t 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
re

 c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 t

h
e

 e
co

n
o

m
y 

to
 g

ro
w

 a
n

d
 t

o
 i

m
p

ro
v
in

g
 l

iv
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s 

b
y
 b

o
o

st
in

g
 i

n
co

m
e

s,
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
a

n
d

 w
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 i

n
 B

a
rn

e
t.

  
T

h
is

 r
e

p
o

rt
 s

e
ts

 o
u

t 
in

 

m
o

re
 d

e
ta

il
 w

h
a

t 
w

e
 a

im
 t

o
 a

ch
ie

v
e

, 
a

n
d

 h
o

w
 w

e
 w

il
l 

g
o

 a
b

o
u

t 
d

o
in

g
 i

t.
  

T
h

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 f
o

cu
se

s 
p

ri
n

ci
p

a
ll
y
 o

n
 t

h
e

 a
ct

io
n

s 
to

 b
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 b

y
 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l;

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 A

u
tu

m
n

 o
th

e
r 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 P
o

li
ce

, 
N

H
S
, 

M
id

d
le

se
x 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y
 a

n
d

 B
a

rn
e

t 
a

n
d

 S
o

u
th

g
a

te
 C

o
ll
e

g
e

, 
w

il
l 

b
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 t
h

e
ir

 p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 t
o

 a
d

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 a
ct

io
n

s 
se

t 
o

u
t 

h
e

re
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
w

e
 d

e
li
v
e

r 
m

a
xi

m
u

m
 b

e
n

e
fi

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 l
o

ca
l 
e

co
n

o
m

y
. 

2
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
ce

n
t 

re
ce

ss
io

n
 f

o
cu

se
d

 a
tt

e
n

ti
o

n
 o

n
 w

h
a

t 
th

e
 w

id
e

r 
p

u
b

li
c 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 s

e
ct

o
rs

 c
a

n
 d

o
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 l

o
ca

l 
e

co
n

o
m

ie
s 

a
n

d
 s

ti
m

u
la

te
 

g
ro

w
th

. 
 W

h
il
e

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

li
c 

se
ct

o
r 

d
o

e
s 

n
o

t 
in

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 

cr
e

a
te

 w
e

a
lt

h
 d

ir
e

ct
ly

, 
it

 d
o

e
s 

h
a

v
e

 a
 m

a
jo

r 
im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 t

h
e

 l
o

ca
l 

e
co

n
o

m
y
. 

 F
o

r 

e
xa

m
p

le
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

m
a

in
ta

in
s 

th
e

 r
o

a
d

s 
th

a
t 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

re
ly

 o
n

 t
o

 r
e

ce
iv

e
 a

n
d

 d
e

li
v
e

r 
g

o
o

d
s;

 a
ct

s 
a

s 
re

g
u

la
to

r 
a

n
d

 a
s 

th
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

; 
a

n
d

 b
u

y
s 

g
o

o
d

s 
a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s.

  
T

h
e

 p
u

b
li
c 

se
ct

o
r,

 a
lo

n
g

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 s

e
ct

o
rs

, 
is

 a
ls

o
 i

n
cr

e
a

si
n

g
ly

 r
e

li
a

n
t 

o
n

 

lo
ca

ll
y
 g

e
n

e
ra

te
d

 i
n

co
m

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

ir
 f

in
a

n
ci

a
l 

se
cu

ri
ty

, 
m

e
a

n
in

g
 t

h
a

t 
a

 s
u

cc
e

ss
fu

l 
lo

ca
l 

e
co

n
o

m
y
 i

s 
ti

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 l

o
n

g
e

r 
te

rm
 s

u
cc

e
ss

 o
f 

th
e

 

p
u

b
li
c 

se
ct

o
r 

a
s 

a
 w

h
o

le
. 

 

3
. 

B
a

rn
e

t 
h

a
s 

a
 s

tr
o

n
g

 e
co

n
o

m
y
, 

b
a

se
d

 p
re

d
o

m
in

a
n

tl
y
 o

n
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
sm

a
ll
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s.
  

A
lt

h
o

u
g

h
 n

o
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

se
ct

o
r 

d
o

m
in

a
te

s,
 

th
e

re
 a

re
 a

 l
a

rg
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

co
m

p
a

n
ie

s 
o

ff
e

ri
n

g
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
-t

o
-b

u
si

n
e

ss
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
a

l 
se

rv
ic

e
s,

 a
n

d
 a

 g
ro

w
in

g
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

ff
e

ri
n

g
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
-t

o
-

co
n

su
m

e
r 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
IT

, 
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

, 
a

n
d

 m
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
. 

 M
a

n
y
 o

f 
o

u
r 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

a
re

 o
w

n
e

d
 b

y
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

, 
a

n
d

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 

o
f 

o
u

r 
re

si
d

e
n

ts
 (

a
ro

u
n

d
 4

0
%

) 
w

o
rk

 l
o

ca
ll
y
. 

 B
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

a
re

 i
n

cr
e

a
si

n
g

ly
 b

e
in

g
 r

u
n

 f
ro

m
 h

o
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s 

im
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 

(p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y 

d
ig

it
a

l 
in

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
) 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 k
in

d
 o

f 
w

o
rk

sp
a

ce
 n

e
e

d
e

d
. 

4
. 

B
y
 c

o
n

tr
a

st
, 

B
a

rn
e

t 
h

a
s 

a
 m

u
ch

 l
o

w
e

r 
th

a
n

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

la
rg

e
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s,
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 t

o
p

 5
0

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

b
y
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 

a
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 f
o

r 
ju

st
 a

 f
if

th
 o

f 
jo

b
s 

in
 t

h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
 H

ig
h

 d
e

m
a

n
d

 f
o

r 
la

n
d

 t
o

 b
u

il
d

 h
o

u
si

n
g

, 
a

n
d

 a
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

ly
 s

h
o

rt
 s

u
p

p
ly

 o
f 

in
d

u
st

ri
a

l 
a

n
d

 

co
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
la

n
d

 m
e

a
n

 t
h

a
t 

B
a

rn
e

t 
is

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 r
e

m
a

in
 a

 s
m

a
ll
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 e

co
n

o
m

y
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 m

e
d

iu
m

 t
o

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

te
rm

. 
 T

h
e

 e
xc

e
p

ti
o

n
 i

s 
th

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

B
re

n
t 

C
ro

ss
 
C

ri
ck

le
w

o
o

d
, 

w
h

ic
h

 
o

ff
e

rs
 
a

 
si

g
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 
to

 
cr

e
a

te
 
a

 
n

e
w

 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
 
h

u
b

 
fo

r 
B

a
rn

e
t,

 
h

o
st

in
g

 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

o
f 

d
if

fe
re

n
t 

si
ze

s,
 i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 l
a

rg
e

r 
n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 
a

n
d

 i
n

te
rn

a
ti

o
n

a
l 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s,
 a

n
d

 h
e

a
d

q
u

a
rt

e
rs

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s.

 

5
. 

T
h

e
 p

ri
n

ci
p

a
l 

ch
a

ll
e

n
g

e
, 

th
e

re
fo

re
, 

is
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 B
a

rn
e

t’
s 

st
re

n
g

th
 a

s 
a

 b
a

se
 f

o
r 

sm
a

ll
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s,
 w

h
il
st

 a
ls

o
 c

re
a

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

fo
r 

su
st

a
in

a
b

le
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 g

ro
w

th
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

u
tu

re
. 

 A
s 

su
ch

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 h
a

v
e

 s
e

t 
o

u
rs

e
lv

e
s 

th
e

 g
o

a
l o

f 
e

n
su

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t:
 

B
a

rn
e

t 
is

 t
h

e
 b

e
st

 p
la

ce
 i

n
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 s
m

a
ll

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

  

115



  

4
 

 6
. 

O
f 

co
u

rs
e

 t
h

e
re

 w
il
l 

a
lw

a
y
s 

b
e

 m
e

d
iu

m
-s

iz
e

d
 a

n
d

 l
a

rg
e

r 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
in

 B
a

rn
e

t 
to

o
. 

 T
h

e
y
 p

la
y
 a

n
 i

m
p

o
rt

a
n

t 
ro

le
 i

n
 o

u
r 

e
co

n
o

m
y
, 

a
n

d
 m

a
n

y 

o
f 

th
e

 t
h

in
g

s 
th

a
t 

a
re

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

to
 s

m
a

ll
e

r 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
a

re
 a

ls
o

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

to
 t

h
e

m
. 

 B
a

rn
e

t 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

re
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 c

o
m

m
it

te
d

 t
o

 w
o

rk
in

g
 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l’

s 
Jo

in
t 

V
e

n
tu

re
 p

a
rt

n
e

r,
 R

e

, 
to

 d
e

li
v
e

r 
a

 s
u

st
a

in
e

d
 i

m
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t 

in
 B

a
rn

e
t’

s 
ra

n
ki

n
g

 o
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
ca

l 
F
u

tu
re

s 
B

u
si

n
e

ss
 L

o
ca

ti
o

n
 

In
d

e
x 

to
 b

e
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 T
o

p
 1

0
0

 L
A

 a
re

a
s 

in
 t

h
e

 U
K

 o
u

t 
o

f 
3

2
5

 (
B

a
rn

e
t 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 r

a
n

k
e

d
 a

t 
1

2
5
1
),

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 t
o

p
 t

e
n

 p
e

r 
ce

n
t 

w
h

e
n

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 

to
 s

im
il
a

r 
b

o
ro

u
g

h
s.

 

7
. 

M
u

ch
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b

li
c 

se
ct

o
r 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 t

h
a

t 
im

p
a

ct
s 

o
u

r 
e

co
n

o
m

y
 t

a
k
e

s 
p

la
ce

 a
t 

su
b

-r
e

g
io

n
a

l 
o

r 
ci

ty
-w

id
e

 l
e

v
e

l.
 C

o
n

se
q

u
e

n
tl

y
, 

fu
n

d
a

m
e

n
ta

l 
to

 

th
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 w
il
l 

b
e

 c
lo

se
 a

n
d

 r
o

u
ti

n
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 B

a
rn

e
t 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

a
n

d
 n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

ri
n

g
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
s,

 t
h

e
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 

M
a

y
o

r 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 G

re
a

te
r 

Lo
n

d
o

n
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
, 

a
n

d
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t.
  
T

h
e

 r
e

ce
n

t 
W

e
st

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 A
ll
ia

n
ce

 J
o

b
s,

 S
k
il
ls

 a
n

d
 G

ro
w

th
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 

is
 a

n
 e

xa
m

p
le

 o
f 

th
is

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
. 

8
. 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 f
iv

e
 k

e
y
 w

a
y
s 

in
 w

h
ic

h
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 i
n

 B
a

rn
e

t 
im

p
a

ct
 u

p
o

n
 l
o

ca
l 
e

co
n

o
m

ie
s 

a
n

d
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 t

h
e

 f
o

cu
s 

o
f 

th
is

 r
e

p
o

rt
: 

•
 

G
e

tt
in

g
 t

h
e

 b
a

si
cs

 r
ig

h
t.

  
E

n
su

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
w

h
e

n
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
n

e
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
g

a
g

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
–

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

to
 p

a
y
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 r

a
te

s,
 a

p
p

ly
 

fo
r 

a
 l

ic
e

n
ce

, 
o

r 
re

p
o

rt
 a

 p
ro

b
le

m
 –

 t
h

e
 p

ro
ce

ss
 i

s 
a

s 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

t,
 t

ra
n

sp
a

re
n

t 
a

n
d

 p
a

in
le

ss
 a

s 
p

o
ss

ib
le

, 
a

n
d

 d
o

e
s 

n
o

t 
cr

e
a

te
 a

n
y 

u
n

n
e

ce
ss

a
ry

 c
o

n
st

ra
in

ts
 o

r 
co

st
s 

o
n

 r
u

n
n

in
g

 a
 s

u
cc

e
ss

fu
l 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
. 

  

•
 

S
te

w
a

rd
sh

ip
 o

f 
p

la
ce

. 
 T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

is
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

le
 f

o
r 

m
a

in
ta

in
in

g
 m

u
ch

 o
f 

th
e

 b
u

il
t 

a
n

d
 n

a
tu

ra
l 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

in
 t

h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 m
a

n
y
 a

sp
e

ct
s 

o
f 

o
u

r 
to

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
s,

 a
n

d
 s

o
 h

a
s 

a
 b

ig
 i

n
fl

u
e

n
ce

 o
n

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

B
a

rn
e

t 
is

 a
 p

le
a

sa
n

t 
p

la
ce

 f
o

r 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
a

n
d

 

th
e

ir
 s

ta
ff

 t
o

 l
o

ca
te

, 
a

n
d

 a
n

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

p
la

ce
 t

o
 m

o
ve

 a
ro

u
n

d
. 

 O
u

r 
re

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

lo
n

e
 w

il
l 

cr
e

a
te

 3
,0

0
0

 j
o

b
s 

d
ir

e
ct

ly
, 

a
n

d
 

co
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
sp

a
ce

 f
o

r 
2

7
,0

0
0

 m
o

re
 b

y
 2

0
3

0
, 

a
s 

w
e

ll
 a

s 
p

ro
v
id

in
g

 t
h

e
 s

p
a

ce
 a

n
d

 f
le

xi
b

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 g
ro

w
th

. 
  

•
 

S
h

a
p

in
g

 
th

e
 

la
b

o
u

r 
m

a
rk

e
t.

 
 

A
lt

h
o

u
g

h
 

th
e

 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
h

a
s 

a
 

le
ss

 
d

ir
e

ct
 

ro
le

 
in

 
e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 
th

a
n

 
in

 
th

e
 

p
a

st
, 

it
 

re
ta

in
s 

o
v
e

ra
ll
 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

e
n

su
ri

n
g

 s
ch

o
o

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t,

 a
n

d
 w

o
rk

s 
cl

o
se

ly
 w

it
h

 B
a

rn
e

t 
a

n
d

 S
o

u
th

g
a

te
 C

o
ll
e

g
e

 a
n

d
 M

id
d

le
se

x 
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 t

o
  

m
a

in
ta

in
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 o

f 
sk

il
ls

 a
m

o
n

g
 B

a
rn

e
t 

re
si

d
e

n
ts

. 
B

y
 d

e
ve

lo
p

in
g

 a
 l

a
b

o
u

r 
m

a
rk

e
t 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 s
k
il
ls

 a
n

d
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
rs

 t
h

a
t 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
 a

re
 s

e
e

k
in

g
, 

a
n

d
 w

it
h

 a
 s

tr
o

n
g

 c
u

lt
u

re
 o

f 
e

n
tr

e
p

re
n

e
u

rs
h

ip
, 

th
e

 d
e

si
ra

b
il
it

y
 o

f 
B

a
rn

e
t 

a
s 

a
 p

la
ce

 t
o

 s
ta

rt
 a

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

 w
il
l 

g
ro

w
 

a
n

d
 

in
co

m
e

s 
w

il
l 

ri
se

. 
A

 
h

e
a

lt
h

y
 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 
w

il
l 

a
ls

o
 

b
e

 
m

o
re

 
p

ro
d

u
ct

iv
e

 
a

n
d

 
th

e
 

C
o

u
n

ci
l,

 
th

ro
u

g
h

 
it

s 
p

u
b

li
c 

h
e

a
lt

h
 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s,

 w
il
l 
p

la
y
 a

 r
o

le
 i
n

 p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 t

h
is

. 

•
 

B
u

y
in

g
 g

o
o

d
s 

a
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s.
 T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

m
a

n
a

g
e

s 
co

n
tr

a
ct

s 
th

a
t 

a
re

 c
o

ll
e

ct
iv

e
ly

 w
o

rt
h

 m
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 £

1
b

n
. 

A
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 w

h
o

le
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
u

b
li
c 

se
ct

o
r 

th
e

 f
ig

u
re

 i
s 

m
u

ch
 h

ig
h

e
r,

 a
n

d
 i

t 
is

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

th
a

t 
lo

ca
l 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

h
a

v
e

 a
 f

a
ir

 c
h

a
n

ce
 o

f 
w

in
n

in
g

 t
h

e
se

 c
o

n
tr

a
ct

s 
in

 a
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
1
 I

n
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

4
 

116



  

5
 

 

tr
a

n
sp

a
re

n
t 

a
n

d
 g

e
n

u
in

e
ly

 c
o

m
p

e
ti

ti
v
e

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t.

  
In

 s
o

m
e

 s
e

ct
o

rs
, 

su
ch

 a
s 

d
o

m
ic

il
ia

ry
 c

a
re

, 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
is

 a
 m

a
in

 p
la

y
e

r 
in

 t
h

e
 

m
a

rk
e

t 
a

n
d

 m
u

st
 c

le
a

rl
y
 s

ig
n

a
l 
li
k
e

ly
 f

u
tu

re
 n

e
e

d
s 

so
 t

h
a

t 
p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 c
a

n
 r

e
sp

o
n

d
. 

•
 

P
ro

v
id

in
g

 o
r 

si
g

n
p

o
st

in
g

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

a
n

d
 p

re
m

is
e

s.
  

T
ra

d
it

io
n

a
l 

e
co

n
o

m
ic

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 f

o
cu

se
s 

o
n

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

, 
p

re
m

is
e

s,
 a

n
d

 n
e

tw
o

rk
in

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s.
  

W
h

il
e

 t
h

is
 i

s 
n

o
t 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l’

s 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 f
o

cu
s,

 w
e

 d
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
 

ro
le

 i
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 s

u
re

 t
h

a
t 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

k
n

o
w

 h
o

w
 t

o
 a

cc
e

ss
 t

h
e

se
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
a

n
d

 a
ss

o
ci

a
te

d
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 i

n
 a

 t
ra

n
sp

a
re

n
t 

w
a

y
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
a

t 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

is
 i

n
fo

rm
e

d
 b

y
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 d

ia
lo

g
u

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll
o

w
s 

u
s 

to
 r

e
sp

o
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 e

co
n

o
m

ic
 

cl
im

a
te

 i
n

 a
 w

a
y
 t

h
a

t 
m

a
in

ta
in

s 
st

ro
n

g
 g

ro
w

th
. 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 c
re

a
te

s 
g

ro
w

th
, 

a
n

d
 w

e
 w

il
l 

d
o

 w
h

a
t 

w
e

 c
a

n
 t

o
 e

n
co

u
ra

g
e

 t
h

is
 a

t 
e

v
e

ry
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
. 

  

9
. 

If
 w

e
 c

a
n

 g
e

t 
th

e
se

 f
iv

e
 a

re
a

s 
ri

g
h

t,
 w

e
 c

a
n

 g
iv

e
 a

 r
e

a
l 

b
o

o
st

 t
o

 l
o

ca
l 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s’

 c
h

a
n

ce
 o

f 
su

cc
e

ss
. 

 I
f 

w
e

 d
o

 n
o

t,
 w

e
 c

o
u

ld
 s

e
ri

o
u

sl
y 

h
in

d
e

r 
p

ro
sp

e
ct

s 
fo

r 
g

ro
w

th
. 

  
T

h
is

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 d

ra
ft

 s
e

ts
 o

u
t 

h
o

w
 w

e
 p

ro
p

o
se

 t
o

 a
ch

ie
v
e

 o
u

r 
g

o
a

l 
o

f 
m

a
k
in

g
 B

a
rn

e
t 

th
e

 b
e

st
 p

la
ce

 i
n

 

Lo
n

d
o

n
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 s
m

a
ll
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
, 

a
n

d
 o

u
tl

in
e

s 
so

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 k
e

y
 a

ct
io

n
s 

w
e

 w
il
l 
ta

k
e

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

th
e

se
 o

b
je

ct
iv

e
s.

 

 

 
 

117



  

6
 

 O
u

r 
st

ra
te

g
ic

 o
b

je
ct

iv
e

s 

O
u

r 
st

ra
te

g
ic

 o
b

je
ct

iv
e

s 
a

re
 o

rg
a

n
is

e
d

 i
n

to
 f

iv
e

 t
h

e
m

e
s,

 a
s 

se
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 d

ia
g

ra
m

 b
e

lo
w

. 
 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

a
b

le
 t

o
 

a
cc

e
ss

 t
h

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

y
 

n
e

e
d

C
o

n
n

e
ct

in
g

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

a
n

d
 u

n
iv

e
rs

it
ie

s

Lo
ca

l 
a

n
d

 s
m

a
ll
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 

a
cc

e
ss

in
g

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 
co

n
tr

a
ct

s

W
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
  

to
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 s

k
il
le

d
 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ts
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 s

k
il
ls

 t
o

 

su
cc

e
e

d

E
n

co
u

ra
g

in
g

 a
 c

u
lt

u
re

 o
f 

e
n

tr
e

p
re

n
e

u
rs

h
ip

A
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e

T
h

ri
v
in

g
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

s

E
x
ce

ll
e

n
ce

 i
n

 r
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 g

ro
w

th

F
it

 f
o

r 
p

u
rp

o
se

 i
n

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 a

n
d

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

  
n

e
tw

o
rk

s

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 C

u
st

o
m

e
r 

A
cc

e
ss

S
tr

e
a

m
li
n

e
d

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g

F
a

ci
li

ta
ti

n
g

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

 

g
ro

w
th

A
cc

e
ss

 t
o

 m
a

rk
e

ts

S
k

il
le

d
  
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s 

&
 

e
n

tr
e

p
re

n
e

u
rs

A
 g

re
a

t 
p

la
ce

 t
o

 l
iv

e
, 

w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 i
n

v
e

st

G
e

tt
in

g
 t

h
e

 b
a

si
cs

 

ri
g

h
t

118



  

7
 

 C
o

n
te

x
t 

 

T
h

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

E
co

n
o

m
y

 

1
0

. 
B

a
rn

e
t 

is
 t

h
e

 s
e

co
n

d
 l

a
rg

e
st

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 i
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n

, 
w

it
h

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 g
ro

w
th

 o
f 

1
6

%
 p

ro
je

ct
e

d
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
xt

 2
0

 y
e

a
rs

. 
It

 a
ct

s 
a

s 
a

 g
a

te
w

a
y
 t

o
 

th
e

 c
a

p
it

a
l 

b
y
 r

o
a

d
 a

n
d

 b
y
 r

a
il
, 

w
it

h
 b

o
th

 t
h

e
 M

1
 a

n
d

 t
w

o
 m

a
jo

r 
ra

il
 l

in
e

s 
p

ro
v
id

in
g

 e
a

sy
 a

cc
e

ss
 t

o
 c

e
n

tr
a

l 
Lo

n
d

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 r
e

st
 o

f 
th

e
 U

K
. 

F
o

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 l
iv

in
g

 a
n

d
 w

o
rk

in
g

 i
n

 B
a

rn
e

t,
 C

e
n

tr
a

l 
Lo

n
d

o
n

 i
s 

o
n

ly
 3

0
 m

in
u

te
s 

a
w

a
y
 b

y
 t

u
b

e
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

se
 j

o
u

rn
e

y
 t

im
e

s 
a

re
 s

e
t 

to
 f

a
ll
 

si
g

n
if

ic
a

n
tl

y
 a

s 
th

e
 u

p
g

ra
d

e
 o

f 
th

e
 N

o
rt

h
e

rn
 L

in
e

 i
s 

co
m

p
le

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

e
co

n
d

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
2

0
1

4
. 

 D
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
m

a
jo

r 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 a

re
a

s 
a

t 

B
re

n
t 

C
ro

ss
-C

ri
ck

le
w

o
o

d
 a

n
d

 C
o

li
n

d
a

le
 w

il
l 

cr
e

a
te

 t
h

o
u

sa
n

d
s 

o
f 

n
e

w
 j

o
b

s 
a

n
d

 h
o

m
e

s,
 a

s 
w

e
ll
 a

s 
o

ff
e

ri
n

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
to

 u
p

g
ra

d
e

 k
e

y 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

. 
 

 

1
1

. 
W

it
h

 a
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
3

6
4

,0
0

0
 i

n
 2

0
1

4
, 

a
n

d
 a

 l
a

b
o

u
r 

m
a

rk
e

t 
th

a
t 

is
 c

h
a

ra
ct

e
ri

se
d

 b
y
 a

 h
ig

h
 l

e
v
e

l 
o

f 
sk

il
ls

, 
h

ig
h

 m
o

b
il
it

y
, 

a
n

d
 f

le
xi

b
il
it

y
 t

o
 

a
d

a
p

t 
to

 c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 e

co
n

o
m

ic
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s,
 B

a
rn

e
t 

is
 i

n
 a

n
 e

xc
e

ll
e

n
t 

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 g
ro

w
in

g
 l

o
ca

l,
 L

o
n

d
o

n
, 

a
n

d
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

e
co

n
o

m
ie

s.
 T

h
e

 u
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
ra

te
 i

s 
cu

rr
e

n
tl

y
 s

li
g

h
tl

y
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a

n
 w

a
s 

th
e

 c
a

se
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e

 r
e

ce
ss

io
n

, 
a

t 
5

.9
%

 i
n

 D
e

ce
m

b
e

r 

2
0

1
3

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 w

it
h

 5
.6

%
 i

n
 l

a
te

 2
0

0
7

. 
 W

h
il
e

 B
a

rn
e

t 
a

s 
a

 w
h

o
le

 h
a

s 
e

xp
e

ri
e

n
ce

d
 l

o
w

e
r 

u
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
th

a
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 d

u
ri

n
g

 

th
a

t 
p

e
ri

o
d

, 
th

is
 m

a
sk

s 
d

if
fe

re
n

ce
s 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 d
if

fe
re

n
t 

p
a

rt
s 

o
f 

th
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

, 
w

it
h

 p
o

ck
e

ts
 o

f 
si

g
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
d

e
p

ri
v
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
le

ss
n

e
ss

. 

E
n

su
ri

n
g

 t
h

a
t 

e
v
e

ry
o

n
e

 i
n

 B
a

rn
e

t 
is

 a
b

le
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o

 g
ro

w
th

, 
a

s 
w

e
ll
 a

s 
b

e
n

e
fi

t 
fr

o
m

 i
t 

b
y
 h

a
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 r
ig

h
t 

sk
il
ls

, 
w

il
l 

b
e

 a
 c

o
re

 a
re

a
 o

f 

fo
cu

s 
fo

r 
o

u
r 

fu
tu

re
 a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 t
h

e
 e

co
n

o
m

y
. 

 

1
2

. 
B

a
rn

e
t 

is
 v

a
ri

e
d

 g
e

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

a
ll
y
, 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 e
a

st
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 a
tt

ra
ct

iv
e

 a
n

d
 l

e
a

fy
 E

d
w

a
rd

ia
n

 a
n

d
 V

ic
to

ri
a

n
 s

u
b

u
rb

s,
 q

u
a

li
ty

 p
a

rk
s 

a
n

d
 g

re
e

n
 s

p
a

ce
s,

 a
n

d
 e

a
sy

 a
cc

e
ss

 t
o

 t
h

e
 g

re
e

n
 b

e
lt

 a
n

d
 n

a
tu

ra
l 

b
e

a
u

ty
 o

f 
T

o
tt

e
ri

d
g

e
. 

T
h

e
 w

e
st

 o
f 

th
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
n

 t
h

e
 o

th
e

r 
h

a
n

d
 i

s 

ch
a

ra
ct

e
ri

se
d

 b
y
 h

ig
h

 g
ro

w
th

, 
fa

st
 c

h
a

n
g

e
, 

n
e

w
 i

n
v
e

st
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t,

 a
n

d
 a

 r
a

p
id

ly
 g

ro
w

in
g

 a
n

d
 d

iv
e

rs
e

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 a
s 

n
e

w
 

h
o

u
si

n
g

, 
re

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
co

m
e

 t
o

 f
ru

it
io

n
. 

 

1
3

. 
 A

 d
e

ta
il
e

d
 a

n
a

ly
si

s 
o

f 
th

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

e
co

n
o

m
y
 i

s 
se

t 
o

u
t 

in
 a

 r
e

p
o

rt
 p

ro
d

u
ce

d
 f

o
r 

R
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

b
y
 M

id
d

le
se

x 
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y2

, 
w

h
ic

h
 

d
e

m
o

n
st

ra
te

s 
th

a
t 

B
a

rn
e

t’
s 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
  
is

 c
h

a
ra

ct
e

ri
se

d
 b

y
: 

 

•
 

S
m

a
ll

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s:

 w
it

h
 a

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 h

ig
h

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
se

lf
-e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t.
 B

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
3
, 

B
a

rn
e

t 
h

a
d

 a
 h

ig
h

e
r 

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
m

ic
ro

 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

(8
9

.7
%

) 
th

a
n

 e
it

h
e

r 
G

re
a

te
r 

Lo
n

d
o

n
 (

8
4

.8
%

) 
o

r 
E

n
g

la
n

d
 (

8
2

.9
%

).
 O

n
 t

h
e

 o
th

e
r 

h
a

n
d

, 
th

e
 l

a
rg

e
st

 5
3

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
 w

it
h

 m
o

re
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
2
 h
tt
p
:/
/w
w
w
.b
a
rn
e
t.
g
o
v
.u
k
/d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
-b
a
rn
e
ts
-e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
-s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

119



  

8
 

 

th
a

n
 2

0
0

 s
ta

ff
 r

e
p

re
se

n
te

d
 2

1
.3

%
 o

f 
th

e
 t

o
ta

l 
B

o
ro

u
g

h
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 i
n

 2
0

0
8
4
. 

M
a

jo
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
 i

n
cl

u
d

e
 M

id
d

le
se

x 
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
, 

M
cD

o
n

a
ld

’s
 

H
e

a
d

 Q
u

a
rt

e
rs

, 
P

e
n

tl
a

n
d

 G
ro

u
p

, 
a

n
d

 B
re

n
t 

C
ro

ss
 S

h
o

p
p

in
g

 C
e

n
tr

e
. 

 

•
 

D
y

n
a

m
is

m
: 

A
 h

ig
h

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
e

n
tr

e
p

re
n

e
u

ri
a

li
sm

, 
d

e
m

o
n

st
ra

te
d

 b
y
 a

n
 a

b
o

ve
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
 s

ta
rt

-u
p

s 
(2

,9
9

5
 i

n
 2

0
1

2
),

 b
u

t 

a
ls

o
 a

n
 a

b
o

v
e

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 l

e
v
e

l 
o

f 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
 f

a
il
u

re
s 

3
,1

7
5

 i
n

 2
0

1
2
5
. 

 O
n

ly
 5

3
.1

%
 o

f 
B

a
rn

e
t 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

cu
rr

e
n

tl
y
 s

u
rv

iv
e

 m
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 3

 y
e

a
rs

, 

co
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 5
6

.2
%

 f
o

r 
G

re
a

te
r 

Lo
n

d
o

n
 a

n
d

 5
9

.7
%

 f
o

r 
E

n
g

la
n

d
. 

E
n

su
ri

n
g

 t
h

a
t 

e
n

tr
e

p
re

n
e

u
rs

 h
a

v
e

 a
cc

e
ss

 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

y
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 

st
a

rt
 w

e
ll
, 

g
ro

w
 a

n
d

 s
u

st
a

in
 t

h
e

ir
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
is

 a
n

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
o

u
r 

a
p

p
ro

a
ch

. 

•
 

H
ig

h
 s

k
il

l 
le

v
e

ls
: 

 H
a

lf
 o

f 
re

si
d

e
n

ts
 h

o
ld

 a
 q

u
a

li
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 a
t 

N
V

Q
 l

e
v
e

l 
4

 o
r 

a
b

o
v
e

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i

s 
h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a

n
 t

h
e

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 o
r 

th
e

 U
K

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
s.

 

W
h

il
st

 3
9

%
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 w
o

rk
in

g
 g

ra
d

u
a

te
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

 w
o

rk
 l

o
ca

ll
y
 i

n
 B

a
rn

e
t 

(d
o

w
n

 s
li
g

h
tl

y
 f

ro
m

 4
1

%
 i

n
 2

0
0

1
),

 5
6

%
 w

o
rk

 i
n

 o
th

e
r 

Lo
n

d
o

n
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
s 

(p
ri

n
ci

p
a

ll
y
 i
n

 C
a

m
d

e
n

, 
W

e
st

m
in

st
e

r,
 t

h
e

 C
it

y 
o

f 
Lo

n
d

o
n

 a
n

d
 S

o
u

th
w

a
rk

).
  

•
 

D
iv

e
rs

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

se
ct

o
rs

: 
B

a
rn

e
t’

s 
e

co
n

o
m

y
 i

sn
’t

 c
h

a
ra

ct
e

ri
se

d
 b

y
 a

 s
in

g
le

 d
o

m
in

a
n

t 
se

ct
o

r.
 T

h
e

 l
a

rg
e

st
 a

re
a

s 
o

f 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
fo

cu
s 

o
n

 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

-t
o

-b
u

si
n

e
ss

 a
n

d
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
-t

o
-c

o
n

su
m

e
r 

se
rv

ic
e

s,
 r

e
ta

il
, 

h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
, 

a
n

d
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 a

n
d

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s.

 

•
 

A
re

a
s 

o
f 

h
ig

h
 g

ro
w

th
: 

T
h

e
 b

ig
g

e
st

 g
ro

w
th

 s
e

ct
o

rs
 i

n
 B

a
rn

e
t 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
a

st
 f

o
u

r 
y
e

a
rs

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 (

3
0

%
),

 p
ro

p
e

rt
y
 (

2
5

.8
%

),
 

h
e

a
lt

h
 (

2
1

.6
%

) 
a

n
d

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l,

 S
ci

e
n

ti
fi

c 
&

 T
e

ch
n

ic
a

l 
(P

S
T

) 
(2

0
.3

%
).

 D
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 l
a

st
 r

e
co

rd
e

d
 y

e
a

r,
 g

ro
w

th
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 

st
ro

n
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 (

8
.5

%
),

 p
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 (

8
.3

%
) 

a
n

d
 e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 (
5

.8
%

) 
se

ct
o

rs
. 

B
a

rn
e

t’
s 

g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 p
ro

p
e

rt
y
, 

e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
, 

h
e

a
lt

h
, 

P
S
T

 a
n

d
 

th
e

 m
o

to
r 

tr
a

d
e

s 
se

ct
o

rs
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 s

tr
o

n
g

 w
h

e
n

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 A
5

 c
o

rr
id

o
r 

a
n

d
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 a

s 
a

 w
h

o
le

. 
 

•
 

H
ig

h
ly

 d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
: 

B
a

rn
e

t 
is

 c
h

a
ra

ct
e

ri
se

d
 b

y
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

to
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

s.
  

T
h

e
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 P

la
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
s 

o
n

e
 m

a
jo

r 
to

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
 i

n
 

E
d

g
w

a
re

, 
1

4
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

to
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

s,
 a

n
d

 1
5

 l
o

ca
l 
a

n
d

 n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 c

e
n

tr
e

s.
 

 

1
4

. 
T

h
e

 m
o

st
 r

e
ce

n
t 

d
a

ta
 s

u
g

g
e

st
s 

th
a

t 
in

 2
0

1
2

 t
h

e
re

 w
e

re
 6

5
 j

o
b

s 
in

 B
a

rn
e

t 
fo

r 
e

v
e

ry
 1

0
0

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ts
 a

g
e

d
 1

6
-6

5
. 

 A
lt

h
o

u
g

h
 t

h
is

 r
a

ti
o

 i
s 

sl
ig

h
tl

y 

b
e

lo
w

 t
h

e
 E

n
g

la
n

d
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 o

f 
7

9
, 

w
h

e
n

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 s

im
il
a
r 

su
b

u
rb

a
n

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

s 
B

a
rn

e
t 

h
a

s 
a

 r
e

la
ti

v
e

ly
 h

ig
h

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 j
o

b
s:

 

R
e

d
b

ri
d

g
e

 h
a

s 
a

 s
co

re
 o

f 
4

7
; 

E
n

fi
e

ld
 5

0
; 

H
a

rr
o

w
 5

7
; 

B
re

n
t 

5
7

; 
C

ro
y
d

o
n

 5
8

; 
a

n
d

 E
a

li
n

g
 6

4
6
. 

 H
o

u
n

sl
o

w
 a

n
d

 H
il
li
n

g
d

o
n

 h
a

v
e

 m
u

ch
 h

ig
h

e
r 

sc
o

re
s 

d
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
re

se
n

ce
 o

f 
H

e
a

th
ro

w
 A

ir
p

o
rt

. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 a

s 
th

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
Lo

n
d

o
n

 g
ro

w
s 

ra
p

id
ly

 s
o

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

th
o

se
 w

o
rk

in
g

 

in
 o

u
te

r 
Lo

n
d

o
n

 i
s 

li
k
e

ly
 t

o
 g

ro
w

. 
  

T
h

a
t 

m
e

a
n

s 
fo

r 
e

v
e

ry
 1

0
0

 n
e

w
 w

o
rk

in
g

 a
g

e
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

, 
a

t 
le

a
st

 6
5

 n
e

w
 j

o
b

s 
m

u
st

 b
e

 c
re

a
te

d
. 

 O
u

r 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

3
 O
N
S
 I
D
B
R
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 A
c
ti
v
it
y
, 
S
iz
e
 a
n
d
 L
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 h
tt
p
:/
/w
w
w
.o
n
s
.g
o
v
.u
k
/o
n
s
/p
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
/r
e
-r
e
fe
re
n
c
e
-t
a
b
le
s
.h
tm
l?
e
d
it
io
n
=
tc
m
%
3
A
7
7
-3
1
3
7
4
4
 

4
 N
O
M
IS
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 I
n
q
u
ir
y
 (
2
0
0
8
) 

5
 O

N
S

 B
u

si
n

e
ss

 D
e

m
o

g
ra

p
h

y
 2

0
1

2
 h

tt
p

:/
/w

w
w

.o
n

s.
g

o
v.

u
k

/o
n

s/
d

a
ta

se
ts

-a
n

d
-

ta
b

le
s/

in
d

e
x.

h
tm

l?
p

a
g

e
S

iz
e

=
5

0
&

so
rt

B
y

=
n

o
n

e
&

so
rt

D
ir

e
ct

io
n

=
n

o
n

e
&

n
e

w
q

u
e

ry
=

b
u

si
n

e
ss

+
d

e
m

o
g

ra
p

h
y

&
co

n
te

n
t-

ty
p

e
=

R
e

fe
re

n
ce

+
ta

b
le

&
co

n
te

n
t-

ty
p

e
=

D
a

ta
se

t 
6
 S

o
u

rc
e

 –
 N

O
M

IS
 (

2
0

1
4

) 

120



  

9
 

 

cu
rr

e
n

t 
re

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 d

e
li
v
e

rs
 c

a
p

a
ci

ty
 f

o
r 

th
is

 j
o

b
s 

g
ro

w
th

, 
b

u
t 

n
o

n
e

th
e

le
ss

 m
a

in
ta

in
in

g
 a

 s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

tl
y 

la
rg

e
 e

co
n

o
m

ic
 b

a
se

 i
s 

li
k
e

ly
 t

o
 n

e
e

d
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
 a

tt
e

n
ti

o
n

. 
 

 

1
5

. 
C

e
n

tr
a

l 
G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

t 
fu

n
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

u
b

li
c 

se
ct

o
r 

in
 B

a
rn

e
t 

h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 m

a
ss

iv
e

ly
 r

e
d

u
ce

d
 s

in
ce

 2
0

1
0

 –
 s

a
v
in

g
s 

o
f 

£
7

2
m

il
li
o

n
 h

a
v
e

 a
lr

e
a

d
y 

b
e

e
n

 d
e

li
v
e

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

a
lo

n
e

, 
w

it
h

 a
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
£

7
3

.5
 m

il
li
o

n
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 b

y
 2

0
2

0
. 

 A
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 w

h
o

le
 p

u
b

li
c 

se
ct

o
r 

in
 B

a
rn

e
t 

w
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 

m
a

k
e

 £
1

8
4

m
il
li
o

n
 s

a
v
in

g
s 

b
y
 2

0
2

0
 –

 a
 r

e
d

u
ct

io
n

 o
f 

a
ro

u
n

d
 h

a
lf

 o
f 

o
u

r 
to

ta
l 

b
u

d
g

e
t.

  
G

o
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

, 
w

e
 w

il
l 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

e
v
e

ry
 

p
e

n
n

y
 i

s 
w

o
rk

in
g

 h
a

rd
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 a

n
d

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

 h
e

re
, 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 b
y
 c

o
n

si
d

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 i

m
p

a
ct

 o
f 

o
u

r 
p

o
li
ci

e
s 

a
n

d
 s

p
e

n
d

in
g

 o
n

 t
h

e
 l

o
ca

l 

e
co

n
o

m
y
, 

a
n

d
 l
o

ca
l 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s,
 a

s 
a

 w
h

o
le

. 

 

Lo
ca

l,
 R

e
g

io
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

P
o

li
ci

e
s 

1
6

. 
A

s 
w

e
ll
 a

s 
b

e
in

g
 a

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t,
 t

h
is

 r
e

p
o

rt
 h

a
s 

a
ls

o
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
si

g
n

e
d

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 d
e

li
v
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l’
s 

w
id

e
r 

st
ra

te
g

ic
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s,

 

w
h

ic
h

 a
re

: 
to

 p
ro

m
o

te
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

le
 g

ro
w

th
; 

su
p

p
o

rt
 f

a
m

il
ie

s 
a

n
d

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 t
h

a
t 

n
e

e
d

 i
t;

 a
n

d
 i

m
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 s

a
ti

sf
a

ct
io

n
 o

f 
re

si
d

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 w
it

h
 B

a
rn

e
t 

a
s 

a
 p

la
ce

 t
o

 l
iv

e
. 

 T
h

e
 a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 a

ls
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

s 
p

la
n

s 
fo

r 
th

e
 l

o
n

g
e

r-
te

rm
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n
, 

e
n

h
a
n

ce
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 g
ro

w
th

 o
f 

th
e

 

p
h

y
si

ca
l 
in

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 L
o

ca
l 
P

la
n

. 
 

 

1
7

. 
O

u
r 

e
ff

o
rt

s 
to

 c
re

a
te

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s 
in

 w
h

ic
h

 e
n

tr
e

p
re

n
e

u
rs

 c
a

n
 t

h
ri

v
e

 a
ls

o
 a

li
g

n
 w

it
h

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
o

th
e

r 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s 
 t

h
a

t 
lo

ca
l 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 

a
re

 e
n

g
a

g
e

d
 w

it
h

, 
e

it
h

e
r 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

ll
y
 o

r 
in

 c
o

ll
a

b
o

ra
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 o

u
r 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

. 
T

h
e

se
 i
n

cl
u

d
e

: 

 •
 

T
h

e
 J

o
b

 C
e

n
tr

e
 P

lu
s 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t,

 w
h

ic
h

 s
e

ts
 o

u
t 

sh
a

re
d

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s 
fo

r 
ta

ck
li
n

g
 w

o
rk

le
ss

n
e

ss
, 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

: 
In

co
m

e
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

a
n

d
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
S
u

p
p

o
rt

 A
ll
o

w
a

n
ce

 r
e

ci
p

ie
n

ts
; 

th
o

se
 a

g
e

d
 5

0
 o

r 
a

b
o

v
e

; 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 h

e
a

lt
h

 o
r 

m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 n
e

e
d

s;
 t

h
o

se
 w

it
h

 

d
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s;

 y
o

u
n

g
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

; 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 l
o

n
g

-t
e

rm
 u

n
e

m
p

lo
y
e

d
. 

•
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l’
s 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

a
n

d
 i

n
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

th
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

a
ri

si
n

g
 f

ro
m

 g
ro

w
th

 a
t 

B
re

n
t 

C
ro

ss
 C

ri
ck

le
w

o
o

d
 a

n
d

 

C
o

li
n

d
a

le
. 

•
 

B
a

rn
e

t’
s 

H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
e

llb
e

in
g

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 

•
 

T
h

e
 G

LA
’s

 H
e

a
lt

h
y
 W

o
rk

p
la

ce
 C

h
a

rt
e

r.
 

•
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l’
s 

e
xi

st
in

g
 S

k
il
ls

, 
E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 E
n

te
rp

ri
se

 A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
. 

 

 

1
8

. 
T

a
k
e

n
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

th
e

se
 i

n
it

ia
ti

v
e

s 
re

fl
e

ct
 t

h
e

 b
ro

a
d

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 w
e

 t
a

k
e

 t
o

 e
n

co
u

ra
g

in
g

 g
ro

w
th

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 i

m
p

o
rt

a
n

ce
 w

e
 p

la
ce

 o
n

 a
li
g

n
in

g
 o

u
r 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 t

o
 p

u
ll
 i

n
 a

 s
in

g
le

 d
ir

e
ct

io
n

, 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 f

o
cu

si
n

g
 o

n
 t

h
e

 h
e

a
lt

h
, 

w
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
ro

d
u

ct
iv

it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

sh
ip

 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 e
co

n
o

m
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 c
re

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
tt

ra
ct

iv
e

, 
li
v
e

a
b

le
 s

p
a

ce
s.

 

 

121



  

1
0

 

 1
9

. 
O

u
r 

a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 e

n
te

rp
ri

se
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
s 

b
o

th
 t

h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 J

o
b

s 
a

n
d

 G
ro

w
th

 P
la

n
, 

p
re

p
a

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 E
n

te
rp

ri
se

 

P
a

n
e

l,
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 f

in
d

in
g

s 
o

f 
th

e
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 F

in
a

n
ce

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

, 
w

h
ic

h
 m

a
k
e

s 
th

e
 c

a
se

 f
o

r 
Lo

n
d

o
n

 t
o

 t
a

k
e

 g
re

a
te

r 
d

e
v
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
f 

fi
n

a
n

ci
a

l 

p
o

w
e

rs
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

le
v
e

l 
to

 L
o

n
d

o
n

. 
It

 a
ls

o
 l

in
ks

 i
n

 t
o

 T
h

e
 W

e
st

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 A
ll
ia

n
ce

 J
o

b
s 

S
k
il
ls

 a
n

d
 G

ro
w

th
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 w
it

h
 i

ts
 t

h
re

e
 

th
e

m
e

s 
o

f 
ta

ck
li
n

g
 y

o
u

th
 a

n
d

 l
o

n
g

-t
e

rm
 u

n
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t,
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 g

ro
w

th
, 

a
n

d
 m

a
tc

h
in

g
 s

k
il
ls

 i
n

 t
h

e
 l

a
b

o
u

r 
m

a
rk

e
t 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 s
k
il
ls

 n
e

e
d

e
d

 

b
y
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

rs
. 

 

2
0

. 
B

y
 b

ri
n

g
in

g
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

th
e

se
 v

a
ri

o
u

s 
st

ra
te

g
ie

s 
in

to
 a

 s
in

g
le

 “
st

o
ry

” 
fo

r 
B

a
rn

e
t,

 o
u

r 
in

te
n

ti
o

n
 i

s 
th

a
t 

it
 w

il
l 

b
e

 e
a

si
e

r 
fo

r 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
a

n
d

 

in
v
e

st
o

rs
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 t

h
e

 p
u

b
li
c 

se
ct

o
r’

s 
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
 c

re
a

ti
n

g
 a

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

iv
e

, 
p

ro
-g

ro
w

th
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

th
a

t 
cr

e
a

te
s 

re
a

l 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 

fo
r 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 a
n

d
 m

in
im

is
e

s 
b

a
rr

ie
rs

 t
o

 e
co

n
o

m
ic

 s
u

cc
e

ss
. 

 

122



  

1
1

 

 T
H

E
M

E
 A

: 
G

e
tt

in
g

 t
h

e
 b

a
si

cs
 r

ig
h

t 

2
1

. 
A

ll
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
in

 B
a

rn
e

t 
w

il
l 

h
a

v
e

 s
o

m
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
in

te
ra

ct
io

n
 w

it
h

 l
o

ca
l 

p
u

b
li
c 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
a

t 
so

m
e

 p
o

in
t 

–
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
y
 a

re
 p

a
y
in

g
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 

ra
te

s,
 h

a
v
e

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 c
u

st
o

m
e

rs
 t

ra
v
e

ll
in

g
 o

n
 l

o
ca

l 
ro

a
d

s 
a

n
d

 p
a

ve
m

e
n

ts
, 

n
e

e
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 p
e

rm
is

si
o

n
 t

o
 e

xp
a

n
d

, 
b

u
y
 p

a
rk

in
g

 p
e

rm
it

s,
 o

r 

h
a

v
e

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

 e
n

vi
ro

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

re
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s.

  
It

 i
s 

th
e

re
fo

re
 i

m
p

o
rt

a
n

t 
to

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

th
a

t 
th

e
se

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

a
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t,

 e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

, 
e

a
sy

 t
o

 

u
se

 a
n

d
 d

o
 n

o
t 

a
d

d
 u

n
n

e
ce

ss
a

ry
 c

o
st

s 
to

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

. 
  

 

2
2

. 
M

a
n

y
 o

w
n

e
rs

 o
f 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 i
n

 B
a

rn
e

t 
a

re
 a

ls
o

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ts
, 

a
n

d
 e

ff
o

rt
s 

to
 m

a
k
e

 B
a

rn
e

t 
b

e
tt

e
r 

fo
r 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 a
re

 i
n

h
e

re
n

tl
y
 i

n
te

rt
w

in
e

d
 w

it
h

 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 o

u
r 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
to

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ts
. 

 T
h

ro
u

g
h

 o
u

r 
st

ra
te

g
ic

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it

h
 C

a
p

it
a

 t
o

 d
e

li
v
e

r 
co

rp
o

ra
te

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s,

 a
n

d
 o

u
r 

Jo
in

t 
V

e
n

tu
re

 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

, 
R
e

, 
d

e
li
v
e

ri
n

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 r

e
g

u
la

to
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s,

 B
a

rn
e

t 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
is

 c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 e

n
su

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
o

u
r 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 a
n

d
 r

e
si

d
e

n
t 

cu
st

o
m

e
rs

 s
e

e
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
o

u
s 

a
n

d
 p

ra
ct

ic
a

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 o

u
r 

co
re

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s,

 a
n

d
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o

 a
cc

e
ss

 t
h

o
se

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

e
a

si
ly

, 
a

t 
a

 h
ig

h
 l

e
v
e

l 
o

f 

q
u

a
li
ty

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 c
h

a
n

n
e

ls
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 r

e
li
a

b
le

, 
e

a
sy

 t
o

 n
a

v
ig

a
te

, 
a

n
d

 j
o

in
e

d
 u

p
 a

cr
o

ss
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
se

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

s.
 T

h
is

 m
ir

ro
rs

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 

th
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
re

 a
lr

e
a

d
y
 t

a
k
in

g
 t

o
 i

m
p

ro
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 w
a

y
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
se

rs
 a

cc
e

ss
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 w

e
b

 a
n

d
 

a
 v

a
ri

e
ty

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

ch
a

n
n

e
ls

. 
 

 

H
o

w
 w

e
 w

il
l 

d
e

li
v

e
r 

th
is

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 

C
o

d
e

 
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 

O
b

je
ct

iv
e

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e
 

A
ct

io
n

 
T

im
e

sc
a

le
 

1
.1

 

S
tr

e
a

m
li

n
e

d
 

re
g

u
la

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

T
h

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 s

y
st

e
m

 p
ro

te
ct

s 
th

e
 q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

B
a

rn
e

t’
s 

b
u

il
t 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 f

a
ci

li
ta

te
s 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 g

ro
w

th
 i

n
 a

 s
o

ci
a

ll
y

 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

le
 w

a
y

. 

T
h

e
 L

o
ca

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

S
ch

e
m

e
, 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s 

th
e

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

Lo
ca

l 
P

la
n

, 
w

il
l 
b

e
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 i
n

 2
0

1
5

 t
o

 

re
fl

e
ct

 E
n

tr
e

p
re

n
e

u
ri

a
l 
B

a
rn

e
t,

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 

to
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

s 
a

n
d

 r
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

. 
 

2
0

1
5

 

o
n

w
a

rd
s 

1
.2

 
 

 

C
o

n
ti

n
u

o
u

s 
a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
lo

ca
l 
im

p
a

ct
s 

(p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 i
n

 

to
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

s)
 a

ss
o

ci
a

te
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 r
e

la
xa

ti
o

n
 t

o
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s 
re

la
ti

n
g

 t
o

 o
ff

ic
e

-t
o

-r
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l 

co
n

v
e

rs
io

n
 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 

123



  

1
2

 

 

C
o

d
e

 
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 

O
b

je
ct

iv
e

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e
 

A
ct

io
n

 
T

im
e

sc
a

le
 

1
.3

 
  

 

C
le

a
r 

co
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

s 
to

 p
ro

sp
e

ct
iv

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
rs

, 
to

 

e
n

co
u

ra
g

e
 h

ig
h

 q
u

a
li
ty

 i
n

v
e

st
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 f
ir

st
-t

im
e

 r
o

u
n

d
. 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 

1
.4

 
 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

a
re

 a
b

le
 t

o
 c

h
o

o
se

 t
h

e
 l

e
v

e
l 

o
f 

se
rv

ic
e

 t
h

a
t 

m
e

e
ts

 t
h

e
ir

 n
e

e
d

s.
 

W
e

 w
il
l 
in

tr
o

d
u

ce
 a

 p
re

m
iu

m
 o

n
e

 s
to

p
 s

h
o

p
 f

o
r 

d
e

a
li
n

g
 

w
it

h
 p

la
n

n
in

g
, 

tr
a

d
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s,

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 

a
n

d
 b

u
il
d

in
g

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
o

ff
e

ri
n

g
 g

u
a

ra
n

te
e

d
 t

u
rn

a
ro

u
n

d
 

ti
m

e
s,

 a
 s

in
g

le
 n

a
m

e
d

 c
o

n
ta

ct
, 

a
n

 a
d

m
in

 s
e

rv
ic

e
, 
a

n
d

 

g
e

n
e

ra
l 
a

d
v
ic

e
. 

R
o

ll
e

d
 o

u
t 

fr
o

m
 

O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

 

1
.5

 
  

R
e

g
u

la
to

rs
 a

re
 f

ir
m

 b
u

t 
fa

ir
, 

h
e

lp
in

g
 w

il
li

n
g

 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

to
 i

m
p

ro
v

e
 a

n
d

 t
a

k
in

g
 a

ct
io

n
 

a
g

a
in

st
 t

h
o

se
 t

h
a

t 
d

o
n

’t
. 

W
e

 w
il
l 
im

p
ro

v
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s 

so
 t

h
a

t 
o

u
r 

o
ve

ra
ll
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 o
n

 r
e

g
u

la
to

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
is

 a
m

o
n

g
st

 t
h

e
 b

e
st

 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

ll
y
. 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 

1
.6

 
 

 

W
e

 w
il
l 
si

m
p

li
fy

 p
ro

ce
ss

e
s 

–
 f

o
r 

e
xa

m
p

le
 b

y
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ci
n

g
 

a
 m

o
re

 s
tr

e
a

m
li
n

e
d

 p
ro

ce
ss

 f
o

r 
re

n
e

w
a

l 
o

f 
li
ce

n
ce

s.
  

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

5
 

1
.7

 
  

R
e

g
u

la
to

ry
 s

y
st

e
m

s 
a

re
 e

a
sy

 t
o

 n
a

v
ig

a
te

. 

W
e

 w
il
l 
m

a
k
e

 c
le

a
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 a
b

o
u

t 
h

o
w

 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 e
n

g
a

g
e

 w
it

h
 a

n
d

 u
se

 t
h

e
 r

e
g

u
la

to
ry

 

sy
st

e
m

, 
w

it
h

 a
n

 e
m

p
h

a
si

s 
o

n
 c

re
a

ti
n

g
 a

 l
ig

h
t 

to
u

ch
 

a
p

p
ro

a
ch

. 

D
e

ce
m

b
e

r 

2
0

1
5

 

1
.8

 

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 

cu
st

o
m

e
r 

a
cc

e
ss

  

B
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

a
re

 a
b

le
 t

o
 a

cc
e

ss
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

a
b

o
u

t 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

e
a

si
ly

 a
n

d
 a

t 
fi

rs
t 

co
n

ta
ct

 w
h

e
re

v
e

r 
p

o
ss

ib
le

, 
a

n
d

 a
t 

th
e

 t
im

e
s 

th
a

t 
su

it
 t

h
e

m
. 

W
e

 w
il
l 
in

tr
o

d
u

ce
 a

 d
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 c

u
st

o
m

e
r 

co
n

ta
ct

 c
e

n
tr

e
 

fo
r 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s.

 

Ja
n

u
a

ry
 

2
0

1
5

 

1
.9

 
  

  
W

e
 w

il
l 
in

tr
o

d
u

ce
 o

n
li
n

e
 p

a
y
m

e
n

t 
o

p
ti

o
n

s 
in

 k
e

y
 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
(e

.g
. 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 B

u
il
d

in
g

 c
o

n
tr

o
l)

. 
A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

5
 

M
D

X
0

1
 

  
  

M
id

d
le

se
x 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y
  
w

il
l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 c

le
a

r 
fi

rs
t 

p
o

in
t 

o
f 

co
n

ta
ct

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 

lo
ca

l 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
ca

n
 m

o
re

 e
a

si
ly

 a
cc

e
ss

 

th
e

 e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 r
e

se
a

rc
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

a
v
a

il
a

b
le

 w
it

h
in

 

th
e

 U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y
. 

T
B

C
 

124



  

1
3

 

 T
H

E
M

E
 B

: 
A

 g
re

a
t 

p
la

ce
 t

o
 l

iv
e

, 
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 i

n
v

e
st

 

2
3

. 
T

h
e

 e
co

n
o

m
ic

 s
u

cc
e

ss
 o

f 
a

n
 a

re
a

 i
s 

a
ss

o
ci

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 i
ts

 a
tt

ra
ct

iv
e

n
e

ss
 a

s 
a

 p
la

ce
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 i

n
v
e

st
, 

b
u

t 
a

ls
o

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

it
’s

 a
 g

o
o

d
 p

la
ce

 t
o

 

li
v
e

 a
n

d
 t

o
 v

is
it

. 
 W

e
 w

il
l 

fo
cu

s 
o

n
 e

n
a

b
li
n

g
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
a

n
d

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ts
 t

o
 a

ct
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
k
e

y
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

s 
th

ri
v
e

; 
re

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

n
g

 m
o

re
 

d
e

p
ri

v
e

d
 a

re
a

s,
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 a

lo
n

g
 t

h
e

 A
5

 c
o

rr
id

o
r;

 a
n

d
 d

e
li
v
e

ri
n

g
 h

ig
h

 q
u

a
li
ty

 i
n

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 (

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 r
o

a
d

s)
 a

n
d

 p
u

b
li
c 

re
a

lm
. 

  
T

h
is

 

se
ct

io
n

 i
s 

d
v
id

e
d

 i
n

to
 t

w
o

 p
a

rt
s:

 T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
s;

 a
n

d
 G

ro
w

th
, 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

 &
 I

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

. 

 

T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
s 

2
4

. 
B

a
rn

e
t 

o
ri

g
in

a
ll
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 s
e

m
i-

u
rb

a
n

 h
in

te
rl

a
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 n
o

rt
h

w
e

st
 o

f 
Lo

n
d

o
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 1

9
th

 c
e

n
tu

ry
. 

T
h

e
 l

a
rg

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
to

w
n

 

ce
n

tr
e

s 
re

fl
e

ct
s 

th
e

 r
u

ra
l 

n
e

tw
o

rk
 o

f 
v
il
la

g
e

s 
a

n
d

 s
m

a
ll
 t

o
w

n
s 

th
a

t 
o

n
ce

 e
xi

st
e

d
, 

g
iv

in
g

 m
a

n
y
 a

re
a

s 
in

 B
a

rn
e

t 
a

 u
n

iq
u

e
 “

v
il
la

g
e

” 
fe

e
l 

th
a

t 
is

 

b
o

th
 

a
tt

ra
ct

iv
e

 
a

n
d

 
co

sm
o

p
o

li
ta

n
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 

in
 

co
m

m
o

n
 

w
it

h
 
to

w
n

 
ce

n
tr

e
s 

a
cr

o
ss

 
th

e
 

co
u

n
tr

y
, 

B
a

rn
e

t’
s 

to
w

n
 

ce
n

tr
e

s 
h

a
v
e

 
fa

ce
d

 

ch
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s 

in
 r

e
ce

n
t 

y
e

a
rs

 d
u

e
 t

o
 a

 c
o

m
b

in
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
to

u
g
h

 e
co

n
o

m
ic

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

a
n

d
 c

h
a

n
g

in
g

 c
o

n
su

m
e

r 
h

a
b

it
s.

  
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

h
a

s 
a

lr
e

a
d

y 

su
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

in
 C

h
ip

p
in

g
 B

a
rn

e
t,

 N
o

rt
h

 F
in

ch
le

y
 a

n
d

 C
ri

ck
le

w
o

o
d

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 ‘
T

o
w

n
 T

e
a

m
s’

 t
o

 d
ri

v
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 l
o

ca
ll
y
, 

a
n

d
 

is
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
in

 E
d

g
w

a
re

 t
o

 d
o

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
. 

 W
e

 w
il
l 

co
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 l
o

ca
l 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

a
n

d
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

 t
o

 s
u

st
a

in
, 

a
n

d
 w

h
e

re
 

n
e

ce
ss

a
ry

 r
e

v
it

a
li
se

, 
th

e
ir

 t
o

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
s.

  
T

h
is

 s
e

ct
io

n
 o

u
t 

se
ts

 o
u

t 
th

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

a
re

a
s 

in
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

ca
n

 o
ff

e
r 

su
p

p
o

rt
, 

a
lo

n
g

 w
it

h
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

 p
a

ck
a

g
e

s 
o

f 
su

p
p

o
rt

 a
v
a

il
a

b
le

 t
o

 m
a

in
, 

d
is

tr
ic

t 
a

n
d

 l
o

ca
l 
to

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
s.

   

 

2
5

. 
In

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 m

a
xi

m
is

e
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

f 
co

u
n

ci
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 i

t 
is

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

th
a

t 
re

so
u

rc
e

s 
a

re
 e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
ly

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 t
o

 r
e

fl
e

ct
 t

h
e

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 n

a
tu

re
 a

n
d

 

ra
n

g
e

 o
f 

fu
n

ct
io

n
s 

o
f 

d
if

fe
re

n
t 

to
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

s,
 a

s 
w

e
ll
 a

s 
th

e
ir

 o
v
e

ra
ll
 s

iz
e

 a
n

d
 e

co
n

o
m

ic
 g

ra
v
it

y
 i

n
 t

h
e

 l
o

ca
l 

a
re

a
. 

E
n

tr
e

p
re

n
e

u
ri

a
l 

B
a

rn
e

t 

in
tr

o
d

u
ce

s 
a

 n
e

w
 c

a
te

g
o

ry
 o

f 
“M

a
in

” 
to

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
, 

to
 s

it
 a

lo
n

g
si

d
e

 t
h

e
 e

xi
st

in
g

 n
e

tw
o

rk
 o

f 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

a
n

d
 L

o
ca

l 
ce

n
tr

e
s.

 

 

2
6

. 
B

a
se

d
 o

n
 r

e
co

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 c

o
u

n
ci

ll
o

rs
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 a
re

a
 c

o
m

m
it

te
e

s,
 e

xi
st

in
g

 d
a

ta
 a

b
o

u
t 

to
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

 s
iz

e
 a

n
d

 

fu
n

ct
io

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y 

th
e

 G
LA

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

a
p

a
ci

ty
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

ci
l 

h
a

s 
to

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
s,

 t
h

e
 f

o
ll
o

w
in

g
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

s 
a

re
 d

e
si

g
n

a
te

d
 a

s 

“M
a

in
” 

in
 E

n
tr

e
p

re
n

e
u

ri
a

l 
B

a
rn

e
t:

 
 

i.
 

C
h

ip
p

in
g

 B
a

rn
e

t 
a

re
a

–
 C

h
ip

p
in

g
 B

a
rn

e
t 

ii
. 

H
e

n
d

o
n

 a
re

a
–

 B
u

rn
t 

O
a

k
, 

E
d

g
w

a
re

 

ii
i.
 

F
in

ch
le

y
 a

n
d

 G
o

ld
e

rs
 G

re
e

n
 a

re
a

–
 G

o
ld

e
rs

 G
re

e
n

, 
N

o
rt

h
 F

in
ch

le
y 

 

2
7

. 
In

 a
d

d
it

io
n

, 
F
in

ch
le

y
 C

h
u

rc
h

 E
n

d
 w

il
l 

b
e

 r
e

g
a

rd
e

d
 a

s 
a

 M
a

in
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 t

h
e

 l
o

ca
l 

e
v
e

n
in

g
 

e
co

n
o

m
y
 s

p
e

ci
fi

ca
ll
y
 (

p
a

g
e

 1
8

),
 r

e
fl

e
ct

in
g

 t
h

e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

ly
 h

ig
h

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
lo

ca
l 

p
re

m
is

e
s 

in
 t

h
e

 a
re

a
 d

e
d

ic
a

te
d

 t
o

 s
e

rv
in

g
 t

h
is

 f
u

n
ct

io
n

. 

125



  

1
4

 

 

F
o

u
r 

o
th

e
r 

to
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

s 
w

e
re

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 a
re

a
 c

o
m

m
it

te
e

s 
(C

ri
ck

le
w

o
o

d
, 

E
a

st
 F

in
ch

le
y
, 

a
n

d
 M

il
l 

H
il
l)

. 
A

ll
 p

la
y
 a

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

ro
le

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

e
co

n
o

m
ic

 a
n

d
 c

u
lt

u
ra

l 
li
fe

 o
f 

th
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
G

iv
e

n
 t

h
e

ir
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

ly
 s

m
a

ll
e

r 
sc

a
le

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 M

a
in

 c
e

n
tr

e
s 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 a
b

o
v
e

, 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

o
ft

e
n

 a
ls

o
 i

n
 c

lo
se

 p
ro

xi
m

it
y
, 

it
 i

s 
co

n
si

d
e

re
d

 t
h

e
y
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 b
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

ci
l 

a
s 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
ce

n
tr

e
s 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 t
o

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
 

o
ff

e
r 

se
t 

o
u

t 
in

 p
a

g
e

 1
8

 o
f 

th
e

 E
n

tr
e

p
re

n
e

u
ri

a
l 
B

a
rn

e
t 

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

. 
 

 C
a

se
 s

tu
d

ie
s 

  H
ig

h
 Q

u
a

li
ty

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
in

 t
o

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
s 

A
s 

Lo
n

d
o

n
’s

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

s,
 i

t 
w

il
l 

b
e

 im
p

o
rt

a
n

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 s

u
p

p
ly

 o
f 

h
ig

h
 q

u
a

lit
y

 a
n

d
 w

e
ll

-d
e

si
g

n
e

d
 f

a
m

ily
 h

o
m

e
s 

th
a

t 
a

re
 i

n
 g

o
o

d
 lo

ca
ti

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 

re
sp

e
ct

 t
h

e
 lo

ca
l c

h
a

ra
ct

e
r,

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 o
u

r 
Lo

ca
l 

p
la

n
, 

to
 b

e
 e

n
co

u
ra

g
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 i

n
cl

u
d

e
s 

in
cr

e
a

si
n

g
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

h
o

m
e

s 
lo

ca
te

d
 e

it
h

e
r 

in
 o

r 
cl

o
se

 t
o

 

to
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

 lo
ca

ti
o

n
s,

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 p
e

o
p

le
 l

iv
in

g
 i

n
 t

h
e

m
 h

a
v

e
 a

cc
e

ss
 t

o
 q

u
a

li
ty

 l
o

ca
l 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
a

n
d

 a
m

e
n

it
ie

s.
 I

t’
s 

a
ls

o
 s

o
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 m

o
re

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ts
 l

iv
in

g
 

cl
o

se
 t

o
 a

 lo
ca

l c
e

n
tr

e
, 

u
si

n
g

 t
h

e
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
th

e
re

, 
su

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 t
h

e
 l

o
ca

l e
co

n
o

m
y

 a
n

d
 e

m
p

lo
ym

e
n

t,
 a

n
d

 b
o

o
st

in
g

 t
h

e
 s

e
n

se
 o

f 
v

it
a

li
ty

 a
n

d
 v

ib
ra

n
cy

 i
n

 

th
e

 a
re

a
. 

E
xa

m
p

le
s 

o
f 

th
e

 k
in

d
s 

o
f 

re
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l w

e
lc

o
m

e
s 

m
o

re
 o

f 
a

re
 G

a
te

w
a

y 
H

o
u

se
 i

n
 F

in
ch

le
y

 C
h

u
rc

h
 E

n
d

 a
n

d
 I

m
p

e
ri

a
l 

S
q

u
a

re
 

in
 N

o
rt

h
 F

in
ch

le
y

, 
a

t 
th

e
 s

it
e

 o
f 

th
e

 o
ld

 P
o

lic
e

 D
e

p
o

t.
 T

h
e

se
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 b

o
th

 g
o

o
d

 e
xa

m
p

le
s 

o
f 

m
a

k
in

g
 g

o
o

d
 u

se
 o

f 
w

h
a

t 
h

a
s 

o
th

e
rw

is
e

 b
e

e
n

 

u
n

d
e

r-
u

ti
li

se
d

 s
p

a
ce

, 
w

il
l 

re
su

lt
 i

n
 r

e
a

l a
n

d
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
n

e
w

 i
n

ve
st

m
e

n
t 

in
 t

h
e

 l
o

ca
l 

e
co

n
o

m
y

, 
a

n
d

 w
il

l 
se

cu
re

 B
a

rn
e

t’
s 

lo
n

g
e

r 
te

rm
 o

b
je

ct
iv

e
 o

f 
b

e
in

g
 a

 

g
re

a
t 

p
la

ce
 t

o
 l

iv
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 b
e

st
 p

la
ce

 i
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 t
o

 b
e

 a
 s

m
a

ll 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
. 

 
 T

o
w

n
 T

e
a

m
s 

T
h

e
 N

o
rt

h
 F

in
ch

le
y

 T
o

w
n

 T
e

a
m

 i
s 

a
n

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
g

ro
u

p
 o

f 
lo

ca
l 

re
si

d
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 p

e
o

p
le

 f
o

rm
e

d
 f

ro
m

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 s

e
ct

o
rs

 a
n

d
 b

a
ck

g
ro

u
n

d
s,

 w
o

rk
in

g
 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 m

a
k

e
 N

o
rt

h
 F

in
ch

le
y

 a
 b

e
tt

e
r 

p
la

ce
 t

o
 l

iv
e

 a
n

d
 w

o
rk

. 
T

h
e

y 
a

re
 a

 g
ro

u
p

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 e
xp

e
ri

e
n

ce
 i

n
 f

u
n

d
ra

is
in

g
, 

m
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
, 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t,
 c

u
lt

u
re

 a
n

d
 r

e
ta

il
, 

a
n

d
 w

il
l 

lo
o

k
 a

t 
a

n
y

 f
u

n
d

 (
g

o
v

e
rn

m
e

n
t 

o
r 

p
ri

v
a

te
) 

w
h

ic
h

 w
il

l 
h

e
lp

 t
o

 b
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 i

d
e

a
s 

to
 r

e
a

li
ty

. 
T

h
e

y
 a

re
 

cu
rr

e
n

tl
y

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
ce

ss
 o

f 
d

e
li

v
e

ri
n

g
 a

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 h
u

b
, 

a
ls

o
 c

a
ll

e
d

 1
0

 G
ra

n
d

 A
rc

a
d

e
, 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 a
im

 t
o

 e
n

h
a

n
ce

 a
n

d
 s

h
o

w
ca

se
 t

h
e

 c
u

lt
u

ra
l 

o
ff

e
r 

in
 t

h
e

 

T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
, 

p
ro

v
id

e
 s

p
a

ce
, 

p
ro

m
o

te
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 e
m

e
rg

in
g

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 e

ve
n

ts
. 

     

126



  

1
5

 

 H
o

w
 w

e
 w

il
l 

d
e

li
v

e
r 

th
is

 o
b

je
ct

iv
e

 

2
8

. 
T

h
e

 t
a

b
le

 b
e

lo
w

 s
e

ts
 o

u
t 

th
e

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
a

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
th

a
t 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 
w

il
l 
co

n
si

d
e

r 
to

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
s.

  
T

h
is

 i
s 

fo
ll
o

w
e

d
 b

y
 a

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 d
is

ti
n

ct
iv

e
 o

ff
e

rs
 a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 t
o

 M
a

in
, 

D
is

tr
ic

t,
 a

n
d

 L
o

ca
l 
T

o
w

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

s.
 

 

C
o

d
e

 
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 

O
b

je
ct

iv
e

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e
 

A
ct

io
n

 
T

im
e

sc
a

le
 

2
.1

 

T
h

ri
v

in
g

 t
o

w
n

 

ce
n

tr
e

s 
th

a
t 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

a
n

t 
to

 

li
v

e
, 

w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 

sp
e

n
d

 t
im

e
 i

n
. 

D
iv

e
rs

e
, 

d
is

ti
n

ct
iv

e
 t

o
w

n
 

ce
n

tr
e

s 
w

it
h

 a
 s

u
st

a
in

a
b

le
 m

ix
 

o
f 

re
ta

il
, 

le
is

u
re

, 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
 a

n
d

 

re
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l 

u
se

s.
 

W
e

 w
il
l 
id

e
n

ti
fy

 "
m

a
in

" 
"D

is
tr

ic
t"

 a
n

d
 "

lo
ca

l"
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

s 
in

 

B
a

rn
e

t,
 b

u
il
d

in
g

 o
n

 a
n

a
ly

si
s 

o
f 

e
v
id

e
n

ce
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s 

o
f 

a
re

a
 c

o
m

m
it

te
e

s,
 w

it
h

 a
 s

p
e

ci
fi

c 
o

ff
e

r 
fo

r 

e
a

ch
 c

a
te

g
o

ry
 t

h
a

t 
re

fl
e

ct
s 

th
e

ir
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
e

co
n

o
m

ic
 f

u
n

ct
io

n
s.

 

D
e

ce
m

b
e

r 

2
0

1
5

 

2
.2

 
  

  
W

e
 w

il
l 
su

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

w
n

 t
e

a
m

s 
in

 t
o

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
s,

 b
ri

n
g

in
g

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 

lo
ca

l 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
a

n
d

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ts
 t

o
 l
e

a
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
O

n
g

o
in

g
 

2
.4

 
  

  

W
e

 w
il
l 
p

ro
m

o
te

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a

li
ty

, 
h

ig
h

e
r 

d
e

n
si

ty
, 

re
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

in
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

 b
o

u
n

d
a

ri
e

s 
to

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

 f
o

o
tf

a
ll
 

a
n

d
 b

o
o

st
 t

h
e

ir
 v

it
a

li
ty

. 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 

fr
o

m
 

D
e

ce
m

b
e

r 

2
0

1
4

 

2
.5

 
 

 

W
e

 w
il
l 
co

n
si

d
e

r 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ti

n
g

 2
0

m
p

h
 z

o
n

e
s 

in
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

s 

w
h

e
re

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 l
o

ca
l 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

re
q

u
e

st
 

th
e

m
. 

F
ro

m
 

D
e

ce
m

b
e

r 

2
0

1
4

 

2
.6

 
 

  

W
e

 w
il
l 
m

a
k
e

 p
u

b
li
c 

re
a

lm
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 m

o
re

 

so
ci

a
l 
sp

a
ce

s 
a

n
d

 b
e

n
ch

e
s,

 s
u

b
je

ct
 t

o
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

o
f 

lo
ca

l 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
a

n
d

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ts
. 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 

2
.7

 
  

  
W

e
 w

il
l 
re

d
u

ce
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

v
a

ca
n

t 
h

ig
h

 s
tr

e
e

t 
p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s 

a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 t

o
 a

m
o

n
g

st
 t

h
e

 l
o

w
e

st
 i
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n

. 

M
e

a
su

re
d

 

a
n

n
u

a
ll
y
 

127



  

1
6

 

 2
.8

 
 

 

W
e

 w
il
l 
re

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l’

s 
p

o
li
cy

 o
n

 m
a

rk
e

ts
 a

n
d

 s
tr

e
e

t 

tr
a

d
in

g
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 s
u

cc
e

ss
fu

l 
m

a
rk

e
ts

 t
o

 g
ro

w
, 

a
n

d
 t

o
 e

st
a

b
li
sh

 

n
e

w
, 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

, 
a

n
d

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a

li
ty

 s
tr

e
e

t 
tr

a
d

in
g

 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s.

 

D
e

ce
m

b
e

r 

2
0

1
4

 

2
.9

 
  

  

W
e

 w
il
l 
e

n
su

re
 C

o
u

n
ci

l-
w

id
e

 a
ct

iv
it

y 
in

 t
o

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
s 

is
 c

o
-

o
rd

in
a

te
d

 t
o

 m
a

xi
m

is
e

 p
o

si
ti

v
e

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 a
n

d
 t

o
 g

e
n

e
ra

te
 

m
a

xi
m

u
m

 n
e

w
 i
n

v
e

st
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 p
u

b
li
ci

ty
. 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 

2
.1

0
 

 
 

W
e

 w
il
l 
re

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l’

s 
S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
ss

e
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 

to
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

n
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

s 
is

 c
o

n
si

d
e

re
d

 w
h

e
n

 

d
e

ci
d

in
g

 o
n

 u
se

 o
f 

co
u

n
ci

l 
la

n
d

 a
n

d
 a

ss
e

ts
. 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
5

 

2
.1

1
 

  
  

W
e

 w
il
l 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 a
n

 e
v
id

e
n

ce
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
n

e
ss

 o
f 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 r
a

te
s 

re
li
e

f 
sc

h
e

m
e

s,
 i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 i
n

 t
o

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
 

lo
ca

ti
o

n
s,

 s
o

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
ca

n
 d

e
ci

d
e

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

to
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
 

sc
h

e
m

e
 i
n

 B
a

rn
e

t.
 

Ju
ly

 2
0

1
5

 

2
.1

2
 

 
 

W
e

 w
il
l 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 a
 f

e
a

si
b

il
it

y
 s

tu
d

y
 o

n
 t

h
e

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ct
io

n
 o

f 
T

a
x 

In
cr

e
m

e
n

ta
l 
R

e
in

v
e

st
m

e
n

t 
Z

o
n

e
s 

a
cr

o
ss

 T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
s 

(T
C

s)
 o

r 

g
ro

u
p

in
g

s 
o

f 
T

C
s 

to
 i
n

ce
n

ti
v
is

e
 T

C
 g

ro
w

th
 b

y
 r

in
g

-f
e

n
ci

n
g

 a
n

 

e
le

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 r
a

te
 g

ro
w

th
 f

o
r 

re
-i

n
v
e

st
m

e
n

t 
in

to
 t

h
e

 

to
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

. 

M
a

rc
h

 

2
0

1
5

 

M
P

0
1

 
 

 

T
h

e
 M

e
tr

o
p

o
li
ta

n
 P

o
li
ce

 a
n

d
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
w

il
l 
e

n
g

a
g

e
 w

it
h

 t
o

w
n

 

te
a

m
s 

in
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 

lo
ca

l 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
 a

n
d

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ts
 a

re
 

a
b

le
 t

o
 l
e

t 
th

e
 P

o
li
ce

 k
n

o
w

 a
b

o
u

t 
lo

ca
l 
co

n
ce

rn
s 

a
n

d
 s

o
 t

h
a

t 

th
e

y
 c

a
n

 w
o

rk
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 r

e
d

u
ce

 c
ri

m
e

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 

co
n

fi
d

e
n

ce
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o

ca
l 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 

M
P

0
2

 
 

 

T
h

e
 M

e
tr

o
p

o
li
ta

n
 P

o
li
ce

 w
il
l 
co

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

 

to
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 c

o
n

ce
rn

s 
re

la
ti

n
g

 t
o

 a
lc

o
h

o
l 

a
n

d
 a

n
ti

-s
o

ci
a

l 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

in
 t

h
e

 e
v
e

n
in

g
, 

th
e

se
 a

re
 a

d
d

re
ss

e
d

 

in
 a

 c
o

o
rd

in
a

te
d

 w
a

y
 s

o
 t

h
a

t 
re

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

ca
n

 t
h

ri
v
e

 

a
n

d
 g

ro
w

. 
 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 

128



  

1
7

 

 M
P

0
2

 
 

 

T
h

e
 M

e
tr

o
p

o
li
ta

n
 P

o
li
ce

 w
il
l 
li
st

e
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 w

id
e

r 
v
ie

w
s 

o
f 

th
e

 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
 a

n
d

 l
o

ca
l 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
so

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

y
 c

a
n

 w
o

rk
 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 i
n

cr
e

a
se

 p
e

rc
e

p
ti

o
n

s 
o

f 
sa

fe
ty

 a
n

d
  
m

a
k
e

 a
 g

re
a

te
r 

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 e

co
n

o
m

ic
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 l
if

e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

re
a

. 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 

2
.1

3
 

  
A

tt
ra

ct
iv

e
 a

n
d

 w
e

ll
 

m
a

in
ta

in
e

d
 p

u
b

li
c 

re
a

lm
. 

W
e

 w
il
l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

to
w

n
 k

e
e

p
e

rs
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
w

n
 

ce
n

tr
e

 e
co

n
o

m
ie

s 
a

n
d

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 a
n

y
 i
ss

u
e

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 b
y
 l
o

ca
l 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s,

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 v
is

it
o

rs
 a

re
 a

d
d

re
ss

e
d

. 

Ja
n

u
a

ry
 

2
0

1
5

 

2
.1

4
 

 
W

e
ll

-c
o

n
n

e
ct

e
d

 t
o

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
s.

 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 a

cc
e

ss
ib

il
it

y
 o

f 
to

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
s 

th
ro

u
g

h
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

si
n

g
 

e
xt

e
n

si
v
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
li
a

b
le

 p
u

b
li
c 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

 l
in

k
s 

a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

fo
r 

cy
cl

is
ts

. 

O
n

g
o

in
g

  

2
.1

5
 

  
  

T
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l’
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
, 

w
e

 w
il
l 
e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 

to
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

s 
h

a
v
e

 a
n

 a
d

e
q

u
a

te
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
 c

o
n

v
e

n
ie

n
t,

 h
ig

h
 

q
u

a
li
ty

 p
a

rk
in

g
 p

la
ce

s 
th

a
t 

e
n

co
u

ra
g

e
s 

in
cr

e
a

se
d

 f
o

o
tf

a
ll
. 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 

2
.1

6
 

 
 

W
e

 w
il
l 
in

tr
o

d
u

ce
 f

re
e

 W
iF

i 
to

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
's

  
to

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
s.

 
F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 

2
0

1
5

 

2
.1

7
 

  
  

W
e

 w
il
l 
su

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

w
n

 t
e

a
m

s 
to

 m
a

xi
m

is
e

 t
h

e
 u

se
 o

f 
m

o
b

ile
 

te
ch

n
o

lo
g

y
 a

n
d

 s
o

ci
a

l 
m

e
d

ia
, 

fo
r 

e
xa

m
p

le
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 p

h
o

n
e

-

b
a

se
d

 p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 l
o

y
a

lt
y
 s

ch
e

m
e

s.
 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 

        

129



  

1
8

 

 T
a

il
o

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
 O

ff
e

r 
 

2
9

. 
T

h
e

 t
a

il
o

re
d

 o
ff

e
r 

fo
r 

e
a

ch
 t

yp
e

 o
f 

to
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

: 

A
ct

iv
it

y
 

M
a

in
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

s 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
s 

Lo
ca

l 
T

o
w

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

s 

T
o

w
n

 T
e

a
m

s 

A
ct

iv
e

ly
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

re
 i
s 

lo
ca

l 

d
e

m
a

n
d

 a
n

d
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
fo

r 
th

e
m

 t
o

 b
e

 

o
p

e
ra

te
d

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

tl
y

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l.

 T
h

is
 

m
a

y
 i
n

vo
lv

e
 s

e
e

d
 f

u
n

d
in

g
. 

W
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
s 

lo
ca

l 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 w

il
l 
a

ct
iv

e
ly

 

re
ce

iv
e

 a
d

vi
ce

 a
n

d
 m

e
n

to
ri

n
g

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 

C
o

u
n

ci
l.

 

W
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
s 

lo
ca

l 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 w

il
l 
re

ce
iv

e
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

n
d

 e
n

co
u

ra
g

e
d

 

to
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 w
it

h
 o

th
e

r 
to

w
n

 t
e

a
m

s.
 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s7

  

P
ri

o
ri

ti
se

d
 u

n
le

ss
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 h

a
s 

a
lr

e
a

d
y

 b
e

e
n

 

a
ll
o

ca
te

d
 f

o
r 

si
m

il
a

r 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
a

st
 

tw
o

 y
e

a
rs

. 

Y
e

s 
if

 t
h

e
re

 i
s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 l
o

ca
l 

n
e

e
d

 o
r 

if
 

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
ca

p
a

ci
ty

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 

a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
a

te
 l
o

ca
l 
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t.
 

Y
e

s 
if

 t
h

e
re

 i
s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 l
o

ca
l 

n
e

e
d

 a
n

d
 s

e
e

n
 a

s 

p
ri

o
ri

ty
 o

ve
r 

m
a

in
 o

r 
d

is
tr

ic
t 

to
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

s,
 o

r 
if

 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
a

te
 e

xp
e

ct
e

d
 l
o

ca
l 

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t.
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 n
ig

h
t 

ti
m

e
 

e
co

n
o

m
y
 

Y
e

s 
–

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

cu
si

n
g

 o
n

 m
a

in
 t

o
w

n
 

ce
n

tr
e

s 
e

sp
e

ci
a

ll
y

 v
ia

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

o
li
ce

. 

Y
e

s 
w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

re
 i

s 
sp

e
ci

fi
c 

lo
ca

l 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 o

r 

h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
s 

a
n

 a
re

a
 o

f 
m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 

lo
ca

l 
im

p
o

rt
a

n
ce

 t
o

 t
h

e
 e

ve
n

in
g

 e
co

n
o

m
y

..
 

O
n

ly
 i
f 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 a

s 
a

n
 a

re
a

 o
f 

m
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 l
o

ca
l 

im
p

o
rt

a
n

ce
 t

o
 t

h
e

 e
v

e
n

in
g

 e
co

n
o

m
y

. 

R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

p
ro

m
o

te
d

 

Y
e

s 
–

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

a
ct

iv
e

ly
 m

a
rk

e
te

d
 a

n
d

 

p
ro

m
o

te
d

 t
o

 d
e

ve
lo

p
e

rs
 a

n
d

 i
n

ve
st

o
rs

. 
W

h
e

re
 t

h
e

re
 i

s 
m

a
rk

e
t 

d
e

m
a

n
d

. 
W

h
e

re
 t

h
e

re
 i

s 
m

a
rk

e
t 

d
e

m
a

n
d

. 

2
0

m
p

h
 z

o
n

e
s 

W
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
s 

lo
ca

l 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 a

n
d

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 

2
0

m
p

h
 z

o
n

e
s 

w
il
l 
b

e
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

. 
P

ro
m

o
te

d
 

b
y

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l.
 

W
il
l 
b

e
 c

o
n

si
d

e
re

d
 o

n
 a

 c
a

se
-b

y
-c

a
se

 b
a

si
s 

a
cc

o
rd

in
g

 t
o

 l
o

ca
l 
n

e
e

d
 a

n
d

 d
e

m
a

n
d

. 

W
il
l 
b

e
 c

o
n

si
d

e
re

d
 o

n
 a

 c
a

se
-b

y
-c

a
se

 b
a

si
s 

a
cc

o
rd

in
g

 t
o

 l
o

ca
l 
n

e
e

d
 a

n
d

 d
e

m
a

n
d

. 

M
a

rk
e

ts
 a

n
d

 s
tr

e
e

t 
tr

a
d

in
g
 

W
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
s 

lo
ca

l 
n

e
e

d
 w

il
l 

b
e

 a
ct

iv
e

ly
 

su
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l.

 

W
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
s 

lo
ca

l 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
il
l 
p

ro
vi

d
e

 a
d

vi
ce

, 
m

e
n

to
ri

n
g

 a
n

d
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 l
o

ca
ll
y

-l
e

d
 m

a
rk

e
ts

. 

W
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
s 

lo
ca

l 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 
w

il
l 

p
ro

vi
d

e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 n

e
tw

o
rk

in
g

 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 l
o

ca
ll
y

-l
e

d
 m

a
rk

e
ts

. 

T
o

w
n

 K
e

e
p

e
rs

 

O
n

e
 f

o
r 

e
a

ch
 m

a
in

 t
o

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
, 

w
it

h
 a

 w
id

e
r 

ro
le

 t
o

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
s 

o
f 

lo
ca

l 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

a
n

d
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 f

e
e

d
in

g
 t

h
e

se
 

b
a

ck
. 

W
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 l
o

ca
l 

n
e

e
d

 a
n

d
 

fu
n

d
in

g
 i
s 

a
va

il
a

b
le

. 
M

a
y

 s
h

a
re

 a
 s

in
g

le
 t

o
w

n
 k

e
e

p
e

r 

T
o

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
 a

cc
e

ss
ib

il
it

y
 

A
ct

iv
e

ly
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
, 

co
n

n
e

ct
io

n
 t

o
 w

id
e

r 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 a
n

d
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 l
in

k
s 

p
ro

m
o

te
d

 

a
n

d
 l
o

b
b

ie
d

 f
o

r.
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
s 

lo
ca

l 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 o

r 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 n

e
e

d
. 

W
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
s 

lo
ca

l 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 o

r 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 

n
e

e
d

, 
a

n
d

 s
e

e
n

 a
s 

a
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 o
ve

r 
d

is
tr

ic
t 

to
w

n
 

ce
n

tr
e

s.
 

P
a

rk
in

g
 

T
h

e
re

 s
h

o
u

ld
 a

lw
a

y
s 

b
e

 a
va

il
a

b
le

 s
p

a
ce

s,
 e

ve
n

 

d
u

ri
n

g
 p

e
a

k
 u

sa
g

e
. 

T
h

e
re

 s
h

o
u

ld
 a

lw
a

y
s 

b
e

 a
va

il
a

b
le

 s
p

a
ce

s,
 

e
v

e
n

 d
u

ri
n

g
 p

e
a

k
 u

sa
g

e
. 

8
5

%
 c

a
p

a
ci

ty
 a

t 
p

e
a

k
 p

e
ri

o
d

s 
ta

rg
e

te
d

. 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
7
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
in

cl
u

d
e

s 
g

ra
n

t 
fu

n
d

in
g

, 
su

ch
 a

s 
th

a
t 

re
ce

n
tl

y
 s

e
cu

re
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 O
u

te
r 

Lo
n

d
o

n
 F

u
n

d
 (

O
LF

),
 a

s 
w

e
ll

 a
s 

fu
n

d
in

g
 r

e
ce

iv
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 g

ro
w

th
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

N
e

w
 H

o
m

e
s 

B
o

n
u

s 

(N
H

B
),

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 I

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 L
e

v
y
 (

C
IL

),
 a

n
d

 “
se

ct
io

n
 1

0
6

” 
m

o
n

e
y
 (

i.
e

. 
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s 

fr
o

m
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
rs

).
 

130



  

1
9

 

 G
ro

w
th

, 
R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 I
n

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
  

3
0

. 
P

la
n

s 
a

re
 

in
 

p
la

ce
 

to
 

d
e

li
v
e

r 
m

o
re

 
th

a
n

 
2

5
,0

0
0

 

h
o

m
e

s 
a

n
d

 1
.2

 m
il
li
o

n
 s

q
u

a
re

 f
e

e
t 

o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 

sp
a

ce
 i

n
 B

a
rn

e
t 

o
v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
xt

 1
5

 y
e

a
rs

, 
fo

cu
se

d
 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 a

ro
u

n
d

 B
re

n
t 

C
ro

ss
, 

C
o

li
n

d
a

le
, 

a
n

d
 M

il
l 

H
il
l,

 b
u

t 
w

it
h

 n
u

m
e

ro
u

s 
o

th
e

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 a
cr

o
ss

 

th
e

 
b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

T
h

is
 

g
ro

w
th

 
w

il
l 

cr
e

a
te

 
n

e
w

 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 
lo

o
k
in

g
 

to
 

st
a

rt
-u

p
, 

in
v
e

st
 a

n
d

 g
ro

w
, 

a
n

d
 f

o
r 

lo
ca

l 
p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 f
in

d
 n

e
w

 

jo
b

s 
a

n
d

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

 
n

e
w

 
sk

il
ls

. 
T

h
e

 
d

e
ta

il
e

d
 

re
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 
p

la
n

 
fo

r 
B

a
rn

e
t 

is
 
co

n
ta

in
e

d
 
in

 
th

e
 

Lo
ca

l 
P

la
n

, 
G

ro
w

th
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 
a

n
d

 
R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

, 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 d
e

si
g

n
e

d
 t

o
 a

li
g

n
 w

it
h

 

a
n

d
 d

e
li
v
e

r 
o

u
r 

b
ro

a
d

e
r 

e
co

n
o

m
ic

 o
b

je
ct

iv
e

s 
a

n
d

 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s.
  

 

3
1

. 
W

h
il
st

 
g

ro
w

th
 

w
il
l 

cr
e

a
te

 
si

g
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
e

co
n

o
m

ic
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s,

 i
t 

m
u

st
 b

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 b

y
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

st
a

n
tl

y
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 i
n

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 i
f 

it
 i
s 

to
 b

e
 

m
a

in
ta

in
e

d
 i

n
to

 t
h

e
 l

o
n

g
e

r 
te

rm
. 

 B
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

re
ly

 

o
n

 
h

ig
h

 
q

u
a

li
ty

 
co

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

 

n
e

tw
o

rk
s,

 
w

h
ic

h
 
n

e
e

d
 
to

 
b

e
 
co

m
p

re
h

e
n

si
v
e

 
a

n
d

 

w
e

ll
 

m
a

in
ta

in
e

d
. 

 
T

h
e

 
re

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 

p
ro

v
id

e
s 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

to
 

u
p

g
ra

d
e

 
ke

y
 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

, 
m

o
st

 n
o

ta
b

ly
 w

it
h

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 

th
e

 M
1

, 
A

4
0

6
, 

ra
il
 a

n
d

 b
u

s 
n

e
tw

o
rk

s 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 

re
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

B
re

n
t 

C
ro

ss
 

C
ri

ck
le

w
o

o
d

. 
 

O
u

r 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 
w

it
h

 
R

e
 

in
cl

u
d

e
s 

co
m

m
it

m
e

n
ts

 
to

 

im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

ce
 o

f 
th

e
 h

ig
h

w
a

y
 n

e
tw

o
rk

, 

w
it

h
 g

re
a

te
r 

e
m

p
h

a
si

s 
o

n
 p

re
v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 q
u

a
li
ty

 o
f 

w
o

rk
s 

b
y
 u

ti
li
ti

e
s.

 

M
a

jo
r 

re
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 g
ro

w
th

 l
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 
in

 B
a

rn
e

t 
–

 A
u

g
u

st
 2

0
1

4
 

 

131



  

2
0

 

 H
o

w
 w

e
 w

il
l 

d
e

li
v

e
r 

th
is

 o
b

je
ct

iv
e

 

C
o

d
e

 
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 O

b
je

ct
iv

e
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 
A

ct
io

n
 

T
im

e
sc

a
le

 

2
.1

8
 

E
x
ce

ll
e

n
ce

 i
n

 

re
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

g
ro

w
th

. 
 

N
e

w
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 t

a
k

e
 

a
cc

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 n
e

e
d

s 
o

f 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 w
id

e
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
. 

W
e

 w
il
l 
w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 o
f 

B
re

n
t 

C
ro

ss
 

C
ri

ck
le

w
o

o
d

 S
o

u
th

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 i
t 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

s 
a

s 
a

 h
ig

h
-

q
u

a
il
ty

 n
e

w
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 f
o

r 
B

a
rn

e
t.

 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 

2
.1

9
 

  
  

W
e

 w
il
l 
e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
n

e
w

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 w
o

rk
sp

a
ce

 a
n

d
 h

o
m

e
/w

o
rk

 s
p

a
ce

. 

A
p

p
ro

a
ch

 

a
g

re
e

d
 b

y
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
5

 

2
.2

0
 

 
 

W
e

 w
il
l 
a

tt
ra

ct
 i
n

 a
 s

m
a

ll
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
m

a
jo

r 

in
v
e

st
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 k

e
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 s
u

ch
 a

s 
B

re
n

t 
C

ro
ss

 

a
n

d
 C

o
li
n

d
a

le
 (

e
.g

. 
p

ri
v
a

te
 s

e
ct

o
r 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

, 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 

o
ff

ic
e

s,
 M

U
 C

a
m

p
u

s)
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
si

te
s 

a
n

d
 

to
 s

ti
m

u
la

te
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

n
e

w
 c

lu
st

e
rs

 o
f 

e
co

n
o

m
ic

 a
ct

iv
it

y
. 

B
y
 A

p
ri

l 

2
0

1
6

 

M
D

X
0

2
 

 
 

M
id

d
le

se
x 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y
 w

il
l 
in

v
e

st
ig

a
te

 t
h

e
ir

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 

ro
le

 i
n

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

k
e

y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

si
te

s 

(s
u

ch
 a

s 
C

o
li
n

d
a

le
 a

n
d

 B
re

n
t 

C
ro

ss
) 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

ir
 t

e
a

ch
in

g
 a

n
d

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s,

 

th
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

st
u

d
e

n
t 

a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o

n
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

in
 a

re
a

s 
w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y
 h

a
s 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
e

xp
e

rt
is

e
, 

su
ch

 a
s 

th
ro

u
g

h
 

th
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
 ‘

cr
e

a
ti

v
e

 h
a

tc
h

e
ry

’.
 

A
u

tu
m

n
 

2
0

1
5

 

132



  

2
1

 

 2
.2

1
 

  
  

W
e

 w
il
l 
im

p
ro

v
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 

n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
ri

n
g

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

s,
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 W

e
st

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 

A
ll
ia

n
ce

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

s 
to

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

e
 r

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

ff
e

r 

is
jo

in
e

d
 u

p
 a

cr
o

ss
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 b

o
u

n
d

a
ri

e
s.

 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 

2
.2

2
 

F
it

 f
o

r 
p

u
rp

o
se

 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 a
n

d
 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

 n
e

tw
o

rk
s 

E
n

su
re

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 l
iv

e
 i

n
, 

w
o

rk
 i

n
, 

o
r 

tr
a

v
e

l 
in

 B
a

rn
e

t 

ca
n

 g
e

t 
a

ro
u

n
d

 e
a

si
ly

 a
n

d
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
tl

y
. 

C
re

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
 c

y
cl

in
g

 n
e

tw
o

rk
 a

cr
o

ss
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

, 

jo
in

in
g

 t
o

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
s,

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 h
u

b
s,

 n
e

w
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

si
te

s,
 a

n
d

 g
re

e
n

 s
p

a
ce

s 
in

to
 a

 c
o

h
e

re
n

t 

sp
a

ce
. 

B
y
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
6

 

2
.2

3
 

  
  

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
 n

e
w

 B
re

n
t 

C
ro

ss
 r

a
il
w

a
y
 s

ta
ti

o
n

 t
o

 

b
o

o
st

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 a
n

d
 m

a
k
e

 

p
ri

v
a

te
 i
n

v
e

st
m

e
n

t 
m

o
re

 a
tt

ra
ct

iv
e

. 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 

2
.2

4
 

  
  

W
e

 w
il
l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

 e
v
id

e
n

ce
 b

a
se

 f
o

r 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

 a
cc

e
ss

ib
il
it

y
, 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 E
a

st
-t

o
-W

e
st

. 

A
p

p
ro

a
ch

 

a
n

d
 

in
te

n
ti

o
n

 

a
g

re
e

d
 b

y
 

Ju
n

e
 2

0
1

5
 

2
.2

6
 

  
 E

st
a

b
li

sh
 1

0
0

%
 c

o
v

e
ra

g
e

 o
f 

su
p

e
rf

a
st

 b
ro

a
d

b
a

n
d

 

W
e

 w
il
l 
a

ch
ie

v
e

 a
 h

ig
h

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
fa

st
 b

ro
a

d
b

a
n

d
 

a
cc

e
ss

ib
il
it

y
 f

o
r 

co
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
su

p
p

li
e

rs
; 

m
a

xi
m

is
e

 u
se

 

o
f 

G
LA

 c
o

n
n

e
ct

io
n

 v
o

u
ch

e
r 

sc
h

e
m

e
 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 

fr
o

m
 J

u
n

e
 

2
0

1
4

 

M
D

X
0

3
 

  
  

M
id

d
le

se
x 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y
 w

il
l 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n

 e
v
a

lu
a

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 h
ig

h
 c

a
p

a
ci

ty
, 

a
d

v
a

n
ce

d
 

d
ig

it
a

l 
ca

p
a

ci
ti

e
s 

o
n

 t
h

e
ir

 s
it

e
s 

to
 e

n
co

u
ra

g
e

 t
h

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

h
ig

h
-t

e
ch

 d
ig

it
a

l 
in

d
u

st
ri

e
s.

 

T
B

C
 

133



  

2
2

 

 T
H

E
M

E
 C

: 
S

k
il

le
d

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s 

a
n

d
 e

n
tr

e
p

re
n

e
u

rs
 

3
2

. 
H

a
v
in

g
 a

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 r
ig

h
t 

sk
il
ls

, 
fl

e
xi

b
il
it

y
, 

a
tt

it
u

d
e

s 
a

n
d

 b
e

h
a

v
io

u
rs

 i
s 

a
n

 e
ss

e
n

ti
a

l 
in

g
re

d
ie

n
t 

fo
r 

e
co

n
o

m
ic

 g
ro

w
th

. 
Y

e
t 

th
e

re
 a

re
 

so
m

e
 s

e
ct

o
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 e
co

n
o

m
y
 w

h
e

re
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
fi

n
d

 i
t 

d
if

fi
cu

lt
 t

o
 r

e
cr

u
it

 a
n

d
 w

h
ic

h
 m

a
y
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 b

e
 a

 c
o

n
st

ra
in

t 
o

n
 g

ro
w

th
 -

 i
n

 2
0

1
3

 t
h

e
 

B
a

rn
e

t 
B

u
si

n
e

ss
 S

u
rv

e
y
 s

h
o

w
e

d
 u

s 
th

a
t 

4
3

%
 o

f 
lo

ca
l 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
h

a
v
e

 p
ro

b
le

m
s 

re
cr

u
it

in
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
le

va
n

t 
sk

il
ls

 l
o

ca
ll
y
. 

 B
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

a
ls

o
 r

e
p

o
rt

 a
 m

is
m

a
tc

h
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 k
in

d
s 

o
f 

sk
il
ls

 p
e

o
p

le
 i
n

 B
a

rn
e

t 
h

a
v
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 k
in

d
s 

o
f 

sk
il
ls

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

y 
a

re
, 

a
n

d
 w

il
l 
in

cr
e

a
si

n
g

ly
 b

e
, 

lo
o

k
in

g
 f

o
r.

  
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 m

a
n

y
 i
n

fl
u

e
n

ce
s 

o
n

 t
h

e
 a

va
il
a

b
il
it

y 
o

f 
sk

il
ls

 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
a

b
o

u
r 

m
a

rk
e

t,
 a

n
d

 i
t 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 w
ro

n
g

 t
o

 i
m

p
ly

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

a
n

d
 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 c
a

n
 e

n
su

re
 a

 m
a

tc
h

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 s
u

p
p

ly
 a

n
d

 d
e

m
a

n
d

. 
 W

e
 c

a
n

, 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

a
k
e

 s
te

p
s 

to
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 s

k
il
ls

 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 l
o

ca
ll
y
 m

e
e

ts
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s 
o

f 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

rs
; 

a
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

o
se

 w
h

o
 l
iv

e
 o

r 
st

u
d

y
 l
o

ca
ll
y
 h

a
v
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

to
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 s

k
il
ls

 t
h

e
 

m
a

rk
e

t 
d

e
m

a
n

d
s 

fr
o

m
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s 

a
n

d
 e

n
tr

e
p

re
n

e
u

rs
. 

 

 

3
3

. 
A

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 B
a

rn
e

t 
h

a
s 

a
 g

e
n

e
ra

ll
y
 h

ig
h

ly
 s

k
il
le

d
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 a

n
d

 r
e

la
ti

v
e

ly
 l
o

w
 u

n
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
ra

te
, 

m
a

n
y
 p

e
o

p
le

 r
e

m
a

in
 e

co
n

o
m

ic
a

ll
y
 

in
a

ct
iv

e
 a

n
d

 n
o

t 
b

e
n

e
fi

ti
n

g
 f

ro
m

 n
e

w
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s.
 L

o
w

 p
a

y
 l
e

v
e

ls
 i
n

 s
o

m
e

 o
cc

u
p

a
ti

o
n

s 
m

e
a

n
 t

h
a

t 
m

a
n

y
 w

o
rk

in
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 a

re
 

fi
n

d
in

g
 i
t 

in
cr

e
a

si
n

g
ly

 d
if

fi
cu

lt
 t

o
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 i
n

to
 h

ig
h

e
r 

p
a

id
 w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 a

re
 c

a
u

g
h

t 
in

 a
 l
o

w
 w

a
g

e
, 

lo
w

 s
k
il
ls

 c
yc

le
. 

 

3
4

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l,

 s
ch

o
o

ls
, 

B
a

rn
e

t 
a

n
d

 S
o

u
th

g
a

te
 C

o
ll
e

g
e

, 
M

id
d

le
se

x 
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
, 

JC
P

, 
a

n
d

 w
o

rk
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 w
il
l 
w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 w
id

e
r 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 u

se
 t

h
e

 a
v
a

il
a

b
le

 l
e

v
e

rs
  
to

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 i
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 t
h

e
 s

k
il
ls

 n
e

e
d

e
d

 t
o

 s
u

st
a

in
 g

ro
w

th
. 

W
e

 w
il
l 
li
st

e
n

 t
o

 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

so
 t

o
 e

n
a

b
le

 t
h

e
m

 t
o

 f
in

d
 t

h
e

 r
ig

h
t 

p
e

o
p

le
 l
o

ca
ll
y
 w

it
h

 f
e

w
e

r 
b

a
rr

ie
rs

 t
o

 s
u

cc
e

ss
fu

l 
re

cr
u

it
m

e
n

t.
 W

e
 w

a
n

t 
to

 u
se

 t
h

e
 i
n

fl
u

e
n

ce
 

th
a

t 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 t
o

 e
n

co
u

ra
g

e
 a

ll
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
 s

ta
k
e

 i
n

 f
u

tu
re

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 t

o
 b

e
n

e
fi

t 
fr

o
m

 i
t 

d
ir

e
ct

ly
 i
n

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

rs
 a

h
e

a
d

. 
 

 

3
5

. 
B

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
d

e
p

e
n

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

ir
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 f

o
r 

su
cc

e
ss

, 
a

n
d

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 

if
 t

h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll
 h

e
a

lt
h

 o
f 

th
e

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 i
s 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
. 

 T
h

is
 s

e
ct

io
n

 a
ls

o
 

a
d

d
re

ss
e

s 
th

e
 p

u
b

li
c 

se
ct

o
r’

s 
ro

le
 i

n
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

rs
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
e

rs
 t

o
 d

e
li
v
e

r 
h

e
a

lt
h

ie
r 

w
o

rk
p

la
ce

s,
 a

s 
w

e
ll
 a

s 
h

e
lp

in
g

 f
in

d
 n

e
w

 

p
a

th
w

a
y
s 

to
 w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
th

o
se

 w
h

o
se

 h
e

a
lt

h
 m

ig
h

t 
o

th
e

rw
is

e
 m

a
k
e

 i
t 

d
if

fi
cu

lt
 t

o
 e

n
te

r 
o

r 
re

-e
n

te
r 

th
e

 l
a

b
o

u
r 

m
a

rk
e

t.
 

 

C
a

se
 s

tu
d

y
  

P
la

tf
o

rm
s 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

T
h

e
 P

la
tf

o
rm

s 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 is
 a

im
e

d
 a

t 
1

6
-2

4
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s,

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
s 

B
a

rn
e

t 
y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 n
o

t 
in

 e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
, 

to
 f

in
d

 e
m

p
lo

ym
e

n
t.

 

T
h

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 e
n

g
a

g
e

s 
w

it
h

 l
o

ca
l S

M
E

s 
to

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 t
h

e
 k

in
d

 o
f 

sk
il

ls
 l

o
ca

l 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
n

e
e

d
. 

P
la

tf
o

rm
s 

p
ro

v
id

e
s 

a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s,

 i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 

m
a

tc
h

in
g

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
lo

o
k

in
g

 f
o

r 
a

p
p

re
n

ti
ce

s 
a

n
d

 i
n

te
rn

s,
 a

llo
w

in
g

 t
h

e
m

 t
o

 b
u

il
d

 u
p

 t
h

e
ir

 s
k

il
ls

 a
n

d
 e

xp
e

ri
e

n
ce

 i
n

 a
 p

ra
ct

ic
a

l w
a

y
. 

T
h

e
 

m
a

in
 P

la
tf

o
rm

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s 

e
n

g
a

g
e

d
 w

it
h

 2
9

0
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
, 

w
it

h
 1

6
0

 a
ct

iv
e

ly
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

n
g

. 
 

 

134



  

2
3

 

 H
o

w
 w

e
 w

il
l 

d
e

li
v

e
r 

th
is

 o
b

je
ct

iv
e

 

C
o

d
e

 
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 O

b
je

ct
iv

e
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 
A

ct
io

n
 

T
im

e
sc

a
le

 

3
.1

 

W
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
 t

o
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
 

a
 s

k
il

le
d

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

. 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
 a

re
 w

e
ll

 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 a
n

d
 

w
e

ll
 p

la
ce

d
 t

o
 o

ff
e

r 
a

p
p

re
n

ti
ce

sh
ip

 

a
n

d
 t

ra
in

in
g

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

to
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 n

e
x

t 
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

. 

W
e

 w
il

l 
w

o
rk

 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it

h
 J

o
b

 C
e

n
tr

e
 P

lu
s,

 

B
a

rn
e

t 
a

n
d

 S
o

u
th

g
a

te
 C

o
lle

g
e

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s 

to
 r

a
is

e
 a

w
a

re
n

e
ss

  o
f 

a
p

p
re

n
ti

ce
sh

ip
s 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 

tr
a

in
in

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 l

o
ca

l 
e

m
p

lo
y

e
rs

. 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 f
ro

m
 

D
e

ce
m

b
e

r 

2
0

1
4

 

3
.2

 
  

R
e

si
d

e
n

ts
 o

f 
a

ll
 a

g
e

s 
a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o

 

a
cc

e
ss

 t
h

e
 e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 t

ra
in

in
g

 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

b
e

in
g

 c
re

a
te

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

re
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s 

a
n

d
 

o
th

e
r 

co
n

tr
a

ct
s.

 

W
e

 w
il

l 
w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 t
o

 m
a

xi
m

is
e

 

lo
ca

l 
a

p
p

re
n

ti
ce

sh
ip

 a
n

d
 t

ra
in

in
g

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

th
ro

u
g

h
 

re
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

sc
h

e
m

e
s.

 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 f
ro

m
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
5

 

3
.3

 
  

  

W
e

 w
il

l 
a

d
o

p
t 

a
n

d
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

t 
a

 S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 D
o

cu
m

e
n

t 
to

 e
n

su
re

 s
k

il
ls

 a
n

d
 e

n
te

rp
ri

se
 

p
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
 a

re
 i

n
co

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i

n
to

 n
e

w
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
, 

fo
r 

e
xa

m
p

le
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 l

o
ca

l 
la

b
o

u
r 

a
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

. 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

 

3
.4

 
  

  

W
e

 w
il

l 
in

tr
o

d
u

ce
 a

 j
o

b
s 

b
ro

k
e

ra
g
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 f

o
r 

so
m

e
 o

f 

o
u

r 
ke

y
 r

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 s

ch
e

m
e

s 
a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

m
a

jo
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

. 

F
ro

m
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
5

 

3
.6

 
  

  

W
e

 w
il

l 
w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 s
e

ct
o

r 
sk

il
ls

 c
o

u
n

ci
l 

to
 r

e
fl

e
ct

 b
e

st
 p

ra
ct

ic
e

 i
n

 o
u

r 
lo

ca
l c

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 

e
m

p
lo

ym
e

n
t 

m
o

d
e

ls
 i

n
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 o

f 
fu

tu
re

 j
o

b
 g

ro
w

th
. 

Ju
ly

 2
0

1
5

 

135



  

2
4

 

 3
.8

 
  

  

W
e

 w
il

l 
im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 P
ro

cu
re

m
e

n
t 

P
le

d
g

e
 

w
h

e
n

 p
la

ci
n

g
 c

o
n

tr
a

ct
s 

h
e

lp
in

g
 t

o
 e

n
a

b
le

 y
o

u
th

 

e
m

p
lo

ym
e

n
t 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

a
p

p
re

n
ti

ce
sh

ip
s,

 g
ra

d
u

a
te

 p
la

ce
m

e
n

ts
, 

a
n

d
 p

o
si

ti
v

e
 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it

h
 t

h
o

se
 f

u
rt

h
e

st
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 l

a
b

o
u

r 

m
a

rk
e

t.
 

O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

 

3
.9

 
 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
 a

re
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 l

o
ca

l 

la
b

o
u

r 
m

a
rk

e
t 

su
p

p
ly

. 
T

h
e

ir
 n

e
e

d
s 

a
re

 k
n

o
w

n
 a

n
d

 s
k

il
ls

 g
a

p
s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 

to
 i

n
fo

rm
 j

o
b

 m
a

tc
h

in
g

, 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

a
n

d
 

h
ig

h
e

r 
e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

, 
a

n
d

 

ca
re

e
rs

 a
d

v
ic

e
 t

o
 s

ch
o

o
ls

. 

W
e

 w
il

l 
e

st
a

b
li

sh
 s

tr
o

n
g

 l
o

ca
l 

la
b

o
u

r 
m

a
rk

e
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l’

s 
in

si
g

h
t 

fu
n

ct
io

n
 a

n
d

 

th
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 B
a

rn
e

t 
O

b
se

rv
a

to
ry

. 

F
e

n
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
5

 

K
A

0
1

 
 

 

W
e

 w
il

l 
e

xp
lo

re
 t

h
e

 p
o

ss
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

e
st

a
b

li
sh

in
g

 a
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

  t
ra

n
si

ti
o

n
 t

o
 r

e
ti

re
m

e
n

t 
in

 a
 

w
a

y
 t

h
a

t 
e

n
a

b
le

s 
o

ld
e

r 
re

si
d

e
n

ts
 t

o
 b

o
th

 l
iv

e
 a

 f
u

ll
 a

n
d

 

a
ct

iv
e

 l
if

e
 a

n
d

 a
ls

o
 m

a
k

e
 a

n
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

su
cc

e
ss

 o
f 

th
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

. 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
5

 

M
D

X
0

4
 

 
 

M
id

d
le

se
x 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y
 w

il
l w

o
rk

 c
lo

se
ly

 w
it

h
 e

m
p

lo
ye

rs
 

to
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
co

u
rs

e
 p

ro
v

is
io

n
 a

n
d

 r
e

se
a

rc
h

 a
ct

iv
it

y 
is

 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
o

 d
e

ve
lo

p
in

g
 a

 l
o

ca
l h

ig
h

ly
 s

k
il

le
d

 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 s
k

il
ls

 n
e

ce
ss

a
ry

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 lo
ca

l e
co

n
o

m
y

. 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 

3
.1

3
 

  
  

W
e

 w
il

l 
p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h

e
 d

e
li

ve
ry

 o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
a

b
il

it
y 

sk
il

ls
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 a
s 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
 

fo
r 

e
m

p
lo

ym
e

n
t.

 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 

3
.1

4
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ts
 

to
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
 t

h
e

 s
k

il
ls

 

th
e

y
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 s

u
cc

e
e

d
. 

Y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
e

ll
 q

u
a

li
fi

e
d

 a
n

d
 

jo
b

s 
re

a
d

y
 t

o
 p

u
rs

u
e

 t
h

e
ir

 c
h

o
se

n
 

ca
re

e
r 

p
a

th
w

a
y

. 

W
e

 w
il

l 
p

ro
m

o
te

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

sc
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 

e
m

p
lo

ye
rs

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 d

e
ve

lo
p

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

’s
 

sk
il

ls
 a

n
d

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 o
f 

ca
re

e
r 

p
a

th
w

a
y

s 
th

ro
u

g
h

 

sc
h

e
m

e
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

"l
e

t'
s 

T
a

lk
 S

h
o

p
".

 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

 

136



  

2
5

 

 3
.1

5
 

  
  

W
e

 w
il

l 
w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 p

ro
v

id
e

rs
 t

o
 d

e
ve

lo
p

 a
n

d
 d

e
li

ve
r 

a
 

st
ro

n
g

 o
ff

e
r 

o
f 

vo
ca

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 t
e

ch
n

ic
a

l 
p

a
th

w
a

y
s 

fo
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 B
a

rn
e

t.
 

S
u

m
m

e
r 

2
0

1
5

 

B
S

C
0

1
 

  
  

B
a

rn
e

t 
a

n
d

 S
o

u
th

g
a

te
 C

o
lle

g
e

 w
il

l e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

co
u

rs
e

s 

fo
r 

b
o

th
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 i

n
 f

u
ll

-t
im

e
 e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

d
u

lt
 

le
a

rn
e

rs
 a

re
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
v

e
  t

o
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s 
o

f 
th

e
 lo

ca
l 

e
co

n
o

m
y

 a
n

d
 f

o
cu

s 
a

ro
u

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 s
k

il
ls

 r
e

la
ti

n
g

 t
o

 

a
re

a
s 

o
f 

h
ig

h
e

st
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 f
u

tu
re

 g
ro

w
th

, 
so

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 i
s 

e
q

u
ip

p
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 j
o

b
s 

o
f 

to
d

a
y

 a
n

d
 

to
m

o
rr

o
w

. 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
5

 

B
S

C
0

2
 

  
  

B
a

rn
e

t 
a

n
d

 S
o

u
th

g
a

te
 C

o
lle

g
e

 w
il

l w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 J
o

b
 C

e
n

tr
e

 

P
lu

s 
to

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 S
e

ct
o

r 
b

a
se

d
 W

o
rk

 

A
ca

d
e

m
ie

s 
so

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 p
a

th
w

a
y

 f
o

r 
u

n
e

m
p

lo
ye

d
 p

e
o

p
le

 

is
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 a

n
d

 f
o

cu
se

d
 o

n
 lo

ca
l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 g
ro

w
th

 a
re

a
s.

 

T
B

C
 

3
.1

6
 

  
  

W
e

 w
il

l 
d

e
fi

n
e

 a
n

 e
m

p
lo

y
a

b
il

it
y

 o
ff

e
r 

fo
r 

ca
re

 le
a

ve
rs

 t
o

 

e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

a
ll

 c
a

re
 l

e
a

v
e

rs
 a

re
 e

q
u

ip
p

e
d

 f
o

r 
w

o
rk

. 
O

n
g

o
in

g
 

3
.1

7
 

 
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 w
il

l 
e

xp
lo

re
 o

p
ti

o
n

s 
to

 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

p
p

re
n

ti
ce

sh
ip

s 
a

n
d

 w
o

rk
 p

la
ce

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
 

p
e

o
p

le
 o

f 
a

ll 
a

g
e

s.
 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 

M
D

X
0

5
 

 
 

M
id

d
le

se
x 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y
 w

il
l w

o
rk

 c
lo

se
ly

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

ir
 

st
u

d
e

n
ts

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 h

ig
h

 q
u

a
li

ty
 c

a
re

e
r 

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

su
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

y
 h

a
v

e
 t

h
e

 n
e

ce
ss

a
ry

 

e
m

p
lo

y
a

b
il

it
y

 s
k

il
ls

. 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 

3
.1

8
 

  
  

W
e

 w
il

l 
id

e
n

ti
fy

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

  
p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 

th
o

se
 a

t 
ri

sk
 o

f 
b

e
in

g
 n

o
t 

in
 e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

, 
e

m
p

lo
ym

e
n

t 
o

r 

tr
a

in
in

g
 (

N
E

E
T

) 
to

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

e
y

 m
a

ke
 a

 s
u

cc
e

ss
fu

l 

tr
a

n
si

ti
o

n
 t

o
 e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
/o

r 
tr

a
in

in
g

. 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 

137



  

2
6

 

 B
S

C
0

3
 

  
  

B
a

rn
e

t 
a

n
d

 S
o

u
th

g
a

te
 C

o
lle

g
e

 w
il

l 
d

e
v

e
lo

p
 c

o
u

rs
e

s 
a

n
d

 

le
a

rn
in

g
 e

xp
e

ri
e

n
ce

s 
a

im
e

d
 a

t 
yo

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 a

d
u

lt
s 

lo
o

k
in

g
 t

o
 p

u
rs

u
e

 c
a

re
e

rs
 in

 t
h

e
 c

a
re

 a
n

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

 

se
ct

o
rs

, 
re

fl
e

ct
in

g
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
 f

u
tu

re
 g

ro
w

th
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l f

o
r 

th
e

se
 s

e
ct

o
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 B
a

rn
e

t 
e

co
n

o
m

y
..

 

T
B

C
 

3
.1

9
 

 
 

W
e

 w
il

l 
p

ro
m

o
te

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 l

a
b

o
u

r 
m

a
rk

e
t 

in
te

ll
ig

e
n

ce
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 s

ch
o

o
ls

, 
p

o
st

-1
6

 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

, 
lo

ca
l 

e
m

p
lo

ye
rs

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s,
 

b
u

il
d

in
g

 o
n

 e
xi

st
in

g
 s

ch
o

o
ls

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s 

m
e

ch
a

n
is

m
s.

 

A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
5

 

3
.2

0
 

 

Lo
ca

l 
p

ro
v

is
io

n
 i

n
 s

ch
o

o
ls

 a
n

d
 

co
ll

e
g

e
s 

re
fl

e
ct

s 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
s 

o
f 

lo
ca

l 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
 a

s 
w

e
ll

 a
s 

th
e

 w
id

e
r 

re
g

io
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

e
co

n
o

m
y

. 

W
e

 w
il

l 
su

p
p

o
rt

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 in
 t

h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
C

a
re

e
rs

 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
, 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
, 

A
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 G
u

id
a

n
ce

 t
h

a
t 

a
li

g
n

s 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 m

o
st

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

la
b

o
u

r 
m

a
rk

e
t 

tr
e

n
d

s 
a

n
d

 

m
a

rk
e

t 
d

e
m

a
n

d
. 

A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
5

 

3
.2

2
 

 
W

o
rk

le
ss

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ts
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 i

n
to

 

su
st

a
in

a
b

le
 e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t.

 

W
e

 w
il

l 
w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 C
a

p
 T

a
sk

 F
o

rc
e

 t
o

 

d
e

li
v

e
r 

o
u

r 
re

sp
o

n
se

 t
o

 t
h

e
 w

e
lf

a
re

 r
e

fo
rm

s.
 

o
n

g
o

in
g
 

3
.2

3
 

  
  

W
e

 w
il

l 
w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 p

ro
v

id
e

rs
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 E

u
ro

p
e

a
n

 

S
tr

u
ct

u
ra

l 
a

n
d

 I
n

ve
st

m
e

n
t 

F
u

n
d

 (
E

S
IF

) 
co

n
tr

a
ct

 h
o

ld
e

rs
 

to
 p

ro
v

id
e

 a
 w

e
ll

-c
o

o
rd

in
a

te
d

 r
e

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
ff

e
r 

fo
r 

1
6

-1
8

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s 
. 

T
B

C
 

3
.2

4
 

 
T

h
o

se
 o

n
 l

o
w

 p
a

y
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 t

o
 

p
ro

g
re

ss
. 

W
e

 w
il

l 
d

e
v

e
lo

p
 a

 s
k

il
ls

 e
sc

a
la

to
r 

m
o

d
e

l  
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 

W
e

st
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 A

ll
li

a
n

ce
 t

o
 d

e
li

v
e

r 
in

-w
o

rk
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

im
p

ro
v

in
g

 s
k

il
ls

 a
n

d
 j

o
b

 p
ro

g
re

ss
io

n
. 

T
B

C
 

3
.2

6
 

  
  

W
e

 w
il

l 
e

xp
lo

re
 h

o
w

 t
o

 t
a

p
 i

n
to

 t
h

e
 e

xp
e

rt
is

e
 o

f 

o
ld

e
r/

re
ti

re
d

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

 e
xp

e
ri

e
n

ce
 i

n
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

 m
e

n
to

ri
n

g
 t

o
 lo

ca
l 

SM
E

s(
e

.g
. 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

 h
u

b
 C

IC
).

 

A
u

g
u

st
 2

0
1

5
 

138



  

2
7

 

 3
.2

7
 

E
n

co
u

ra
g

in
g

 a
 c

u
lt

u
re

 

o
f 

e
n

tr
e

p
re

n
e

u
rs

h
ip

. 

R
e

si
d

e
n

ts
 a

re
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
se

lf
-

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a

s 
a

n
 o

p
ti

o
n

, 
a

n
d

 

k
n

o
w

 h
o

w
 t

o
 f

in
d

 t
h

e
 h

e
lp

 t
h

e
y

 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 s
ta

rt
 a

 s
u

cc
e

ss
fu

l 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
. 

W
e

 w
il

l 
ru

n
 a

n
 ‘

In
n

o
v

a
ti

o
n

 B
a

rn
e

t’
 c

o
m

p
e

ti
ti

o
n

 i
n

 

co
n

ju
n

ct
io

n
 w

it
h

 M
id

d
le

se
x 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y 
to

 h
e

lp
 p

ro
m

o
te

 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 i
n

n
o

va
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 e

n
tr

e
p

re
n

e
u

rs
h

ip
 i

n
 B

a
rn

e
t.

 

O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
5

 

M
D

X
0

6
 

  
  

M
id

d
le

se
x 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y
 t

o
 a

ct
iv

e
ly

 p
ro

m
o

te
 a

w
a

re
n

e
ss

 o
f 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 s
ta

rt
-u

p
 a

n
d

  s
e

lf
-e

m
p

lo
ym

e
n

t 
a

s 
ca

re
e

r 
p

a
th

s 

fo
r 

th
e

ir
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

d
v

ic
e

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

a
d

v
a

n
ci

n
g

 g
ra

d
u

a
te

 e
n

tr
e

p
re

n
e

u
ri

a
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
. 

T
B

C
 

3
.3

0
 

  
  

W
e

 w
il

l 
p

ro
v

id
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 s

ig
n

p
o

st
in

g
 t

o
 o

ld
e

r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 w
a

n
t 

to
 e

st
a

b
li

sh
 t

h
e

ir
 o

w
n

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

. 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
5

 

B
S

C
0

4
 

  
  

B
a

rn
e

t 
a

n
d

 S
o

u
th

g
a

te
 w

il
l 

fa
ci

li
ta

te
 t

h
e

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 

e
xp

a
n

si
o

n
 o

f 
e

n
tr

e
p

re
n

e
u

ri
a

l 
a

ct
iv

it
y 

a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

, 
p

ro
v

id
in

g
 a

 s
o

u
rc

e
 o

f 
a

d
v

ic
e

 t
o

 p
ro

sp
e

ct
iv

e
 

a
n

d
 n

e
w

 e
n

tr
e

p
re

n
e

u
rs

. 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 f
o

rm
 

Ja
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

5
 

3
.2

8
 

A
 h

e
a

lt
h

ie
r 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

. 

S
tr

o
n

g
e

r 
e

co
n

o
m

y
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 

m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 

th
o

se
 w

it
h

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 n
e

e
d

s 
to

 

re
m

a
in

 i
n

/b
a

ck
 t

o
 w

o
rk

. 

T
h

e
 P

u
b

li
c 

H
e

a
lt

h
 t

e
a

m
 w

il
l 

su
p

p
o

rt
 5

 o
f 

th
e

 l
a

rg
e

r 
lo

ca
l 

e
m

p
lo

ye
rs

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 H
e

a
lt

h
y 

W
o

rk
p

la
ce

 C
h

a
rt

e
r.

 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

5
 

3
.2

9
 

  
  

W
e

 w
il

l 
b

u
il

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 e
xp

e
ri

e
n

ce
 o

f 
th

e
 "

F
u

tu
re

 P
a

th
" 

in
it

ia
ti

v
e

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

o
se

 w
it

h
 m

e
n

ta
l 

h
e

a
lt

h
 p

ro
b

le
m

s 

b
a

ck
 t

o
 w

o
rk

, 
to

 im
p

ro
v

e
 t

h
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 

tr
e

a
tm

e
n

t 
o

f 
m

e
n

ta
l 

h
e

a
lt

h
 i

n
 e

m
p

lo
ym

e
n

t 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

a
n

d
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
o

se
 i

n
 e

m
p

lo
ym

e
n

t 
w

h
o

 h
a

ve
 

co
n

ce
rn

s 
a

b
o

u
t 

m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

. 

O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

 

M
D

X
0

7
 

  
  

M
id

d
le

se
x 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y
 t

o
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
 c

o
u

rs
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 

re
se

a
rc

h
 a

ct
iv

it
y 

to
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h

e
 d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
 

h
e

a
lt

h
ie

r 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 a

n
d

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 s

o
ci

a
l 

in
cl

u
si

o
n

 

fo
r 

th
o

se
 w

it
h

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 n
e

e
d

s.
 

T
B

C
 

139



  

2
8

 

 B
S

C
0

5
 

  
  

B
a

rn
e

t 
a

n
d

 S
o

u
th

g
a

te
 C

o
lle

g
e

 w
il

l 
u

ti
li

se
 i

ts
 C

e
n

tr
e

 o
f 

E
xc

e
ll

e
n

ce
 f

o
r 

Le
a

rn
e

rs
 w

it
h

 L
e

a
rn

in
g

 D
if

fi
cu

lt
ie

s 
a

n
d

 

D
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s 

to
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 o
ff

e
r 

a
n

d
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

e
ve

lo
p

 

sp
e

ci
a

li
st

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

to
 B

a
rn

e
t 

re
si

d
e

n
ts

. 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 

B
S

C
0

6
 

  
  

W
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 B
a

rn
e

t 
a

n
d

 S
o

u
th

g
a

te
 C

o
ll

e
g
e

 

w
il

l 
d

e
ve

lo
p

 n
e

w
 l

e
a

d
e

rs
h

ip
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s 
to

 m
e

e
t 

th
e

 

g
ro

w
in

g
 d

e
m

a
n

d
s 

fo
r 

ra
is

in
g

 e
m

p
lo

ye
r 

a
w

a
re

n
e

ss
 a

n
d

 

m
e

a
n

in
g

fu
l 

a
ct

io
n

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

p
la

ce
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 h
e

a
lt

h
. 

T
B

C
 

140



  

2
9

 

 T
H

E
M

E
 D

: 
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 A

cc
e

ss
 t

o
 M

a
rk

e
ts

  

3
6

. 
W

h
il
st

 i
t 

is
 t

h
e

 p
ri

v
a

te
 s

e
ct

o
r 

th
a

t 
w

il
l 
g

e
n

e
ra

te
 t

h
e

 l
io

n
’s

 s
h

a
re

 o
f 

g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 B
a

rn
e

t 
in

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

rs
 a

h
e

a
d

, 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l,
 a

lo
n

g
 w

it
h

 o
u

r 
w

id
e

r 

p
u

b
li
c 

se
ct

o
r 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

, 
is

 a
 m

a
jo

r 
b

u
y
e

r 
o

f 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

th
ro

u
g

h
 o

u
r 

p
ro

cu
re

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 f

u
n

ct
io

n
s,

 a
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 p

u
b

li
c 

se
ct

o
r 

su
p

p
ly

 c
h

a
in

 i
s 

a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
co

n
tr

ib
u

to
r 

to
 t

h
e

 B
a

rn
e

t 
a

n
d

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
e

co
n

o
m

ie
s.

  
B

a
rn

e
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

s 
o

v
e

r 
1

0
0

0
 c

o
n

tr
a

ct
s 

w
o

rt
h

 a
 t

o
ta

l 
o

f 

£
1

.1
b

n
, 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 1
0

 c
o

n
tr

a
ct

s 
w

o
rt

h
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 £
1

7
m

. 
A

ro
u

n
d

 2
0

%
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l’
s 

co
n

tr
a

ct
s 

b
y
 v

a
lu

e
 a

re
 w

it
h

 l
o

ca
ll
y
-b

a
se

d
 s

u
p

p
li
e

rs
. 

 

3
7

. 
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 s

o
m

e
 s

e
ct

o
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 e
co

n
o

m
y
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 t

h
e

 c
a

re
 s

e
ct

o
r,

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
is

 a
 d

o
m

in
a

n
t 

p
la

y
e

r 
in

 t
h

e
 m

a
rk

e
t,

 a
n

d
 p

la
y
s 

a
 

re
a

l 
ro

le
 g

e
n

e
ra

ti
n

g
 p

ri
va

te
 s

e
ct

o
r 

g
ro

w
th

, 
jo

b
s,

 a
n

d
 d

ri
vi

n
g

 i
n

co
m

e
s.

 T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
w

il
l 
e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
lo

ca
l 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

li
e

rs
 c

a
n

 

a
cc

e
ss

 o
u

r 
su

p
p

ly
 c

h
a

in
 i
n

 a
 s

tr
a

ig
h

tf
o

rw
a

rd
, 

tr
a

n
sp

a
re

n
t 

w
a

y
, 

a
n

d
 w

il
l 
g

iv
e

 c
le

a
r 

si
g

n
a

ls
 t

o
 t

h
e

 m
a

rk
e

t 
a

b
o

u
t 

o
u

r 
co

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 i
n

te
n

ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 p

ro
ce

ss
e

s,
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 l
o

ca
l 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
a

n
d

 e
m

p
lo

ym
e

n
t,

 a
n

d
 s

ti
m

u
la

ti
n

g
 l
o

ca
l 
e

co
n

o
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
. 

 

 

C
a

se
 S

tu
d

y
: 

w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 s
u

p
p

li
e

rs
 

 In
 2

0
1

3
 B

a
rn

e
t 

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 i
t 

h
a

d
 a

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

 a
n

d
 i
n

st
a

ll
a

ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s.
  
T

h
e

 v
a

lu
e

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
ct

  
m

e
a

n
t 

th
a

t 
 a

 q
u

o
ta

ti
o

n
 e

xe
rc

is
e

 w
a

s 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
. 

 F
iv

e
 s

u
p

p
li
e

rs
 w

e
re

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 f
ro

m
 a

 p
a

n
-L

o
n

d
o

n
 s

u
p

p
li
e

r 
d

a
ta

b
a

se
 w

h
o

 h
a

d
 c

a
p

a
b

il
it

y
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

ly
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

, 
a

ll
 s

u
p

p
li
e

rs
 b

e
in

g
 s

m
a

ll
 n

ic
h

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

. 
  
T

h
e

se
 f

iv
e

 s
u

p
p

li
e

rs
 w

e
re

 i
n

v
it

e
d

 t
o

 q
u

o
te

 u
si

n
g

 t
h

e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 e
-

p
o

rt
a

l 
sy

st
e

m
. 

 U
se

 o
f 

th
e

 p
o

rt
a

l 
h

ig
h

li
g

h
te

d
 a

re
a

s 
o

f 
d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 p
o

rt
a

l 
to

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
u

p
p

li
e

r’
s 

u
se

. 
  

 B
a

rn
e

t 
a

s 
a

 r
e

su
lt

 h
a

s 
a

 c
o

n
tr

a
ct

 i
n

 p
la

ce
 w

it
h

 a
 l
o

ca
l 
su

p
p

li
e

r,
 b

a
se

d
 w

it
h

in
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
B

a
rn

e
t,

 t
h

a
t 

co
v
e

rs
 t

h
e

 p
ro

vi
si

o
n

 o
f 

m
e

ta
lw

o
rk

s 
a

n
d

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

 o
f 

e
xi

st
in

g
 m

e
ta

lw
o

rk
 s

tr
u

ct
u

re
s.

  
T

h
is

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

s 
b

o
th

 t
h

e
 l
o

ca
l 
e

co
n

o
m

y
 a

n
d

  
w

e
ll
b

e
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o

ca
l 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y
. 

 

A
s 

th
e

 m
a

in
 u

se
r 

o
f 

th
e

se
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
is

 G
re

e
n

sp
a

ce
s 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s 

a
v
a

il
a

b
le

 f
o

r 
a

ll
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 t

o
 u

se
. 

     

141



  

3
0

 

 H
o

w
 w

e
 w

il
l 

d
e

li
v

e
r 

th
is

 o
b

je
ct

iv
e

 

C
o

d
e

 
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 O

b
je

ct
iv

e
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 
A

ct
io

n
 

T
im

e
sc

a
le

 

4
.1

 

Lo
ca

l 
a

n
d

 s
m

a
ll

 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

ca
n

 

a
cc

e
ss

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

co
n

tr
a

ct
s.

 

Lo
ca

l 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 

su
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
e

te
 

e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

ly
 f

o
r 

co
n

tr
a

ct
s.

 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 w
il

l 
d

e
v

e
lo

p
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 m

e
n

to
ri

n
g

, 

tr
a

in
in

g
 c

o
u

rs
e

s 
a

n
d

 f
o

ru
m

s 
o

n
 w

in
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 s

u
st

a
in

in
g

 

co
n

tr
a

ct
s 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

ci
l 

to
 s

m
a

ll
 a

n
d

 m
e

d
iu

m
 s

iz
e

d
 

e
n

te
rp

ri
se

s.
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

 

4
.2

 
  

  

W
e

 w
il

l 
in

cr
e

a
se

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
lo

ca
l 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

a
n

d
 

v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e

ct
o

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s 
tr

a
d

in
g

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

B
a

rn
e

t.
 

O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

 

4
.3

 
 

 

W
e

 w
il

l 
d

e
v

e
lo

p
 a

n
d

 f
a

ci
li

ta
te

 L
o

ca
l B

u
si

n
e

ss
 D

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

B
o

a
rd

s 
o

f 
lo

ca
l 

su
p

p
li

e
rs

 t
o

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

 t
h

e
 v

is
ib

il
it

y
 o

f 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

a
n

d
 e

n
co

u
ra

g
e

 l
o

ca
l b

u
si

n
e

ss
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 

to
 r

e
sp

o
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

m
. 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

 

4
.4

 
  

  

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
w

il
l 

a
ct

iv
e

ly
 e

n
co

u
ra

g
e

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

, 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 g
ro

u
p

s 
a

s 
w

e
ll

 

a
s 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

a
n

d
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

, 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
to

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 

a
n

d
 t

o
 e

a
ch

 o
th

e
r.

 T
h

is
 i

s 
kn

o
w

n
 a

s 
th

e
 "

E
co

sy
st

e
m

" 

a
p

p
ro

a
ch

. 

O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

 

 
 

 

W
e

 w
il

l 
su

p
p

o
rt

 l
o

ca
l 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

to
 a

cc
e

ss
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

ci
l s

u
p

p
ly

 

ch
a

in
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 lo
w

 v
a

lu
e

 (
le

ss
 t

h
a

n
 £

1
0

,0
0

0
) 

it
e

m
s 

o
f 

w
o

rk
. 

P
ro

p
o

sa
l 

b
y

A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
5

 

4
.5

 
 

 

W
e

 w
il

l 
in

cr
e

a
se

 t
h

e
 %

 o
f 

lo
ca

l 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
th

a
t 

a
re

 s
a

ti
sf

ie
d

 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 w
a

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

a
n

d
 i

ts
 d

e
li

ve
ry

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

th
e

m
 i

n
 b

id
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
fu

tu
re

 w
o

rk
. 

 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r/

O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

 

4
.6

 
  

  

W
e

 w
il

l 
d

e
v

e
lo

p
 a

n
 a

cc
re

d
it

a
ti

o
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 e

n
ti

tl
e

d
 "

D
o

in
g

 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

B
a

rn
e

t"
 f

o
r 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l’
s 

su
p

p
ly

 c
h

a
in

. 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r/

O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

 

142



  

3
1

 

 M
D

X
0

8
 

  
  

M
id

d
le

se
x 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y
 w

il
l d

e
v

e
lo

p
 i

ts
 p

ro
cu

re
m

e
n

t 
a

ct
iv

it
ie

s 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 lo

ca
l 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

a
n

d
 s

o
ci

a
l e

n
te

rp
ri

se
s.

 
Ju

ly
 2

0
1

5
 

4
.7

 
 

S
m

a
ll

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

co
ll

a
b

o
ra

ti
n

g
 t

o
 a

cc
e

ss
 

co
n

tr
a

ct
s.

 

W
e

 w
il

l 
m

a
tc

h
 u

p
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
te

n
d

e
rs

 t
o

 lo
ca

l c
o

m
p

a
n

ie
s,

 S
m

a
ll

 

to
 M

e
d

iu
m

 E
n

te
rp

ri
se

s 
a

n
d

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e

ct
o

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s 
in

 

o
rd

e
r 

to
 m

a
xi

m
is

e
 t

h
e

ir
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y 

o
f 

w
in

n
in

g
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 a

n
d

 

e
n

co
u

ra
g

e
 l

o
ca

l 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
to

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 i

n
 t

e
n

d
e

ri
n

g
 f

o
r 

co
n

tr
a

ct
s 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l.

 

O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

 

4
.8

 
  

Lo
ca

l 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
 k

n
o

w
 

w
h

a
t 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
il

l 

b
e

 t
e

n
d

e
ri

n
g

 f
o

r 
in

 

fu
tu

re
 a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 t
im

e
 t

o
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 e
x
p

e
rt

is
e

 a
n

d
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s.
 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

p
ro

cu
re

m
e

n
t 

w
e

b
 p

o
rt

a
l 

to
 b

e
 e

st
a

b
li

sh
e

d
 w

it
h

 

fo
rw

a
rd

 p
ip

e
li

n
e

 o
f 

a
ct

iv
it

y 
cl

e
a

rl
y 

se
t 

o
u

t 
a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

is
 e

a
sy

 t
o

 

n
a

v
ig

a
te

. 

O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

 

4
.9

 
  

  

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 d
e

li
ve

ry
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 w

il
l 

p
ro

v
id

e
 e

xp
e

rt
is

e
 i

n
 

m
a

rk
e

t 
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

to
 e

st
a

b
li

sh
 t

h
e

 a
b

il
it

y
 

o
f 

th
e

 l
o

ca
l 

su
p

p
ly

 c
h

a
in

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

fu
tu

re
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 a
n

y
 g

a
p

s 
in

 t
h

e
 l

o
ca

l 
su

p
p

ly
. 

 

O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

 

      

143



  

3
2

 

 T
H

E
M

E
 E

: 
F

a
ci

li
ta

ti
n

g
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 g

ro
w

th
 

3
8

. 
If

 w
e

 a
re

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

o
u

r 
a

im
 o

f 
e

n
su

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
B

a
rn

e
t 

is
 t

h
e

 b
e

st
 p

la
ce

 i
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 t
o

 b
e

 a
 s

m
a

ll
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
, 

it
 i

s 
e

ss
e

n
ti

a
l 

th
a

t 
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
h

a
ve

 

a
cc

e
ss

 t
o

 t
h

e
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
y
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 s

u
cc

e
e

d
 a

n
d

 g
ro

w
. 

 W
e

 r
e

co
g

n
is

e
, 

th
o

u
g

h
, 

th
a

t 
p

ri
v
a

te
 e

n
te

rp
ri

se
 o

ft
e

n
 w

o
rk

s 
b

e
st

 

w
h

e
n

 g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
st

e
p

s 
o

u
t 

o
f 

th
e

 w
a

y
; 

a
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 g
u

id
a

n
ce

 a
re

 b
e

st
 g

iv
e

n
 b

y
 t

h
o

se
 w

it
h

 h
a

n
d

s-
o

n
 e

xp
e

ri
e

n
ce

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e

a
li
ti

e
s 

o
f 

st
a

rt
in

g
 u

p
, 

ru
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 e
xp

a
n

d
in

g
 a

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

. 
T

h
is

 i
s 

th
e

 s
p

ir
it

 i
n

 w
h

ic
h

 o
u

r 
a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 t

o
 c

re
a

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

e
co

n
o

m
ic

 s
u

cc
e

ss
 

h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

. 

 

3
9

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
il
l 

th
e

re
fo

re
 c

o
n

si
d

e
r 

th
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
p

u
m

p
-p

ri
m

in
g

 t
h

e
 c

re
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 s
o

ci
a

l 
e

n
te

rp
ri

se
 t

o
 d

e
li
v
e

r 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
, 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 a
d

v
ic

e
, 

m
e

n
to

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 n
e

tw
o

rk
in

g
, 

w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 e
xi

st
in

g
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 n

e
tw

o
rk

in
g

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s.

  
W

e
 r

e
co

g
n

is
e

 t
h

a
t 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 k
n

o
w

s 

b
e

st
 w

h
a

t 
it

 w
o

u
ld

 f
in

d
 u

se
fu

l,
 a

n
d

 w
o

u
ld

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
 v

ie
w

s 
o

n
 t

h
e

 s
co

p
e

 o
f 

a
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

so
ci

a
l 

e
n

te
rp

ri
se

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 m

o
st

 e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 

w
a

y
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
it

 o
ff

e
rs

 g
o

o
d

 v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
p

u
b

li
c 

m
o

n
e

y
. 

 T
h

e
 t

a
b

le
 b

e
lo

w
 s

e
ts

 o
u

t 
so

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fu

n
ct

io
n

s 
o

f 
a

 n
e

w
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

 

fo
r 

co
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
. 

 I
f 

a
 s

o
ci

a
l 

e
n

te
rp

ri
se

 i
s 

n
o

t 
th

e
 m

o
st

 e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

, 
o

r 
co

st
-e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
, 

a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 w
e

 w
o

u
ld

 w
e

lc
o

m
e

 a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e

 s
u

g
g

e
st

io
n

s.
  

S
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 a
ct

io
n

s 
se

t 
o

u
t 

b
e

lo
w

 d
o

 n
o

t 
h

a
v
e

 t
im

e
sc

a
le

s 
a

s 
th

e
y
 a

re
 d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
a

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 

so
ci

a
l 
e

n
te

rp
ri

se
. 

 

 

H
o

w
 w

e
 w

il
l 

d
e

li
v

e
r 

th
is

 o
b

je
ct

iv
e

 

C
o

d
e

 
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 O

b
je

ct
iv

e
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 
A

ct
io

n
 

T
im

e
sc

a
le

 

5
.1

 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

a
b

le
 t

o
 

a
cc

e
ss

 t
h

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

th
e

y
 n

e
e

d
. 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

e
n

g
a

g
in

g
 

w
it

h
 e

a
ch

 o
th

e
r,

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

ci
l,

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 w
id

e
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
. 

W
e

 w
il
l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 s
m

a
ll
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
, 

p
o

ss
ib

ly
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 c
re

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 s

o
ci

a
l 

e
n

te
rp

ri
se

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

il
l 
p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 c
e

n
tr

a
l 
p

o
in

t 
o

f 
co

n
ta

ct
 f

o
r 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

, 
m

e
n

to
ri

n
g

, 
a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 n
e

tw
o

rk
in

g
. 

F
ir

m
 p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 

fo
r 

co
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

b
y
 D

e
ce

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

; 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

d
e

p
e

n
d

in
g

 o
n

 

sc
o

p
e

 

144



  

3
3

 

 5
.3

 
 

 

W
e

 w
il
l 
p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 p
o

rt
a

l 
to

 a
cc

e
ss

 w
id

e
r 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
a

n
d

 r
e

so
u

rc
e

s,
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 

le
v
e

ls
 o

f 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

, 
su

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 

g
u

id
a

n
ce

. 
T

h
is

 p
o

rt
a

l 
w

il
l 
co

n
si

st
 o

f 
a

 d
ig

it
a

l 
‘h

u
b

’ 
th

a
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
ig

n
p

o
st

in
g

 t
o

 m
a

xi
m

is
e

 t
h

e
 u

se
 

o
f 

e
xi

st
in

g
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s.
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
6

 

5
.4

 
  

  

W
e

 w
il
l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

-t
o

-b
u

si
n

e
ss

 m
e

n
to

ri
n

g
, 
d

ra
w

in
g

 

o
n

 t
h

e
 s

k
il
ls

 o
f 

B
a

rn
e

t’
s 

m
a

n
y
 h

ig
h

ly
 s

k
il
le

d
 r

e
ti

re
d

 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

p
e

o
p

le
. 

A
p

p
ro

a
ch

 

a
g

re
e

d
 b

y
 

O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
5

 

5
.5

 
 

 

W
e

 w
il
l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 s
o

ci
a

l 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

y 
(C

S
R

) 
b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 s
u

p
p

ly
 c

h
a

in
, 

re
fl

e
ct

in
g

 o
u

r 
st

ro
n

g
 b

e
li
e

f 
th

a
t 

e
co

n
o

m
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 c
a

n
 

b
e

n
e

fi
t 

co
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
li
fe

 o
f 

th
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

, 

a
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll
 g

ro
u

p
s 

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 e
q

u
a

l 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

to
 g

a
in

 f
ro

m
 g

ro
w

th
. 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
6

 

5
.8

 
  

  

W
e

 w
il
l 
fa

ci
li
ta

te
 t

h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 a
n

d
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 w

o
rk

sp
a

ce
 f

o
r 

sm
a

ll
 a

n
d

 m
ic

ro
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s,
 

m
a

k
in

g
 u

se
 o

f 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 p
u

b
li
c 

se
ct

o
r 

a
ss

e
ts

, 
a

n
d

 l
o

ca
te

d
 

a
re

a
s.

 T
h

e
se

 w
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 d
if

fe
re

n
t 

m
o

d
e

ls
 o

f 
o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

 t
o

 

re
fl

e
ct

 l
o

ca
l 
n

e
e

d
s 

a
n

d
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s,
 f

o
r 

e
xa

m
p

le
 e

a
sy

-

in
/o

u
t 

o
ff

ic
e

 s
p

a
ce

, 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
 r

o
o

m
 f

a
ci

li
ti

e
s 

e
tc

. 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
6

 

5
.9

 
 

 

W
e

 w
il
l 
u

se
 t

h
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 s
y
st

e
m

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 n
e

w
 m

ix
e

d
 u

se
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
 r

ig
h

t 
m

ix
 o

f 
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

, 
a

cc
e

ss
ib

le
 

a
n

d
 f

le
xi

b
le

 w
o

rk
sp

a
ce

, 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
to

 w
o

rk
 

a
n

d
 r

u
n

 a
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 f

ro
m

 h
o

m
e

. 
F
le

xi
b

le
 a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 g

iv
e

n
 t

o
 

th
o

se
 w

h
o

 w
a

n
t 

to
 w

o
rk

 f
ro

m
 h

o
m

e
. 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 

sy
st

e
m

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

a
n

d
 a

ct
io

n
s 

a
g

re
e

d
 b

y
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
5

 

145



  

3
4

 

 5
.1

1
 

  
  

W
e

 w
il
l 
in

tr
o

d
u

ce
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
n

cy
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
 f

o
r 

T
ra

d
in

g
 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s,
 L

ic
e

n
si

n
g

 a
n

d
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

, 
a

n
d

 

tr
a

in
in

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
fo

r 
fo

o
d

 h
a

n
d

li
n

g
 a

n
d

 h
y
g

ie
n

e
. 

T
e

rm
 o

f 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 

5
.1

2
 

 
 

T
a

rg
e

te
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

w
a

rd
s 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

w
it

h
 a

m
b

it
io

n
 a

n
d

 

h
ig

h
 g

ro
w

th
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

in
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 h

a
s 

a
 v

ib
ra

n
t 

sm
a

ll
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 k
e

y
 f

u
tu

re
 

e
co

n
o

m
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 s
e

ct
o

rs
 (

fi
n

a
n

ce
 a

n
d

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l;

 d
ig

it
a

l;
 

cr
e

a
ti

v
e

, 
h

o
sp

it
a

li
ty

 a
n

d
 l
e

is
u

re
; 

ca
re

 s
e

ct
o

r,
 g

re
e

n
 

in
d

u
st

ri
e

s)
. 

T
h

is
 r

e
la

te
s 

to
 t

h
e

 s
o

-c
a

ll
e

d
 ‘

v
it

a
l 
6

%
’ 

o
f 

h
ig

h
- 

g
ro

w
th

 p
ri

v
a

te
 s

e
ct

o
r 

fi
rm

s,
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

le
 f

o
r 

a
 

d
is

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
 s

h
a

re
 o

f 
n

e
t 

jo
b

 c
re

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 i
n

 d
ri

v
in

g
 

in
n

o
v
a

ti
o

n
. 

T
h

e
 p

re
se

n
ce

 o
f 

th
e

se
 f

ir
m

s 
w

il
l 
a

ls
o

 a
ct

 t
o

 

a
tt

ra
ct

 i
n

 o
th

e
r 

a
ss

o
ci

a
te

d
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 i
n

v
e

st
m

e
n

t.
 

A
p

p
ro

a
ch

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 b
y
 

Ju
ly

 2
0

1
5

 a
n

d
 i
f 

a
g

re
e

d
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

in
 e

a
rl

y 
2

0
1

6
 

M
D

X
0

9
 

  
  

M
id

d
le

se
x 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y
  
B

u
si

n
e

ss
 S

ch
o

o
l 
w

il
l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
lo

n
g

 t
e

rm
, 

ta
il
o

re
d

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 

a
m

b
it

io
u

s 
lo

ca
l 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
to

 m
a

xi
m

is
e

 t
h

e
ir

 g
ro

w
th

 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l.
 

T
B

C
 

M
D

X
1

0
 

  
  

M
id

d
le

se
x 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y
  
w

il
l 
p

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

d
e

si
g

n
 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

th
ro

u
g

h
 R

e
d

 L
o

o
p

. 
T

B
C

 

M
D

X
1

1
 

  
  

M
id

d
le

se
x 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y
 w

il
l 
a

ch
ie

v
e

 S
m

a
ll
 B

u
si

n
e

ss
 C

h
a

rt
e

r 

A
w

a
rd

 b
y
 2

0
1

6
*

. 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
6

 

M
D

X
1

2
 

  
  

M
id

d
le

se
x 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y
 w

il
l 
su

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

sp
in

- 

o
ff

 g
ra

d
u

a
te

 a
n

d
 s

ta
ff

 e
n

te
rp

ri
se

. 
T

B
C

 

146



  

3
5

 

 5
.1

3
 

C
o

n
n

e
ct

in
g

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

a
n

d
 u

n
iv

e
rs

it
ie

s.
 

C
lo

se
 w

o
rk

in
g

 

re
la

ti
o

n
sh

ip
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

e
r 

e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 c

re
a

ti
n

g
 v

a
lu

e
 

a
n

d
 j

o
b

s.
 

W
o

rk
in

g
 a

cr
o

ss
 W

e
st

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 A
ll
ia

n
ce

, 
w

e
 w

il
l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

 

K
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 T
ra

n
sf

e
r 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s 
th

a
t 

b
ri

n
g

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
th

e
 

e
xp

e
rt

is
e

 o
f 

u
n

iv
e

rs
it

ie
s 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 s
k
il
ls

 o
f 

e
n

tr
e

p
e

n
u

rs
 t

o
 

b
o

o
st

 g
ro

w
th

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s,

 a
s 

e
n

v
is

a
g

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 W
e

st
 

Lo
n

d
o

n
 A

ll
ia

n
ce

 J
o

b
s,

 S
k
il
ls

 a
n

d
 G

ro
w

th
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

. 

A
p

p
ro

a
ch

 

a
g

re
e

d
 b

y
 

A
u

g
u

st
 2

0
1

5
 

B
S
C

0
7

 
  

  

B
a

rn
e

t 
a

n
d

 S
o

u
th

g
a

te
 C

o
ll
e

g
e

 w
il
l 
w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 l
o

ca
l 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 i
n

cu
b

a
to

r 
w

o
rk

in
g

 s
p

a
ce

 f
o

r 
h

ig
h

 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
lo

ca
l 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s.
 

T
B

C
 

B
S
C

0
8

 
  

  

B
a

rn
e

t 
a

n
d

 S
o

u
th

g
a

te
 C

o
ll
e

g
e

 w
il
l 
a

ls
o

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 

o
f 

u
n

iv
e

rs
it

ie
s 

to
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

 s
u

it
e

 o
f 

H
E

 l
e

v
e

l 
co

u
rs

e
s 

a
re

 

d
e

li
v
e

re
d

 a
n

d
 a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 t
o

 l
o

ca
l 
re

si
d

e
n

ts
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 

h
ig

h
e

r 
le

v
e

l 
d

e
m

a
n

d
s 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 c

h
a

n
g

in
g

 l
o

ca
l 
la

b
o

u
r 

m
a

rk
e

t.
 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 

B
S
C

0
9

 
  

  

B
a

rn
e

t 
a

n
d

 S
o

u
th

g
a

te
 c

o
ll
e

g
e

 w
il
l 
p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
h

ig
h

 

q
u

a
li
ty

 c
o

u
rs

e
s 

a
im

e
d

 a
t 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 s

m
a

ll
 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

in
 t

h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

, 
a

n
d

 w
il
l 
w

o
rk

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

h
ig

h
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l,

 h
ig

h
-g

ro
w

th
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
a

re
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 

to
w

a
rd

s 
th

e
se

 c
o

u
rs

e
s,

 a
s 

w
e

ll
 a

s 
o

th
e

r 
so

u
rc

e
s 

o
f 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 n
e

tw
o

rk
in

g
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

th
e

 F
e

d
e

ra
ti

o
n

 o
f 

S
m

a
ll
 B

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
to

 f
a

ci
li
ta

te
 t

h
e

ir
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

 

T
B

C
 

    

147



  

3
6

 

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 S
o

ci
a

l 
R

e
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

y
 

4
0

. 
W

h
il
e

 e
a

ch
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 w

il
l 

w
a

n
t 

to
 m

a
k
e

 i
ts

 o
w

n
 d

e
ci

si
o

n
 a

b
o

u
t 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

a
n

d
 h

o
w

 t
o

 i
n

v
e

st
 i

n
 t

h
e

 l
o

ca
l 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
, 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

is
 

so
m

e
ti

m
e

s 
a

sk
e

d
 b

y
 l

o
ca

l 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 g

ro
u

p
s 

h
o

w
 t

h
e

y
 c

a
n

 m
a

k
e

 t
h

e
 b

ig
g

e
st

 d
if

fe
re

n
ce

. 
W

e
 w

il
l 

m
a

ke
 i

t 
e

a
sy

 f
o

r 
th

o
se

 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

in
 B

a
rn

e
t 

th
a

t 
w

a
n

t 
to

 “
g

iv
e

 s
o

m
e

th
in

g
 b

a
ck

” 
to

 d
o

 s
o

. 
 T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
il
l 

w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 C
o

m
m

U
N

IT
Y

 B
a

rn
e

t 
a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

g
ro

u
p

s 
to

 

e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 t
h

e
y
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n

y
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
-f

o
cu

se
d

 a
ct

iv
it

y
 t

o
 b

e
st

 e
ff

e
ct

. 

E
n

su
ri

n
g

 t
h

a
t 

e
v

e
ry

o
n

e
 h

a
s 

th
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 t

o
 g

a
in

 f
ro

m
 g

ro
w

th
 

4
1

. 
A

 p
ri

n
ci

p
le

 e
m

b
e

d
d

e
d

 a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 E

n
tr

e
p

re
n

e
u

ri
a

l 
B

a
rn

e
t 

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 i
s 

th
a

t 
a

ll
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 B
a

rn
e

t,
 n

o
 m

a
tt

e
r 

w
h

a
t 

th
e

ir
 b

a
ck

g
ro

u
n

d
 o

r 

ci
rc

u
m

st
a

n
ce

s,
 s

h
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 e
q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 t

o
 s

u
cc

e
e

d
 a

n
d

 g
a

in
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 g

ro
w

th
 o

f 
th

e
 e

co
n

o
m

y
 h

e
re

 a
n

d
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
ll
y
. 

 

 

4
2

. 
A

n
 i

n
it

ia
l 

E
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s 

Im
p

a
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

(E
IA

) 
h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
l 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

b
e

in
g

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

il
l 

h
a

v
e

 a
 m

in
im

a
l 

p
o

si
ti

v
e

 i
m

p
a

ct
. 

T
h

is
 a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
w

a
s 

m
a

d
e

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 a

 p
ro

ce
ss

 o
f 

re
se

a
rc

h
 a

n
d

 e
v
id

e
n

ce
 g

a
th

e
ri

n
g

 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
n

y
 g

ro
u

p
s 

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 w

h
o

 m
a

y
 g

a
in

. 
T

h
e

 k
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s 
o

f 
th

e
 E

IA
 a

re
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
se

d
 b

e
lo

w
: 

 

 •
 

A
g

e
: 

B
a

rn
e

t 
h

a
s 

a
 g

ro
w

in
g

 a
n

d
 a

g
e

in
g

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

, 
a

n
d

 a
 r

e
p

o
rt

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

e
d

 f
ro

m
 M

id
d

le
se

x 
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 b

y
 B

a
rn

e
t 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

su
g

g
e

st
s 

th
a

t 
th

e
re

 i
s 

a
n

 i
n

cr
e

a
si

n
g

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
th

is
 a

g
e

 g
ro

u
p

 s
e

e
k
in

g
 w

o
rk

. 
T

h
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

ck
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

s 
th

is
 a

n
d

 e
xp

li
ci

tl
y
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 a
ll
 a

g
e

 g
ro

u
p

s 
e

n
su

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 o

ld
e

r 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 h

a
s 

e
q

u
a

l 
a

cc
e

ss
 t

o
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
a

ss
o

ci
a

te
d

 w
it

h
 g

ro
w

th
. 

•
 

D
is

a
b

il
it

y
 (

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

):
 T

h
e

 L
a

b
o

u
r 

F
o

rc
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 (

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
, 

2
0

1
2

) 
n

o
te

s 
th

a
t 

th
e

re
 i

s 
a

 3
0

.1
%

 g
a

p
 i

n
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 

ra
te

s 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 d

is
a

b
le

d
 a

n
d

 n
o

n
-d

is
a

b
le

d
 p

e
o

p
le

. 
T

h
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
cu

se
s 

o
n

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 t
h

e
m

 i
n

to
 t

ra
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t.
 I

t 
a

ls
o

 

a
im

s 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
o

f 
m

e
n

ta
l 

h
e

a
lt

h
 i

n
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

a
n

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

th
e

 “
F
u

tu
re

 P
a

th
” 

in
it

ia
ti

v
e

. 
M

id
d

le
se

x 
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 w

il
l 

a
ls

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 r
e

se
a

rc
h

 a
n

d
 c

o
u

rs
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
o

ci
a

l 
in

cl
u

si
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
o

se
 w

it
h

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 i
ss

u
e

s.
 F

u
rt

h
e

rm
o

re
, 

th
e

 J
o

b
 C

e
n

tr
e

 P
lu

s 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
a

im
s 

to
 t

a
ck

le
 w

o
rk

le
ss

n
e

ss
 w

it
h

 t
h

o
se

 

w
it

h
 m

e
n

ta
l 

h
e

a
lt

h
 n

e
e

d
s.

 F
in

a
ll
y
, 

B
a

rn
e

t 
a

n
d

 S
o

u
th

g
a

te
 C

o
ll
e

g
e

 w
il
l 

d
e

ve
lo

p
 i

ts
 s

p
e

ci
a

li
st

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

fo
r 

re
si

d
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 i
ts

 C
e

n
tr

e
 o

f 
E

xc
e

ll
e

n
ce

 f
o

r 
Le

a
rn

e
rs

 w
it

h
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 D

if
fi

cu
lt

ie
s 

a
n

d
 D

is
a

b
il
it

ie
s.

 

•
 

P
re

g
n

a
n

cy
 

a
n

d
 

M
a

te
rn

it
y

: 
T

h
e

 
st

ra
te

g
y
 

w
il
l 

p
ro

v
id

e
 

m
o

re
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

w
o

m
e

n
 

w
it

h
 

fa
m

il
ie

s 
a

s 
it

 
a

im
s 

to
 

in
cr

e
a

se
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

se
lf

-e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t,
 f

le
xi

b
le

 w
o

rk
in

g
, 

a
n

d
 w

o
rk

in
g

 f
ro

m
 h

o
m

e
. 

 

•
 

E
th

n
ic

it
y

: 
T

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 r
e

co
g

n
is

e
 t

h
a

t 
so

m
e

 B
A

M
E

 g
ro

u
p

s 
h

a
v
e

 h
ig

h
e

r 
u

n
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
ra

te
s 

th
a

n
 o

th
e

rs
 (

O
N

S
 m

a
rk

e
t 

st
a

tu
s 

b
y
 

e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

, 
2

0
1

3
).

 A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
fo

cu
s 

w
il
l 
b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 t

o
 e

n
g

a
g

e
 w

it
h

 

•
 

 t
h

e
se

 g
ro

u
p

s.
  

148



  

3
7

 

 

•
 

R
e

li
g

io
n

 o
r 

b
e

li
e

f:
 s

ta
ti

st
ic

s 
h

a
v
e

 s
h

o
w

n
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 M

u
sl

im
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

re
 m

o
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 u
n

e
m

p
lo

y
e

d
 t

h
a

n
 o

th
e

r 
re

li
g

io
n

s 
(O

N
S
 

re
p

o
rt

 o
n

 r
e

li
g

io
n

, 
2

0
1

3
).

 F
o

cu
s 

w
il
l 

b
e

 p
u

t 
o

n
 e

n
su

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 M
u

sl
im

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

y
 c

a
n

 a
cc

e
ss

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s.

 

•
 

G
e

n
d

e
r/

S
e

x
: 

T
h

e
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 S

u
rv

e
y 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs
 (

O
N

S
, 

2
0

1
3

) 
n

o
te

s 
th

a
t 

th
e

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
ra

te
 i

s 
lo

w
e

r 
fo

r 

w
o

m
e

n
 t

h
a

n
 m

e
n

. 
T

h
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 i

s 
in

cl
u

si
v
e

 o
f 

a
ll
 a

n
d

 a
im

s 
to

 m
in

im
is

e
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 t
o

 e
co

n
o

m
ic

 s
u

cc
e

ss
 a

n
d

 c
re

a
te

 m
o

re
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s.

 

•
 

C
a

re
rs

: 
Ju

st
 o

v
e

r 
9

%
 o

f 
th

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
 u

n
p

a
id

 c
a

re
. 

T
h

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 w

il
l 

in
cr

e
a

se
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
fo

r 
fl

e
xi

b
le

 w
o

rk
in

g
 

a
n

d
 a

ls
o

 a
im

s 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 e

xt
ra

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 f
a

m
il
ie

s 
a

n
d

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ts
 t

h
a

t 
n

e
e

d
 i
t.

 

•
 

Lo
n

e
 P

a
re

n
ts

: 
T

h
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 r

e
co

g
n

is
e

s 
th

a
t 

lo
n

e
 p

a
re

n
ts

 a
re

 l
e

ss
 l

ik
e

ly
 t

o
 b

e
n

e
fi

t 
fr

o
m

 e
co

n
o

m
ic

 g
ro

w
th

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

se
 p

a
re

n
ts

 

a
re

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 d

is
a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

 c
o

st
 o

f 
ch

il
d

ca
re

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

. 
T

h
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

il
l 

p
la

ce
 e

xt
ra

 e
m

p
h

a
si

s 
o

n
 r

e
a

ch
in

g
 t

h
is

 

g
ro

u
p

. 

•
 

Y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 N

E
E

T
s:

 B
a

rn
e

t 
is

 p
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 w

e
ll
 w

it
h

 r
e

sp
e

ct
 t

o
 N

E
E

T
s,

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 f
o

u
rt

h
 l

o
w

e
st

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

in
 E

n
g

la
n

d
. 

E
ff

o
rt

 w
il
l 

b
e

 m
a

d
e

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

yo
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o

 g
e

t 
a

 s
u

st
a

in
a

b
le

 j
o

b
. 

 

•
 

T
h

e
re

 w
a

s 
n

o
 s

p
e

ci
fi

c 
e

vi
d

e
n

ce
 o

r 
lo

ca
l 

d
a

ta
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 s

e
x
u

a
l 

o
ri

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 g

e
n

d
e

r 
re

a
ss

ig
n

m
e

n
t 

e
q

u
a

li
ty

 s
tr

a
n

d
s 

w
il
l 

b
e

 s
p

e
ci

fi
ca

ll
y
 a

ff
e

ct
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

. 

 Li
st

e
n

in
g

 t
o

 a
n

d
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

, 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
a

n
d

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 

4
3

. 
W

e
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 l
is

te
n

 c
a

re
fu

ll
y
 t

o
 w

h
a

t 
o

th
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 t
o

 s
a

y
, 

a
n

d
 t

o
 l

e
a

rn
 f

ro
m

 e
ls

e
w

h
e

re
 a

b
o

u
t 

h
o

w
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 s

u
cc

e
ss

fu
l 

a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 e
n

a
b

li
n

g
 e

co
n

o
m

ic
 s

u
cc

e
ss

. 
 W

e
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
 v

ie
w

s 
fr

o
m

 l
o

ca
l 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s,
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

, 
a

n
d

 o
u

r 
d

e
li
ve

ry
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

li
c 

se
ct

o
r 

ca
n

 b
e

st
 f

a
ci

li
ta

te
 s

u
cc

e
ss

 i
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 e
n

te
rp

ri
se

, 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

4
4

. 
T

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 w
e

re
 c

o
n

su
lt

e
d

 o
n

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 1
0
th

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

u
n

ti
l 

th
e

 2
0
th

 o
f 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

. 
O

v
e

ra
ll
, 

th
e

re
 w

a
s 

a
 p

o
si

ti
v
e

 r
e

sp
o

n
se

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

fi
v
e

 k
e

y
 t

h
e

m
e

s 
se

t 
o

u
t 

o
n

 p
a

g
e

 s
ix

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 b
o

th
 t

h
e

 o
n

li
n

e
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

t 
th

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 e
v
e

n
t 

h
e

ld
 o

n
 2

3
 O

ct
o

b
e

r 

2
0

1
4

 t
h

a
t 

w
a

s 
a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

 b
y
 6

1
 l
o

ca
ll
y
-b

a
se

d
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s.
 

4
5

. 
 S

e
v
e

ra
l 
th

e
m

e
s 

h
a

v
e

 e
m

e
rg

e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
, 

sp
e

ci
fi

ca
ll
y
; 

th
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
n

e
e

d
s 

to
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

 m
o

re
 c

le
a

rl
y
 w

it
h

 l
o

ca
l 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
 

a
n

d
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 i
s 

re
a

d
il
y
 a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 w
h

e
re

 i
t 

w
o

u
ld

 h
e

lp
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s.
 S

y
st

e
m

s 
n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 s

im
p

le
r,

 m
o

re
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

t,
 a

n
d

 u
se

r-

fr
ie

n
d

ly
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

re
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

d
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 f

o
r 

sm
a

ll
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
to

 p
ro

cu
re

 w
o

rk
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l.
 T

h
e

re
 w

a
s 

su
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

le
ss

 r
e

d
 

ta
p

e
 f

o
r 

sm
a

ll
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s.
 T

h
e

 n
e

e
d

 f
o

r 
a

n
 a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 t
h

a
t 

su
p

p
o

rt
s 

lo
ca

l 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
w

a
s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 in

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
re

sp
o

n
se

s.
 

149



  

3
8

 

 4
6

. 
In

 a
d

d
it

io
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 o

n
li
n

e
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

, 
a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

is
su

e
s 

w
e

re
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 E
xp

o
 e

v
e

n
t 

o
n

 3
1

 O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

. 
Lo

ca
l 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
: 

•
 

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 w

o
rk

 p
re

m
is

e
s 

fo
r 

sm
a

ll
 a

n
d

 g
ro

w
in

g
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
w

e
re

 s
e

e
n

 a
s 

im
p

o
rt

a
n

t 
fa

ct
o

rs
 f

o
r 

e
n

co
u

ra
g

in
g

 l
o

ca
l 
g

ro
w

th
. 

•
 

T
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
n

 e
a

sy
 t

o
 a

cc
e

ss
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 s
y
st

e
m

 t
h

a
t 

e
n

a
b

le
s 

sm
a

ll
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
to

 a
cc

e
ss

 c
o

u
n

ci
l 
p

ro
cu

re
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

ly
 

ch
a

in
s,

 e
sp

e
ci

a
ll
y
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

ir
 v

a
lu

e
 i
s 

le
ss

 t
h

a
n

 £
1

0
,0

0
0

. 
 

•
 

T
h

e
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
ce

 o
f 

w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 F

e
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
S
m

a
ll
 B

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

n
e

tw
o

rk
s 

to
 s

h
a

re
 k

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
 a

n
d

 b
u

il
d

 c
o

n
n

e
ct

in
o

s.
 

A
ls

o
 a

 w
is

h
 i
n

 s
o

m
e

 r
e

sp
o

n
se

s 
to

 h
a

v
e

 a
 l
o

ca
l 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
 ‘

ch
a

m
p

io
n

’.
 

•
 

M
o

re
 r

e
a

d
il
y
 a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 w
a

s 
d

e
si

re
d

 a
b

o
u

t 
h

o
w

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
to

 a
cc

e
ss

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s.

 T
h

e
re

 i
s 

a
ls

o
 

co
n

ce
rn

 t
h

a
t 

if
 t

o
o

 m
u

ch
 f

o
cu

s 
is

 p
la

ce
d

 o
n

 r
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

, 
th

e
n

 s
m

a
ll
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
in

 e
st

a
b

li
sh

e
d

 t
o

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
s 

w
il
l 
b

e
 o

v
e

rl
o

o
k
e

d
, 

so
 

co
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
is

 n
e

ce
ss

a
ry

. 

 M
e

a
su

ri
n

g
 s

u
cc

e
ss

  

4
7

. 
T

h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 s

e
ts

 o
u

t 
a

n
 a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 w

h
ic

h
 a

im
s 

to
 m

a
xi

m
is

e
 t

h
e

 p
o

si
ti

v
e

 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b

li
c 

se
ct

o
r 

o
n

 t
h

e
 l

o
ca

l 
e

co
n

o
m

y,
 a

n
d

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

B
a

rn
e

t’
s 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

a
n

d
 e

n
tr

e
p

re
n

e
u

rs
 h

a
v
e

 t
h

e
 s

p
a

ce
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
y
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
ri

v
e

. 
 T

h
e

 o
b

je
ct

iv
e

s 
a

n
d

 a
ct

io
n

s 
w

il
l 

b
e

 m
e

a
su

re
d

 a
n

d
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 o
n

 a
n

 a
n

n
u

a
l 

b
a

si
s,

 b
y
 c

o
m

b
in

in
g

 k
e

y
 e

co
n

o
m

ic
 i

n
d

ic
a

to
rs

 (
fo

r 
e

xa
m

p
le

 3
-y

e
a

r 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
 s

u
rv

iv
a

l 
ra

te
, 

th
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

n
e

w
 

a
p

p
re

n
ti

ce
sh

ip
s,

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 u
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
ra

te
),

 w
it

h
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 u
p

d
a

te
s 

fr
o

m
 s

e
n

io
r 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

le
 f

o
r 

d
e

li
v
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 k
e

y
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s 

a
n

d
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

se
t 

o
u

t 
h

e
re

 (
fo

r 
e

xa
m

p
le

 h
e

lp
in

g
 s

m
a

ll
 l

o
ca

l 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
a

cc
e

ss
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
co

n
tr

a
ct

s,
 o

r 
a

p
p

ro
a

ch
e

s 
to

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 t
o

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
 

g
ro

w
th

).
  
E

n
tr

e
p

re
n

e
u

ri
a

l 
B

a
rn

e
t 

w
il
l 
b

e
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 i
n

 f
iv

e
 y

e
a

rs
, 

o
r 

so
o

n
e

r 
if

 c
ir

cu
m

st
a

n
ce

s 
re

q
u

ir
e

. 

150



Initial Resident/Service User EIA 

 
Initial Equality Analysis (EIA) 

 Resident/Service User 
 

1. Details of function, policy, procedure or service: 

Title of what is being assessed: Entrepreneurial Barnet 2015-2020 

Is it a new or revised function, policy, procedure or service? New Strategy 

Department and Section: Commissioning Group 

Date assessment completed: 24/11/2014 

2. Names and roles of people completing this assessment: 

Lead officer Cath Shaw 

Other groups Luke Ward (Commissioning and Policy Advisor), Lesley 
Holland (Equalities Officer), Hannah Chillingworth (Policy 
Officer)  

3. Employee Profile of the 
Project  
 

Will the proposal affect employees? NO 

If no please explain why.  
Entrepreneurial Barnet does not relate to the configuration of 
council services or staff matters. 

If yes, please seek assistance from HR to complete the 
employee EIA.  

  
 

How are the following equality strands affected? Please detail the effect on each equality 
strand, and any mitigating action you have taken / required.  Please include any relevant data.  If 
you do not have relevant data please explain why / plans to capture data 

Equality 
Strand 

Affected? Explain how affected Indicate what action 
has been taken / or is 
planned to mitigate 
impact? 

1. Age Yes  / 
No  

The GLA estimated there to be 364,481 
residents in Barnet in 2014. Of these 
residents, 76,928 (21.1%) are children (aged 
0-15), 236,862 (65%) are of working age 
(16-64 years), and 50,691 (13.9%) are over 
65 years (GLA Projections 2013). Over the 
next few years, it is projected that the 
Borough will experience an increase in all 
three of these age groups, though the 
largest proportionate increase will be in the 
65+ age band. This is demonstrated in 
Graph 1. 

 

Entrepreneurial Barnet 
will target the older 
working population in 
order to help secure 
meaningful paid jobs 
and keep them in 
employment.  

Entrepreneurial Barnet 
focuses on ensuring 
sufficient, accessible 
starter jobs and training 
opportunities providing 
viable skills to support 
young people into 
sustainable 
employment. 

151



Graph 1. Source GLA 2013 projections.  

 

A report commissioned from Middlesex 
University by Barnet Council (2014) notes 
that there is now an increasing proportion of 
the older population in work or seeking work. 
Indeed, the ONS report on older workers in 
the Labour Force (2012) states that the 
number of people of state pension age and 
above in employment has gone from 
753,000 in 1993, to 1.4 million in 2011. The 
majority of older people in employment are 
concentrated in London. Roughly 66% of 
older employees are employed part-time, 
and 80% have been with the same employer 
for more than 5 years. Just over half of older 
employees are employed in small 
organisations with fewer than 25 employees.  

 

Sissons (2011) notes that in the past decade 
there has been a hollowing out of the labour 
market; that is, there has been an increase 
in high-skill, high-wage professional and 
managerial jobs, an increase in low-wage 
service occupations, but  a decrease in 
middle wage occupations. Middle wage jobs 
typically include administration and 
production. McIntosh (2013) writes that this 
‘job polarisation’ can be attributed to the 
increasing tendency to replace jobs with 
technology. By hypothesis, this could have 
the effect of reducing the accessibility of jobs 
for the older population as they have not 
necessarily been trained in the skills required 
for managerial positions and are competing 
against the younger generation who have 
studied or completed courses for such jobs 
after leaving school. Similarly, due to the 
lack of middle wage jobs, there is higher 
competition for low wage jobs. The older 
population are competing against university 

Entrepreneurial Barnet 
will support providers in 
delivering careers 
information, education, 
guidance, and advice 
that aligns with the 
most current labour 
market demands and 
trends. It will also 
provide accessible 
information regarding 
the Labour Market and 
information on Borough 
regeneration 
opportunities to 
providers who can in 
turn inform the 
development of the 
curriculum (pg. 26, 
Entrepreneurial Barnet). 

 

Through 
Entrepreneurial Barnet, 
the Council aims to 
increase the amount of 
apprenticeships 
available in the local 
labour market (pg. 23 
Entrepreneurial Barnet). 
Through partnership 
with Middlesex 
University and Barnet 
and Southgate College, 
Entrepreneurial Barnet 
aims to encourage 
young entrepreneurs by 
ensuring that younger 
residents have access 
to opportunities to 
become well qualified 
and enter a job relevant 
to their chosen career 
pathway (pg. 24, 
Entrepreneurial Barnet).  

152



leavers, and the younger, unskilled 
population are unable to access job 
opportunities that are being taken by those 
with higher education.   
 
A paper for the UK Commission for 
Employment and Skills (2014) writes that the 
nature of skills required for the job market is 
changing, with increasing demand for 
computing and technical skills, 
communication, project management, and 
influence, to name a few. These are skills 
that can be gained through higher education, 
internships, and experience. The older 
population will potentially be disadvantaged 
here as it is likely that these are not skills 
that were being taught at the time when they 
entered the job market. It is equally 
important that young people seeking first 
time employment are being taught 
sustainable skills and have access to training 
that will still be applicable in the Labour 
Market several years down the line.  

 

The consultation responses regarding 
Entrepreneurial Barnet (2014) suggest that 
there is a need for more apprenticeship 
placements and connecting business with 
universities.  

 

2. Disability Yes  / 
No  

The 2011 census shows that in Barnet, 6% 
of the population had a disability or 
longstanding illness that limits their day-to-
day activities in some way.  

The consultation responses (2014) indicated 
that there is a concern that small businesses 
are not disability-friendly.  

The Labour Force Survey (Quarter 2 2012) 
states that disabled people are significantly 
less likely to be in employment than non-
disabled people, noting that there is a 30.1% 
gap in employment rates between these two 
groups. However, it is important to note that 
in spite of the economic climate, this gap has 
closed over the 14 years preceding the 
survey, and remained stable between 2010 
and 2012.  

The same report by Middlesex University 
(2014) states that due to the Benefit reforms 

Entrepreneurial Barnet 
will ensure that focus is 
placed on Barnet’s 
disabled population to 
provide support to 
those with disabilities 
into training and 
employment 
opportunities. Support 
will be provided to 
those who need it to 
prepare for sustainable 
employment, especially 
those with mental 
health problems or 
learning disabilities (pg. 
28, Entrepreneurial 
Barnet). Support will 
also be provided to 
those with mental 
health problems to help 

153



involving a reassessment, a significant 
proportion of claimants of Incapacity Benefit 
and Severe Disability Allowance will be 
declared fit to work and will therefore migrate 
to JSA or Employment Support Allowance.  

 

The report by Middlesex University (2014) 
also notes that in 2009/10, 10.6% of those 
with learning disabilities were in 
employment, which was above the national 
average of 6.4%.  

 

 

them get back into 
work, whilst improving 
the identification and 
treatment of mental 
health in employment 
services and providing 
support for those in 
employment who are 
concerned about 
mental health (pg. 27, 
Entrepreneurial Barnet). 
The Council will work 
together with Job 
Centre Plus and Barnet 
and Southgate College 
alongside other 
partners to raise 
awareness of 
apprenticeships and 
training opportunities to 
local employers.  

3. Gender 
reassignm
ent 

No direct 
evidence 
to 
suggest 
affected. 

According to Stonewall, 42% of transgender 
people not living in their preferred gender 
role stated that they are prevented from 
doing so because they fear it may threaten 
their employment status (Engendered 
Penalties, 2007).  

There is no local data 
for this particular 
equality strand; 
however there is no 
anticipated negative 
effect. Entrepreneurial 
Barnet is gender neutral 
and therefore should 
not adversely affect the 
transgender population. 
However, according to 
Stonewall, there are 
some members of the 
transgender population 
who fear that their 
status may adversely 
affect their ability to 
keep a job. The Council 
recognises this and 
emphasises the fact 
that Entrepreneurial 
Barnet is gender neutral 
therefore whether one 
is male, female, or 
transgender will not 
have any impact on 
how one benefits. 
Furthermore, 
Entrepreneurial Barnet 
aims to increase 
opportunities for self-

154



employment, so in this 
respect, the proposals 
have a positive outlook 
for any transgender 
residents who fear that 
their status may affect 
their employability.  

4. Pregnancy 
and 
maternity 

Yes  / 
No  

According to Labour Market Statistics 
(2013), there are over 2 million women in the 
UK who give up employment to care for the 
family. This represents a large amount of 
women who do not return to work after 
starting a family.  
 
At the Barnet Business Expo (2014) it was 
highlighted during the roundtable discussion 
that the Council should be aware of gaps in 
needs in town centres, particularly with 
respect to toilets and baby changing 
facilities. 

 
 
 

The Council recognises 
that each woman is 
entitled to make a 
decision about their 
employment whilst 
encouraging all 
residents to contribute 
to the economic 
development of the 
Borough. 
Entrepreneurial Barnet 
is designed to ensure 
that everybody in the 
Borough has the 
opportunity to gain from 
growth so rather than 
being at a 
disadvantage, women 
on maternity leave are 
encouraged to return to 
work, should they wish 
to do so. 
Entrepreneurial Barnet 
aims to foster small 
businesses and 
increase opportunities 
for self-employment, 
therefore increasing the 
opportunities for flexible 
working and working 
from home. In this 
respect, there should 
be a positive effect for 
women who stay at 
home to care for the 
family as there will be 
more options with 
regard to working. 
 
The work that will be 
delivered through 
Entrepreneurial Barnet 
in relation to new and 
existing town centres 
will reflect the changing 

155



composition of the 
population and the 
different ways and 
expectations that 
visitors have in how 
they get about and live 
their lives, particularly 
with respect to the 
elderly, those with 
mobility issues, and 
those with small 
children.  
 

5. Race / 
Ethnicity 

Yes  / 
No  

The GLA 2013 projections suggest that in 
2014, the White ethnic group constitutes 
62% of the Barnet population, and is set to 
decline to 58% by 2021. The rest of the 
population is comprised as follows; Other 
Asian (9%), Indian (7.6%), Other (6.9%), 
Black African (5.7%), Black Other (3.1%), 
Chinese (2.4%), Pakistani (1.5%), Black 
Caribbean (1.3%), and Bangladeshi (0.7%). 
With the exception of White and Indian, all 
these groups are set to see a proportionate 
increase. The “Other Asian” group is set to 
experience the largest proportionate 
increase between 2014 and 2021. 
 
According to the ONS market status by 
ethnic group statistics, the unemployment 
rate for the 16+ population by ethnic group 
was as follows in the period October-
December 2013. 

 
Source ONS market status by ethnic group 
 
The groups with the highest levels of 
unemployment are Pakistani, Bangladeshi, 
and Black/African/Caribbean.  

Ethnic Group Unemploym
ent Rate 
October-
December 
2013 

White 6.4 

Mixed 14.1 

Indian  7.6 

Pakistani 17 

Bangladeshi 18.6 

Chinese 6.7 

Black/African/Caribbean 15.9 

Other 10.9 

Entrepreneurial Barnet 
recognises that BAME 
groups tend to have 
higher unemployment 
rates than other ethnic 
groups so will place 
additional focus on 
engaging with this 
group (pg. 36 
Entrepreneurial Barnet). 
 
Entrepreneurial Barnet 
will seek to 
communicate well with 
all ethnic groups by 
having a dedicated 
customer contact centre 
and introducing online 
accounts for 
businesses so that all 
transaction can be done 
in one place (pg. 12 
Entrepreneurial Barnet). 
To further simplify the 
system and increase 
accessibility, a more 
streamlined process for 
license renewal will be 
introduced (pg. 11, 
Entrepreneurial Barnet).  
 
Entrepreneurial Barnet 
is Borough-wide and 
provides access to all. It 
should benefit everyone 
equally but the Council 
recognises that there 
are certain ethnic 
groups that do not 

156



 
Using the GLA projections given above, 
1.5% of the Barnet population identify as 
Pakistani, 0.7% as Bangladeshi, and 10.1% 
were Black/African/Caribbean. Together this 
constitutes 12.3% of the population who are 
potentially less likely to be in employment. 
 
The Residents’ Perception Survey 2014 
shows that residents from ‘Other’ ethnic 
groups tend to feel that ‘the Council doesn’t 
do enough for people like me’. 6.9% of the 
Barnet population identify with ‘Other’ ethnic 
group (2013 GLA projections), and the ONS 
statistics show that this group is significantly 
more likely to be unemployed than those of 
White, Indian, or Chinese origins.  
 
  

perform as well in terms 
of economic activity. 
Therefore to ensure 
equal access for these 
disadvantaged groups, 
accessibility into the job 
market and 
opportunities for 
training and gaining 
skills will be promoted. 
 

6. Religion or 
belief 

Yes  / 
No  

At the time of the 2011 census the most 
common religious belief in the Borough was 
Christianity (41.2%), followed by Judaism 
(15.2%), Islam (10.3%), No religion (8.4%), 
Hinduism (6.2%), Buddhism (1.3%), Other 
(1.1%), and Sikhism (0.4%). 
 
The ONS report on religion (2013) states 
that the Jewish population have the highest 
level of employment, and that Muslims have 
the lowest level of employment. Muslims 
also have a significantly lower level of 
economic activity than other religions at 
55%; the main reasons for this inactivity 
being because they were looking after the 
home and family (31%), or because they 
were students (30%). 
 
 

Entrepreneurial Barnet 
is inclusive and aims to 
benefit all residents of 
the Borough. However, 
statistics have shown 
that the Muslim 
population are more 
likely to be unemployed 
than other religions. 
The Muslim population 
also has a high rate of 
economic inactivity, and 
one of the reasons for 
this is cited as being a 
student.  

Through partnership 
with Middlesex 
University and Barnet 
and Southgate College, 
Entrepreneurial Barnet 
aims to encourage 
young entrepreneurs by 
ensuring that younger 
residents have access 
to opportunities to 
become well qualified 
and enter a job relevant 
to their chosen career 
pathway (pg. 24, 
Entrepreneurial Barnet). 
This will therefore 
positively impact upon 
the Muslim student 

157



population, who will be 
provided with support, 
advice, and 
opportunities to support 
them into sustainable 
employment.  
 
Representatives of all 
religions will be 
engaged with and pro-
active marketing will be 
undertaken to ensure 
that there are 
appropriate, measured 
opportunities for those 
from all religious 
backgrounds. See (5) 
for notes on ethnicity 
which may be relevant. 

7. Gender / 
sex  

Yes  / 
No  

According to the 2013 GLA projections, 
48.8% of the population in 2014 are male, 
and 51.2% are female. 
 
The table below documents information 
taken from the 2013 annual population 
survey employment indicators (ONS) with 
regard to gender and employment rate.   

 
Source 2013 APS, ONS 
 
As evidenced in the table, female 
employment rate has been consistently 
significantly lower than male employment 
rate. 
 
The ONS report on women in the labour 
market shows that employment rates for 
women are at one of their lowest in London. 

Time 
period 

Male 
Employment 
Rate in 
Barnet 

Female 
Employment 
Rate in 
Barnet 

March 
2013 

78.1 62.9 

June 2013 77.6 66.0 

Septembe
r 2013 

76.1 66.7 

December 
2013 

80.2 66.0 

March 
2014 

80.0 66.0 

Entrepreneurial Barnet 
is gender neutral 
therefore should equally 
benefit both genders, 
however, it is 
recognised that there 
are fewer women in 
employment than men, 
and of the women in 
employment, a much 
larger proportion are 
employed part-time 
compared to men. 
 
Entrepreneurial Barnet 
is Borough-wide and 
therefore all training 
and employment 
opportunities will be 
equally available to 
both men and women. 
It aims to minimise 
barriers to economic 
success and create 
more employment 
opportunities. 

158



The report also shows that in April-June 
2013, 42% of women in employment were 
working part-time, compared to 12% of men. 
Furthermore, the report shows that men are 
more likely than women to be employed in 
high skilled jobs. 
 
  
 

8. Sexual 
orientation 

No direct 
evidence 
to 
suggest 
affected. 

The national statistic for lesbian, gay, or 
bisexual people is 6%.Stonewall’s Serves 
You Right Survey found that 20% of gay 
people have experienced bullying from a 
colleague due to their sexual orientation. 
Stonewall goes on to say that discrimination 
can lead to social exclusion, which means 
that gay people are likely to experience 
greater economic deprivation.  

There is no local data 
for this equality strand. 
Entrepreneurial Barnet 
is Borough-wide and 
inclusive therefore 
should benefit all, but 
the Council recognises 
that nationally there are 
cases where one may 
not feel comfortable 
revealing their sexual 
orientation in the 
workplace. 
Entrepreneurial Barnet 
encourages inclusion 
from all irrespective of 
sexual orientation and 
also provides more 
choice and flexibility in 
working, for example, 
by encouraging the 
growth of self-
employment 
opportunities and small 
businesses.  

9. Marital 
Status 

Yes  / 
No  

No specific impact identified. See (4) for 
information relating to bringing up families.  

 

10. Carers Yes  / 
No  

 

Just over 9% of the Barnet population 
provide unpaid care, with 1.8% providing 
more than 50 hours of unpaid care per week. 
 
A report by the ONS on unpaid care 
provision and economic activity (2011) 
suggests that women are more likely than 
men to be providing unpaid care. It notes 
that the percentage of men providing unpaid 
care in England that are unemployed is 
8.9%, whereas for women it is 11.1%. 12.5% 
of men providing unpaid care work part-time, 
and 16.1% of women. 9.3% of men and 
12.1% of women work full-time whilst 
providing unpaid care.  
 

Entrepreneurial Barnet 
is inclusive and so 
carers should not miss 
out on the benefits. 
However, statistics 
show that those 
providing care are more 
likely to work part-time 
than full-time, and a 
significant proportion 
are unemployed. More 
women than men are 
unemployed whilst 
providing unpaid care.  
 
The proposals will 

159



 
 

provide increased 
economic opportunities 
in terms of employment 
offers and opportunities 
to gain skills and 
experience, as well as 
encouraging the growth 
of small businesses and 
self-employment 
opportunities. This 
support is available to 
all residents of the 
Borough and increases 
choice and flexibility in 
relation to employment. 
Entrepreneurial Barnet 
aims to support families 
and residents that need 
it (pg. 9, 
Entrepreneurial Barnet) 
so carers will be able to 
access this extra 
support should they 
wish to. 
 
Although young carers 
are not directly affected 
by the proposals as 
they are too young to 
be economically active, 
they are not 
overlooked. 
Entrepreneurial Barnet 
aims to encourage 
young entrepreneurs 
through links with 
Barnet and Southgate 
College and Middlesex 
University by ensuring 
that younger residents 
have access to 
opportunities to become 
well qualified and enter 
a job relevant to their 
chosen career pathway 
(pg. 24, Entrepreneurial 
Barnet).  

11. People 
with 
mental 
health 
issues 

Yes  / 
No  

 

According to the JSNA, only 24% of adults 
with a long term mental health problem are 
in work. This represents less than a quarter 
of those with mental health problems in the 
Borough. 

Extra focus will be 
placed on those with 
mental health problems 
in order to support them 
into sustainable 

160



 employment and 
ensure that they have 
the same access to the 
benefits of the 
proposals as everyone 
else (pg. 27, 
Entrepreneurial Barnet).  

12. Some 
families 
and lone 
parents 

Yes  / 
No  

 

In Barnet, there are 28,889 lone parent 
households with dependents, representing 
8.2% of the population (2011 census). Of 
these, 45.9% of lone parents are not in 
employment. This compares to just 7.4% of 
the economically active population who are 
not in employment (2011 census).   
 
The consultation responses (2014) show that 
access to markets for single mothers ought 
to be encouraged.  
 

It is recognised that 
lone parents are less 
likely to benefit from 
economic growth, and 
that these parents are 
particularly 
disadvantaged in 
London due to the high 
cost of childcare 
provision (pg. 37, 
Entrepreneurial Barnet). 
Focus will therefore be 
placed on reaching this 
group to ensure that 
they also have access 
to opportunities to 
succeed. The Council 
recognises that lone 
parents may wish to 
give up a career in 
order to raise their 
families but encourages 
all residents of the 
Borough to contribute to 
the economic wellbeing 
of Barnet therefore will 
ensure that extra 
support is offered to this 
group. 
 
Entrepreneurial Barnet 
offers more choice and 
flexibility in employment 
opportunities which will 
benefit this group, for 
example, through 
providing support to 
encourage self-
employment; this offers 
an opportunity to work 
from home. 

13. People 
with a low 
income 

Yes  / 
No  

 

In 2013, there were 5140 Income Support 
Benefit Claimants and 7565 Employment 
and Support Allowance Claimants in the 
Borough (DWP benefit claimants- Data 

A general point across 
the Entrepreneurial 
Barnet is to help the 
population of Barnet 

161



Dashboard). boost their income and 
ensure equal access to 
skills and opportunities. 

14. Unemploy
ed people 

Yes  / 
No  

 

According to the 2011 census, 66% of the 
Borough were economically active. Of this, 
92.6% were in employment. In March 2013, 
there was a 70.4% employment rate across 
the Borough. (Annual population survey 
employment indicators by Borough, ONS, 
2013). Some of those not in employment will 
belong to the economically inactive category.  

Entrepreneurial Barnet 
will bring in new jobs 
across the Borough 
which will bring more 
opportunities for the 
economically active 
population who are 
currently not in 
employment. The 
proposals align with the 
Job Centre Plus 
Partnership Agreement 
which includes tackling 
worklessness amongst 
the long-term 
unemployed (pg. 9, 
Entrepreneurial Barnet). 

15. Young 
people not 
in 
employme
nt 
education 
or training 

Yes  / 
No  

 

Barnet is performing well with respect to 
NEETs, with the fourth lowest number in 
England (Barnet website, latest news, 
12/6/2014). However, the report by 
Middlesex University (2014) writes that 
economic growth is constrained by a lack of 
skills in the local labour market. These 
people are unable to participate in the 
economic growth of the Borough because 
they lack the skills or training to do so. The 
report notes that in particular there is a 
perceived lack of NVQ4 qualifications in the 
retail sector. This is an important point 
because retail is a potential key growth 
sector in Barnet (pg. 65, Middlesex report). 
By hypothesis, if employers perceive there to 
be a lack of higher qualifications in retail, it 
will become increasingly difficult for those 
without these preferred skills to attain a job 
in retail.  
 
 

Entrepreneurial Barnet 
will target the younger 
population and ensure 
that there are 
accessible training 
opportunities available 
to set young people on 
a positive path to 
getting a sustainable 
job (pg. 37, 
Entrepreneurial Barnet). 
 
Effort will also be made 
to explain to school-
leavers what the 
options are in terms of 
further education, 
training, or 
apprenticeships, so that 
they understand the 
implications this could 
have on their future 
careers. This will be 
done by supporting 
providers in delivering 
careers information 
which reflects the most 
current labour market 
demands (pg. 26, 
Entrepreneurial Barnet).  
This will involve training 
and workshops being 

162



aligned with post-16 
provision so that every 
young person is 
equipped with the 
knowledge and skills 
they need to succeed in 
the job market. This will 
be ensured by the 
curriculum being 
developed to reflect the 
demands of the Labour 
Market and 
regeneration 
opportunities (pg. 26 
and pg.23 respectively, 
Entrepreneurial Barnet).  

 

 5. Please outline what data sources, measures and methods could be designed to 
monitor the impact of the new policy or service, the achievement of intended outcomes 
and the identification of any unintended or adverse impact?  

  Include how frequently monitoring could be conducted and who will be made aware of the 
analysis and outcomes 

ONS statistics will be monitored to inform the Council of employment levels so that it can be 
ascertained if the Entrepreneurial Barnet is meeting its outcomes by increasing those in 
employment. This can also be used to identify if there are any groups that are not benefiting or 
are being disadvantaged since the introduction of the proposals. Service reporting, for 
example, the number of apprenticeship schemes in place and the number of apprentices can 
be monitored in order to gauge effectiveness i.e. how many people are engaging in and 
benefiting from Entrepreneurial Barnet.  GCSE results can be used to identify those who are 
underachieving and ascertain if there are any key groups that require extra support in their 
studies to aid them in pursuing further education or training and entering sustainable 
employment.   

 

At least once a year an update report will be delivered to the Assets, Regeneration and Growth 
Committee.  

 

 6. Initial Assessment of Overall Impact 

  

Positive Impact 
 

 
               

 
 
 

Negative Impact or  
Impact Not Known1 

 
               

 
 
 

No Impact 
 
 

               
 
 
 

7. Scale of Impact 

                                            
1 ‘Impact Not Known’ – tick this box if there is no up-to-date data or information to show the effects 
or outcomes of the function, policy, procedure or service on all of the equality strands. 

163



Positive impact:  
 

Minimal   
 Significant   

 

Negative Impact or  
Impact Not Known 

Minimal   
 Significant   

 
     

 

 

8. Outcome 

No change to decision 
 

 
 
 
 

      
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Adjustment needed to 
decision 

 
 
 
 

       
 
 

 

Continue with 
decision 

(despite adverse 
impact / missed 
opportunity) 

 
       

 
 

If significant negative 
impact - Stop / rethink 

 
 
 
 

      
 

  
 

 
 

9. Please give a full explanation for how the initial assessment and outcome was 
decided. 

The aim of this Entrepreneurial Barnet is to make Barnet the best place in London to be a small 
business. It has been designed to positively impact on all factors that can affect this outcome, 
including, but not exclusive to, the labour market, skills, infrastructure, housing, business 
support, and services and communication with residents from all backgrounds.  

There is data to suggest that some of the protected characteristics are less likely to benefit from 
economic growth than others, for instance in terms of overall employment levels or the level of 
educational attainment. These will be targeted through the delivery of various activities set out 
in the proposals, which is explicitly Borough-wide and has been developed to be accessible to 
all from inception.  

 
Data Sources: 
 

 
Annual Population Survey employment indicators (2013). ONS. 
 
Barnet Council (2014). Notes from Roundtable Discussion. Barnet Business Expo. 
 
Barnet Council (2014). Barnet has the fourth lowest NEETs number in England. 

http://www.barnet.gov.uk/news/article/525/barnet_has_the_fourth_lowest_neets_number_i
n_england. Accessed 12/11/2014. 

164



 
Barnet Council (2014). Entrepreneurial Barnet.  
 
Barnet Council (2014). Entrepreneurial Barnet Consultation Responses.  
 
Barnet Council (2014). Residents’ Perception Survey Quarter 2/3, 2013/14. 

http://engage.barnet.gov.uk/consultation-team/residents-perception-survey-
2013/user_uploads/residents--perception-survey-report-qtr-2-3-2013-14-final.pdf.  
Accessed on 7/11/2014.  
 

Barnet Council (2013). Data Dashboard. 
 
Centre for Enterprise and Economic Development Research (2014). Developing 

Barnet’s Economic Strategy. Middlesex University.  
 
Full Story: The gender gap in unpaid care provision: is there an impact on health 

and economic position? (2013). ONS.  
http://www.ons.gov.uk/ons/dcp171776_310295.pdf. Accessed 10/11/2014. 

 
Full Story: What does the Census tell us about religion in 2011? (2013). ONS. 

http://www.ons.gov.uk/ons/dcp171776_310454.pdf. Accessed 10/11/2014 
 

GLA Population Projections (2013). GLA. Accessed via Data Dashboard.  
 

Labour Market Statistics (2013).  ONS.  
http://www.ons.gov.uk/ons/rel/lms/labour-market-statistics/index.html. Accessed 
10/11/2014 

 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment: Barnet 2011-2015 (2011).  
 
Labour Force Survey (Quarter 2 2012). Accessed via  

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/disability-facts-and-figures/disability-facts-
and-figures#fnref:7. Accessed on 10/11/2012 
 
 The Labour Market Story: Skills for the Future (2014).  UK Commission for 
Employment and Skills.  
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/344441/The
_Labour_Market_Story-_Skills_for_the_Future.pdf. Accessed 10/11/2014 

 
Labour Market Status by Ethnic Group Statistics (2013). ONS. Accessed from 

http://www.ons.gov.uk/ons/publications/re-reference-tables.html?edition=tcm%3A77-
222474 (A09). Accessed 10/11/2014 
 

McIntosh, S. (2013). Hollowing out and the future of the labour market. Department 
for Business Innovation and Skills (BIS Research Paper number 134).  
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/250206/bis-
13-1213-hollowing-out-and-future-of-the-labour-market.pdf. Accessed on 10/11/2014 

 
ONS (2011). Census results.  

http://www.ons.gov.uk/ons/guide-method/census/2011/census-data/index.html Accessed 
on 7/11/14. Accessed on 10/11/2014. 

 

165



Sissons, P. (2011). The Hourglass and the Escalator: Labour market change and 
mobility. The Work Foundation. 
http://www.theworkfoundation.com/DownloadPublication/Report/292_hourglass_escalator
120711%20(2)%20(3).pdf 
Accessed on 10/11/2014 

 
Stonewall website. http://www.stonewall.org.uk/ Accessed 10/11/2014 
 
Whittle, S, Turner, L, and Al-Alami, M. (2007). Engendered Penalties. Communities 

and Local Government publications.  
 
Women in the Labour Market (2013). ONS. 

http://www.ons.gov.uk/ons/dcp171776_328352.pdf. Accessed on 10/11/2014. 
 
 

166



 

 

Summary 
At its meeting on 8 September 2014 Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee agreed 
a set of outcomes that it would focus on delivering over the coming years. This report 
provides additional detail in relation to these outcomes along with associated financial 
information. The forward work programme of the committee focuses on delivering the 
outcomes set out here. The detailed Commissioning Plan proposed for adoption by the 
committee is set out in Appendix A. 
 

 

Recommendations  
That the Committee: 

• approves the Commissioning Plan (Appendix A), subject to consultation.   

 
 
1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 
1.1 On 8 September 2014 the Committee considered a set of high level 

commissioning outcomes and agreed to complete a more detailed 
Commissioning Plan and budget proposals by December 2014. This report 
seeks to support the Committee in addressing this task. It: 

 

Assets, Regeneration and Growth 
Committee 

 

15 December 2014 

Title  Business Planning 

Report of 
Deputy Chief Operating Officer 
Enterprise and Regeneration Lead Commissioner 

Wards All 

Status Public 

Enclosures                         
Appendix A – Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee 
Commissioning Plan 
 

Officer Contact Details  
John Hooton, john.hooton@barnet.gov.uk, 020 8359 2460 
Cath Shaw, cath.shaw@barnet.gov.uk , 020 8359 4716 

AGENDA ITEM 10

167



• sets out suggested outcomes for the Commissioning Plan and the 

Corporate Plan in further detail, and; 

• identifies the key work programmes and strategic challenges which the 

Committee will need to make commissioning decisions on over the coming 

five years. 

Table 1: Outcomes 
 

Priority Key Outcomes  

Regeneration • Regeneration schemes are delivered to a high standard, 
maximising benefits to the community 

• New communities at Brent Cross Cricklewood and Colindale are 
desirable and attractive places to live, work and spend time, 
which set the standard for future development across London. 

• Regeneration and growth schemes are supported by 
appropriate, high quality infrastructure. 

Economy • Barnet is established as the best place in London to be a small 
business.  In particular: 
- Business customers find it easy to deal with the Council 
- Barnet is a good place to do business, with good quality 

public realm and infrastructure that meets business’ needs 
- Businesses can access the workforce they need; and 

entrepreneurs have the skills for success 
- Small and local businesses are able to access Council 

contracts 
- Business support in Barnet is effective, with businesses 

accessing the advice and guidance that they need. 

Town Centres • Key town centres are thriving, with reduced numbers of vacant 
units. 

• Residents and local businesses and residents play an active 
role in shaping their High Street as a place to live, work, shop 
and spend leisure time. 

Assets • The Council’s asset portfolio is managed and considered as a 
whole rather than considering assets in isolation. 

• The Strategic Asset Management Plan (SAMP) drives a 
reduction in use of space to achieve savings. 

• The SAMP drives reduced running costs and increase energy 
efficiency. 

• The SAMP maximises letting income, balanced against 
community or social value. 

• Efficiency is achieved by sharing assets across the public 
sector. 

• The Council’s assets are used to support longer term 
regeneration and growth. 

• Community assets are used transparently to support a range of 
activities that contribute to delivery of the Council’s corporate 
objectives. 

168



Priority Key Outcomes  

Housing 
growth 

• New developments meet housing need, and contribute to 
Barnet’s reputation as a desirable place to live. 

• Developments on Council land meet housing need and 
maximise benefits to the Council.  

 

Challenges 
 
1.2 There are a range of strategic challenges that need to be addressed in the 

Commissioning Plan to ensure that the Council uses the levers at its disposal 
to deliver outcomes such as those described above.  These are summarised 
below. 
 

Ensuring quality and community benefit from regeneration and growth 
 
1.3 Regeneration schemes at Dollis Valley, Grahame Park (Stage A), Granville 

Road, Stonegrove Spur Road and West Hendon, and the growth scheme at 
Mill Hill East, are already under contract and, with the exception of Granville 
Road, have planning permission in place.  The scope for the Committee to 
commission revised outcomes in relation to these schemes is therefore 
comparatively limited.   

 
1.4 However, the Committee has a major opportunity to shape the new 

communities at Brent Cross Cricklewood and Colindale.  On 9 July the 
Committee agreed its requirements for the Brent Cross South development, 
and it will no doubt want to maintain oversight of how these requirements are 
being interpreted as the scheme is developed.  In Colindale, private sector 
developments will be shaped through the planning system in accordance with 
the existing Colindale Area Action Plan, but the Committee will have a role in 
guiding place making through development of the Supplementary Planning 
Document to support Grahame Park Stage B.   

 
1.5 When the existing schemes get nearer to completion, the Committee will want 

to consider how it shapes the next wave of regeneration.  There are a number 
of factors and constraints that may shape thinking about the future: 
 

• The London Plan and Local Development Framework 

• Pressures on town centres (see below) 

• Analysis of deprivation, housing stock condition, and other pressures 

on communities 

• Availability of land 

• The Council’s general principle that schemes should be broadly self-

funding over their lifetime (though many require cashflow support) 

Creating the environment for businesses to thrive 
 
1.6 The Committee considered a draft approach to growing the economy at the 8 

September meeting.  Entrepreneurial Barnet proposes adopting the aim of 
making Barnet the best place in London to be a small business, and sets out 

169



the ways in which the Council and other public service partners will go about 
delivering this aim.  Consultation on Entrepreneurial Barnet closed on 20 
November.  Feedback was broadly positive, with all respondents supporting 
the aim of making Barnet “the best place in London to be a small business”.  
More detailed analysis of the responses, together with a final draft for 
approval, is being presented to Assets Regeneration and Growth Committee 
on 15 December. 

 
Supporting our Town Centres 
 
1.7 Entrepreneurial Barnet also addresses the pressures being faced by Town 

Centres across the country, including in Barnet.  It describes how the Council 
could work in partnership with local communities to support town centres to 
thrive; and the different approaches the Council proposes to take in these 
different types of centres. Area committees have made recommendations as 
to which Town Centres should be regarded as main centres, and which 
perform more local roles, for consideration at ARG Committee on 15 
December. 
 

Delivering a fit for purpose Civic Estate 
 
1.8 The Council is driving a significant reduction in the cost of office 

accommodation over the next few years. Part of this reduction in office 
accommodation cost is included within the CSG contractually guaranteed 
savings (£125m), but further initiatives to reduce office accommodation costs 
will contribute to the savings target set for this committee. Consultation closed 
on 17 November on the Strategic Asset Management Plan, which sets out the 
Council’s medium term approach to managing assets, including the 
opportunities to deliver savings through reducing the cost of office 
accommodation.  The results of the consultation, and a draft Plan for approval 
will be put to 15 December ARG.  

 
Ensuring that buildings and land are managed effectively 
 
1.9 Good strategic asset management will drive a number of benefits for the 

Council. It will ensure that office, operational and community asset utilisation 
is maximised, that costs are minimised, and that buildings are fit for purpose 
to deliver services. The Strategic Asset Management Plan explains how this 
approach will be implemented.  
 

Delivering new developments on Council land 
 
1.10 At its meeting on 9 July 2014, the ARG Committee agreed the principles that 

should govern a pipeline of developments on its own sites.  The Committee 
wanted to ensure that such developments delivered both high quality 
outcomes and value for money the Council and the community; and in 
particular that development should support Council services in meeting their 
objectives (for example around improving housing choice for older people, or 
meeting homelessness obligations).  ARG Committee on 8 September agreed 
that, subject to consultation, a first tranche of sites should be taken forward to 
achieve planning consent.  

170



 
 
Delivering savings 
 
1.11 Policy and Resources Committee on 10 June 2014 established a savings 

target of £10.1m for Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee.  This was 
split into two categories: Promoting growth and raising income (£5.4m); and 
improving organisational efficiency (£4.7m).  At its meeting on 8 September 
the Committee agreed to revise the balance of savings, increasing the amount 
from growth and income to £5.9m, and reducing that from efficiency savings 
to £4.2m. 
 

Income and growth 
 
1.12 Modelling undertaken in 2013 considered the implications of the contracted 

regeneration and growth schemes for recurring income streams (notably 
Council Tax base and Business Rate Growth) and non-recurring income 
streams (notably New Homes Bonus and Community Infrastructure Levy).   

 
Organisational efficiency 

 
1.13 Contractual savings have been identified in respect of the remit of this 

committee. These are in respect of removing duplication in the supply chain 
within the Re contract (£800k), savings on highways maintenance from the 
set-up of the London-wide London Highways Alliance Contract (£550k), 
savings of £200k per annum from using tarmac as opposed to paving stones 
for highways repairs, and reviewing contracting activity in grounds 
maintenance (50k).   

 
1.14 Improvements in the timeliness of interventions to address highways repairs 

will drive a reduction in insurance claims for the Council. This is estimated to 
save £150k per annum. 
 

1.15 Through the process of developing proposals to inform the Priorities and 
Spending Review report, it was identified that £500k per annum of 
regeneration related expenditure could be charged to capital projects. This will 
create a saving in the Council’s revenue budget which will contribute to this 
Committee’s saving target.  
 

1.16 Subject to the adoption of the Strategic Asset Management Plan by the 
Committee on 15 December, and implementation of the proposed 
development pipeline, these savings can be delivered within existing policy 
frameworks. 

 
2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
2.1 Unlike some other committees, the savings allocated to Assets, Regeneration 

and Growth Committee arise from either existing contracts or operational 
efficiencies, and there is thus less of a need for strategic input from the 
Committee to deliver business planning targets. The Committee will have a 
number of strategic commissioning challenges and areas that it wishes to 

171



shape over the coming months and years, but in general the financial impacts 
of these on the Council will be felt beyond 2020.  
 
 

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 

3.1 This report sets out a range of options across the committee’s remit to meet 
the budget challenge. This includes proposals for finding different ways of 
delivering improved outcomes for residents, as well as generating greater 
income from new business. Alternatives to this could include cuts to services 
the Council provides, but these are not included in this report. 

 
4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 

 
4.1 If this report is agreed, these budget proposals will be incorporated into the 

Council’s draft budget proposals for 2015-20, which will be considered by 
policy and resources committee on the 2nd December. The commissioning 
outcomes will be incorporated into the corporate plan due to be considered at 
the same meeting. The commissioning plan will form the basis of the Housing 
Committees future strategic work programme including future business cases 
to deliver savings within the HRA. 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 

4.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 
Property, Sustainability) 
 

4.2.1 In addition to continued austerity, demographic change and the resulting 
pressure on services poses a significant challenge to the Council. The 
organisation is facing significant budget reductions at the same time as the 
population is increasing, particularly in the young and very old population 
cohorts. Given that nearly two thirds of the Council’s budget is spent on Adult 
Social Care and Children’s Services, this poses a particular challenge as 
these services are predominantly ‘demand led’. 
 

4.2 Legal and Constitutional References 
 

4.2.6 All proposals emerging from the business planning process will be considered 
in terms of the Council’s legal powers and obligations (including, specifically, 
the public sector equality duty under the Equality Act 2010) and, where 
appropriate, mechanisms will be put into place to ensure compliance with 
legal obligations and duties and to mitigate any other legal risks as far as 
possible. 

 
4.2.7 Council Constitution, Responsibility for Functions, Annex A – The Assets, 

Regeneration and Growth Committee has responsibility for: 
 

• Develop and oversee a Regeneration Strategy 
• Develop strategies which maximise the financial opportunities of growth- 
e.g. New Homes Bonus, localisation of business rates 
• Promote skills and enterprise and approve a Skills Enterprise and 

172



Employment Strategy  
• Engagement with the business community and measures to support 
local business 
• Oversee major regeneration schemes including those of key social 
housing estates 
• Town Centre regeneration programmes 
• Asset Management – all matters relating to land and buildings owned, 
rented or proposed to be acquired or disposed of by the Council 

 
4.3 Risk Management 

 
4.3.6 The Council has taken steps to improve its risk management processes by 

integrating the management of financial and other risks facing the 
organisation. Risk management information is reported quarterly to the 
Performance and Contract Management Committee and is reflected, as 
appropriate, throughout the annual business planning process. 
 

4.4 Equalities and Diversity 
 

4.4.6 Equality and diversity issues are a mandatory consideration in the decision 
making of the Council. This requires elected Members to satisfy themselves 
that equality considerations are integrated into day to day business and that 
all proposals emerging from the finance and business planning process have 
properly taken into consideration what impact, if any, there is on any protected 
group and what mitigating factors can be put in train. 
 

4.4.7 The projected increase in the borough’s population and changes in the 
demographic profile will be key factors that need to be considered when 
determining both the corporate strategy and service responses. Both of these 
need to also reflect the aspirations and contributions of current residents  
 

4.4.8 A number of savings and income generation proposals have been included in 
Appendix A to this report. They result from a combination of greater efficiency 
in use of Council assets, income generated through a range of new business, 
reducing demand for services and service redesign. 
 

4.4.9 The proposals and priorities within the commissioning plan have been 
developed to minimise the impact on the most vulnerable, in particular 
vulnerable households at risk of homelessness. The equalities impact will be 
reviewed as proposals are developed in more detail and based on 
consultation findings, with equality impact assessments being undertaken to 
inform the final consideration of the Commissioning Plans by the Policy and 
Resources Committee in February. 

  
4.4.10 The Commissioning Plan will be subject to formal consultation following the 

publication of the draft budget, and this position will be reviewed when the 
budget is then set in 2015. 
 

4.4.11 All human resources implications will be managed in accordance with the 
Council’s Managing Organisational Change policy that supports the Council’s 

173



Human Resources Strategy and meets statutory equalities duties and current 
employment legislation. 
 
 

4.5 Consultation and Engagement 
 

Consultation and Engagement 

4.5.6 Public consultation will commence on all Committee Commissioning Plans 

following Policy and Resources Committee on 2nd December 2014, before 

final Commissioning Plans are agreed by Policy and Resources Committee on 

17 February 2015. 

 

4.5.7 Full public consultation will take place on individual proposals to deliver the 

savings identified before final decisions are taken by the Committee and 

savings plans are formalised in the Council’s annual budget.  Future 

consultation and engagement will be informed by the consultation work that 

has already been carried out as part of the Priorities and Spending Review 

process during which a comprehensive series of residents engagement 

activities took place in order to understand their priorities for the local area 

and look at how residents and organisations can support services going 

forward. 

 

4.5.8 Over the last 12 months the council has been reviewing its priorities and 
spending. To help inform the council’s future long term spending plans the 
council commissioned the Office for Public Management (OPM), an 
independent research organisation, to run a comprehensive series of 
residents engagement activities to understand their priorities for the local area 
and look at how residents and organisations can support services going 
forward. 
 

4.5.9 The engagement followed two phases: 
 
Phase 1: 
 
4.5.10 A series of resident workshops, service user and businesses focus groups last 

autumn. 
 
4.5.11 The findings1 provide a rich evidence base of residents’ priorities, what 

residents value most, their ideas for generating income, and how local people 
can work together. As a result the council has been able to identify broad 
themes2 based on residents' views and involvement which will be used to help 
focus the council's future long term spending plans. 

 

                                                           
1 http://engage.barnet.gov.uk/consultation-team/call-for-evidence/user_uploads/phase-1--barnet-

challenge-opm-summary-report.pdf 
2
 http://engage.barnet.gov.uk/consultation-team/call-for-evidence/user_uploads/key-themes-identified-

from-the-first-phase-of-consultation.pdf 

174



Phase 2: 
 
4.5.12 Between March and June 2014 OPM ran an online call for evidence to hear 

views of organisations, businesses and individual residents on the future of 
Barnet, how the council can ensure that public services best meet the needs 
of the borough, how the council can change and how organisations and 
individuals can play a part in meeting Barnet’s challenges during this time. 

 
4.5.13 OPM has analysed the responses to the call for evidence on the council's 

behalf. Evidence was sought on two main topic areas: 
 

- Ideas on the future of public services in Barnet, and how organisations 
and individuals can play a role in providing some of these services. 

- Ideas on how the council could be more entrepreneurial and generate 
more income. 

 
4.5.14 A summary of the findings can be found in Appendix A and the full report is 

available at http://engage.barnet.gov.uk/consultation-team/call-
forevidence/consult_view 

 
 
5 BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
5.2 Relevant previous decisions are indicated in the table below. 
 

Item Decision Link 

Cabinet 12 March 
2010 

Decision item 8 -
approved the existing 
Housing Strategy 

http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/Data
/Cabinet/201004121900/Agenda/D
ocument%207.pdf 

Cabinet  14 
September 2011 

Decision item 8 - 
approved Barnet’s 
approach to social 
housing reform 

http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/Data
/Cabinet/201109141900/Agenda/D
ocument%204.pdf 

Cabinet Resources 
Committee 24 June 
2013 

Decision Item 6 - Local 
Authority New Housing 
Programme 

http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/docu
ments/s9244/CRC%20LA%20New
%20Build%20public.pdf 

Assets, Regeneration 
& Growth Committee 
9 July 2014 

Decision Item 11 - 
Strategic Asset 
Management Plan 
principles for 
consultation 

http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/docu
ments/s16064/Strategic%20Asset
%20Management%20Plan%20prin
ciples%20for%20consultation.pdf 

Policy and 
Resources 
Committee 21 July 
2014 

Decision Item 6 - 
Finance and Business 
Planning – Capital 
programme and review 
of reserves 

http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/docu
ments/s16150/Finance%20and%20
Business%20Planning%20Capital
%20programme%20and%20review
%20of%20reserves.pdf 

Policy and 
Resources 
Committee 21 July 
2014 

Decision Item 10 - 
Funding for an Extra 
Care Housing Scheme 
at Moreton Close, 

http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/docu
ments/s16154/Funding%20for%20
an%20Extra%20Care%20Housing
%20Scheme%20at%20Moreton%2

175



Item Decision Link 

NW7 and Advance 
Acquisitions of 
Leasehold properties 
on Regeneration 
Estates 

0Close%20NW7%20and%20Advan
ce%20Acquisitions%20of%20Leas
ehold.pdf 

Assets, Regeneration 
& Growth Committee 
8 September 2014 

Decision Item 12 - 
Barnet Development 
Pipeline 

http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/docu
ments/s17356/Development%20Pi
peline%20-%20Report.pdf 

Assets, Regeneration 
& Growth Committee 
8 September 2014 

Agree consultation on 
Entrepreneurial Barnet 
proposals 

http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/mgC
hooseDocPack.aspx?ID=7885  

Assets, Regeneration 
& Growth Committee 
8 September 2014 

Agree Strategic Asset 
management Plan 
draft for consultation 

http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/mgC
hooseDocPack.aspx?ID=7885 

 
 
 

176



1 

 

          
Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee 

Commissioning Plan- Commissioning Plan 2015 - 2020 
 

1. The Context for the development of this plan.    

 

Public services in England during the decade 2010-2020 face an unprecedented 

challenge as the country deals with the impact of the financial crisis of 2008, 

alongside the opportunities and challenges that come from our changing and ageing 

population.   

Despite a growing economy, the UK budget deficit is forecast to be £75bn at the 

2015 General Election, with cuts set to continue to the end of the decade no matter 

who is in Government. At the same time, demand on local services continues to 

increase, driven by a growing population, particularly the number of young and older 

residents. We therefore must plan for the fact that austerity will affect all parts of the 

public sector to the end of the decade and that we will not be able to meet increasing 

levels of demand from simply doing more of what we are currently doing.   

The public too, does not expect simply more of the same. Expectations of local 

services are increasing, advances in customer services and technology provide the 

ability to interact with services 24/7. Local residents as a result expect better 

services and more prompt responses from the Council. However satisfaction with the 

Council and local services remains relatively high in Barnet, and over recent years 

resident satisfaction with a number of local services has increased, despite these 

challenges. 

In thinking about how the Council lives within its means, the Council needs to 

recognise that residents are also facing wider financial pressures, from high energy 

bills, increasing housing costs, continued wage restraint, and benefit reforms, so the 

ability of many households to absorb the impact of reductions from public sector 

funding through increased financial contributions is constrained.  

We can however expect over the duration of this plan that significant opportunities 

will flow from Barnet being part of a growing and arguably booming London 

economy. Unemployment levels have fallen by a third in the last year, the number of 

16-18 year old ‘NEETs’ in Barnet is, at 2.3%, the fourth lowest in England and fewer 

Barnet residents are claiming out-of-work benefits than the London average. This 

plan needs to ensure that all residents of Barnet can benefit from the opportunities of 

growth, whether through new employment opportunities, increased investment in 

infrastructure such as roads and schools, or enjoying new neighbourhoods and 

places in which all people can live and age well. 

 

177



2 

 

 

Barnet Council’s Overarching Approach to meeting the 2020 Challenge 

The Council’s Corporate Plan sets the framework for each of the Commissioning 

Committees five-year commissioning plans. Whether the plans are covering services 

for vulnerable residents or about universal services such as the environment and 

waste there are a number of core and shared principles which underpin the 

commissioning outcomes.   

The first is a focus on fairness.  

Fairness for the Council is about striking the right balance between fairness towards 

the more frequent users of services and fairness to the wider taxpayer and making 

sure all residents from our diverse communities - young, old, disabled, and 

unemployed - benefit from the opportunities of growth.  

The Council must ‘get the basics right’ so people can get on with their lives – 

disposing of waste, keeping streets clean, allowing people to transact in more 

convenient ways, resolving issues promptly in the most cost effective way.  

We must shift our approach to earlier intervention and demand management. 

Managing the rising demand for services requires a step change in the Council’s 

approach to early intervention and prevention. Across the public sector, we need to 

work with residents to prevent problems rather than treating the symptoms when 

they materialise.  

The second is a focus on responsibility.  

Continue to drive out efficiencies to deliver more with less. The Council will drive out 

efficiencies through a continued focus on workforce productivity; bearing down on 

contract and procurement costs and using assets more effectively. All parts of the 

system need to play their part in helping to achieve better outcomes with reduced 

resources.  

Change its relationships with residents, with residents working with the Council to 

reduce the impact of funding cuts to services .?In certain circumstances, residents 

will also need to take on more personal and community responsibility for keeping 

Barnet a great place particularly if there is not a legal requirement for the Council to 

provide services. In some cases users will be required to pay more for certain 

services as the Council prioritises the resources it has available.  

The third is a focus on opportunity.  

Prioritise regeneration, growth and maximising income – Regeneration revitalises 

communities and provides residents and businesses with places to live and work. 

Growing the local tax base and generating more income through growth and other 

sources makes the Council less reliant on government funding; helps offsets the 

178



3 

 

impact of service cuts and allows the Council to invest in the future infrastructure of 

the Borough.  

Redesign service and deliver them differently through a range of models and 

providers. The Council has no pre-determined view about how services should be 

designed and delivered. The Council will work with providers from across the public, 

private and voluntary sectors to provide services which are more integrated, through 

a range of models most appropriate to the service and the outcomes that we want to 

achieve.  

Planning ahead is crucial$ The Council dealt with the first wave of austerity by 

planning ahead and focusing in the longer-term, thus avoid short-term cuts - the 

Council is continuing this approach by extending its plans to 2020. 

 

 

 

  

179



4 

 

Assets, Regeneration and Growth 

Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee is responsible for creating the right 

environment for economic growth to ensure Barnet is a successful place; for 

ensuring that the Council’s asset strategy is aligned effectively to the development of 

the borough; and ensuring housing supply and provision that meets the Borough’s 

needs.  Included within this are particular responsibilities for the Council’s 

regeneration programme, and for the health of town centres. 

 

The Committee has made significant progress in agreeing the strategic framework 

for delivering its work.  Consultation is complete on both the Strategic Asset 

Management Plan, including an approach to developing on Council land; and on 

Entrepreneurial Barnet, which sets out the approach the Council and its partners will 

take to supporting economic growth and town centres.  Final versions of these 

reports will be considered for adoption at the meeting on 15 December 2014 

 

The Council’s approach to regeneration is set out in the November 2012 Growth 

Strategy, and substantial progress has been made in delivering the schemes 

highlighted in that report.  Regeneration schemes aim to create cohesive 

communities in successful places, with high quality homes and infrastructure. 

 

Outcomes 

Priority Key Outcomes  

Regeneration • Regeneration schemes are delivered to a high standard, 

maximising benefits to the community. 

 

• New communities at Brent Cross Cricklewood and Colindale are 

desirable and attractive places to live, work and spend time, 

which set the standard for future development across London. 

 

• Regeneration and growth schemes are supported by 

appropriate, high quality infrastructure. 

Economy • Barnet is established as the best place in London to be a small 

business.  In particular: 

- Business customers find it easy to deal with the Council 

- Barnet is a good place to do business, with good quality 

public realm and infrastructure that meets business’ needs 

- Businesses can access the workforce they need; and 

entrepreneurs have the skills for success 

- Small and local businesses are able to access Council 

contracts 

- Business support in Barnet is effective, with businesses 

accessing the advice and guidance that they need. 

180



5 

 

Priority Key Outcomes  

Town Centres • Key town centres are thriving, with reduced numbers of vacant 

units. 

 

• Residents and local businesses and residents play an active 

role in shaping their High Street as a place to live, work, shop 

and spend leisure time. 

Assets • The Council’s asset portfolio is managed and considered as a 

whole rather than considering assets in isolation. 

 

• The Strategic Asset Management Plan (SAMP) drives a 

reduction in use of space to achieve savings. 

 

• The SAMP drives reduced running costs and increase energy 

efficiency. 

 

• The SAMP maximises letting income, balanced against 

community or social value. 

 

• Efficiency is achieved by sharing assets across the public 

sector. 

 

• The Council’s assets are used to support longer term 

regeneration and growth. 

 

• Community assets are used transparently to support a range of 

activities that contribute to delivery of the Council’s corporate 

objectives. 

Housing 

growth 

• New developments meet housing need, and contribute to 

Barnet’s reputation as a desirable place to live. 

 

• Developments on Council land meet housing need and 

maximise benefits to the Council.  

 

 

The commissioning plan has been developed in sections for the following Strategic 

Outcomes that make up the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee’s remit: 

� Growth and Regeneration 

� Entrepreneurial Barnet 

� Asset Management 

 

Financial Consideration 

181



6 

 

The outcomes as set out above will support the delivery of the budget savings 

proposals for the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee. They are principally 

as follows: 

• Savings in respect of reductions in the costs of office accommodation (£2m) – 

this will be achieved through relocation of the Council’s offices to Colindale. It 

will also require a review of the Council’s wider estate for savings and income 

generation opportunities.  

• Additional income in respect of development opportunities (£1m) – the 

Council can generate income from residential developments which are then 

let in the private rented sector. The development approach will need to take 

this into account to deliver the required income target.  

• Additional income from Council Tax and business rates resulting from the 

implementation of the Council’s regeneration programme (£5m).  

The identification of development opportunities which result in a capital receipt for 

the Council rather than a revenue stream (e.g. housing for private sale as opposed 

to rent), will also support the Council’s financial position. An increase in capital 

receipts will enable the amount set aside for future borrowing to be reduced, and 

therefore will reduce the overall budget gap of £72m to 2020.  

 

Service component:  Growth and Regeneration 

The London Borough of Barnet’s growth and regeneration programme combines a 

programme of physical regeneration schemes and economic development initiatives. 

The overarching aim of the programme is to create cohesive communities that will 

meet the needs of all that live within them and that people are proud to be part of. In 

partnership with key stakeholders and local residents, the growth and regeneration 

programme will provide greater choice for all by: 

• Creating a mix of high quality, affordable and private homes and more mixed 

communities;  

• Creating new school places to meet the needs of the growing younger 

population;  

• Ensuring services are available to support our increasing older population;  

• Increasing the prospect of better paid employment by generating new jobs 

and providing residents and businesses with the tools and support to prosper 

and grow in Barnet;  

• Providing new and replacement community, leisure, health and education 

facilities and open spaces for all residents to use; and  

• Enhancing public transport, road networks and local cycle and pedestrian 

networks to provide improved accessibility for those who live in the 

regeneration areas and for the wider community. 

 

182



7 

 

Commissioning intentions:  

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen 

1 Successful regeneration - Successful delivery of the existing 

regeneration programme  

- Ensure that the Brent Cross South 

Side development delivers a high 

quality new town centre for Barnet 

- Development of a successful 

approach to regeneration in Colindale 

- Identification and delivery of a number 

of development opportunities across 

the borough 

 

Outcome measures 

Measure Baseline – 13/14 Target - 19/20  

New homes completed (REGENKPI01) 1,527 

(July 2013 - June 

2014) 

Increase 

Affordable homes (REGENKPI05) 317 

(July 2013 - June 

2014) 

Increase 

Number of empty properties brought back 

into residential use (EH04A) 

1,669 Sustain 

Number of jobs  119,000 

(BRES 2013) 

Increase 

 

 

 

Financial impact  

 

The Regeneration programme is incorporated into the Re managed budgets line. 

The focus of the council’s regeneration activity is on driving addition growth in 

income rather than on reducing expenditure e.g. through the creation of new homes 

and infrastructure, and by broadening the size of Barnet's tax base. This is reflected 

in the overall £5.9m target for the Committee. 

 

A more detailed breakdown of the financial considerations associated with Assets, 

Regeneration and Growth Committee can be found on page 13. 

 

 

 

 

183



8 

 

Service component:  Entrepreneurial Barnet 

The overarching goal of Entrepreneurial Barnet is to make Barnet the best place in 

London to be a small business. There are five key ways in which partners in Barnet 

impact upon local economies, and the strategy therefore focuses on: 

• Getting the basics right – ensuring that when businesses need to engage with 

the Council – whether to pay business rates, apply for a licence, or reporting a 

problem – the process is as efficient, transparent and painless as possible, 

and does not create any unnecessary constraints or costs on running a 

successful business;  

• Stewardship of place – the Council is responsible for maintaining much of the 

built and natural environment in the borough including many aspects of our 

town centres, and so has a big influence on whether Barnet is a pleasant 

place for businesses and their staff to locate, and an efficient place to move 

around. Our regeneration programme alone will create 3,000 jobs directly, 

and commercial space for 27,000 more by 2030 as well as providing the 

space and flexibility for further growth;  

• Shaping the labour market – although the Council has a less direct role in 

education than in the past, it retains overall responsibility for school 

improvement, and works closely with Barnet and Southgate College and 

Middlesex University to maintain the high standard of skills among Barnet 

residents. By developing a labour market with the skills and behaviours that 

employers are seeking, and with a strong culture of entrepreneurship, the 

desirability of Barnet as a place to start a business will grow and incomes will 

rise. A healthy workforce will also be more productive and the Council, 

through its public health responsibilities, will play a role in promoting this;  

• Buying goods and services – the Council manages contracts that are 

collectively worth more than £1bn. Across the whole public sector, the figures 

are much higher, and it is important that local businesses have a fair chance 

of winning these contracts in a transparent and genuinely competitive 

environment. In some sectors, such as domiciliary care, the Council is a main 

player in the market and must clearly signal likely future needs so that 

providers can respond; and 

• Providing or signposting business support services and premises – traditional 

economic development activity focuses on the provision of business support, 

premises and networking opportunities. While this is not the Council’s primary 

focus, we do have a role in making sure that businesses know how to access 

these services and associated information in a transparent way, and that the 

Council is informed by a strong dialogue with the business community that 

allows us to respond to the changing economic climate in a way that 

maintains strong growth. Businesses create growth, and we will do what we 

can to encourage this at every opportunity.  

 

184



9 

 

Commissioning intentions: 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen 

1 Barnet is the best place in London to 

be a small business 

- Streamlined planning, regulation 

and customer access for 

businesses 

- Develop Local Business 

Development Boards, develop 

business training and mentoring, 

and increase access to Council 

contracts for local businesses 

- Consider creation of a business 

development social enterprise 

- Provide appropriate affordable 

workspace for small and micro-

businesses 

2 Thriving town centres - Identify major, district and local 

town centres and develop a 

tailored offer to support 

- Promote high quality 

development and public realm 

improvements 

- Reduce the number of vacant 

high street properties 

- Introduce free Wi-Fi for town 

centres 

- Secure additional external 

investment in town centres 

 

Outcome measures 

Measure Baseline – 13/14 Target - 19/20  

Business survival rate (SK1) To baseline in 

2014/15 

Increase 

Vacant high street properties (SK3) To baseline in 

2014/15 

Decrease 

Planning Compliance (KPI001 A&A) 88.9% 

(July – September 

2014) 

Increase 

Compliance with Environmental Health 

Service Standards (EH01) 

96.8% 

(July – September 

2014) 

Sustain 

Appropriate response to statutory 

deadlines in relation to the Licensing and 

Gambling Act (dealt with to pre-set 

94.9% 

(July – September 

2014) 

Sustain 

185



10 

 

standards) (TSLPKI04) 

Average time taken to process requests 

for Full Official Searches (online and post) 

in Land Charges (days) (KPI001 LC) 

1.78 

(July – September 

2014) 

Sustain 

Re – Service satisfaction 65% 

(July 2014) 

Increase 

 

Financial impact  

Entrepreneurial Barnet does not have any savings associated with it. The intention is 

that it will be delivered within existing resources. Where it has a financial impact it 

will be in the form of addition income growth e.g. by increasing the size of the local 

tax base, or by increasing private sector investment in Barnet. 

A more detailed breakdown of the financial considerations associated with Assets, 

Regeneration and Growth Committee can be found on page 13. 

 

186



11 

 

Service component:  Asset Management 

Effective asset management planning provides a framework within which the Council 

can deliver operational and financial benefits of an estate which aspires to standards 

of best practice. It will address the need to secure the maximum potential economic 

benefit whilst supporting delivery of the council’s objectives through providing 

services, enabling community participation, delivery, growth and regeneration. The 

objectives of the Strategic Asset Management Plan are to: 

• Articulate a vision for Council land and property assets over the next five 

years in support of the Council’s objectives;  

• Set out a strategic approach in respect of the Council’s land and property 

assets so the portfolio is managed as a whole rather than considering assets 

in isolation;  

• Shape the Council’s operational estate to optimise service provision and meet 

the needs of customers;  

a) Ensure that operational properties are appropriately located, provide 

flexible accommodation at appropriate cost, are in good condition and are 

accessible to all. 

b) Achieve a reduction in the overall use of operational space to achieve 

savings. 

c) Reduce the running costs of buildings and benchmark costs in use against 

peer groups.   

d) Develop an Office Accommodation Strategy, achieving efficiency in the 

use of space through Agile / remote working, and to maximise co-location 

of services working with partners. 

• Ensure that the procurement of works for buildings meets sustainable design 

criteria and those buildings are maintained and managed for maximum energy 

and resource efficiency; 

• Support longer term regeneration and growth by preparing business cases for 

retaining, acquiring or disposing of assets ensuring best consideration is 

achieved and where relevant community and social value is taken into 

consideration;   

• Provide a framework against which strategies for council assets such as 

highways, housing and parks can be developed; 

• Develop an approach that maximises letting income and where relevant, this 

should be balanced against community or social value; and 

• Achieve efficiencies by sharing assets across the public sector. 

 

 

 

 

187



12 

 

Commissioning intentions: 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen 

1 Reduced costs of office 

accommodation 

- Move out of NLBP4 by October 

2015 

- Relocate to Colindale by 2017/18 

- Identify opportunities to sell or 

develop Council assets that are 

surplus to requirements  

- Review all commercial asset 

holdings to ensure that income is 

maximised 

 

2 Fit for purpose community assets - Community asset strategy 

developed, consulted on an 

agreed 

- Development of a “community 

hub” approach for community 

assets with community groups 

identified to run these 

- Leases in place for all community 

assets, with discounts from full 

market rent fully identified 

 

Outcome measures 

Measure Baseline – 13/14 Target - 19/20  

Running costs of estate (like-for-like 

assessment) 

New – to be 

baseline 

Decrease 

Income from the estate 
New – to be 

baseline 

Increase 

CIPFA VfM – Estate Management 
Baselining to be 

completed 2015/16 

Increase 

Value of operational assets, by asset type 

– Community assets 

£369,000 

(2012/13) 

Increase 

Total value of assets as a percentage of 

total spend 

179.3% 

(2012/13) 

Increase 

 

 

 

188



13 

 

 

 

Financial Impact 

 

 

Area 

2015/16 2019/20 

Expenditure 

£'000 

Income 

£'000 

Net 

£'000 

Expenditure 

£'000 

Income 

£'000 

Net 

£'000 

RE Management Fee 10,550 (10,964) (414) 9,250 (10,964) (1,714) 

RE Managed Budgets 1,144 

              

-  1,144 244 

                 

-  244 

CSG Managed Budgets 6,446 

              

-  6,446 1,787 

                 

-  1,787 

Inflation 

   

483 

                 

-  483 

Increase in Council Tax / 

Business Rates  

                         

-  

(4,877) (4,877) 

Development 

Opportunities 

                         

-  

(1,000) (1,000) 

 

18,140 (10,964) 7,176 11,764 (16,841) (5,077) 

 

189



190

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Summary 

This report provides an update to the Committee on progress on the Brent Cross Cricklewood 
regeneration scheme since the previous report to Committee on 8 September 2014.  

 

Recommendations  
 

1. That the Committee note progress on the Brent Cross Cricklewood 
Regeneration Project. 
 

 
1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
  
1.1 This report seeks to provide an update to the Assets, Regeneration and 

Growth Committee following the last report to Committee on 8 September 
2014 now that the end of the calendar year is approaching. 
 

1.2 As the Committee is aware, Hammerson UK and Standard Life Ltd (the 
Development Partners) will deliver the redevelopment of the shopping centre 
at Brent Cross and the land around it, together with the infrastructure required 
to support the comprehensive regeneration proposals. The Council will take 
the lead on the south side to deliver with a new development partner those 

 

Assets, Regeneration and Growth 
Committee  
15 December 2014 

  

Title  Brent Cross Cricklewood project update 

Report of Cath Shaw, Enterprise and Regeneration Lead Commisioner            

Wards Childs Hill, Golders Green and West Hendon  

Status Public  

Enclosures                         None 

Officer Contact Details  

 
Karen Mercer, Programme Director  Re, 
Karen.Mercer@barnet.gov.uk, 0208 359 7563  
 

AGENDA ITEM 11

191



parts of the Brent Cross Cricklewood Regeneration masterplan which are to 
the south of the North Circular, including the land to be redeveloped in 
connection with the station improvements. 

 
1.3 The Committee will recall that a progress update was provided to the 

Committee on 8 September 2014.  This included the land acquisitions strategy 
to bring forward the regeneration proposals in respect of the first phase 
development north and south of the North Circular Road to deliver the 
redevelopment of the shopping centre and critical road infrastructure and the 
BXC South proposals as part of the overall comprehensive regeneration of 
Brent Cross Cricklewood area.  
 

1.4 The report to Committee explained that in order to deliver the comprehensive 
regeneration of the area, it is possible that the Council will need to use its 
compulsory purchase powers. The exercise of CPO powers is considered to 
be a tool of last resort where it is clear that it will not be possible to acquire all 
required land and interests by private treaty.   Consequently, the report 
explained that preparatory work is required in advance of any CPO, should it 
be necessary at a later date to seek the Committee’s authority to use CPO 
powers.   
 

1.5 As part of this preparatory work, the Committee approved the Council entering 
into negotiations and conclude agreements by private treaty with owners 
whose land or interests are required for the delivery of the project.  The 
Committee also approved the land referencing exercise to identity all parties 
with interests in the land and with whom private treaty negotiations should be 
conducted.    

 
2. UPDATE 

 
2.1  As previously reported to the Committee, following the completion of the 

Section 106 agreement, the Section 73 planning permission for the wider 
Brent Cross Cricklewood scheme (which amended the phasing of the original 
planning permission and made consequential changes) was granted on 23 
July 2014.   The Development Partners are now continuing to focus on 
discharging the relevant conditions and preparing the necessary reserved 
matters applications in respect of the shopping centre and critical 
infrastructure to be provided.  It is expected that the reserved matters 
application for the critical infrastructure works will be submitted early next 
year.  
 

2.2 In relation to the land acquisition strategy and following the Committee’s 
approval on 8 September 2014, the Development Partners and the Council 
are in discussions with parties with an interest within the first phase scheme 
area.  Terraquest has also been appointed to undertake the land referencing 
and is seeking to identify all parties with interests in the area likely to be 
required to facilitate the delivery of the project. This is to ensure that private 
treaty negotiations can continue as appropriate with affected parties, and will 
also ensure that identified parties will all be served with the appropriate 
notices and be involved in any potential CPO process if they so wish. In the 

192



event that a CPO is progressed it a later date, all parties with interests in the 
land will appear in a detailed schedule which, together with the CPO plan, 
forms a CPO.  
 

2.3 The CPO Indemnity Agreement, under which the Development Partners will 
provide the Council with an indemnity in respect of the costs of promoting any 
CPO in respect of the redevelopment at and around the shopping centre and 
the Critical Infrastructure, and the compensation payable to third parties 
whose land and interests are acquired pursuant to any CPO, is now agreed 
and will be completed prior to progressing any CPO process. 
 

2.4 As previously reported, the procurement process being run by the Council to 
select a preferred development partner to deliver southern masterplan areas 
commenced on 22 July 2014.  Six bids were received on 10 September 2014.  
These bids were reviewed and evaluated by the Brent Cross Cricklewood 
Evaluation Panel.  Four bids were shortlisted and reported to and approved by 
the Chief Executive and the Leader of the Council.   
 

2.5 On 6 October, the Council announced the following shortlist to progress to 
Invitation to Negotiate stage: 
 
1. Argent (Property Development) Services LLP and Related Companies LP 
2. Barratts and London & Quadrant Housing Trust 
3. Capital & Counties Properties PLC 
4. Far East Consortium International Limited with Countryside Properties 

PLC, Notting Hill Housing Trust and Southern Grove 
 

2.6 The Council and its advisors are now regularly meeting with the bidders as 
part of the negotiated procurement process.  The closing date for submissions 
is 29 January 2015.   
 

2.7 The evaluation process will take place throughout February 2015.  The 
Bidders will present their proposals to a Stakeholder Panel group comprising 
key community representatives and third party stakeholders on 4 February 
2015.  Stakeholders will have the opportunity to provide feedback both to 
bidders and to the evaluation panel.  
 

2.8 The Bidders will then present to the Evaluation Panel on 17 February 2015, 
who will then formally review the bids and report their recommendation to the 
Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee. 

 
2.9 It is anticipated that the selection of the preferred development partner will be 

reported to the Assets, Regeneration Committee in March 2015. 
 

2.10 Once a preferred partner has been identified, a full business plan will be 
developed jointly between the parties for approval by the Council’s Assets, 
Regeneration and Growth Committee, before the creation of a formal joint 
venture partnership. This will allow the preferred development partner a period 
of time to work with the Council and the key external stakeholders to finalise 

193



the proposals and obtain the necessary consents in the pre contract business 
plan stage, before finalising and engrossing the contract by March 2016. 
 

2.11 As part of the south-side scheme, London Borough of Barnet is now leading 
on the delivery of the Station in partnership with Network Rail and public 
sector stakeholder partners. 
 

2.12 The Council is continuing discussions with Network Rail and HM Treasury, 
DCLG and Department for Transport to develop the business case to bring 
forward the station proposals that underpin the regeneration proposals.   
 

2.13 The Government reaffirmed their support of the Brent Cross Cricklewood 
proposals in the National Infrastructure Plan 2014 published on 2 December 
2014.  This confirmed that the government supports the London Borough of 
Barnet and GLA plans for the regeneration of Brent Cross which could deliver 
7,500 homes, subject to a full business case. 
 

2.14 The Council is continuing to work with the Treasury, DCLG and DfT to finalise 
the business case and this is expected to be complete in February next year.  
 

2.15 The Council has also now entered into a Design Services Agreement with 
Network Rail to take forward the station design development and other 
support work.  It is anticipated that a revised cost estimate based on a 
preferred option will be produced in February 2015.   
 

2.16 It is anticipated that the confirmed funding strategy alongside proposed station 
design will reported to Committee in March 2015.     
 

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

3.1 The comprehensive regeneration of Brent Cross Cricklewood is a long-
standing objective of the Council and a key regeneration priority of the Mayor 
of London. At 151 Ha, it is one of the largest regeneration schemes in Europe. 
The London Plan identifies it as an Opportunity Area with an indicative 
employment capacity target of 20,000 jobs and a minimum new homes target 
of 10,000 homes. The Council’s Core Strategy reinforces the significant 
comprehensive regeneration opportunity, which includes a new town centre, 
major new and improved transport and community facilities, and other 
infrastructure and public areas.  
 

3.2 The area is significantly constrained by the existing road network and rail 
infrastructure, which creates a poor environment for those who live and work 
there.  Nevertheless, given its location at the connection between the M1 and 
A406, the regeneration area has the potential to be a major and attractive 
gateway into London. The potential accessibility of the area is further 
enhanced by its connection with the A5 and A41, and its close proximity to the 
Northern Line at Brent Cross station, the Midland mainline, and Brent Cross 
bus station.  
 

194



3.3 One of the reasons why the area has not been redeveloped to date is the 
need for substantial infrastructure to be provided to realise the area’s 
potential.  The comprehensive redevelopment and improvement of the Brent 
Cross Shopping Centre and other major development in the area provides the 
opportunity for the infrastructure to be funded and delivered, for the benefit of 
Brent Cross Cricklewood as a whole. In particular, in addition to major 
improvements to existing roads and public transport and social infrastructure, 
the proposals will create strong and attractive linkages between the 
communities to the north and south of the North Circular. 
 

3.4 The development of this strategic gateway site will create a new town centre 
and residential quarter, uniting the areas north and south of the A406 North 
Circular, providing an attractive and vibrant place to live and work.  It will 
contribute to the future prosperity of the Borough. The development to the 
north of the North Circular alone is expected to create 3,000 construction jobs, 
and an additional 4,000 permanent jobs over the next five to seven years.  It 
will provide around 91,500 sqm (net) of additional retail and commercial 
floorspace. 
 

3.5 Brent Cross Cricklewood is a key element of the Council’s regeneration and 
housing programme and will provide over 7,540 new homes over the next 20 
years, including affordable homes and replacement homes for the Whitefield 
Estate. The scheme will also provide new and improved educational and 
health facilities for the community, and improved open space and recreational 
facilities for the community to enjoy and use. 
 

3.6 The new Thameslink Station alongside the major highways and junction 
improvements (including those to junctions on the M1, A5, A406 (the North 
Circular), A407 and A41) will vastly improve the accessibility of the area and 
will help realise the regeneration of the area to its full potential. To address the 
existing barriers to accessibility between the communities to the north and 
south of the North Circular, as part of the first stage of development a series 
of bridges will be delivered including the Living Bridge (a new pedestrian and 
cycle bridge over the North Circular adjacent to Claremont Avenue and 
Market Square); the Templehof Bridge (replacing the existing Templehof 
Bridge over the North Circular); the A406/M1 Junction Pedestrian and Cycle 
Bridge – a new shared pedestrian and cycle bridge over the A406 adjacent to 
this improved junction; changes to the Staples Corner Pedestrian Bridge; 9 
road bridges across the improved and diverted River Brent, and a further two 
bridges for the use of pedestrians and cyclists only. 

 
3.7 The regeneration of Brent Cross Cricklewood will be a major component of 

achieving the Council’s priority objectives in its Corporate Plan 2013-2016, 
including to ‘maintain the right environment for a strong diverse local 
economy’, with the strategic objective under this priority being to sustain 
Barnet by ‘promoting growth, development and success across the borough’. 
 

3.8 The scheme also supports the achievement of the objectives set out in ‘One 
Barnet - A Sustainable Community Strategy for Barnet 2010–2020’, including: 
 

195



"Sharing opportunities for success’ and ‘choice and responsibility’, 
where the proposals will provide high quality homes.  The Scheme 
itself will offer more choice by providing a number of different housing 
options such as shared equity, shared ownership and private homes 
for sale to residents and those in the wider community". 

 
3.9 In addition, it will further the strategic objectives in the Council’s Housing 

Strategy 2010-2025 which include: 
 
(a) increasing housing supply, including family sized homes, to improve 

the range of housing choices and opportunities available to residents; 
and 

 
(b) promoting mixed communities and maximising opportunities available 

for those wishing to own their home. 
 
 

3.10 The land which may need to be acquired to facilitate the delivery of the project 
was shown on the plan at Appendix 1 to the report to the Committee on 8 
September 2014.  Those commercial owners and occupiers, including tenants 
in the shopping centre, who are affected have been or are being contacted by 
the Development Partners and/or the Council, and in most cases discussions 
have taken place regarding the acquisition of the relevant land and rights. It is 
envisaged that offers will have been made to most if not all owners and 
occupiers to acquire their interests by private treaty before any report is 
brought back to Committee to seek authority for the use of CPO powers. 
 

3.11 With regards to the residents of the housing on the Whitefield Estate and the 
Rosa Freedman Centre, discussions have been held or are planned with all 
residents regarding their needs and alternative accommodation. The residents 
of the Rosa Freedman Centre will be re-located within the Borough, and the 
Development Partners are procuring a registered provider to secure the 
successful relocation of the Council’s tenants. Those residents who have 
exercised their right to buy their properties will be contacted by the 
Development Partners and the Council in due course.  
 

3.12 In relation to the Thameslink Station, the Development Partners and the 
Council are in discussions with Network Rail and freight operating companies 
regarding the acquisition of the relevant land and rights.  
 

4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS  
  
4.1 If the Council decides not to progress private treaty negotiations with owners, 

then the project will be delayed indefinitely because the Council and 
Development Partners will not have the land and interests needed interest to 
deliver the scheme.  

 
 
 
 
 

196



5. POST-DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

5.1 The Council and its advisors will continue to work on the workstreams to 
delivery of the Brent Cross regeneration proposals as approved by the Assets, 
Regeneration and Growth Committee.   
 

6. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 
Corporate Priorities and Performance 
 

6.1 The regeneration of Brent Cross Cricklewood supports the Corporate Plan 
2013-2016 priority ‘To maintain the right environment for a strong diverse local 
economy’, and the strategic objective under this priority to sustain Barnet by 
‘promoting growth, development and success across the borough’.  
 

6.2 The Growth Strategy for Barnet recognised that regeneration and growth are 
vital for ensuring the future prosperity of the Borough and maintaining Barnet 
as a successful London suburb.  The scheme to transform Brent Cross 
Cricklewood will play a major role in delivering this prosperity, doubling the 
size of the shopping centre and linking seamlessly to a new town centre for 
Barnet and North London across the North Circular Road.  Brent Cross 
Cricklewood is one of Barnet’s priority regeneration areas, and will provide 
approximately 7,500 new homes over the next 20 years.  It is a key part of the 
wider revitalisation of the A5 corridor, linking Brent Cross Cricklewood with 
developments at West Hendon, Colindale and Edgware and improvements to 
Cricklewood Town Centre, to create a series of high quality modern suburbs.    
 

6.3 The first phase of the Brent Cross Cricklewood project includes the 
redevelopment of the shopping centre, creation of major new infrastructure, 
improved links to the existing tube station, and delivery of around 2,461 new 
homes over the next 8-10 years.  This will create an estimated 3,000 
construction jobs, and 4,000 permanent jobs. The Thameslink Station is 
important to the success of the regeneration scheme in both place-making as 
well as viability terms. However, at present the scheme does not benefit from 
the delivery of the station until the later phases.  Bringing the station forward 
in the delivery programme will increase the attractiveness of Brent Cross 
Cricklewood area as a place to live, shop and work and thereby improve the 
viability of Brent Cross Cricklewood South and will also increase the pace of 
delivery of new homes.  
 

Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 
Property, Sustainability) 
 

6.4 There are two main elements of costs associated with any potential CPO 
process – the costs of preparing and promoting the CPO itself, and the 
compensation and consideration to be paid to those whose land and interests 
are acquired.   
 

6.5 In terms of the costs for resourcing the private treaty acquisitions, this will 
require input from internal and external resources covering various disciplines, 

197



including senior officers, legal input, surveying and valuation expertise. In 
respect of these acquisitions which fall in Northern part of the scheme, the 
Development Partners will meet all of these costs through the CPO Indemnity 
agreement. The indemnity is backed by security, so the Council is fully 
protected.  
 

6.6 With regards to the Southern part of the scheme, the Council will recover its 
acquisitions costs from the Brent Cross South Developer.   
 

6.7 However, at this point in time, the Council is only undertaking the preparatory 
work towards the CPO as well as the land referencing exercise, and these 
costs will be directly covered by the development partners.  The Council has 
now appointed ‘Terraquest’ who commenced work in mid-September.   The 
Council is in discussions with owners and occupiers within the south-side area 
as approved by the Committee on 16 January and 8 September 2014. 
 

Legal and Constitutional References 
 

6.8 The Council’s Constitution, Responsibility for Functions, Annex A states the 
terms of reference of Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee which 
includes: to develop and oversee a Regeneration Strategy; Develop strategies 
which maximise the financial opportunities of growth; oversee major 
regeneration schemes including those of key social housing estates; and all 
matters relating to land and buildings owned, rented or proposed to be 
acquired or disposed of by the Council. 
 
Risk Management 
 

6.9 The key risks for this stage of work can be summarised as follows: 
 

6.10 The CPO Indemnity Agreement will be signed prior to any resolution in 
respect of the CPO process. The council will not be incurring any costs 
associated with any potential CPO process until the agreement has been 
exchanged.   
 

6.11 Affected parties failing to be identified in any potential CPO – a specialist land 
referencing firm, TerraQuest, have been appointed to undertake the land 
referencing exercise to mitigate against this risk. Also, the discussions being 
held by the Council and the Development Partners with those affected when 
seeking to acquire their land and interests are helpful in checking the parties 
with interests in the area. 
 

6.12 There is a risk that owners and occupiers will seek sums in excess of those 
budgeted for in relation to the Council’s and Development Partners’ attempts 
at acquiring land and interests by agreement. This risk has been mitigated 
through valuations and appropriate budgets having been set, and in the case 
of the land at and around the shopping centre and that needed for the Critical 
Infrastructure, an uncapped indemnity has been provided to the Council by 
the Development Partners through the CPO Indemnity Agreement. 
 

198



6.13 Procurement risk. There is the risk that any procurement of a partner could be 
subject to challenge. To mitigate this risk, the Council has retained specialist 
legal advice on the scheme as a means of ensuring that all actions taken by 
the Council accord with the provisions of relevant national and international 
laws, regulations and directives.  
 

6.14 Failure to agree a business plan, which would prevent the creation of the joint 
venture and halt the procurement process.  The likelihood of this is considered 
low.  There is significant market interest in this opportunity.  An outline 
business case will have been prepared in line with the Council’s requirements 
as part of the Invitation to Negotiate process.  This will have been reported to 
the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee as part of the selection 
process. Consequently, the Preferred Partner will have declared their 
programme of work for the business plan and fixed many of the commercial 
aspects.  
 

6.15 Failure to agree commercially acceptable terms during the pre-contract 
business plan and finalising contract stages.  As indicated above, many of the 
key commercial aspects will have been fixed at the end of Stage 2 – the 
selection of the preferred development partner – which is scheduled for March 
2015.  Sections 6.2 of the Procurement and Delivery Strategy as approved by 
Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee on 9 July 2014 details the likely 
commercial fixes as part of the Invitation to Negotiate stage which seeks to 
mitigate this risk.  
 

6.16 Failure to agree on a viable first phase scheme, thus preventing delivery.  This 
is considered to be low risk given the due diligence undertaken to date to 
inform the delivery strategy.  Nonetheless the partner will be invited to 
describe a backstop for Phase 1 and agree a deadlock process for resolving 
any disagreements. 
 

6.17 Failure to secure finance for Thameslink Station.  All parties consider the train 
station essential for securing the delivery of Brent Cross South.  The delivery 
of and the full potential of the station will help drive land values, thereby 
enabling the regeneration of the Brent Cross Cricklewood area.   The Council 
together with public sector partners (Greater London Authority, Network Rail 
and Transport For London) are exploring strategies to bring forward the 
station.  This includes continuing design work in respect of the station itself, 
including a review of the station output, functional specification and technical 
due diligence work to provide a detailed cost estimate.  Funding options and 
strategy are being developed throughout 2014 and the results of this work will 
be reported to Committee in March next year.    
 

6.18 There is the risk that Hammerson and Standard Life (the Development 
Partners) do not progress the shopping centre scheme, or deliver part of the 
scheme but fail to deliver the critical infrastructure needed to facilitate the 
comprehensive regeneration of the area.  In this regard, there is a compelling 
commercial imperative for the Development Partners to improve the shopping 
centre.  Furthermore, the commercial agreements with the Development 
Partners require the delivery of critical infrastructure to enable the Brent Cross 

199



Cricklewood South development to come forward in advance of the shopping 
development. This will ensure that the regeneration of the southern land is 
progressed. 
 

Equalities and Diversity  
 

6.19 The 2010 Equality Act which outlines the provisions of the Public Sector 
Equality Duty (PSED), requires all Local Authorities to pay due regard to the 
need to:  

• Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and 
other conduct prohibited by the Equality Act 2010;  

• Advance equality of opportunity between people from different groups;  

• Foster good relations between people from different groups;  
 

6.20 This places a legal obligation on the Council to pay due regard to equalities in 

an appropriate and proportionate manner and to take account of how the 

Council’s decisions might impact on different groups across the borough 

including those identified in equality legislation as protected characteristics, 

namely: Age, disability, gender, gender reassignment, marriage, civil 

partnership, pregnancy and maternity, sexual orientation and religion or belief.   

 

6.21 Equality and diversity issues are a mandatory consideration in the decision-

making of the Council. This requires elected Members to satisfy themselves 

that equality considerations are integrated into day to day business and that 

all proposals put to committees have properly taken into consideration what 

impact, if any, there is on any protected group and what mitigating factors can 

be put in train. 

 

6.22 The Development Proposals support achievement of the council’s Strategic 

Equalities Objective which sets out our commitment that citizens will be 

treated equally, with understanding and respect; have equal opportunities with 

other citizens and receive quality services provided to Best Value principles. 

The development proposals will reflect the council’s aim that all residents are 

able to share in the benefits and take advantage of the opportunities of 

economic growth.in the borough. 

 
6.23 The council intends that the development proposals will have a positive 

impact on all groups identified in the 2010 Equality Act and other vulnerable 
groups in the borough because it is designed to share the benefits of growth 
with all Barbet citizens and promote inclusion and community engagement 
and participation 
 

6.24 The Council is committed to improving the quality of life for all and wider 
participation in the economic, educational, cultural, social and community life 
in the Borough.   
 

6.25 The development proposals for the Brent Cross Cricklewood scheme will 

200



make a significant contribution to the provision of additional, high quality 
affordable housing units in the Borough as well as providing employment 
through the creation of a new town centre with leisure, health and educational 
facilities.  The delivery of the Thameslink Station will enhance public transport 
provision and improve accessibility and provide greater choice for all.  It 
should be emphasised that a fully integrated and accessible town centre will 
be created as part of these proposals. 
 

6.26 An Equalities Impact analysis was carried out in respect of the Outline 
Planning Application granted in 2010, which took fully into account the 
demographic makeup of the regeneration area and addressed the impact on 
the protected characteristics.  This anticipated a significant positive impact 
from the regeneration proposals. This will be updated to assist the council in 
meeting the requirements of the Public Sector Equalities Duty. 
 

6.27 The projected increase in the borough’s population and changes in the 
demographic profile will be key factors in reflecting the aspirations and 
contributions of current residents. 
 

6.28 The Census data of 2011 (as updated by the GLA population projections 
2014) shows how Barnet is growing and changing.  There has been a 
significant increase in the diversity of growth in the borough population and 
growth in older and younger generations has been particularly rapid.  The 
over 65 population is forecast to grow by 10.4% in the next 5 years and 24% 
in the next decade.  
 

6.29 Barnet is a racially diverse and multi faith borough and proud of community 
cohesion. Over a third of Barnet’s citizens come from a rich diversity of black 
and minority ethnic groups.  Christianity remains the biggest religious group 
(41.2%) and Barnet is home to the UK’s largest Jewish community.  Other 
significant groups are no religion (16.0%), Muslim (10.3%) and Hindu 
communities (6.2%).  
 

6.30 Our reputation for excellent schools and green spaces makes us a popular 
destination for young families.  These demographic changes present 
challenges both in the demand for services and the way we commission, 
deliver and continuously improve our services.   
 

6.31 Barnet is a relatively affluent borough with significant pockets of deprivation 
and we have been successful in attracting regeneration funding to those areas 
in 7 major regeneration schemes.   Our growth and economic strategies will 
reflect the importance that everyone benefits from regeneration and growth, 
job creation, reinvigorating communities and improved quality of life.  This 
includes the protected characteristics outlined in the 2010 Equality Act as well 
as citizens and other groups in Barnet who can experience disadvantage, for 
example carers, lone parents and low income families, people with particular 
disabilities including mental health and learning difficulties, unemployed 
people.  
 

6.32 Brent Cross Cricklewood is an opportunity to extend Barnet’s success as a 

201



desirable and attractive suburb, by creating a new urban village for London 
which sets the tone for future evolution of the borough more widely and 
emphasises the need to create a place that makes residents, workers and 
visitors feel good – inviting people to meet and spend time in the spaces, and 
to walk or cycle.  
 

6.33 Importantly, the requirements highlight that Brent Cross Cricklewood will be 
place for people of all ages, with housing mix that reflects different life stages, 
a range of housing tenures, and public spaces which are accessible to all.  It 
emphasises that promoting health and wellbeing and reducing dependency 
will be ingrained in the place.    
 

 
Consultation and Engagement  
 

6.34 Extensive consultation has and will continue to be undertaken with key 
stakeholders and the community to ensure that the Brent Cross Cricklewood 
scheme reflects local needs including the needs of those with protected 
characteristics, as well as securing the future of North London’s only regional 
shopping centre.  
 

6.35 There has also been consultation and engagement with local stakeholders 
and the community during the planning process, and the CPO process 
(should a CPO be necessary) is designed to allow parties an opportunity to 
make representations and, if desired, attend a public inquiry and state their 
cases. 

 
7 BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
7.1 Cabinet, 26 April 2004 (Decision Item 8) – approved the adoption of the 

Cricklewood, Brent Cross and West Hendon Development Framework as 
Supplementary Planning Guidance. 
 

7.2 Cabinet, 29 March 2005 (Decision Item 6) – agreed to enter into a 
Collaboration Agreement with the development partnership (Cricklewood 
Regeneration Limited, Hammerson and Standard Life). 
[http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/Data/Cabinet/200503291900/Agenda/Docume
nt%204.pdf] 
 

7.3 Cabinet, 5 December 2005 (Decision Item 7) – approved, amongst other 
matters, that 1) the Eastern Lands Addendum be adopted as Supplementary 
Planning Guidance; and 2) the Eastern Lands Supplementary Guidance is 
incorporated into the Cricklewood, Brent Cross and West Hendon 
Development Framework. 
[http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/Data/Cabinet/200512051900/Agenda/Docume
nt%204.pdf] 

 
7.4 Cabinet Resources Committee, 25 March 2008 (Decision Item 16) – approved 

the outline terms so far agreed with the Brent Cross partners and Cricklewood 
Redevelopment Limited, including the proposals for the finalisation of the 

202



financial terms, be approved in principle subject to the outcome of Counsel’s 
advice on procurement issues, and that the finally agreed terms for the 
Development Framework Agreement and the Principal Development 
Agreements be reported to a future meeting of the Cabinet for approval. 
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/Data/Cabinet%20Resources%20Committee/20

0803251900/Agenda/Document%2015.pdf 

 

7.5 Cabinet, 21 October 2009 (Decision Item 7) – approved the terms and 
conditions of entering into the Development Framework Agreement and the 
Principal Development Agreements, subject to approval of the Brookfield 
Europe and Hammerson Guarantor companies by the Director of Finance and 
the Leader of the Council, and the approval of the appropriate land transaction 
and financial arrangements by the Secretary of State.  The approval was also 
subject to agreement of the plans, the historic costs and the form of the legal 
documents. 
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/CeListDocuments.aspx?CommitteeId=120&Me
etingId=306&DF=21%2f10%2f2009&Ver=2 
 

7.6 Cabinet Resources Committee, 19 October 2010 (Decision Item 5) – 
approved the changes to the terms and conditions of the Development 
Framework Agreement and the two Principal Development Agreements 
regarding Brent Cross Cricklewood (as considered and approved by Cabinet 
in October 2009) 
[http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/Data/Cabinet%20Resources%20Committee/2
01010191900/Agenda/Document%203.pdf 
 

7.7 Cabinet Resources Committee, 18 April 2013 (Decision Item 14) - noted that 
the Brent Cross Cricklewood Development Partners wished to modify the 
existing planning consent to allow re-phasing;  approved that the Director for 
Place begin preparations to enable the Council to procure a development 
partner to deliver the regeneration of the southern parts of Brent Cross 
Cricklewood Regeneration Area and confirmed the continued appointment of 
the external advisors for the Brent Cross Cricklewood Regeneration project, 
and the procurement of appropriate additional advice, and to delegate 
authority to the Director for Place to deal with necessary contractual issues or 
arrangements. 
[http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/mgConvert2PDF.aspx?ID=8369&ISATT=1#se
arch=%22Brent%20Cross%20%22] 
 

7.8 Cabinet Resources Committee, 16 January 2014 (Decision Item 6) - approved 
the changes to the terms of the Brent Cross Principal Development 
Agreement (as considered and approved by CRC in October 2010) and the 
terms for the Co-operation Agreement as set out in Section 9 of this report; 
authorised the Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader of the Council 
to agree the detail of the Brent Cross Principal Development Agreement and 
Co-operation Agreement; approved commencement of market testing through 
the issue of a Prior Information Notice to inform the delivery strategy for the 
Brent Cross Cricklewood South area; and approve that the Council enter into 
negotiations with landowners to acquire land required in advance of any 
Compulsory Purchase Order, subject to approval of the bid for capital funding 

203



by Cabinet on 25 February 2014; and approved that the Council continue the 
design and development work to develop the business case and funding 
strategy for delivery of the Thameslink Station, subject to approval of the 
capital funding bid by Cabinet on 25 February 2014; and delegate authority to 
the Strategic Director for Growth and Environment to procure the necessary 
advice and consultants to progress the Brent Cross project workstreams and 
deal with the related contractual issues and arrangements. 
[http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/mgConvert2PDF.aspx?ID=12505&ISATT=1#s
earch=%22Brent%20Cross%20%22] 

 
7.9 Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee dated 9 July 2014 approved the 

procurement of a partner for the Brent Cross Cricklewood South development 
through an OJEU Negotiated route in accordance with the Brent Cross South 
Procurement and Delivery Strategy, and approved the Council’s requirements 
for the Brent Cross Cricklewood South opportunity; and noted procurement 
timetable and that to meet this timetable an additional meeting would be 
needed to approve the selection of a preferred partner, which would be called 
in accordance with statutory requirements and the Council’s constitution. 
[http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=696&MId=7960&V
er=4] 
 

204



 

 

Summary 
This report seeks authority to extend the contracts of the external advisors for the Brent 
Cross Cricklewood Regeneration project, in respect of the Brent Cross North Development, 
Brent Cross South Development and the Thameslink Station.    
 
The report also seeks approval to delegate authority to the appropriate Chief Officers to 
deal with the necessary contractual issues or arrangements. 

 

Recommendations  
1. That the Committee approve extending the contracts of PEP, GVA Grimley, 
and AECOM as external advisors on the Brent Cross Cricklewood 
Regeneration Scheme.  

 
 
1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 
1.1 The report seeks authority to allow the extension of contracts to cover 

community engagement, strategic property and specialist advice on the Brent 
Cross Regeneration Scheme.   In April 2013, Cabinet Resources Committee 
approved the regularisation and continuation of Priority Estates Project (PEP), 

 

Asset Regeneration  & Growth 
Committee 

 

15 December 2014 
  

Title  
Brent Cross Cricklewood – Contract 
Extensions  

Report of Cath Shaw, Enterprise and Regeneration Lead Commisioner             

Wards Childs Hill, Golders Green and West Hendon  

Status 
Public  
 

Enclosures                         None  

Officer Contact Details  

Angela Latty, Senior Regeneration Officer, 
E:angela.latty@barnet.gov.uk, T: 0208 359 7188 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 12

205



GVA Grimley and AECOM’s contracts. However, further approval is now 
sought to extend the PEP, GVA Grimley and AECOM contracts.   

 
2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
GVA Grimley 

2.1 GVA Grimley were appointed in November 2012 to explore potential funding 
strategies to bring forward the critical infrastructure within the regeneration 
site boundary. This included exploring funding strategies for the Thameslink 
Station.   
 

2.2 At present, Council Officers are developing a Business Case for the 
Thameslink Station and GVA Grimley are providing specialist advice on this 
area.  In order to provide continuity of service, Council Officers will need to 
extend this contract for one year.  
 

AECOM 

2.3 AECOM were appointed in May 2013, and they are providing specialist advice 
on planning, environmental and transport matters relating to the Brent Cross 
Scheme.   
 

2.4 AECOM is currently providing advice on the Reserved Matters Application for 
Phase 1A North, which is due to be submitted by the Development partners 
later this year.   However, council officers will need to extend this contract by 
six months, to ensure continuity of advice on planning matters.    
 
Priority Estates Project (PEP) 

2.5 Priority Estates Project (PEP) were appointed in June 2011, and they are 
providing a Resident Independent Advisors Service (RIA) on the Whitefield 
Estate.  This service provides impartial independent advice and support to all 
residents including council tenants, leaseholders and freeholders on the 
Whitefield Estate. Officers are seeking authority to extend this contract by six 
years, to ensure that residents in Phase 1B South (Nordon Point, Clare Point, 
Whychote Point) receive continued support and advice.  
 

2.6 At present, the Council is undertaking a procurement process to select its 
preferred developer to bring forward Phase 1B South, and this process will 
conclude in spring 2015.  Construction work is not likely to start before 2017, 
therefore, as a result, Council officers will need to extend PEP’s contract for 
six years. This will ensure continuity of this service.      
 
 

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 

206



3.1 If the Council decides not to approve extending these contracts, then officers 
will be faced with undertaking a new procurement process for these services. 
This approach will delay the implementation the relocation strategy for 
residents on the Whitefield Estate.  Officers are also working to complete the 
Business Case for the Thameslink Station against a tight timescale, and the 
Council needs continued access to this specialist advice.   
 

3.2 Therefore, it is not recommended to undertake a new procurement process 
for these areas of work , as this approach will lead to a delay in delivering 
several key elements of the programme.      
 
 

4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

4.1 Once the decision has been approved officers will prepare the relevant 
documentation in consultation with HB Public Law to enable the contracts to 
be extended.  
 

5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 

5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
5.1.1 The regeneration of Brent Cross Cricklewood supports the Corporate Plan 

2013-2016 priority ‘To maintain the right environment for a strong diverse local 
economy’, and the strategic objective under this priority to sustain Barnet by 
‘promoting growth, development and success across the borough’.  
 

5.1.2 The Growth Strategy for Barnet recognised that regeneration and growth are 
vital for ensuring the future prosperity of the Borough and maintaining Barnet 
as a successful London suburb.  The scheme to transform Brent Cross 
Cricklewood will play a major role in delivering this prosperity, doubling the 
size of the shopping centre and linking seamlessly to a new town centre for 
Barnet and North London across the North Circular Road.  Brent Cross 
Cricklewood is one of Barnet’s priority regeneration areas, and will provide 
approximately 7,500 new homes over the next 20 years.  It is a key part of the 
wider revitalisation of the A5 corridor, linking Brent Cross Cricklewood with 
developments at West Hendon, Colindale and Edgware and improvements to 
Cricklewood Town Centre, to create a series of high quality modern suburbs.    
 

5.1.3 The first phase of the Brent Cross Cricklewood project includes the 
redevelopment of the shopping centre, creation of major new infrastructure, 
improved links to the existing tube station, and delivery of around 2,461 new 
homes over the next 8-10 years.  This will create an estimated 3,000 
construction jobs, and 4,000 permanent jobs. The Thameslink Station is 
important to the success of the regeneration scheme in both place-making as 
well as viability terms. However, at present the scheme does not benefit from 
the delivery of the station until the later phases.  Bringing the station forward 
in the delivery programme will increase the attractiveness of Brent Cross 
Cricklewood area as a place to live, shop and work and thereby improve the 
viability of Brent Cross Cricklewood South and will also increase the pace of 
delivery of new homes.  
 

207



 
5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 

Property, Sustainability) 
 
Finance 

5.2.1 The Council has the following consultant team in place to advise the Council 
on the Brent Cross Cricklewood Scheme. Asset Regeneration and Growth 
Committee is asked to re-confirm the continued appointment of the external 
advisors for this project and that the Strategic Director for Growth and 
Environment or the appropriate Chief Officers should deal with any necessary 
contractual issues or arrangements in consultation with HB Public Law. 
 
 

Contract Name Area of Expertise 
Date 
Appointed  

 

Expenditure 

to November 

2014 

£000s 

GVA Grimley  

Strategic Property 
Advice / Specialist 
Support – 
Thameslink Station 

Nov 2012 
(DPR 1830) 

£424 

AECOM  

Planning & 
Environmental 
Advice   
 

May 2013 
(DPR) 
Approved 
appointment  
  

£109 

Priority Estates 

Project  (PEP) 

Resident 

Independent 

Advisor (RIA) for 

the Whitefield 

Estate 

May 2011 

(DPR 1317) 

£80 

 
 

5.2.2 These contracts were subject to a competitive process and continue to 
represent the best available option for the Council. 
 

5.2.3 Under the terms of the Collaboration Agreement signed by the Council and 
the Development Partners, Hammerson/Cricklewood Regeneration Limited 
and Standard Life are obliged to pay the Council’s consultants costs in 
connection with this project. The Principal Development Agreement is due to 
be exchanged within a matter of weeks, and provision has also been made for 
the Council to recover its costs.  
 

5.2.4 The costs associated with the further work required to progress the project in 
2014/15 are estimated to be approximately £1.3m and will be recovered from 
the Development Partners. The Development Partners have confirmed that 
these costs are included in their approved budget. If the costs through 

208



monthly cost monitoring are likely to exceed this provision, then officers will 
renegotiate additional costs with the Development Partners.  

 
Procurement  

5.2.5 Contract Procedure Rules, paragraph 14.2 confirms the value referred to in 
Appendix 1 Table A headed ‘Variation or Extension Acceptance’ is the total 
value of the original contract value plus the addition of the value of any 
extensions and/or variations i.e. the total value of the contract. Contract 
Procedure Rules, Section 17 (Table A) sets out acceptance thresholds for 
contract extensions and variations. As the value of GVA Grimley’s contract 
exceeds £172,514 and PEP’s contract value is likely to exceed this amount in 
3 year’s’ time, and both contracts are is within the budget for the scheme, 
approval is sought from the Asset Regeneration and Growth Committee, and 
this is included in the recommendation on this report. 
 

5.2.6 In respect of PEP, this contract will be extended for six years and the estimate 
fee for the first three years is £90,000, with further fee estimates to be agreed 
in due course.    PEP’s original contract value was £67,500.00. All costs are 
recovered from the Development Partners.  
 

5.2.7 With regards to GVA Grimley, the report seeks authority to allow this contract 
to continue for one year with a possible extension (if required).  Their fees are 
estimated to be in the region of £60,000 for this period.  
 

5.2.8 In relation to AECOM, the Contract Procedure Rules, Section 14.3 state that:  
 

Contracts may only be extended or varied if all of the following conditions 
have been met: 

• the initial contract was based on a Contract Procedure Rules compliant 
competitive tender or quotation process; 

• the value of the extension or variation added to the value of the original 
contract does not exceed the original Authorisation threshold as 
defined in Appendix 1, Table A; 

• the extension or variation has an approved budget allocation; 

• the extension or variation is in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of the existing contract; 

• if the initial contract was subject to EU tender procedure, that the 
extension option was declared within the OJEU notice and the original 
acceptance (Delegated Powers Report/relevant Committee Report); 
and the contract has not been extended before. 

 
5.2.9 All of the conditions are met for the proposed continuation these contracts. 

The reports also seek authority to extend AECOM’s contract for six months 
and their fees are estimated to be in the region of £50,000 for this period.  

 
 

5.3 Legal and Constitutional References 
 

5.3.1 The original procurement exercise for the appointment of the Consultants 
mentioned in paragraph 5.2 of this report was carried out in accordance with 

209



the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules and European Union public 
procurement rules. 
 

5.3.2 HB Public Law will be instructed to draft and/or approve the contract 
extensions and/or variations. 

 

5.3.3 Council Constitution, Responsibility for Functions, Annex A sets out the terms 
of reference of the Assets, Regeneration, and Growth Committee including 
‘Authorise procurement activity within the remit of the committee and any 
acceptance of variations or extensions if within budget in accordance with the 
responsibilities and thresholds set out in the contract Procedure Rules’ 

 
 

5.4 Risk Management 
 

5.4.1 It is not considered that the issues involved are likely to raise significant levels 
of public concern or give rise to policy considerations as this decision relates 
to the re-confirmation of existing contracts, within the contractual terms, 
following a robust procurement process. 
 

5.4.2 However If these contacts are not extended, there is a risk that Council will be 
without specialist advice and support on particular elements of the 
programme.  This risk is being managed through extension of these contracts.  
 

5.4.3 The specific risks that would follow from not continuing with these 
appointments is that the delivery of the Brent Cross scheme would be delayed 
or severely compromised, giving rise to both financial and reputational 
damage to the Council, and that consistent advice to residents on the 
proposed Compulsory Purchase process, and expert advice on the 
commercial and planning documents would be disrupted, with a risk that 
commercial damage could occur and open the Council up to the risk of both 
financial and contractual claims. 
 

5.5 Equalities and Diversity  
 

5.5.1 It is not envisaged that the re-confirmation of these contracts will result in a 
detrimental effect on any resident(s) with ‘protected characteristics’, over and 
above the effect on those without ‘protected characteristics’, due to the 
universal nature of the service being provided. The council understands that it 
has an obligation to meet its public sector equalities duty under the Equality 
Act 2010 including where public functions are delivered on its behalf by other 
organisations.  The council will do everything necessary to ensure that there is 
continuing compliance with this duty in relation to the external advisors for the 
Brent Cross Cricklewood Regeneration project and for the purposes of this 
paper, in respect of the Brent Cross North Development, Brent Cross South 
Development and the Thameslink Station.    

 
5.6 Consultation and Engagement 
 
5.6.1 It is not considered that this issue will require consultation with service users, 

as these decisions relates to the extension of existing contracts, within the 

210



contractual terms, following a robust procurement process. 
 

 
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

6.1 Cabinet, 29 March 2005 (Decision Item 6) – agreed to enter into a 
Collaboration Agreement with the development partnership (Cricklewood 
Regeneration Limited, Hammerson and Standard Life). 
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/Data/Cabinet/200503291900/Agenda/Docume
nt%204.pdf 

6.2 Cabinet, 5 December 2005 (Decision Item 7) – approved, amongst other 
matters, that 1) the Eastern Lands Addendum be adopted as Supplementary 
Planning Guidance; and 2) the Eastern Lands Supplementary Guidance is 
incorporated into the Cricklewood, Brent Cross and West Hendon 
Development Framework.  

http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/Data/Cabinet/200512051900/Agenda/Docume
nt%204.pdf 

 

6.3 Delegated Powers Report No 1830, November 2012, Leader and Cabinet 
Member for Regeneration approved appointment GVA Grimley, provide 
strategic property and financial advice in relation to the Brent Cross 
Cricklewood project. 

6.4 Cabinet Resources Committee, 18 April 2013 (Decision Item 14) - noted that 
the Brent Cross Cricklewood Development Partners wished to modify the 
existing planning consent to allow re-phasing;  approved that the Director for 
Place begin preparations to enable the Council to procure a development 
partner to deliver the regeneration of the southern parts of Brent Cross 
Cricklewood Regeneration Area and confirmed the continued appointment of 
the external advisors for the Brent Cross Cricklewood Regeneration project, 
and the procurement of appropriate additional advice, and to delegate 
authority to the Director for Place to deal with necessary contractual issues or 
arrangements. 
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/mgConvert2PDF.aspx?ID=8369&ISATT=1#sea
rch=%22Brent%20Cross%20%22 

6.5 Delegated Powers Report, 17 May 2013, approved the appointment of 
AECOM to provide planning, environmental and transport expertise in relation 
to the re-phasing of the Cricklewood Brent Cross (CBX) Regeneration 
Scheme 

6.6 Cabinet Resources Committee, 16 January 2014 (Decision Item 6) - approved 
the changes to the terms of the Brent Cross Principal Development 
Agreement (as considered and approved by CRC in October 2010) and the 
terms for the Co-operation Agreement as set out in Section 9 of this report; 
authorised the Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader of the Council 
to agree the detail of the Brent Cross Principal Development Agreement and 
Co-operation Agreement; approved commencement of market testing through 
the issue of a Prior Information Notice to inform the delivery strategy for the 

211



Brent Cross Cricklewood South area; and approve that the Council enter into 
negotiations with landowners to acquire land required in advance of any 
Compulsory Purchase Order, subject to approval of the bid for capital funding 
by Cabinet on 25 February 2014; and approved that the Council continue the 
design and development work to develop the business case and funding 
strategy for delivery of the Thameslink Station, subject to approval of the 
capital funding bid by Cabinet on 25 February 2014; and delegate authority to 
the Strategic Director for Growth and Environment to procure the necessary 
advice and consultants to progress the Brent Cross project workstreams and 
deal with the related contractual issues and arrangements. 
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/mgConvert2PDF.aspx?ID=12505&ISATT=1#se
arch=%22Brent%20Cross%20%22 

 

6.9 Assets, Regeneration & Growth Committee, 8 September 2014 (Decision Item 
10) – approved the appropriate Chief Officers be authorised to negotiate and 
enter into agreements to acquire by private treaty the land and interests and;  
to approve and enter into agreements and undertakings with the owners 
and/or occupiers of the land in the said areas so as to facilitate its acquisition. 

http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s17302/Brent%20Cross%20Crickle
wood%20-%20Report.pdf 

 

212



 

 

Summary 

This report seeks necessary authorisations to progress the project including a resolution in 
principle to the exercise of compulsory purchase powers, Ground 10A possession 
proceedings and related consents 

 

Recommendations  
That the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee: 

1. resolve in principle the exercise of compulsory purchase powers (by the 

making of up to three separate compulsory purchase orders) to secure the 

delivery of Stage B of the Grahame Park Regeneration Scheme; 

2. note that further report(s) will be brought to the Committee at later stages to 

seek authority to secure the making, confirmation and implementation of up to 

three separate Compulsory Purchase Orders (CPOs) for the acquisition of 

third party proprietary interests within Stage B; 

3. authorise the appropriate Chief Officer to negotiate and complete a 

Compulsory Purchase Order Indemnity Agreement to ensure that Choices for 

Grahame Park (CfGP) and Genesis Housing Association GHA) indemnify the 

 

Assets,Regeneration and Growth 
Committee 
 

15th December 2014 
  

Title  

Grahame Park Regeneration, Compulsory 
Purchase Order, Ground 10A and Related 
Consents 

Report of 
Lead Commissioner, Enterprise & Regeneration 
Director of Place, Re 

Wards Colindale 

Status Public  

Enclosures                         
Annex 1 – Plan showing the extent of Stage B  
Annex 2 – Plan showing the extent of Stage A and the 
Concourse Phase Prioritised Decant Area 

Officer Contact Details  
Martin Smith 
Martin.smith@Barnet.gov.uk 
02083597419 

AGENDA ITEM 13

213



Council for the full financial costs incurred in preparing, making and 

implementing the CPO(s). 

4. authorise the commencement of all preparatory work required for the making 

of the CPO(s), including (but not limited to): 

(a) appointing land referencers to review all relevant proprietary interests with 

a view to producing a draft schedule and plan for the CPO(s); 

(b) the service of requests for information notices under section 16 of the 

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 on those who may 

be affected by the proposed CPO(s); 

5. That,  the appropriate Chief Officer(s) be authorised to:  
(1) advertise the Council’s intention to appropriate to a planning purpose any 
open space lands required to deliver Stage B of the Scheme pursuant to 
Section 122 of the Local Government Act 1972. In the event that 
representations are submitted in respect of the notice to appropriate open 
space these will be referred to the Assets, Regeneration and Growth 
Committee for consideration and determination; and  
(2) appropriate to planning purposes the housing and highways land required 
to deliver Stage B prior to disposal of such lands; 

6. authorise the appropriate Chief Officer(s) to submit an application to the 
Secretary of State for his consent to the disposal and redevelopment of land 
within Stage B  of the Grahame Park Regeneration Scheme (for the purposes 
of Ground 10A) pursuant to Part V of Schedule 2 of the Housing Act 1985 ;  

7. delegate the service of Initial and Final Demolition Notices to suspend and/or 
terminate the exercise of the Right to Buy on properties due for demolition (as 
required for the delivery of the regeneration project), within Stage B, pursuant 
to sections 138A and 138B and Schedules 5 and 5A of the Housing Act 1985 
(as amended) to the appropriate Chief Officer(s) 

8. authorise the appropriate Chief Officer to obtain all relevant consents 
necessary to secure the delivery of the regeneration of Stage B 

 
 

 
 
1. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
1.1 In January 2001 the Council embarked upon a scheme for the regeneration of 

the Grahame Park Estate (“the Estate”) which aimed to transform it into a 
thriving, mixed tenure community with improved transport links and enhanced 
community facilities. On 30th January 2007 the Council entered into a 
Principal Development Agreement (PDA) with Choices For Grahame Park 
(CFGP) a special delivery vehicle created by Genesis Housing Association 
(GHA).  

 

1.2 On 8 September 2014, officers presented a report to members of this 
Committee providing an update on the progress made to date on the 
Grahame Park Regeneration Scheme in addition to setting out a proposal for 
Stage B of the Scheme. As previously reported, the Scheme is divided into 
two distinct stages; A and B. Stage A is currently underway and is divided into 
nine phases. In total, Stage A will deliver 677 homes of which, 325 (48%) will 

214



be residential units for sale on the open market or rent and 352 (52%) will be 
affordable housing units. 

 
1.3 A review of Stage B, undertaken by RegenFirst on behalf of the Council and 

completed August 2013, identified a significant viability gap and the need for 

public sector investment. In the March 2014 budget the government 

announced the establishment of the Estate Regeneration Fund (ERF), a £150 

million fund to “kick-start” and accelerate the regeneration of large estates, 

through fully recoverable loans, helping to boost housing supply. GHA were 

invited to submit an expression of interest and on 12 September 2014, 

submitted a major bid relating to the Grahame Park Regeneration Scheme. If 

successful the funding will: 

 

o enable GHA to obtain a low-cost loan, over a loan period of 20 

years secured initially against GHA housing stock elsewhere 

o enable the demolition of the concourse to occur at an earlier date 

(e.g. estimated start on site 2017/18)  

o need to be expended within approximately four years of award. 

 

Accelerating demolition of the Concourse 

  

1.4 In the event that the GHA bid is successful it is proposed that the funding will 

be directed towards progressing Stage B of the Scheme and in particular 

accelerating the demolition of the Concourse.   It is envisaged that those 

secure tenants falling within Plots 10, 11 and 12 of the Concourse will be the 

first to be decanted into the new homes being built on Plots 5 and 6.   55 

secure tenants are currently being decanted into Plot 3 (plot numbers are 

shown on plans attached at Annex 1 and 2) 

 

2        PROGRESSING STAGE B  
 
Compulsory Purchase Powers 
 

2.1 As already stated, if successful GHA will have approximately four years within 
which to expend any funding. In order to advance the demolition of the 
Concourse, CFGP will require vacant possession of the land. Within the 
Concourse there are approximately 630 residential units and 31 commercial 
units of which 25 units are third party proprietary interests (i.e. interests held 
by parties other than the Council).  In the first instance, the Council and CFGP 
will seek to acquire all third party proprietary interests through private treaty 
negotiations however, in order to secure the delivery of the Scheme officers 
are seeking a resolution in principle for the Council to exercise compulsory 
purchase powers where necessary. The power to compulsorily acquire third 
party proprietary interests would only be exercised as a last resort in the event 
that those interests cannot be obtained by private treaty.   

 
 Resolution in principle to exercise compulsory purchase powers 

215



 
2.2 Officers are currently working alongside CFGP towards reviewing and revising 

the masterplan for Stage B of the Scheme. Given the strict timeframe within 
which the developer will have to expend any monies allocated from the ERF 
and the fact that the CPO process can take 12 months (or longer in some 
cases) to complete, the Council will need to commence some background 
work in the event that it exercises its powers to compulsorily acquire third 
party proprietary interests. At this stage, officers are seeking a resolution in 
principle to make up to three separate Compulsory Purchase Orders (CPOs) 
to secure the delivery of Stage B of the Scheme. Given that the proposals for 
Stage B are work in progress, the large number of interests to be acquired 
and the overall proposed delivery timescale, it is practical to consider that a 
number of CPOs may be required to deliver Stage B as a whole.    

2.3 It should be noted that officers will seek a specific resolution for the making of 
each CPO and it is likely that the first such resolution will be sought in Spring 
2015.   It is not possible to provide members of this Committee with all the 
relevant information relating to the CPOs as officers are still working towards 
identifying the land interests required to deliver Stage B. As and when it is 
necessary to obtain a resolution for the making of a CPO officers will provide 
members with an update on the scheme proposals which will underpin the 
order. 

 
2.4 Consultants will be appointed to assist the Council with the preparation, 

making and progression of any CPO. Officers are seeking authority to appoint 
land referencers to identify third party proprietary interests, and serve 
appropriate notices.  

 
 
 CPO Indemnity Agreement 
 
2.5 The Council will recover the costs incurred in preparing, promoting and 

implementing the CPO(s) (including the recovery of professional fees), by 
entering into an indemnity agreement with CFGP and GHA. The Committee is 
therefore requested to authorise the appropriate Chief Officer(s) to negotiate 
and complete the CPO Indemnity Agreement on behalf of the Council.  

 
 Ground 10A  
 
2.6 A successful land assembly exercise is required to deliver Stage B of the 

Scheme which requires the relocation of existing tenants to suitable 
alternative premises. In order to relocate the existing secure tenants within 
Stage B officers will need to consult with residents prior to seeking Secretary 
of State Ground 10A approval under the Schedule 2 of the Housing Act 1985. 
Such consent from the Secretary of State will enable the Council to serve 
notices under the Housing Act 1985 to gain vacant possession of those 
homes occupied by secure tenants.  

 
2.7 Officers are therefore seeking authority to be delegated to the appropriate 

Chief Officer(s) to undertake the Ground 10A process in respect of Stage B.    
 
  

216



3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 

3.1 In order to deliver the regeneration of Stage B, CfGP will require vacant 
possession of the land. Although the Council and its development partner will 
seek to acquire relevant interests within Stage B through private treaty 
negotiation, in order to secure the delivery of Stage B within the programmed 
timescales the use of CPO powers as a last resort will mitigate against any 
potential risk that it may not be possible to acquire all interests by agreement. 

 
 

4. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 
4.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
 
4.1.1 The regeneration of the Grahame Park estate supports the Corporate Plan  

priority of ‘To maintain the right environment for a strong diverse local 

economy’ and the strategic objective under this priority to sustain Barnet by 

‘promoting growth, development and success across the borough’.  

4.1.2 Furthermore the regeneration scheme complies with strategic objectives in 

the Council’s Housing Strategy 2010-2025 which include: 

1. Increasing housing supply, including family sized homes, to improve the 
range of housing choices and opportunities available to residents; and 

2. Promoting mixed communities and maximising opportunities available for 
those wishing to own their home. 

 
4.1.3 The accelerated programme will also support Barnet’s ‘Health and Well-being 

Strategy 2012-2015’ through its core value of ‘wellbeing in the community’ 
which is creating circumstances that better enable people to be healthier and 
have greater life opportunities. Central to the programme will be the re-
provision of a new health centre to serve the needs of Grahame Park 
residents and beyond.  
 

 
4.2      Legal and Constitutional References 

 
4.2.1 The Council has the power through various enactments to make a 

Compulsory Order and to apply to the Secretary of State for confirmation of 
the order 
 

4.2.2 The power commonly used by local authorities is Section 226(1) (a) of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended). The section provides 
that a local authority shall, on being authorised to do so by the Secretary of 
State, have power to acquire compulsorily any land in their area if they are 
satisfied that the acquisition will facilitate the carrying out of development, 
redevelopment or improvement on or in relation to the land.  However the 
power must not be exercised unless the authority thinks that the development 

217



is likely to contribute to the achievement of the economic, social and 
environmental well-being of the area.  
 

4.2.3 The regeneration of the Grahame Park Estate is a key priority for the Council 
as identified in the Core Strategy 2012 and will improve the quality of housing 
stock. Reports seeking authority to make the CPO(s) will provide more 
information on the statutory power(s) to be used and how the regeneration 
proposals meet any relevant statutory tests. Subsequent reports will also 
demonstrate that the Council has had regard to guidance set out in Circular 
06/2004 “Compulsory Purchase and the Critchel Down Rules”. 
 
Prior to making the CPO(s) consideration will be given to the provisions of the 
Human Rights Act 1998 including Article 8 (respect for private and family life 
and home) and Article 1 of the First Protocol (right to peaceful enjoyment of 
possessions). Any decision to make a compulsory purchase order  must strike 
a fair balance between the public interest in the regeneration of the land and 
interference with private rights.  
 

4.2.4 The Council has the power (subject to Secretary of State consent) to dispose 
of land held for housing purposes under Section 32 of the Housing Act 1985. 
Under Section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972 where the Council 
intends to dispose of land at less than best consideration it will require 
Secretary of State consent. 
 

4.2.5 The Council requires consent from the Secretary of State under Section 25 of 
the Local Government Act 1988.  This consent from the Secretary of State is 
required where a local authority is transferring land at nil value for the purpose 
of amongst other things the acquisition and construction of accommodation 
which is intended to be privately let as housing accommodation.  The 
Principal Development Agreement includes a condition precedent which 
stipulates that this consent must be obtained by the Council 

 
4.2.6 Council Constitution, Responsibility for Functions, Annex A – sets out the 

terms of reference of the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee which 
is to  

• “Oversee major regeneration schemes – including those of key housing 
estates”; and 

• “Asset Management – all matters relating to land and buildings owned, rented 
or proposed to be acquired or disposed of by the Council.”. 

 
4.2.7 Constitution - Management of Asset, Property and Land Rules provide the 

governance structure within which the Council may acquire, lease, act as 
landlord, licence, develop appropriate change of use of, or dispose of assets 
within its portfolio. 

  
 
4.2.8 It is proposed that, in order to overcome any potential claims of “adverse user” 

rights arising from the development, Chief Officers be authorised to 
appropriate such land to planning purposes pursuant to Section 122 of the 
Local Government Act 1972, (such appropriations will only take place just 
prior to any transfer of the land to CfGP).  Following the appropriation (and 

218



works carried out on the land in accordance with the planning permission) any 
rights of adverse user will become a compensatable claim.  

  
4.2.9 Notice of any intention to appropriate any public open space will be published 

in accordance with the relevant statutory provisions. Where any 
representations are received they will be reported to the Committee for further 
consideration and the decision as to whether to confirm the appropriation will 
be made by committee members. In the event that the Council does not 
receive any representations the Committee is requested to authorise the 
appropriate Chief Officer(s) to confirm the appropriation.   

 
  

 
4.3    Risk Management 

 
4.3.1 A CPO is essential to enable satisfactory completion of the project.  Whilst it is 

hoped that all outstanding property interests can be acquired by negotiation, 
the project cannot proceed with the risk that negotiations may not prove 
successful in all cases and the scheme be brought to halt.   To avoid this 
potential risk to the financial viability of the scheme and its satisfactory 
delivery officers are seeking a resolution in principle to the making of up to 
three CPO(s) in order to work towards progressing the redevelopment of 
Stage B of the Scheme.   
 

4.3.2 There is a small risk that the Secretary of State consents could be refused.  
Lands will not be disposed of until all necessary consents are in place.  If 
necessary the scheme would be revised and new consents would be sought. 
 

4.3.3 A continuing risk to the viability of the project is the possibility that more 
secure tenants will exercise the Right to Buy.  This leads to increased 
acquisitions costs.  The service of initial and final demolition notices pursuant 
to the Housing Act 1985 (as amended), will mitigate against this risk by 
suspending the exercise of right to buy transactions within Stage B of the 
Scheme.  
 

4.4 Equalities and Diversity  
 

4.4.1 Pursuant to the Equality Act 2010 (“the Act”), the Council has a legislative 
duty to have ‘due regard’ to eliminating unlawful discrimination, harassment, 
victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by or under the Act; 
advancing equality of opportunity between those with a protected 
characteristic and those without; and promoting good relations between those 
with protected characteristics and those without.  The Authority has an agreed 
policy on how it will comply with its obligations. The ‘protected characteristics’ 
are gender, age, race, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and 
maternity, religion or belief and sexual orientation.  In accordance with this act 
the Council will be undertaking an Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) as part 
of the Supplementary Planning Document. 

 
4.4.2 The Council is committed to improving the quality of life and wider 

219



participation for all the economic, educational, cultural, and social and 
community life within the borough.  This is achieved by pursuing successful 
regeneration of the Borough’s regeneration areas.  This benefits all sections 
of society by directly addressing the shortage of housing in the Borough 
across all tenures. 
 

5        Consultation and Engagement 
  
5.1.1  Effective resident engagement will be central to the success of the accelerated  

programme. There is a pressing requirement to engage residents and provide 
certainty following a period of relative inactivity across the estate as a whole. 
However this requirement needs to be balanced against a degree of perceived 
consultation fatigue and scepticism. 

 
5.1.2 In addition the various work-streams required to deliver the regeneration 

(Supplementary Planning Document, CPO, re-housing, Ground 10A etc) all 
have a requirement for consultation (and/or enable representations to be 
made). GHA, in full consultation with LBB, will develop a Resident 
Engagement Strategy to address all these needs. 

 
5.1.3 LBB and GHA already engage / consult with residents through the use of 

newsletters and resident surgeries, to provide information relating to the 
redevelopment of the estate. The Council has recently strengthened its 
resources through the appointment of Priority Estates Project (PEP) as the 
Independent Resident Advisors for the current phase of redevelopment. PEP 
replace SOLON, the previous advisors. 
 

6    BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
6.1    8th September 2014 ARG Committee Paper – link to Committee Paper:-          

http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?Id=5390 
 
 
 

220



221



222

This page is intentionally left blank



223



224

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Summary 
On 4th November 2013 the Council’s Cabinet Resources Committee 4 November 2013, 
Decision Item 6 resolved: 
 
1. That authority be given for the disposal of up to one acre of the southern end of the 

Pavilion Way site shown on drawing number 23839 to Taylor Wimpey UK Limited 
(“Taylor Wimpey”) for development as housing subject to receipt of a satisfactory 
planning permission. 

 
2. That following agreement of the consideration to be received from Taylor Wimpey the 

proposal is referred to a future meeting of the Council’s Cabinet Resources Committee. 
 
3. That the Council enters into an agreement for lease with the Department for Education 

(DfE) and The Marco Polo Academy for funding by the DfE for the development of the 
remainder of the site as a primary academy school with approximately 360 pupils 
together with a community sports facility. The agreement for lease will provide for the 
Council to grant a 125 year Academy Lease of the completed school and sports facility 

 

Assets, Regeneration and Growth 
Committee 

 

15
th
 December 2014 

  

Title 
Pavilion Way HA8 proposed change of 
Academy School Sponsor 

Report of 

 
Val White Lead Commissioner, Schools Skills and Learning 
Coordinator 
 
Chris Smith, Head of Estates Management 

 

Wards Burnt Oak 

Status Public  

Enclosures None 

Officer Contact Details 
George Church, Principal Valuer, 
george.church@barnet.gov.uk 

AGENDA ITEM 14a

225



to The Marco Polo Academy based on the DfE model form of lease in accordance with 
the Academies Act 2010. The Academy Lease will provide for the Academy to maintain 
and run the sports facility for local people. 

 
Cabinet Resources Committee on the 16th December 2013 confirmed this decision 
following a referral of the decision by the Business Management Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee. 
 
The Department for Education has advised that the proposed new free school at Pavilion 
Way site will no longer be sponsored by the Marco Polo Academy Trust. The new proposer 
approved by the Department for Education to sponsor the school is Belle Vue Place 
Education Trust. The Belle Vue Place Education Trust will operate a two form entry free 
school offering school places to 60 children in the area each year starting in September 
2015. All other aspects in relation to the disposal of the site remain the same. 
 
The purpose of this report is to approve the replacement of the education sponsor, Marco 
Polo Academy Trust by the new education sponsor, Belle Vue Place Education Trust, in 
relation to the decision confirmed by the Cabinet Resources Committee on 16th December 
2013 for the development of the Pavilion Way site and to propose that in future, in order to 
reduce the administrative burden on the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee, that 
any further decisions related to education sponsorship of the school are delegated to the 
Director for Children’s Services. 

 

Recommendations  
That the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee: 
 

1. Note the decision of the Department for Education to approve the Belle Vue 

Place Education Trust to be the sponsor for the new free school to be 

provided as part of the development at Pavilion Way. 

2. Approve the replacement of the education sponsor, Marco Polo Academy 

Trust by the new education sponsor, Belle Vue Place Education Trust, in 

relation to the decision confirmed by the Cabinet Resources Committee on 

16th December 2013 for the development of the Pavilion Way site. 

3. Delegate any further decisions in relation to the education sponsorship of the 

school to the Director for Children’s Services. 

 
1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED 

 
1.1. On 4th November 2013 the Council’s Cabinet Resources Committee, 

Decision Item 6, resolved: 
 

1.1.1. That authority be given for the disposal of up to one acre of the 
southern end of the Pavilion Way site, shown on drawing number 23839, 
to Taylor Wimpey UK Limited (“Taylor Wimpey”) for development as 
housing, subject to receipt of a planning permission. 

 

226



1.1.2. That, following agreement of the consideration to be received from 
Taylor Wimpey, the proposal is referred to a future meeting of the 
Council’s Cabinet Resources Committee. 

 
1.1.3. That the Council should enter into an agreement for lease with the 

Department for Education (DfE) and The Marco Polo Academy, for 
funding by the DfE for the development of the remainder of the site as a 
primary academy school with approximately 360 pupils together with a 
community sports facility. The agreement for lease provided for the 
Council to grant a 125 year Academy Lease of the completed school and 
sports facility to The Marco Polo Academy, based on the DfE model form 
of lease in accordance with the Academies Act 2010. The Academy 
Lease provided for the Academy to maintain and run the sports facility for 
local people. 

 
1.2. Cabinet Resources Committee on the 16th December 2013 confirmed this 

decision following a referral of the decision by the Business Management 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee. 

 
1.3. In relation to point 1.1.3 of the Council decision, the Department for 

Education has since advised that the proposed new free school at Pavilion 
Way site will no longer be sponsored by the Marco Polo Academy Trust. The 
new proposer approved by the Department for Education to sponsor the 
school is Belle Vue Place Education Trust. 

 
1.4. The Belle Vue Place Education Trust currently operates a number of free 

schools in London with more set to open in September 2015. The proposal at 
Pavilion Way will see the Trust offering school places to 60 new children in 
local area each year starting in September 2015. Once full, the school will 
accommodate 420 children in total. The school will be a non-denominational, 
co-educational provision that will welcome children from all backgrounds. 

 
1.5. This report is needed because of the change in the proposed school sponsor 

and the education offer at the site. 
 

1.6. All other aspects in relation to the disposal of the site remain the same. 
 
2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1. The Department for Education is responsible for approving free school 

proposals and for funding the capital costs of building free schools. The 
Department for Education has already informed the council that the proposed 
new free school at Pavilion Way site will now be sponsored by the Belle Vue 
Place Education Trust so the recommendation is that this should be formally 
noted and approved by the committee, for completeness. 
 

2.2. Delegation of further decisions on sponsorship of the school to the Director 
for Children’s Services will reduce the burden on the ARG committee in 
future, should a similar issue arise.  

 
3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 

227



 
3.1. The proposal not to proceed with the development of the site to provide new 

school places on the basis of a change in school sponsor was considered but 
rejected. This part of the borough has a shortage of primary school places 
and the change in school sponsor to Belle Vue Place Education Trust will 
enable to the proposal to proceed and will provide a new two form entry 
primary school offering non-denominational, co-educational school places 
that will welcome children from all backgrounds. 
 

4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 
4.1. Heads of Terms for the grant of an academy lease to Belle Vue Trust will be 

agreed with the DfE and a planning application will be made for the 
development of the site. The agreement for lease will be entered into once 
planning permission has been granted. 

 
5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION 

 
5.1. Corporate Priorities and Performance. 

 
5.1.1 The proposal confirmed by the Cabinet Resources Committee in 

December 2013 to enable a school to be provided alongside improved 
sporting facilities assists towards delivering the Council’s priority set out in 
its Corporate Plan for 2013-2016 of promoting responsible growth, 
development and success across the borough. The Committee 
considered that the construction of a new school and an area of all-
weather pitch to be used both by the school and local people would 
provide primary school places in an area of high demand for school 
places. The change in school sponsor enables this vision to proceed, with 
the school offering non-denominational, co-educational school places that 
will welcome children from all backgrounds in the area. The new facilities 
on the site will assist the Council in meeting its key priority outcome of 
creating better life chances for local people to keep fit by using the 
proposed all weather pitch. 

 
5.2. Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 

Property, Sustainability).  
 

5.2.1. The proposal by the Department for Education to substitute the Belle 
Vue Place Education Trust for the Marco Polo Academy will have no 
financial impact for the council.  

 
5.2.2. The Belle Vue Place Education Trust proposal is for a two-form entry 

primary school for 420 pupils. The Marco Polo proposal was for a two 
form entry primary school accommodating 360 pupils, proposing slightly 
fewer children in each form of entry. However the accommodation 
requirements for a two form entry school remain the same in relation to 
the number of classrooms etc. As the Belle Vue Place Education Trust is 
offering a non-denominational, co-educational offer it is likely that more 
children from the immediate locality will apply. The school design and 
development will be subject to the planning consent process. 

228



 
6. LEGAL AND CONSTITUTIONAL REFERENCES 

  
6.1. Council Constitution, Responsibility for Functions, Annex A – sets out the 

terms of reference of the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee which 
includes, “Asset Management – all matters relating to land and buildings 
owned, rented or proposed to be acquired or disposed of by the Council.”. 

 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT 

 
7.1. There is no risk to the Council of a change in the education sponsor for the 

proposed free school. 
 
8. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY  
 

8.1. The Belle Vue Place Education Trust will offer non-denominational, co-
educational school places that will welcome children from all backgrounds in 
the area. As the school will be open to all children in the local area to apply 
for a school place, there are no adverse equalities implications. Establishing 
a high quality education offer in the west of the borough, open to all children 
is likely to have a positive impact on equalities. 

 
 
9. CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT 
 

9.1. As the proposal is a change in the education sponsor for the new school, no  
consultation by the council is considered to be necessary. The new education 
sponsor is required to deliver any consultation requirements of the 
Department for Education as part of establishing a free school. 

 
10. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Cabinet Resources Committee 4 November 2013 Agenda item 12 
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s11396/Pavilion%20Way%20HA8%20
proposed%20disposal.pdf 

 
Business Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee 18 November 2013 
Decision Items 6-9  
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=5027 

 
Cabinet Resources Committee on 16th December 2013 for the development of 
the Pavilion Way site. 
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=5086 

 
 

229



230

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Summary 

 
This site shown outlined in red on the attached plan no1, comprises 0.29 hectares 

being 0.7  acres of Public Open Space which is currently land locked and not 

accessible to the public as it is bounded by Dollis Brook. The owner of one of the 

adjoining frontage properties approached the Council with a request to acquire the 

land to provide additional garden area for the redevelopment of the frontage site at 

71 Holden Road shown outlined in blue on the attached plan. A scheme was 

presented by HGS Properties (Brookdene Holden Road) Ltd in August 2014 with an 

offer detailed in the attached exempt report. Communication with Green spaces was 

maintained throughout negotiations which resulted upon conditions being imposed 

of a tree maintenance plan and no building on the woodland site. 

 

Recommendation  
1. That the land is declared surplus to the council’s requirements. 

 
 

 

Assets Growth and Regeneration 
Committee 

 

15 December 2014 
  

Title  
Land to the rear of 71 Holden Road, North 

Finchley, N12 

Report of John Hooton – Deputy Chief Operating Officer 

Wards Totteridge

Status 

 
Public with accompanying Exempt Report 
 

Enclosures                         Appendix 1 

Officer Contact Details  

Andrew Malinowski – Principal Valuer 
andrew.malinowski@barnet.gov.uk 
 
Judith Ellis – Valuation Manager  
Judith.ellis@barnet.gov.uk 

AGENDA ITEM 14b

231



2. That, subject to statutory public open space consultation, the Committee 
approve the granting of a two year call option to HGS Properties (Brookdene 
Holden Road Ltd) to purchase the public open space at the rear of 71 Holden 
Road on a 150 year lease subject to planning, a tree maintenance plan and the 
required legislative advertising as detailed in this and the exempt report.  

 
 

 
 
1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
  
 
1.1 This report is required to declare the land as surplus to Council’s requirements 

as the Council was approached by the adjoining owner to acquire the land to 
complement their development on the frontage land. The land is landlocked 
and not capable of being accessed for maintenance or the public except by 
fording the brook, which is not practical. The land has not been maintained 
and has therefore accrued a maintenance liability which if retained will need to 
be addressed in the future.   
 

1.2 To enable the sale of a long leasehold for 150 years of an area of Public Open 
Space, thereby retaining an element of control over the management of the 
woodland. 
 

1.3 To agree the terms of the call option for the disposal of the long leasehold 
interest in the land to include the payment of a non-refundable deposit. The 
option will be secured for a period of two years to enable planning consent to 
be obtained. The development proposal is to be for no more than 45 units and 
if this is exceeded, a claw back provision is to be provided.  
 

1.4 The financial details are provided in the exempt report 
 
 
2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION  

 
2.1 To secure a capital receipt from an area of currently un-useable Public Open 

Space. 
 

2.2 The disposal by means of a long lease ensures the Council retains limited 
control over the future of the site and preserves the visual impact of the 
woodland. 
 

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 
3.1 Retaining the site to preserve the visual amenity but this will incur continuing 

maintenance liability. 
 

3.2 Selling the freehold interest in the land. It is considered that a long leasehold 
would allow an element of control over the on-going use of the land. 
 

232



3.3 Purchasing a right of way from the developer to provide access from Holden 
Road. This will incur continuing maintenance liability in addition to the 
premium for securing a right of way. 
 

3.4 Fording the brook or constructing a bridge was considered but it is believed it 
would not be sufficient reason not to dispose of the site. Providing a bridge 
would provide access for maintenance at a cost, which would be substantial in 
relation to its potential use. No maintenance had been carried out and the 
woodland is in a neglected state. The most economical solution is to dispose 
of the site by way of a long lease. 
 

3.5 Advertising the land in the Open Market. The value of the land will only be 
achieved by developing the frontage land. In addition there is no practical 
access to the site except through the frontage site. As a result it was 
considered that the market for the site is limited to the frontage. 

 
 
4         POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 

 
4.1  Advertising under sec 123 (2A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the proposed 

disposal must be advertised for two consecutive weeks in a newspaper 
circulating in the area in which the land is situated, with any objections to the 
proposed disposal being considered by the Council. 
 

4.2   HB Public Law to draft the option agreement 
 
4.3    Agreeing a tree maintenance plan for the site. 

 

4.4    Monitoring the planning application for the development of No. 71 Holden 
Road.  

 

4.5   Monitoring the lease to ensure covenants and the maintenance plan are carried 
out by the tenant. 

 
5   IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  

 
5.1    Corporate Priorities and Performance 

 
5.1.1 The Barnet Corporate Plan 2013 to 2016 commits the Council to delivering 

better services with less money.  A key principle of the medium term financial 
strategy is to continually review the use of council assets so as to reduce the 
cost of accommodation year on year and to obtain best consideration for any 
surplus assets to maximise funds for capital investment and/or the repayment 
of capital debt.  This proposal does this by producing a capital receipt and 
reducing potential maintenance and management costs 
 

5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 
Property, Sustainability) 
 

5.2.1 Following the acceptance of the Council’s proposal there is a financial 

233



contribution for the leasehold disposal of the Public Open Space site as 
detailed in the exempt report.   

 
5.3 Legal and Constitutional References 

 
5.3.1 Local authorities are given powers under Section 123(1) of the Local 

Government Act 1972 (as amended) to dispose of land held by them in any 
manner they wish. The proposed sale will be at market value to the adjoining 
owner who is a special purchaser as he controls access to the council’s land.  

 
 

5.3.2 The Council Constitution, The Management of Asset, Property and Land 
Rules, Appendix 1, Table A sets out the authorisation thresholds which 
provides authority for the action proposed to be taken. Paragraph 8.1 states 
that ‘the method by which an Asset is acquired or disposed of should be 
based upon market testing to ensure that Best Consideration is obtained 
wherever possible as there is only one possible purchaser an independent 
valuation will be sought. 
 

5.3.3 Legal Services commented upon the contents of the Official Copy of Title and 
information collated from the Council’s deeds. The Mayor and Burgesses of 
the London Borough of Barnet possess the Freehold Title of the Land with 
Title Absolute and the title does not stipulate how the land should be held nor 
is there any fetter on the council’s power to dispose (other than complying 
with the requirements of sec 123 LGA 1972 noted in paragraph 5.3.5). 

 

5.3.4 The land comprises public open space. The advertising requirements for the 
disposal of open space pursuant to S.123 (2A) of the Local Government Act 
1972 apply to the grant of an option. The proposed option must be advertised 
for two consecutive weeks in a newspaper circulating in the area in which the 
land is situated, with any objections to the proposed disposal being 
considered by the Council. The advertisements in accordance with the 
statutory requirements should provide for a period of four weeks from the date 

 of the first public notice for any objections to be made. 
 

5.3.5 If any objections are made to the option then they will have to be considered 
by the Committee before the option is granted. If no objections are received 
the option may be granted and the Committee should be advised at the next 
opportunity. 
 

5.4 Risk Management 
 

There are no risks in granting an option to sell the leasehold interest in the 
land for a period of two years as the risks will occur during the option period. 
The two risks, which impact on the corporate plan are as follows 
 
Public objection to the sale of green space – this is a project risk which could 
prevent the eventual disposal if objections are raised. The nature of the risk is 
financial as it will prevent the sale. 

234



The land needs to be advertised under the requirements of S123(2A) of the 
Local Government Act 1972 and if objections are raised and the public outcry 
is great then it could jeopardise the sale. The situation may be mitigated for if 
objections are raised the Council has the ability to review the situation. In 
addition the public have an opportunity to voice their opinion when the 
development proposal is submitted for planning consent. 
 
 
Obtaining satisfactory planning outcome, - The main condition of the option is 

obtaining satisfactory planning consent on the adjoining site and if this is not 

granted the sale will not proceed. This is a financial project risk, which will 

terminate the activity  

 
5.5 Equalities and Diversity  

 
5.5.1 Any completed development will be marketed so it will be open to any 

category(ies) of person(s) to submit a bid, irrespective of race, sex, disability, 
sexual orientation, marital status, transgender, age, religion or religious belief.  
Further, the Council’s Equalities Policy and Scheme take account of the 
Council’s statutory duty to eliminate discrimination and inequality amongst 
persons of different race, gender and disability and to promote equal 
opportunities amongst persons of different race, gender and disability.  The 
proposed disposal will be evaluated against the principles in the Equalities 
Policy and no adverse implications for any, specific, equalities group has been 
identified.   

 
5.6 Consultation and Engagement 

 
5.6.1 None.  

 
6 BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
6.1.1 None.  

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

235



 

Appendix 1 

 

 

 

236



 

 

Summary 
In June 2013 the Council’s community hall in Coppetts Road N10 was burnt to the ground; 
at the time the primary user of the hall was the Somali Bravanese Community (“the 
Community”).There were no other Council buildings available to relocate the Community to 
following this event and they are currently using Barnet House as a temporary base for 
their study group activities, to maintain the essential work of the Somali Bravanese 
Community. East Finchley Library is also being used for the Community’s administration 
and general meetings. This is not a satisfactory solution. The Council has provided a 
budget, partly comprised of the insurance monies, which can be allocated to re-build a new 
community hall as indicated on the Plan ( land and buildings to the south of the entrance 
link as indicated on the Plan) 
. 
A number of options have been reviewed, including rebuilding the community hall at 
Coppetts Rd, but the option considered to be the best, is the re-provision of a Community 
Centre on the site of the Old Barn (Fellows Close N2) as edged with a red broken line on 
the Plan to include the refurbishment of the existing Old Barn building (“the Project”) 
following the anticipated imminent surrender of the Old Barn Youth and Community 
Association’s lease. This has been identified as the option that will provide a Community 
Hub, to give the greatest flexibility of use to the local community and provide the best value 
for money. 

 

 

Assets Regeneration and Growth 
Committee 

 

15
th
 December 2014 

  

Title  

Re – Provision of Community Hall in 
Tarling Road N2, previously in 
Coppetts Road N10 

Report of John Hooton, Deputy Chief Operating Officer 

Wards East Finchley 

Status Public 

Enclosures                         Plan showing proposed layout 

Officer Contact Details  
Mike Harris CSG 0208 359 2441 
michael.harris@barnet.gov.uk 

AGENDA ITEM 14c

237



 

 

Recommendations  
1. That the Committee approve the re provision of a Community Centre Tarling 
Road, N2 subject to granting of planning permission for a scheme which is 
within the approved budget. 

 
 
1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 

1.1 To allow the Project to be progressed to the next stage of design, so that 
costs and programme can be identified and the building works to the 
planned timescales in order that the Old Barn Community building can be 
brought back into use by the local community. 

 
 
2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
In June 2013 the Council’s Community Hall in Coppetts Road was burnt to the 
ground, at the time the principal user was the Somali Bravanese Community. There 
were no other Council buildings available and they are currently using Barnet House 
as a base for their study group, to maintain the essential work of the Somali 
Bravanese Community, this is not sustainable as Barnet House is needed to 
accommodate the Council’s staff relocation in 2015. East Finchley Library is also 
being used for the Community’s administration and general meetings. This is not a 
satisfactory solution.  The Council has provided a budget, partly comprised of the 
insurance monies, which can be allocated to re-build a new community hall as 
indicated on the Plan edged by a red broken line. 

 
2.1 The Council, working with the [local community], have recently taken 

possession of the Old Barn building. Originally the Council were proposing to build a 
community building on land adjacent to the Old Barn building, but now the Old Barn 
building is available, it allows a new option to refurbish and extend the building to 
form a new Community Hub accessible to all the residents. 
 

 
3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 
3.1 There remains the possibility to build a standalone community centre on 

the adjacent site off Tarling Road, this would provide a replacement 
building to the Bravanese Community, but provide less flexibility for 
community use. 
 

3.2 The redevelopment of the original site at Coppetts Road was investigated, 
but this proved to be unworkable, due to access issues for both the hall 
and adjacent school. 

 

238



 

 

 
4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 

 
4.1 Following approval from ARG committee the concept design will 

developed to enable a full planning application to be submitted. 
 

4.2 If the Project is granted planning approval and is within the approved 
budget, the Project team will progress to tender and commencement of the 
construction phase. 

 

 
 
5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  

 
5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 

 
5.1.1 The development of this new Community Centre was based upon 3 key 

objectives identified in the Councils Corporate Plan 2013-16 to;  
 

• To promote responsible growth, development, and success across 
the London Borough of Barnet ; 
 

• To support families and individuals that need it, promoting 
independence, learning and wellbeing; 

 

• To improve the satisfaction of residents and businesses with the 
London Borough of Barnet as a place to live, work and study. 

 
5.1.2 If there is no extension to the existing Old Barn Community hall there will 

not be a facility capable of accommodating the Old Barn Youth and 
Community Association or such other entity by way of substitution of them 
the Somali Bravanese and other local groups wanting the use the a 
Community Hub. The use by the Somali Bravanese of Barnet House and 
East Finchley Library is not acceptable, as they are working facilities used 
in conjunction with the Council and only a temporary solution. 
 

5.1.3 The current Old Barn site in its current state is not compliant with current 
regulations and requires upgrading/refurbishment to enable the building to 
be used for community use. 
 

 
 
5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 

Property, Sustainability) 
 

5.2.1 It is anticipated that the total budget to be dedicated to  the Project will be 
£1.7m, made up from £1.1m from the Forward Capital Plan and an 
additional £600k from an Insurance claim. £97k has already been 
committed for the demolition and making safe of the Coppetts Road 
building and site. 

239



 

 

 
5.2.2 Any monies required to make good and refurbish the Old Barn, will be met 

from existing budgets. 
 

 
5.2.3 The Project Team will produce a scheme for the new Community Hall, 

which will provide detailed planning drawings, a construction programme 
and a procurement strategy for formal tender of the proposed scheme, in 
line with the Council’s procurement rules and EU Legislation, to ensure 
Value for Money. 
 

5.3 Legal and Constitutional References  
 

5.3.1 Council Constitution, Section 15 Responsibility for Functions, Paragraph 2, 
Annex A , sets out the Terms of Reference for the Assets Regeneration 
and Growth Committee, whose specific responsibilities include (i) to 
Develop and oversee a regeneration strategy and (ii) Asset Management – 
all matters relating to land and buildings owned, rented or proposed to be 
acquired or disposed of by the Council. 

 
 

5.4 Risk Management 
 

5.4.1 There is a risk that if the Project proposed will not be available for the local 
residents and the Somali Bravanese community, then alternative 
accommodation will have to be found, as Barnet House is not sustainable, 
as this is a working facility and only a temporary solution. 

 
5.4.2 There is a risk that allocated funds will be insufficient to complete the 

project, Quantity Surveyors are embedded within the design team to 
manage costs and value engineering would take place to arrive at Cost 
Certainty 

 

5.4.3 The existing Old Barn community building in its current state is non-
compliant and without refurbishment/up-grade will not be available for 
community use. 

 
 
5.5 Equalities and Diversity  
 

5.5.1 Pursuant to the Equality Act 2010, the council and all other organisations 
exercising public functions on its behalf must have due regard to the need 
to eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct that is prohibited by or under the Act; advance equality of 
opportunity between those with a protected characteristic and those 
without; promote good relations between those with a protected 
characteristic and those without. The relevant protected characteristics are 
age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, 
religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation. It also covers marriage and civil 
partnership with regard to eliminating discrimination. 
 

240



 

 

5.5.2 The new Community Centre/Project as envisaged will be a facility 
available to and will meet the needs of, all members of the community. 
The options have been evaluated against the principles in the Equalities 
Policy and Equalities Scheme and there are no equalities and diversity 
issues relevant to this decision. 

 

5.5.3 The proposed works will comply with all current disability legislation.  
 

 
5.5.4 The proposed works will enhance the Borough’s reputation as a good 

place to live and work. 
 
5.6 Consultation and Engagement 

 
5.6.1 Consultations have taken place with local community stakeholders to 

enable Feasibility studies to be produced and preferred options to be 
identified, further consultations with these stakeholders will continue to 
‘fine tune’ the design through the planning process.  

 
 
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
 

• The budget was reported to the Cabinet on the 25th February 2014 and 

to the Council on the 4th March 2014, item 2.1 Appendix E Details of 

Cabinet programme 

 

Agenda item - Report from Cabinet - 25 February 2014: Business Planning 

2014/15 – 2015/16 - London Borough of Barnet Agenda item - Report from 

Cabinet - 25 February 2014: Business Planning 2014/15 – 2015/16 - London 

Borough of Barnet 

 

241



242

This page is intentionally left blank



In
d

ic
a
ti

v
e
 P

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
- 

T
h
e
 O

ld
 B

a
rn

 a
n
d
 N

e
w

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 R

e
p
ro

v
is

io
n

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
S

it
e
 P

la
n
 N

o
t 
T
o
 S

c
a
le

N
e
w

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 R

e
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
c
ti
o
n
 N

o
t 
T
o
 S

c
a
le

A
rt

is
ts

 I
m

p
re

s
s
io

n
s

W
e
e
k
e
n
d
s

E
venings

A
fte
rn

oon
s

Morn
in

gs

243



244

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Summary 

The Committee is requested to consider and comment on the items included in the 2014/15 
work programme 

 

Recommendations  

That the Committee consider and comment on the items included in the 2014/15 
work programme 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Assets, Regeneration and Growth 
Committee 

 

15 December 2014 

Title  
Assets, Regeneration and Growth 
Committee Work Programme 

Report of 
Deputy Chief Operating Officer  

Enterprise and Regeneration Lead Commissioner 

Wards All 

Status Public 

Enclosures                         Committee Work Programme December 2014 – May 2015 

Officer Contact Details  
Faith Mwende, Governance Officer 
Faith.Mwende@barnet.gov.uk, 020 8359 4917 

AGENDA ITEM 15

245



1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 
1.1 The Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee’s Work Programme 

2014/15 indicates forthcoming items of business for the municipal year. 
 

1.2 The work programme of this Committee is intended to be a responsive tool, 
which will be updated on a rolling basis following each meeting, for the 
inclusion of areas which may arise through the course of the year.  
 

1.3 The Committee is empowered to agree its priorities and determine its own 
schedule of work within the programme.  

 
 
2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
2.1 There are no specific recommendations in the report.  The purpose of the 

report is to allow the Committee to have oversight of its own schedule of work 
within the programme and to make any amendments and additions as 
required.  

 
 

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 

3.1 N/A 
 
 

4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

4.1 Any alterations made by the Committee to its Work Programme will be 
published on the Council’s website. 
 
 

5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 

5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
 

5.1.1 The Committee Work Programme is in accordance with the Council’s strategic 
objectives and priorities as stated in the Corporate Plan 2013-16. 
 

5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 
Property, Sustainability) 
 

5.2.1 None in the context of this report. 
 

5.3 Legal and Constitutional References 
 

5.3.1 Council Constitution, Responsibility for Functions, Annex A – details the terms 
of reference of the Assets Regeneration and Growth Committee. 

 
 
 

246



5.4 Risk Management 
 

5.4.1 None in the context of this report. 
 

5.5 Equalities and Diversity  
 

5.5.1 None in the context of this report. 
 
5.6 Consultation and Engagement 

 
5.6.1 None in the context of this report. 

 
 

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
6.1 None. 
 
 

247



248

This page is intentionally left blank



 

       
 

 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 o
f 
B
a
rn
e
t 

A
s
s
e
ts
, 
R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

G
ro
w
th
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 W

o
rk
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
4
 -
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
5
 

 

 

  
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t:
 F
a
it
h
 M

w
e
n
d
e
 0
2
0
 8
3
5
9
 4
9
1
7
 f
a
it
h
.m

w
e
n
d
e
@

b
a
rn
e
t.
g
o
v
.u
k
  

 249



 

P
a
g

e
 2

 o
f 

5
 

 S
u

b
je

c
t 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 r
e

q
u

e
s

te
d

 
R

e
p

o
rt

 O
f 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

1
5
 D

e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
4
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 

 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 f
in
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 f
o
llo

w
in
g
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

 

D
e
p
u
ty
 C

h
ie
f 
O
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 O

ff
ic
e
r 

 
H
e
a
d
 o
f 
E
s
ta
te
s
 

 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
s
s
e
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

 

T
h
is
 p
a
p
e
r 
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
, 
a
im

s
 

a
n
d
 d

ra
ft
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 S

tr
a
te
g
y
 

a
n
d
 
a
s
k
s
 
th
e
 
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 
to
 
a
g
re
e
 

th
a
t 
th
e
y
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 f
o
rw

a
rd
 f
o
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
 
th
e
 
p
u
b
lic
 
a
n
d
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

 

D
e
p
u
ty
 C

h
ie
f 
O
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 O

ff
ic
e
r 

 
H
e
a
d
 o
f 
E
s
ta
te
s
 

 

E
n
tr
e
p
re
n
e
u
ri
a
l 
B
a
rn
e
t 

 
T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 E

n
tr

e
p

re
n
e

u
ri
a

l 
B

a
rn

e
t 

fo
llo

w
in
g
 a
 p
e
ri
o
d
 o
f 
p
u
b
lic
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

 

E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 &
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 L
e
a
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 

 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 P
o
lic
y
 A
d
v
is
o
r 

 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

 
T
o
 a
g
re
e
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
. 

 

D
e
p
u
ty
 C

h
ie
f 
O
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 O

ff
ic
e
r,
 

E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 &
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 L
e
a
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 

 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 P
o
lic
y
 A
d
v
is
o
r 

 

B
re
n
t 
C
ro
s
s
 C

ri
c
k
le
w
o
o
d
 

- 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
E
x
te
n
s
io
n
s
 

 

T
o
 e
x
te
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
d
v
is
o
rs
 f
o
r 
th
e
 B
re
n
t 
C
ro
s
s
 

C
ri
c
k
le
w
o
o
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 p
ro
je
c
t,
 i
n
 

re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 B
re
n
t 
C
ro
s
s
 N

o
rt
h
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 B
re
n
t 
C
ro
s
s
 S
o
u
th
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 T
h
a
m
e
s
lin

k
 

S
ta
ti
o
n
. 

 

E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 &
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 L
e
a
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 

 

 B
X
C
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 D

ir
e
c
to
r,
  
R
e
 

250



 S
u

b
je

c
t 

D
e
c

is
io

n
 r

e
q

u
e

s
te

d
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 O

f 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

n
g

 O
ff

ic
e

r(
s

) 

B
re
n
t 
C
ro
s
s
 C

ri
c
k
le
w
o
o
d
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
U
p
d
a
te
 

 

T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
n
 u
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 

o
f 
th
e
 B
re
n
t 
C
ro
s
s
 C

ri
c
k
le
w
o
o
d
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 s
c
h
e
m
e
. 

 

E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 &
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 L
e
a
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 

 

 B
X
C
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 D

ir
e
c
to
r,
  
R
e
 

G
ra
h
a
m
e
 P
a
rk
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
, 
C
P
O
, 

G
ro
u
n
d
 1
0
A
 a
n
d
 

R
e
la
te
d
 C

o
n
s
e
n
ts
 

 

T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
s
 s
e
e
k
in
g
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
to
 

m
a
k
e
 a
 c
o
m
p
u
ls
o
ry
 p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 o
rd
e
r 

(C
P
O
) 
fo
r 
th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
th
re
e
 p
h
a
s
e
s
 o
f 

s
ta
g
e
 B
 o
f 
th
e
 G

ra
h
a
m
e
 P
a
rk
 

re
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 

a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
is
 b
e
in
g
 s
o
u
g
h
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 e
n
te
r 
in
to
 a
 C

P
O
 

in
d
e
m
n
it
y
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 g
e
n
e
s
is
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
o
 u
s
e
 

G
ro
u
n
d
 1
0
A
 (
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 2
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 a
c
t 

1
9
8
8
) 
to
 o
b
ta
in
 p
o
s
s
e
s
s
io
n
 o
f 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
d
w
e
lli
n
g
s
 i
n
 G

ra
h
a
m
e
 P
a
rk
. 
 

 

E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 &
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 L
e
a
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 

 

 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 N

e
w
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

(B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
) 

 

A
n
 u
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 t
h
e
 B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
n
e
w
 

a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
m
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

re
q
u
e
s
ts
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
to
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
w
o
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
u
n
it
s
 a
n
d
 f
o
r 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

fu
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 

 

E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 &
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 L
e
a
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 

 

 H
e
a
d
 o
f 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 B
a
rn
e
t 

H
o
m
e
s
 

A
s
s
e
ts
, 
L
a
n
d
 a
n
d
 

P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 T
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

fo
r 
A
p
p
ro
v
a
l 

 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
b
u
ild

in
g
s
 a
n
d
 s
it
e
s
. 

 

D
e
p
u
ty
 C

h
ie
f 
O
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 O

ff
ic
e
r 

 
  

1
6
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
5
 

251



 S
u

b
je

c
t 

D
e
c

is
io

n
 r

e
q

u
e

s
te

d
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 O

f 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

n
g

 O
ff

ic
e

r(
s

) 

B
re
n
t 
C
ro
s
s
 C

ri
c
k
le
w
o
o
d
 

C
P
O
 1
 

 

T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
n
 u
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 t
h
e
 B
re
n
t 

C
ro
s
s
 C

ri
c
k
le
w
o
o
d
 S
o
u
th
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
 t
o
 

m
a
k
e
 C

o
m
p
u
ls
o
ry
 P
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 

O
rd
e
r(
s
) 
to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 l
a
n
d
 a
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

 

E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 &
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 L
e
a
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 

 

 B
X
C
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 D

ir
e
c
to
r,
  
R
e
 

B
re
n
t 
C
ro
s
s
 C

ri
c
k
le
w
o
o
d
 

C
P
O
 2
 

 

T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
n
 u
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 t
h
e
 B
re
n
t 

C
ro
s
s
 C

ri
c
k
le
w
o
o
d
 S
o
u
th
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
 t
o
 

m
a
k
e
 C

o
m
p
u
ls
o
ry
 P
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 

O
rd
e
r(
s
) 
to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 l
a
n
d
 a
s
s
e
m
b
ly
. 

 

E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 &
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 L
e
a
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 

 

 B
X
C
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 D

ir
e
c
to
r,
  
R
e
 

B
re
n
t 
C
ro
s
s
 S
o
u
th
 -
 

S
e
le
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
P
a
rt
n
e
r 

 

T
o
 s
e
le
c
t 
a
 p
re
fe
rr
e
d
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
fo
r 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 B
re
n
t 
C
ro
s
s
 S
o
u
th
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
. 

 

E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 &
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 L
e
a
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 

 

 B
X
C
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 D

ir
e
c
to
r,
  
R
e
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

R
e
p
o
rt
 

 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

R
e
p
o
rt
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
n
 u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 

th
e
 G

ro
w
th
 &
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

 

E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 &
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 L
e
a
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 

 

  

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 

 

T
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 

fo
r 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 

o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w

it
h
in
 t
h
e
 r
e
m
it
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
m
m
it
te
e
. 

 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 D

ir
e
c
to
r 
fo
r 
G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

 

  

252



 S
u

b
je

c
t 

D
e
c

is
io

n
 r

e
q

u
e

s
te

d
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 O

f 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

n
g

 O
ff

ic
e

r(
s

) 

F
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 C

h
a
rg
e
s
 

re
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 A
s
s
e
ts
, 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

G
ro
w
th
 

 

T
o
 m

a
k
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

P
o
lic
y
 &
 R

e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 C

o
m
m
it
te
e
 o
n
 

F
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 C

h
a
rg
e
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 A
s
s
e
ts
, 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 G

ro
w
th
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 D

ir
e
c
to
r 
fo
r 
G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

 

  

A
s
s
e
ts
, 
L
a
n
d
 a
n
d
 

P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 T
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

fo
r 
A
p
p
ro
v
a
l 

 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
b
u
ild

in
g
s
 a
n
d
 s
it
e
s
 

 

D
e
p
u
ty
 C

h
ie
f 
O
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 O

ff
ic
e
r 

 
  

253



254

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 18

255

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



258

This page is intentionally left blank



259

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



260

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 19

261

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



268

This page is intentionally left blank



269

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



270

This page is intentionally left blank



271

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



280

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	7 STRATEGIC ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN
	Appendix 1 - Strategic Asset Management Plan
	Appendix 2 - SAMP Consultation Plan

	8 COMMUNITY ASSET STRATEGY
	Appendix 1 - Community Asset Strategy - FINAL
	Appendix 2 - List of assets in the current community portfolio - FINAL

	9 ENTREPRENEURIAL BARNET
	Appendix 1 - Entrepreneurial Barnet
	Appendix 2 - EIA for Entrepreneurial Barnet

	10 BUSINESS PLANNING
	APPENDIX A 141202 Assets Regeneration  Growth Commissioning Plan CLEARED

	11 BRENT CROSS CRICKLEWOOD - PROJECT UPDATE
	12 BRENT CROSS CRICKLEWOOD - CONTRACTS EXTENSIONS
	13 GRAHAME PARK; CPO/GROUND 10A AND RELATED CONSENTS
	Annex 1 - Grahame Park Proposed Phasing Plan - Extent of Stage B
	Annex 2 - Grahame Park - Plan showing extent of Stage A and the Concourse Phase Prioritised Decant Area

	14a PAVILLION WAY - CHANGE OF FREE SCHOOL SPONSOR
	14b LAND TO THE REAR OF 71 HOLDEN ROAD
	14c RE-PROVISION OF COMMUNITY HALL IN TARLING ROAD, PREVIOULSY IN COPPETTS ROAD
	Re provision of Community Centre proposed layout.

	15 COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME
	ARG - Plan

	18 LAND TO THE REAR OF 71 HOLDEN ROAD (EXEMPT)
	ARG Eempt Appendix A - Residual Value Estimate

	19 LOCAL AUTHORITY NEW HOUSING PROGRAMME (BARNET HOMES)
	Appendix A Accomodation schedule & list of sites
	Appendix B Walker Management tender report


